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could have been bent up; I epeak now of the lacing angles. How do you account for
any of them being bent up. .

Mr. HaLevy.—] will tell you, it is very simple to me. I did not describe any
below here at all (indicating). I spoke of compresssion and when it shoves together,
these things have naturally got to go some way or other.

Mr. Horaate.—Which, the lacing angles

Mr. HaLev.—The lacing angles, yes.

Mr. Horaate—Let us first of all confine ourselves to the bulge. Was there any
change observable in the lacing bars at the bulge?

Mr; Harey.—None that I could notice, but just behind the bulge.

My, HoLaaTE.—Waa there any observable distortion or Lulge where you did notice
the change in the shape of the angle lacingt

Mr. HaLey.—There was down in the centre of the chord. That is, I mean the
centre of the outside web, the top and bottom edges of the outside web were separated
by a very heavy angle, and this did not show so much as it did down in the centre; this
bulge is down along in the centre.

Prof. Garsraira.—You are speaking now just of the outside rib?

Mr, Harey.—Yes.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—And there are angles on both top and bottom of the outside ribt

Mr. Hatey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GaLsraITH.—You put your eye along the outside line of these angles, did
you?

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir,

Prof. GaLBraiTH.—This is the joint between 10 and 9 on Exhibit 27-A 1

Mr, HaLev.—Yes, sir.

~ Prof, GarerairH.—The bulge outwards on each side you eaid was 14 inches ap-
parently out of linet

Mr. Hatey.—Yes, sir.

‘Mr. HoLoaTE suggested an adjournment in order that a sketch might be made by
Mr. McLure for the use of the Commissioners in examining Mr. Haley, in order to
avoid confusion in his evidence between the two sketches which had been used in his
examination,

The Commission toock recess.

A¥TERNOON SESSION—FIFTH DAY.

Epwarp A. Hoarg, Chief Engineer, Quebec Bridge Company, recalled.

Mr. HoLaaTe,—Mr. Hoare, we asked you for some further papers to be put inf

Mr. Hoare.—One was in answer to that question, as to the number of times I
visited the bridge during erection. 1 have written out my answer, thought over it and
written it out. It was an incomplete answer. (Resding):

In answer to question as to number of times I visited the bridge during erection,
I find that I have not noted each trip, as at times when work was active my tripe were
often daily. I can aleo positively state that with the exception of the time required

——for-visits-to Phenix- Bridge Company’s -works-at—Phenixville;-and-for-other-offieial —

purposes, connected with the Bridge Company’s business, my visits were at least three
times & week. Having telephone communication from the Qucvec office and my
residence it was my daily custom, with few exeeptmns, to call the bridge office to
know what kind of work was in progress or going to be done thst day, and if it was
_yreparation work or moving the traveller, I generally remained in the office.

I can also positively state that since the commencement of any kind of work
for the Quebsc Bridge Company I have never taken uny vacation and have always
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been within call and never off duty more than forty-eight hours at a time and then
only once or twice a year. ]

You also asked me to file my professional record, to be more exact than the
general information I gave you. This will take the place of my incomplete evidence;
it is supplementar; to my former evidence. I could rot remember dates, I had to
refer to some back records to get that statement. I submit this document:

PROFESSIONAL RECORD OF E. A. HOARE.

1866 to 1868 inclusive, in engineer’s office, London, England, and on marine workas
connected with same.

1869 to end 1870, assistant engineer on Toronto, Grey and Bruce Railway.

1870 to 1872, resident engineer Great Northern Railway construction of Glencoe
and Fort Erie loop: line.

1873, after completion of loop line, appointed resident engineer on Wellington,
Grey and Bruce branch lines between main line Great Western Railway and Lake
Huron.

1873 to end of 1883. Appointed resident engineer by North Shore Railway Com-
pany on line between Quebec and Montreal, afterwards assistant chief engineer under
commissioners appointed by provincial government of Quebee, to take over and com-
plete the North Shore Railway between Quebec, Montreal and Oftawa, now a part
of the Canadian Pacific Railway system.

1884 to 1889.  Chief engineer and superintendent for H. I. Beemer, contractor
on railway construction, terminals, work shops and water works.

From July 1889 to sutumn of 1900. Chief engineer, Quebec and Lake St. John
Railway and for about half that period at the same time chief engineer of Great
Northern Railway between Rividre a Pierre Junction on Quebec and Lake St. John
Railway and Hawkesbury, Ontario, the laiter railway being controlled by the Quebec
and Lake St. John Railway Company.

From last date to present time chief engineer Quebec Bridge and Railway Com-
pany.

Exclusive of the Quebec Bridge and Railway Company’s works, the other work
included about 27,000 feet of bridging, the majority being of steel on masonry piers
and many deecp water foundations.

Mr. Hovaate.—Then there were certain reports of inspectorst
Mr. Hosre.—Yes, I would like to put on evidence a package of inspectors’ reports
tl_)ﬁt were sent to me by Mr. Edwards from Phamnixville, the chief inspector at Phenix-
viile,
(Three packages of pavers produced, filed and marked as Exhibit No. 28.)
Mr. Horoate.—Then, Mr. Hoare, we want the diary of works.
i ?Mr. Hoare.—The book I was showing you this morning, do you want that put on
e
Mr. HoLGATE—T think we had better have that, yes. That dairy is whatf
Mr, Hoare.—It is simply a daily record of erection. I might want to refer to
that from time to time, could I get it#
Mr. HoraaTe.—Ob, it will always be available.
Mr. Hoare—I have not a copy of it.
Mr. Howoate—~That was kept by—
Q l;lg Hoare.—Tt is the Quebec office record, I used to keep it in the office at
uebec, - )
Mr. HoLoATE—And by whom was it written up?
Mr. Hoare.—Mr. McLure used to write it up for me.
.. Mr. HoLoaTe—So that the diary is Mr. McLure’s diary§

Mr. Hoare.—Taken from his field notes so that I could refer tc; anythmg ;r'er wem

discussing. T could turn that diary up in the office in Quebec and we eould under-

)

oy
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stand each other. We used to talk a good deal over the ’phone about these matters.
I had one record in the office and he had his field record and in discuseing any parti-
cular matter we had identically the same records. That is a list of the tests which I
will deposit (producing document). They are as follows :
Reports of :—
. Full sized eye-bar tests. _
. Material tested at Phoenixville;
. Material tested at Carnegie’s mill.
. Physical and chemical tests, Carnegie’s mill,
Reports on condition of work at shops. .
. Physical and chemical tests at Central works, Harrisburg.
. Physical and chemical tests at Central works, Harrisburg,
. Physical and chemical tests at Phenixville.

The witness retired. N

[+ S BN - )

D. B. HaLey re-called.

& g?mf. GaLBrarTH.—You recognize that sketch as No. 9 chord and this as No. 8
or

Mr, Hatey.—This is the pier this way, is iti . ,

Prof. GaLeraitH.—Now with reference to the bulging of the lattice bars which
you spoke of this morning, will you kindly peint it out on that diagram?

(Diagram filed and marked as Exhibit 27-B.)

Prof. Gasrartii—Now be very careful, this is the next.

’ll;he witness pointed to spots on the diagram which were marked by Prof. Gal-
braith.

Prof. GaLbrarri.—Those are the only three places you noticed a bulge? A, B and
C.  You noticed the bulges in the parts of the lacing marked by A, B and C on
271B? :
Mr. HaLey.—These I paid particular attention to. There were otker bulges there,
but not go big as these. : . .

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—Did you observe any other bulging of the lacing? For
instance, ¢id you see anything on the bottom side of the chordi

My. Harer.—No, I did not notice anythix ¢ there; I did -not look.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—Did you make any measurements of this bulging?

Myr. HaLevy.—No, sir. '

Prof. GarsrarrH.—Was the lacing curved horizontally, sideways, as well as up
and down, either or both?

Mr. HaLey.—In some cases both and in some cases it was just sideways and not

up at all. .

Prof. GaLBRAITH.~—Each of these points was bulged down!?

My, Hatev.—I could not tell you that.

Prof, GaLBRAITH.~—~—Which was bulged up?

Mr, HaLey—It would take a very close inspection to remember all those little
things. I distinctly saw that they were kinked and bulged out of shape.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—But you cannot specify each particular portion where any
- special bulging took placel

Mer, Harey.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLpraiTH.—Where were the bulges that you testified to this morning of the
chord ribs in relation to this? Would you kindly mark them on the drawing?
(Referring to Exhibit No. 27B.) . -
Prof. KeerY.—You show the bulge on the 8th chord? Was the bulge on the 8th
chordt o

Mr, HaLey.—It was on both of them.
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Prof. Kerry.—Where were you standing?

Mr. HaLey.—]1 was standing at the panel point between 8 and 9. ]

Prof. Kerry.—Then the bulge that you saw was on panel 8 or panel 91 Was it
the first piece from the pierf

Mr, Haveyv.—It was the second picce.

Prof. Kerav.——That is panel 9 then? The sketch you showed was of panel 8.

Prof. GavLsraiTii—Were you standing on chord 8 or 91 ‘

Mr. HaLEY.—~Qn chord 8.

‘Prof. Kerry.—You were on the third panel from the pier{

Mr. Harey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And the failure was under your feet?

Mr. Harey.—Jusi shead of me, two or three feet ahead of me looking towards
the pier. _

li’rof. Gasrairi.—You have already said you could not particularize as to the
Lulges, that you could nut state which was up and which was down. Were there any
side bends in the lacing?

Mr. Harey.—Yes, sir.

Prot. Gavsrarti.—Can you specify the side bends?

Mr. HaLey.—Y could not point out definitely as to each one. I could see they -
were on « line. .

Prof. GarBraiti.—Did you notice whether there was any disturbance in the mext
panel of lacing bekind youf

Mr. HaLey.—No, sir, I did not notice that.

Prof. Gavsraitit.—This was the only place where you noticed a disturbancs in
the lecing in chord 81

cur, HALEY.—In chord 8—yes, sir.

+'rof. GaLBRAITH.—Going past the post, looking along chord 9 to the centre pier,
did you observe any disturbgnce in the lacing.

Mr. HaLey.—No, sir, I did not look at the lacing at all.

Prof. GaLBrarti.—Did you look at the ribs?

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GaLBrarrit—Did you notice any disturbance in the ribs#

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Gaveratti.—Would you kindly mark on the plan (Exhibit No. 27B) what
you saw? : .

Mr. HALEY—(Witness marked on plan and added): I saw both outside ribs
warped in and out in approximstely the two southern lacing panels in chord 9 which
T have indicated on Exhibit No. 27B.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.~You are speaking in the common way, you can call it either
south or east?

Mr. Hatev.—You can call it either south or east. .

Prof. Gatrarri.—But we will “call it for this purpose the south side.

Mr. Hatey.—All right.

Prof. GaLBRAITII.—Can you particularize the shapes of the bulges on, these two
panels of lacing?

Mr. Hatey.—No, sir. All I can say iz that they were somthing like an 8,

Prof, GarsrartH.—~ am speaking of the lacings? )

- Mr. Hatev.—1 did not notice these lacings,

- Pro1.-GALBRAITH.—Can you' particularize the deformation, bgnding, warping, or

whatever you may call it, of the two ribs?

. thig piece.

Mr. Havev.—It was sbout an inch deviation in each. T stood upon chord 8 near

Prof. GALBRAITH.—You do not remembe th :
have shown here? T the number of bends in the lengt

Mr. HaLey.—No.

h you
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Prof, GaLerarTH.-—Would there be two beudsi

Mr, Harey.—Yes, two or three. :

Prof. GaLeaarrH.—We are now discussing the joint between 9 and 10 and you
bave stated what you know about the bends in the outside ribs of chord 9 at that jointt

Mr. HaLey.—-Yes, sir.

Prof. Garerarrh.-—The splice marked X on Exhibit No. 27A is the splice marked
in the same manner on Exhibit 27B{

Mr, Hargy.—Yes.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—Are the two bulges marked on Exhibit 27A in the neighbour-
hood of the said splice the same bulges marked on Exhibit No. 27B, in the corres-
ponding place! Do they represent the same bulges?t

Mr, HaLey.—Yes,

Prof. GaLBraiTH marks the joint referred to on Exhibit No. 27 as Y and also the
corresponding joint on Exhibit No, 27B and continues: You say that the joint
marked Y on Exhibit Nos. 27 and 27B represent the same joint?

Mr. HaLEv.—Yes, sir. L

Prof. GaLsrartH—On Exhibit 27B I see no reference to any bulging of the ribs.
Dld these ribs bulge?
~Mr.Harey.—~Yes,—

Prof. GaLsearri.—How did they bulge?

Mr. HaLey.—They bulged out sideways.

Prof. GaLerAITH.—To what extent?

Mr. HaLey.—To the extent I have marked here.

Prof, GaLBrAITH.—What is the length of the bulgest

My, HaLey.—I never measured.

Prof. GaLBraiTH.~Estimate?

Mr. HaLev.—Two or three feet—a little bit longer on the Quebec side.

Prof. GareraitH—T .at is on this sidet

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GaLBrAITH—About the deflection-—the spnngmgi

Mr. HaLev.—I should say two inches.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—Did you measure it{

Mr, Harevy.—No, sir,

Prof. GaLerarrH.—You estimate the springing to be sbout two inches on the
Quebec sidef

Mr. HaLev.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GarsrarrR.—How much was the deflection on the Montreal sidet

Mr. HaLey.—About an inch.

Prof. GaLerartH—Now we refer to splice X. Can you give, appronmately, tha
length of the bended portion on each side of the chordi

Mr, Harey.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLBraITH.—Can you give an estimate of tbe bended portion on each side
of the chord?

Mr. HaLey.—-Y think it was about an inch. I estimated it.

Vrof, GALBRAITH.—Was the length of the bended portions of the ribs on this
splice bout the length of two panels of lacing?! :

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir, to the best of my judgment.

Prof GALBBAITH.—And there were bends on each side, how deep?

Mr. HaLey.—About an inch.

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—On both sides{

Mr, Havev.—Yes, sir.

- Prof. GaLeearrn.—More than one on each side?

Mr. HaLev.—Yes, two or three of them.

 Prof. Gawsrarra.—Shall I put down two or threef
Mr, Harev.—Well, it is not deﬁmte, you know.
Prof. GALBRAITH. --That diagram is now correct, is it?
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Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GarBrAITH.—At what time did you observe the bent ribs at splice X on
Exhibit 27 B1

Mr. HaLgy.-—August 28. . ,

Prof. GaLBra:Tu.—At what time did you observe the corresponding appearances
at splice Y on the same exhibit? . B

Mr. HaLey.—August 28.

Mr, HoLoaTE.—In what condition did you find the corresponding points on the
Montreal side of the bridge? : .

Mr. Harev.—I just noticed one point on the Montreal side on No. 8 chord.

Mr. HorcaTeE.—Was that correspor ding i position to point Y on 27 Bt

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir,

Mr, HoLcaTE.—Directly opposite to it?

Mr, HaLEY.—Yes.

Mr, HoLcaTr.—On the western chord?

Mr. HaLey.—On the Montreal side chord.

Mr. Horgate.—Did it differ in any particular from what you noticed at point Y ¢

Mr, Hacey.—It was just about the same, but not so much.

Mr. Horcate~—How did you get at iti Were you on the chord{

Mr. Havey.—I simply walked across on the bottom laterals, ™

Mr. HoLaaTE.—Would you find out from very close inspection on the spot where
the trouble was?

Mr. HaLey.—Yes, :

Mr. HorLaaTe.—You may describe what that was as you found it?t

Mr. HaLey.—It was very much the same as on this side.

Mr. HoraaTe—It was very much the same as on the Quebec sidet

Mr. HaLev.—Yes, I noticed some lacings were out of place and I could notice
the side waving.

Mr. HoraaTeE.—The side of the chord?

Mr. Harey.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horaate.—One side or two sides?

Mr. HaLey.—Both sides.

Mr. HoraaTe.—Was there very much bulging theref

Mr. Havey.—Bulging signifies one bulge in ome place, but at this place it was
waving just like a snake, two or three deviations from the straight line that it
should be.

Mr, DavipsoN.—In and out?

Mr. Hatey.—Yes. )

Mr. HoreaTE.—Did you make any measurements of that?

Mr. HaLey.—No,
oo M;- Hovaate~Did you notice any defect that the change of shape had upon the
acing

Mr. Harev.—I noticed that the lacing was out of place.

Mr. HoLoaTe.—In what way{

Mr, Harev.—Kicked sideways and bent.

Mr. HoLaATE.—Wus that visible both on the top chord and bottom chord?
. rer. Havey.—I did not notice on the bottom of the chord; just on the top of the
chord.

Mr. HoLoaTe.—Were the lacing angles bent?

Mr, HaLey.—Yes. .

Mr. HoLoATE.—Were the angles that passed across at right angles to the chord
distorted vr broken in any way?

Mr. Harey.—No, they were not broken, but they showed that they had too much
strain, : '

Mr, HoLgaTe.—How would they show that?
Mr. Haey.—By being warped a little bit. I walked just across one on the
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diagonals but I just noticed these cross ones. . They were a little bit warped at the
top of the perpendicular angles, .
Mr. HoLoaT.—Were any ribs connecting them to the chords brokent
Mr. Haigyr.~—No, sir, I did not notice any. ‘
Mr. HoLoaTE.—Is there anything else there that you notice? Is it fully described?
Mr. Hatky.—I have pretty fully described all I saw. e :
Mr. Horeate.—] mesan sbout that particular point?
Mr. Haugv.—It is pretty fully described. It was not full of bolts.
Mr. HoLaaTE.—That splice was not. . :
Mr, Harey.—Yes. It was about two-thirds full of bolts and some of them wero
Mr. HoLoaTe.—That is the joint on the Montreal sidel )
Mr, HavLzy.—Yes, air.
Mr. HoLuATE.—Between 8 and 91
Mr., HaLEy.—Yes, sir,
Mr. HoraaTe.—What proportion of it was bolted!
Mr, HaLey.—About two-thirds.
Mr. HoraaTe.—Was it riveted at allt
Mr, HALBY.—No, 8iFe -
Mr. Horaate.—What proportion of these bolts would be § and what proportioc &t
Mr. Harey.—I could not say—a very small proportion, but I noticed some.
Mr. Horoate.—How could you tell a § from a § bolti
Mr. HaLev.—It is very easy for me; I have been in the business nine years.
Mr. HoLaaTe.—After nina years of experience you might have an idea of the pro-
portion one to the other?{ '
Mr. Harey.—If I had noticed it closely encugh. I could just see the bolts there
and I noticed that, ’
Mr. HoLaaTE—] suppose that to some extent § bolts were necessary cn that work ¢
Mr. Haiey.—I expect they were when you could not get holes for big bolts,
Mr, Horaate.—Could you say that there were more § bolts there than were neces-
sary at that point{ o .
Mr. HaLev.—I am not prepared to say that. It did not look to me as if § bolta
should have been used there at all. _ '
Prof. GALBRAITH.—Was there any side displacement at that splice and the ends
of the adjoining chordsi
: Mr, Harev.—I did not look at that closely.
Prof. Kerey.—When you were talking about that splice this morning, Mr. Haley,
you said that the web was out of line about § of an inch?
Mr. Harx v.—Yes, sir. '
Prof. Kerov.—Did they bring these webs back into line with a jack before they
riveted them{ T
Mz, HaLev.—I could not swear to that. )
Prof. Kzary.—You do not know whether they jacked them back into linef
Mr. Harey.—They evidently helped them some, because I could see on August
28 on the splices the cover plate was drawn in for rivets and there was a bend in it
right at this splice.
Prof. Kxsav.—The cover plate was not flat}
Mr, Havey.—No, showing that the splice had never been pulled into shape. That
was on the bottom and I got down there and inspected it closely. -
Prof. Kxeey.—Was it like a regular crimp or a long bend ?
Mr. HaLey—It was a bend that was put in there with an 8-pound maul.
Prof. GaLsgarra—Are you speeking now of a joint on the Quebec side of the
bridge or a joint on the Montreal side of the bridge! .
Mr, Harey.—A joint on the Quebec side of thie bridge.-
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Mr. Horoate-—Were there any other points that you wanted to draw our atten-
tion to, Mr. Haley, that you observed? :

Mr. HaLey.—Not about this steel work., I have explained about all X know about
it.

Mr. Stuart.--Before you leave that would you mind getting exactly who accom-
panied him on the occasicn of each of these visits?

Mr, Howoarz.—Who accompanied you on the ocension of each of these visits {

Mr. HALEY-—On August 8th there was Mr. Joe Ward and Mr. Qeorge Cook.

Prof. GaLBraiTH.—Are they alive now § .

Mr. HaLey.—No sir, and on August 28th there were Mr. George Cook, Mr. Tom
Callahan and Mr. Harry Briggs.

" Prof. GaLBraiTH.—Are the last two alive { S e

Mr, Harev.—All three dead. :

Prof. Kesrv.—You noticed no other defect on the bridge 1

Mr. Harey.—No, sir.

Prof. Kesey.—That is all the defective work you know of §

Mr. Hatey.—All the defective work on the bridge; yes, sir.

Mr. Ho1GaTE.—And you paid no other visit but these two to these points 1

Mr. Havev.—No, sir, - -

Prof. (GaLBraiTH.—Do you identify this drawing as represcuting the west or
Montreal chord that is referred to in your previous evidence

Mr. Harey.—Yes, sir. (Drawing put in, filed and marked Exhihit No, 270.)

Prof. Kerrv.—I did not follow you this morning. You said that you made a
mark on the chord on the 28th and you were going to go back to see it on the 20th.

Mr, Harey.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.—Tell me again how that mark was made and what the mark was.

Mr. Hatey.—I sighted the rivets right along the chord and I had Mr. Cook go
down with a piece of soapstone and mark the first rivet I noticed that was out of
line sticking up higher than the rest in the row.

Prof. Kernv.—What was the row of rivets holding together {

Mr. HaLev.—The outside web on the Quebec side of chord No. 8.

Prof, Kerry.—That is the outside vertical web §

M. Harev.~-Yes, sir.

Prof. Kenry.—One side of the chord?

Mr. HaLey.~Yes, )

Prof. Keray.—And you sighted along one of thesel

Mr. Harey.—Yes, and—

Prof. Kerrv.—And he marked the first one that was out of line.

Mr. HaLex.—Out of line.

Prof. Kerrv.—And ihen? o

Mr. Hargv.—He went a little ways further and marked another. He went far
enough to get one that was half way out. One was out half way—half of the head
higher t_han the rest of the rivets—and he made a mark around this rivet, and we figured
on coming around again on Thursday night to investigate after quitting time to see
if any of these rivets had been shoved any further out. I was afraid of it myaelf.
That is the reason I marked it.

Prof. Kerry.—What was shoving outf

Mr. Hatey.~The sides of chord No. 8.

Prof, Kerry.—They were shoving out and the tops of these rivets were a]ong the
top of the chord?

Mr. Hatey.—The chord was bulged. That portion (exhibiting a di m) repre-
sents the whole depth of the chord and this is the row <()f rivets.ngAs Iaﬁ::kec)l algng
that I came to the first rivet I noticed that was out of line and I had him mark it.

Prof. KErrv.—It is riveted on the sidef ‘

Mr. HaLev.—Yes, sir; and a little way farther he got a riv tha wa,
up ond he marked it all around the rivet.y go ot (hat was Lalf way
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Prof. Kesry.—1 do not follow yet which line of rivets that was.

Mr, Harey.—The second row of rivets; a little below the angle.

Prof, Kerrv.—So that it was bent up or out §

Mr. HarLev.—Bent out. Part of it was straight and then you would come to
a bend and as you looked along the row you would see this sticking out. I was look-
ing along horizontally.

Prof. GaLerarrH.—Could you see the neck of the nvet under the head { :

Mr. Havey.—No, 1 mean that this sheet (demonstrating with sheet of paper)
was projected out and that this rivet (indicating) showed up more than the rest.

Mr. Horaate.—You would be standing on the bottom lateral {

e ﬁr Harzy.—No, sir, oh my knees on the top of the bottom chord looking over
go.

Mr. HoLGATR.—When you got this information what use did you mnke of itt

My, Hacey.—This information{ .

Mr. HoLoate.~Yes, about these matterst

Mr. HaLey ——Why I snmp]y made ‘he remark that if I noticed any more to-morrow
night, I was going, I was going from the job. -

Mr, HoroATE—What I meant is, did you consider it important enough to state it
to your foreman?

Mr. HaLe.—Oh, yes, I told it to several of them.

Mr. Horoate—1 mean your own foreman {

Mr. HaLEy.—Yes, I rode from work in a carriage with Tom Aderholdt, Worley,
and Arthur Meredith.

-Mr, Horoate.—Didn’t you see Mr. Yenser between this time and the time of the
accident {

Mr. HaLey.—No, sir, I saw him down on the deck under me the next day when
I was working but I didn’t see him to talk to.

Mr. HoLoaTE—You did not mention it to Mr. Yenser? , :

Mr. HaLey.—Oh, no, those people only laughed at me. Yenser was scared to
death, anyhow.

Prof KerrY.—Was that positive knowledge Mr, Haley or just hearsay!

Mr. HALEY.—What?

Prof. Keary.~~The statement that you made about-Mr. Yensert

Mr. Harey.—It is positive, I do not suppose he was scared to death, it did not
kill him.

Prof. Kerry.—What ground have you for making that statement?

Mr, Haey.—I have these grounds. I slid down from the traveller op a line in
the morning to go to the toilet which was down on the lower chord very close to this
defective chord and I saw the red stringers, that is the temporary floor stringers used to
get the load out all standing in front of the office and I noticed after a while again
that they went back to the yard agam and T heard the report that Mr. Yenser would
not place them, that his life was in danger as much as ‘anybody else’s. I did not hear
that myself, that is second hand.

Mr. HoroatE—Who told you that?

Mr. HaLev.—Mr. Brittain, over there.

Mr, HoLoaTe.—But you see it would look to me this way: that whereas you might
place great importance on these matters now, that at that time you might not have
placed the same importance cn these things that you observed, and the fact of your
going cut to work and the othér men going out to work rather shows that : you did
not consider these things of as great importance then as you might now. I thought
that would be probable, a natural way of looking at it.

Mr. HaLeY—Well it fooled us, we did not think it would go so quick, that is all

Mr. HoraaTe—Your own ides was that you did not think them so serious as to
keep you from working on the bridgef

Mr. Hargy.—I thought them very serious, but I thought surely T would have a-
chance to look at them the next night.
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Mr. HoruaTE—You are 8 man of experience in bridge building I take it. Now
in the methods used there with regard to erection was ordinary care usedi
Mr. HaLey.—Yes, sir.
Mr, HoroaTe.—And the appliances that were used——
Mr. HaLev.—Were very good.
Mr. HoLoaTE—Were they very good{
Mr, HaLey.—Yes, sir. . .
Mr. Horoate.—When you consider the exceptional character of the work you
consider them very goodi
Mr. HaLey.—With one or two exceptions. One exception in particular where they
landed the bottom chord section with a channel that had I think six bolts, and 1 was
always afraid of that. Of course 1 was not under it, T was on top of everything.
That is the only thing that I did not like. -
Mr. Howoate—Did you see any of these operations?
Mr. Harey.—Oh, yes.
Mr. HoroaTeE.—And were they carried out successfully
Ar. YIaLEY.—Oh, yes, there was never anything happened from it.
Mr. Holoae.—And had you confidence in Mr. Yenser{ .
Mr. HaLer.—Well, while I hadn’t known him very long—but Mr. Yenser did not
have much to say there.
Mr, Horoate—Still T understagd that he was the foreman in charge of that work?
Mr, HaLev.—Yes, sir.
Mr. Horoate.—I mean as foreman in charge of the work, did you think that he
understood his work{
Mr. Harey.—Yes, he knew his business. It was very evident he did when he’
didn’t want to move that traveller.
k\?fr. HovcaTE—As you understand it, was Mr. Yenser in supreme charge of that
wor| .
Mr.-HALEY.—Well he was not in supreme charge of the work. He had charge of
hiring men and discharging them, but otherwise he was dictated to by three or four
around there. His principal part of the work as I could understand it was to keep
the veu busy and use them to the best advantage, in the best places, &e.
Mc. HoLsaTE—Who were these then that you say could dictate to Mr. Yenser?
Mr. HALEV.—Mr. Birks, Mr. McLuro and Mr. Kinloch, they all had their say ;
go had Mr., Milliken. i
Mr. HoLcATE—But it all came down then, did it not, to this, that Mr. Yenser did
the work{
Mr. HaLey.—Oh, yes, he was in charge of the men.
Mr. HoLaTE—The actual sarrying out of the work that was done was by Mnr.
Yensert
Mr, Harev.—Issuing the orders; yes, sir.
o Prof. GaLerartH.—In saying what you have said are you giving simply your
impression of the official organization of the work or are you simply givirig an opinion
that has no reference to the organization but simply to what you saw and felt and
knew and heard ?
Mr, Hatey.—I am giving my opinion as & man who has been on ths job every
day and saw how things went one day with another.
Mr. ‘I.Iomu'z.—Shou]d we understand from what you say that there was conflict
of authority? . ‘
Mr. Harey.—~No, I do not believe that,
Mr. HoloATE—Or was it all in the way of discussion between Yenser and Birks
and McLure from time to timef
Mr, Havey.~Yes, there were discussions from time to time.
Mr. Horoate.—Well, is that not what you might expect on a work like that,
that they would discuss these matters together? T S
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Mr. HaLeY.~Yes, of course, ‘ . '

Mr. HoLeaTE~—Well, then, there was nothing out of the ordinary 1

Mr. Hargy.—You asked me if Mr. Yenser was not in full charget Yes, I simply
gaid that he was after these people had their gay s». Well, now, that is what I mean.

Mr. HorLoaTe~—With regard to these mattera that you noticed and vhich you
have fully described to us, did you mention them t» Mr, Kinloch or to Mr. Mcl.uref

Mr. HaLgy.—About this spliest

Mr. HoraaTe.—Yes, any of thist

Mr. HaLev.—They know more about it than T did.

Mx, Horoate.—Did yon mention it to them? .

_ Jir. HaLer.—No, I did not see them from the first time I noticed the defect until
it was wrecked, I never saw them, :

Prof. Kerry.—Turning again to the question of Mr. Yenser, I did not understand
your statement very clearly, Mr. Haloy, and to illustrate it could you tell us from
your own observation any instances in which Mr. Yenser did anything against hie
own judgment on the advice of the gentlemen you have beew referring tot

My, HALEY.—Well he moved out this traveller against his own judgment the last
time. : :

Prof. Kerrv.—Now, do you know that, or is that just hearsay i

~ Mr, Havey.—T know thet. ’

Prof. Kerw.v.-—On what evidencet

Mr. Hatey.—Well, T heard him talking to Birks.

Prof. Kerry.—You overheard the conversationt

Mr. Harey.~—Yes, sir, Mr, Birks that is killed.

Prof. Kerry.—Can you relate that conversation with any distinctness.

Mr. Hatey.—Yes, sir, I can relate it just as it happened.

Prof. Kerry.—Well, go ahead. '

Mr. Harey.—I heard him say: ‘Why in hell don’t they let me take down this
traveller?’ )

Prof. GausrartH.—That was Mr. Yenser? -

Mr. HaLEy.—This big traveller and get that God damn load off of there hefore
they put up more steel on the end of it.

Prof. GaLBrarTi.—He said this to Mr. Birksf

Mr. HaLey.—Yes,

Prof. Garerarre.—Did others besides you hear him1 )

Mr. Hatey.—Well, Mr. Cook must have heard, we were right together, we wers
on top of the traveller and they were on the top chord, only a distance of about 18 or
20 feet.

Prof. Kkary.~—~Was that the whole of the conversationt

M- . HaLey.—That is about ell T heard, they were talking away, the wind was
blowing quite hard.

Mr. Kerry.—You did not hear Mr. Birks’ reply{

Mr. HaLey.—Mr. Birks replied, but I did not hear what he said.

Mr. HoraATe.—Whom do you supposs Mr. Yenser referred to by ¢ they?’

Mi. Hauey—Well, T expect he referred to the Phanix Bridge Company and the
Quebec Bridge Company, his overseers, whoever they might be.

Prof. GaLsrarra.—Which {raveller are you speaking of i

Mr. HaLey.~The big traveller, the 600 ton traveller.

Prof, GaLsearra.—When did they begin taking down the big travellert

Mr. Harey.—~Woll, T could not give you the exact date, but I should think it was
& month ago, anyhow.

Prof. GALBRATTH.—And was the progress apparently unnecessarily slow 1

Mr. Hargy.—Well, it was very slow, but they had a small force of men and bad
weather ; they were very short of men,

- Prof. GALBRAITH.—Was theve any reason for that that you know of?

Mr. Havey.—Yes, indeed, thero is lots of reasons for that.
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Prof. Gasrai—Would you kindly Jescribe what you thought were the reasons
My. Harer.—The principal reason for being shirt of men was t})at v_vhem th?y woul.d
to the United States and ship men up here, if the men got dissatisfied with their
job and quit, they would deduet the transportation out of their wages, which the men
regarded as & plain public steal, and, of course, when they went back to the I.Imted
States—they had to stand for it here, or else fight out all the money they !md in law
—and when they went back to the States the consequence was they told their brothers.
That is why they were short of men.
rof. GaLBrRAITI—When was that first apparent on the work that they were short
of men 1

Mr. Hatey.—All this summer.

Prof. GarsraiTi—Were there any strikes on the work 1

Mr. Harey.—There was one.

Prof. Gausrarrit—At what tine i

Mr. Havev.—August the 8th.

Prof. GaLsrarti.—How long did it last 1

Mr. Haey.-—Three daya.

Prof. GaLsrarri.—Did all the men go back who were on strike t-

Mr. Hatey.—No, sir, some of them had the good sense to go away and save their
lives.

Prof. GaLsrarr.—Did any go back 1

Ar. JaLEY.—Oh, yes, quite a number went back.

Prof. Kirry.—NVhat was the cause of the strike {

A(r. MaLey.—This same argument I have been telling you about dedoating this
fare, and they had a signed up agreement to pay the men at the rate of 50 cents por
hour for every hour worked, signed by Mr. Milliken, the superintendent.

Prof. Kerry.—The question of the safety of the structure did not come up in any
conuection theref

Mr. Harey.—No.

Prof. Kerry.—Now, what time in the morning did you hear that conversation
between Mr. Yenser and Mr. Birks {

AMer. HaLEY.—When they were moving out the traveller.

Prof. Xerry.—That was Wednesday morning {

Mr, Hatev.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Xerry.—About what hour 1

Mr. Hatey.—I guess about nine o’clock.

Prof. Kerry.—It would be the 28th of August nbout 9 in the morning 1

Mr. Harey.—Yes,

Prof. Gavsrarri.—You say when moving out the iraveller ; I understood:from
the previous evidence that they were taking down the traveller {

Mr. Harey.—There are two travellers.

Prof. GaLsraiTi.—You are now speaking of the small traveller?

Mr. HaLey.—Yes. .

Prof. GaLsrarri.—Moving forward to the next span {

Mr. Harev.—Yes, sir.

Prof, GarsrartH.—And did you ever discuss with Mr. Birks the defects in the
structure, Mr, Haley 1

Mr. Harev.-—Yes, sir,

Prcf. Kerry.—What time was this

Mr. HaLEY.—Just about 16 minutes before Mr. Yenser came along.

Prof. Xerry.—That is or the Wednesday morning 1

Mr. Hatey.—Yes, .

Prof. Kerry.—Could you relate what occurred {

Mr. Hatey.—He was talking to snother man, Mr. Durand, a man who is dead
now. He says, it is all foolishness those fellows talking that way, if Haley hadn’t
gone down to look at that nobody would be a bit alarmed.
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Prof. Xerry.—Who said this, Birks ?

Mr, HaLev.—We were sitting above his head and heard it and listened to what he
said, and I said, it is perfectly safe, isn’t it, Birks{ and he looked up and swiled and
answered, why, certainly it is ; you fellows arc getting alarmed prematurely ; tliere
is nothing to cause any alarm. We told him we did not think so; we did not egree
with him.

Prof. Kerry.—That was the end of the discussion 1

Mr, IToLgaTE—~In tho conversation that you overheard between Mr, Yenser and
Mr. Birks, you could not say just now who you think Mr. Yenser referred to by using
the word ‘they ¥ What I want to get at is who were Mr. Yenser's everscers, who
would give him orders ?

Mr. HaLey.—~Well, in this case Mr. Milliken was not here and Mr. IHoare had
been on the job and I think they were orders from Lim, Of course 1 do not know
who gave him his orders. .

Prof. Garsrarrii—When had Mr. Iloare been on the job 1

Mr. HarLey.—Mr. Hoare had been on the job I understood, he was on the job on
Tuesday. 1 never saw him on the job, but there was u great deal of talk among the
men.

Prof. Kerry.—Talk to what effect, Mr. Haley ¢

Mr, Ilacey.—About the bridge being unsafe and the fact that they sent those
stringers back to the yard made a good deal of talk. Mr. Yenser refused to put them
in place, saying his life was in danger as well as others.

I'rof. Xerry.—Did you hear him say that {

Mr. Hatey.—No.

Prof. Krany.—Did you ever hear him say anything of that nature {

Mr. HaLey.—No.

Mr. Horeate~—The whole object of this inquiry 33 to get as much real inforn:a-
tion as we can get.

Mr, Harey.-~All T have told you is true and I have not told anything I do not
know.

Mr. Horearr—Quite so. Is there anything else that you know in connection
with the matter ?

Mr, HaLey.—No, I cannot say there is anything clse I can tell you. )

Prof. Kerry.—We want to get at information little or big, Mr. Haley, we want
to get everything that was observed about the bridge. It might be that some things
would be observed that would not be considered to have any bearing on the qucstion,
and yet on investigation may prove to have had something to do with it.

Mr. Harey.—1 could not give any light on anything like that, beeause I did not
notice any.

Mr. Howgate. —¥rom your intercourse with the various men on the work, whom
do you know who can give us any information outside of the names +het you have
mentioned {

AMr, Harey.—I know Mr. Splicer can. I see you *.ve J. J. Nance. Those who
kunew the most about it are killed. M:. Britton .ad Mr. McCumber there—that is
about all I recollect just now.

Afr. HoLeaTE—Are you aware of any @ scussions having taken place with regard
to the delay in moving forward the lit*le traveller? Were you present at this con-
versation ¢ ' .

Mr. HaLev.—No, I have alre .ay stated all the conversations I have heard, but
as to being aware, I was we'’ aware it was a well known fact among the men.

My, HoreateE~—You have the same general knowledge as the other men in connee-
tion with that matter.

Mr. HaLey.—I had a little more knowledge than some of them, that is, not the
discussions, but I had a little ruore knowledge of what the discussions were about on
account of inspecting this the night before; some had not gone to thﬁ trouble.
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AMr. Horaate—What discussions { . N
Mr. HaLev.—Just what 1 atated about Mr. Birks and Mr. Yenser. My position

was up there, T wasn’t around the part where the discussions were, the office.

Ar. Howate—Is that the only discussion you know of {

Mr. Hatey.—Yes, sir, presently.

\Mr. Horgate~~You do not know of any other-discussions {

Mr. }I.\l.m'.——f did not hear any. The discussions we had going home in the
earringe with these other foremen and that I suppose does not count ; that is not

on the subject.

Witness discharged.

PovixierE McCUMBER sworn.

Prof. Keury.—What was your job on the bridge ¢

Afr. McCumpee.—Erecting.

Prof. Ierry.—Were you working the day of the accident 1

AMr, MeCuruser—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—What part {

Mr. MeCryper—l worked tll two o'clock in the afternocon.

Prof. Kerry.—You quit at two o’clock ¢

Mr. McCuMBER—Yes.

Prof. Keruv.—You did not see the accident ¢

Mr. McCuMBEr—100.

Prof. Kerev.—Had you been over the bridge pretty much ¢

\fr. McCunBer—-Yez, every day 1 worked 1 was over there.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you see any parts of it that were in bad shape?

Mr. McCumBer—Yes, one part.

Prof. Kenry.—Which was that ?

\Mr. McCuaper—That is the sixth joint from the pier.

Prof. Kerry.—That is on the overhang ¢

Afr. McCunmser—That is on the anchor arm, yes.

Prof. Kerny.—The sixth joint from which pier?

Ay, McCraper—From the main pier,

Prof. Krrry.—From the main vier ¢

Mr. McCruper.—Yes,

Prof. Kerrv.~—What was the trouble with it ¢

Ar. McCuumper—Well, of course, 1 did not know but those fellows that worked
there told me that he joint was giving out, that is, a fellow by the name of Joe Mit-
chell, an Indiau, who is dead, he is the one whe told me. 1 looked around where the
joint was and 1 could not see it. I did not pay much attention to it until they sent
me down there to work reaming out some holes in the side webs.

Prof. Krrry.—That was, which day ?

Afr. McCuypir—Tuesday, Tuesday morning.

Prof. Kerry.~~To riam out some holes

Afr. McCruper—Inside holes, inside the web ; yes.

Prof. Kerry.—Was that on the part that ran oat over the water or the part run-
ning back on to the chore 1

Mr. McCusper ——Over the water. i

Prof. Kerry—The part running back over the water, the sixth joint on the pier?

Ar. McCuMser.—Yes, on the down stream side.

Prof. Kerry.—On the Quebec side ; you were reaming out some holes in the
inside web ¢

Afr. McCumprr-—Yes, in the hottom chord.

Prof. GaLpraiTi.—That is on the cantilever arm, the sixth point joint out 1

Mr. McCumBer.~-Yes, sir.

-
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Prof. Gaiprarri.—Watch me count on the ehart, centre post, 1, ¢, 3, 4, 5,6 is
that the place §

Mr. McCumpser.—That is the place,

Prof. GaLsraiti—Which side of the pin is the joint theref

Mr. McCuMper.—On the north side, on the river side, towards the traveller.

Prof. Kerry.—You were right by the floor beam, by the closet §

Mr. McCumser.—Right by the floor beam, yes.

Prof. Kerry.—What did you see that was wrong ¢

Mr. McCumser.—Well, the jacks was in there, they had some jacks in there, ¢
I asked Tommy, Tommy was with me, I asked him what the jacks was in for ; he
said the inside webs was turning.

Prof. Kerry.—And the jacks were put in to——

Mr, McCumBer.—The jacks was ir there, T do not know what they were put in
for, but that is what he told me.

Prof. Kerny.—~Put in there to push them back straight in ?

Mr. McCuMBER—Yes.

Prof. Kerry.—Is that all you saw there { .

Mr. McCumper.~—Yes, and the holes was supposed to be all inch holes and there
was some % bolts and § to § in that joint. The reason the riveters gave is that they
said they had bad hose.

Prof. Kerry.—Was the joint bulged ; were all the bolts in §

Mr. McCumper.—All the b ™*s were in, yes, except small bolts, § bolts.

Prof. Kerry.—What made you quit at 2 o’clock ?

Mr. McCuamser.—Wel), T had a few words with the foreman and I quit,

Prof. Kernv.—You did not see any other bad points in the bridge?

Mr, McCusBer.—No, that is all T did see.

Prof. Kerry.—You did not see these other points that the men were talking about ?

Mr. McCuMBER—No, T heard of them, but that is all. I paid no attention to look
at that,

Prof. GaLsrairii.—Were all the splice plates in position 1 I mean, were they all
in position in the place where they ought to be, the side plateg, the splice plates, you
understand, were they all in the joint?

Mr. McCumBEr.—Yes.

Prof. GarsrartH.—Every one of them {

Mr. McCusBer—All except the bottom plate,

Prof. Garprarri.—Where was the bottom plate lying ?

Mr. McCumBer.—On the scaffold,

Prof. GavLsrairy.—How many plates were there, do you know, that were on?

Mr. McCuMBer.—I do not know ; there was just that joint.

Prof. Gavpraiti.—I mean how many were there at that joint that were placed,
that were ready to be bolted or riveted?

Mr. McCumBER.—How many ¢

Prof, GaLeraitH.—Yes, how many plates?

Mr. McCusBer.—There was not any ready until we got the holes reamed.

Prof, GaLsrati.—No, I do not mean that. I mean that were up there, put in
positior. on the chord ; how many were on the chord, attached to it ¥ You say ono
wez off ¢

Mr. McCuMBER.—Yes, the bottom plate was off,

Prof. GaLBrarri.~-~How many were on?

Mr. McCumBer.—There was not any on the bottom side.

Prof. GaLBrarTH.~—~No, but how many plates were on?

Mr. McCumBER.—On the side?

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—On the side plates, yes?

Mr. McCuMBer.—Well there is on the outside and the inside too, on the outside
the pillar and plate and on the inside there is the pillar and plate.
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Prof. Gavtvraimi—On the outside there is a pillar and plated

Me MeComper—Yes.

Prof. Garsraini—There were two plates and two pillars.

Mr. MeCuMpeR—Yes,

Prof. Gasrati.—That is two plates?

Mr. MeCruper—Yes,

Prof. Gatpratin—Then, how about the inside pillars?

Mr, MceCuvmper~—They were all on.

Prof. Garsrairi—And the top cover plate was on?

Mr. McCryper—Oh yes, that was on.

Prof. Gataraitii-—So that there was one off, lying on the scaffold?

Mr., McCryper——Yes.

Prof. Gatsrarri.—The bottom cover plate{

AMr. MeCuyser.—Yes.

Prof. Garpruti.—Were there any rivets at all in those that were ont

Mr. McCuvypEr—Yes, the rest was all riveted except the joint, the inside and
e outside and this bottom plate.

Prof. Gavormti.—The spliced plates were not riveted?

Mr. McCuympEr—No, sir.

Prof. Gatsraii.—Was the top cover plate riveted?

Mr. MeCumpErR—No, sir.

Prof. GaLpraiTi—Iow was it held ¢

Mr. McCeyner—The centre two rows were not riveted but the cutside was.

Prof. Gatnrarrit.—The two centre ribs were not riveted.

Afr. MeCvryper—That is it.

Prof. Garsrari.—Bnt the outside ribs, the spliced plates were riveted?

Wr, MeCeaper. ~There are four holes in cach plate; tue outside were riveted,
hut these two centre rows vere not.

Prof. lKerry.—Is theie anything clse you can think of that will help us to find out
where the trouble was{

\r. MeCuaBer—No, that is all T know.

Witness discharged.

Iod. Brittox, sworn.

Mr. Horeate—Are you an cmployee of the Phenix Dridge Company{

Mr. Brrrox.—Yes, electriciant

Mr. HoLeate.~—You are an electriciant

Mr. Britrox.——Yes, sir.

Afr. Tlorcate—Where are you employed!?

Mr. Brirrox.—All over the bridge, in all parts of the storage yards, and both
cides of the river, and all around the Pheenix work at all.

Mr. Horeate.—On the 29th of August were you working?

Afr. BriTToN.—No, sir, T had left the 90th of August for Belair sub-station, the
storage yard, that morning.

Mr. HoneaTE—Then yon were not near the bridge at the time of the accident?

Mr. Buirtox.——No, sir, I was not there.

\r. HoreaTE—What information by way of particulars connected with the
structure have you got?

r. Brirtox.—The structure itself I have none, ouly from hearsay. T heard them
talking and I mentioned to the boys on Wednesday morning they were going to
move out the traveller. T told some of the boys about it, and they called me and I
told of this private talk I heard.

Mr. Horoate—What private talk?

Mr. Brittox.—I heard them talking in the office, Yenser and Birks and McLure,
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and that is the first time I heard of it, Tuesday morning the 27th, Yenser came out
and told me they would not move the traveller; I am always there at the time they
move the traveller, right behind the traveller, and when they told me they would not
move I left the office. I heard them talking about the bottom chords being bad, and
Yenser said he did not care to do it berause his life was in danger.

Mr. TToLaaTe—What did he say about the bottom chord{

Mr. BrirroN.—1Te said there seemed to be a buckle, a start to buckle, or something
like that.

Mr. Horoarr.—You may have a general idea in your mind about what took place
but I want to know what you heard?

Mr. BritroN.—I heard him say about this chord.

Mr. Horaate.~—What chord? .

Mr. Britrox.—The sccond and third chord, I think over the picr, on the down
stream side, the Quebee side, the second and third chords from the pier.

Mr, Horaate.—You overheard a conversation bearing on this? You eay that
Mr. McLure was there at the time?

Mr. BritroN.—Yes,

Mr, HoreaTE~~Mr. McLure would be able to tell us what ectunlly took place?

Mr. BrittoN.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLeatE—If you can give us the definite points that this conversation
referred to it would be useful.

Mr. BrirTox.—] can show you, of course, what chords T heard them referring to.

Mr. HoreaTE—How did they refer to them? '

Mr. Brittox.—The second and third chord on the Quebee side over the pier on
the cantilever arm.

Mr. Horoate~That is on the cantilever arm?

Mr. BritroN.—Yes, of course I did not look at it, or anything like that, I only
heard what they said.

My, IHorcate.—Did you hear the whole conversation?

Mr. Britron.—Not all of it. I went out after I heard a certain amount of it.

Mr, IToLeaTE.—You did not hear the conclusion of iti

Mr. Brittox.—I heard Mr. Birks refer to Yenser about a chord heing bent in
the yard. :

Prof. GaLBraiTii.—Bent?

M, Britron.—Bent while in the storage yard.”

Prof. Gasraimi—Lying bent in the storage yard that dayi

Mr. BrirTos.—The way I understood it, yes, sir.

Prof. GaLpraitit.—Ile was not saying that one of the chords which had teen
placed in the bridge had been bent in the yard?

Mr. Brirtox.—1Ie said.there was one chord had been bent, probably it was that
one,

Prof. GasraitH.—Is that what he said, then you misunderstood iy ptrevious
question.

Mr. Briztox.—That is what he said; he said it might have been this one they had
in the storage yard that was bent. Then they went on to talk about it, and he told
them he would go up on the chord, and if it did not look straight

AMr. HoroatE—Are you recollecting this conversation as it took place?

Mr. Britron.—As it took place.

Mr. iloLeaTE—What was the upshot of this conversation{

Mr. Brirtox.—]I cannot say what started it.

Mr, HoLaaTE.~-What was the end of it?

Mr, Brir1oN.—Well, the last that T heard of it was that they were trying to tell
Yenser that the chord might have been bent some before it was put in place. Yenser
could not think that that would be possible because he said he had went over these
chords different times. They went on talking and he said he did not care about moving
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out the traveller again until they fully investigated. They kept on talking and I went
outside. The next morning he told me they were not going to move the traveller,
Wednesday morning. I went out on the traveller and told Cook and a couple of men
asking them about it, if they heard it. T began to think it quite serious myaclf, after
learing them talk it over. I told these gentlemen and they seecmed to go down that
night and look at the cherd I was alluding to. :

Mr. Horaate.—This was what night?

Mr. Brittox.—Wednesday night, it was Tuesday morning I heard the conversa-
tion.

Mr. Horeate.—Were you with them?

Mr. BuirtoNn.—No, sir, I did not go to sce it at all.

Mr. Horaate—How do you know they went down therel

Mr. Brirrox.—1 just say they told me so—Mr. Haley—I could not say they went
down for sure, only he told me. They told me they were going to go and look at it
that day.

Mr. Horaate.—Of vour own knowledge, have you information of or any knowl-
edge of anything out of order?

Mr. Britrox.—No, only what I heard them say.

Mr. Hoteate—And that arose first of all at this conversation you heard?

Mr. BrirroN.—Tuesday morning.

Mr. HoreatE.—And you heard nothing before that?

Mr. Brirtox.—Nothing befere that whatever.

Witness discharged.

Turopore LACHAPELLE sworn.

Mr, Horuate—Are you in the employ of the Phenix Bridge Company{

Mr. LacHarerte—Yes.

Mr. Horeate.—In what capacity, what do you do?

My, LacusreLie.—I am a bridge worker, I do everything.

Mr. Howgate.—What are you, an erector?

Mr. LacuaveLne—~Yes, an erector.

Mr. Horcate.—How long have you been there on this Quebee bridge?

Mr. LicusrenLe—Well, that is this summer I have been there for six or seven
weeks; I worked there before,

Mr. Hotsate—~Were you working on the 29th day of August?

Mr. Lacnarerte—The 29th day of August? :

Mr. Horcate.—The day the accident happened to the bridge? .

Mr. LaciareLLe—No, T worked there until nine o’clock in the morning and than
carn over here to Quebee,

Mr. Horeate.—Why did you leave{

Mr .Lacuarenie—Well, T left on account of wind and I did not feel like werking
that day and I left.

Mr. Horsate.—Was it on account of wind or

Mr. Lacuarerne—1 did not feel like working so I thought I would come over here.

Mr. Horoate.—So it was not on account of wind?

Mr. LacHAPELLE~—Oh, yes, I was working on the top traveller.

Mr. Horeate—~How fast was the wind going that day? .

Mr. LacuareLLe—] did not run against it and se: how fast it was going.

Mr. HoreaTE—Was it faster than other days?
J Mr. LacHAPELLE~—No, but a man feels like work on» day and he dces not another

ay.
Mr. HoLoate—Then you did not see the accident? !
Mr. Lacusperte—No, I was not there when:the acident happsned.
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Mr. HoLoate—Previously to the accident where were you working on the bridge?

Mr. LacuareLLE.—Well, I was working on the big traveller.

Mr. HorLoaTE.—And that was the Iast job you had?

Mr, LaonarsLLe—Yes, taking down the big traveller.

Mr. Howaate—Do you know from your own knowledge of anything defective
or wrong existing in the structuret

Mr. TacuareLLE.—No,

Mr. Horeate—That you considered -sot -

Mr. LaciaperLe.—Not that 1 know of. That bottom chord they talked about but
I never went over to sce, I never went over and looked at it, never anywheres near it.
I worked on the bottom chord on this side between the two piers, but I did not work
on the bottom chord on the outside pier.

Mr. HoLgATE.—Which bottom chord did you work on?

Mr. LacuapetL—I worked on both of them, in the inside pier, between the two
piers. Nothing I see was wrong and I worked around the pier, around the shoe there
I worked there for about five or six days or more.

Mr. HoLoaTE—Could you say that as far as you saw the work was properly done!

Mr. LacnaperLk.—Yes, as far as I could see, but of course you could not do it
all in one day. If a little work was bad and you had some of them raising the iron
and some others finishing up tack of it fitting up and riveting and all that, the work
was all right as far as T could find out, the part I seen.

Mr. HoLgate.—And you traversed that bridge back and forward to the travellers
several times a day?

Mr. LacHapeLie—Oh, yes, several times a day.

Mr. Horoate.—And of your own knowledge do I understand that you do not know
of anything that was wrong?

Mr. Lacuarernre.—No. I

Mr. TloLeate.—Have you worked about the shoe?

Mr. LacHArELLE—Yes.

AMr. Horeate—What work were you doing there?

Mr. Licuaprri—Well, I was reaming out holes and putting in bolts,

Mr. HoteatE~—How long were you there? .

Mr. LacHAPELLE.—Straightening up angles, where we had the chain around to
raise up the iron and a flange would bend or anything, we would straighten that up to
look better, that is all.

Mr. Horoate.—-Yow long werz you there?

r. LACHAPELLE—About three or four days in that place.

Ar, HoreaTE—Did you observe anything wrong at that particular placel

Mr. LacuarerLe—~—Not that I saw.

Ar. HoLaaTE——No broken plates or angles ?

Mr. TacnapiLLE~—I saw no broken plates or angles. I saw some angles that
were bent but we go to work and straighten them and get them back with a couple
of mauls.

Mr., Howoate.—How long have you been a bridgeman ¢

Mr. JAacHAPELLE.—For the last five years.

Mr., Horeate.—Constantly on bridge work ?

Mr, T.ACHAPELLE.—Yes.

Mr. HoroatTe.—If you had been in that vicinity for three or four days is it prob-
able that you would have seen if there was anything wrong there from your general
observation ?

Mr. T.acHAPELLE—I did not run around the shoe on narpose to look and see if
anything was wrong. I was sent to a certain point at that ti1ze to clean up, cleaning
out the holes and putting boits in. Of course, I walked around there but I never
took a special day to go and sce if there was anything wrong. I never saw anything
wrong there.
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\Mr. Hoteate—IHave vou heard it stated that there was a plate cracked there ?

Mr. LaciarrLie—I heard that there was a plate cracked there only after the
bridge was down. T never heard it before.

\r. Howcate—Your opinion is, from your inspection, that probably someone
has made a mistake about that 1

Mr. Lacuarenre. —I don't know.

. Prof. Kerry——You saw that plate pretty often ?

Mr, LacHAPELLE—Yes, 1 went over this plate pretty often. I was there when
we put the shoc on two years ago and I was there last year and this year but I never
saw any plate eracked there. 1 have been on this job three seasons and I never saw
a plate eracked.

AMr. Hoteatk—Are you quite clear about the plate I mean and te which I
referred just new ?

Mr. LacHAPELLE—YNo, T am not.—whether it was the plate around the shoe. I
was arowd that shoe and I saw no plate cracked. If there was a plate cracked there
I never saw it. Tt is probably another plate I bave seen. There are a good many
plates acound there.

Mr, HorGaik~—Were any of the plates shaped or erimped ¢

Mr. LicuarkLiLe—No, there was a plate there that was cracked but it was made
to be cracked.

Witness discharged.

Commission adjourned until 10 a.m, to-morrow (Saturday).

SIXTH DAY.

Quesec, Saturday, September 14, 1907,

The Commiszion re:uwmed at 10 a.m.

Mr. Prier TaeNCH, was sworn &3 interproter,
Drsire LEFEBVRE, swoin,

Mr. Horeate—Are yon employed by the Pheenix Bridge Company !

Mr. LerrBvRE—Yes, sir.

Mr. Hotgsate—~Iow long have yon been with that company{

Mr. Leresvre—About four years. :
‘ '].\Ir: IHorcate~—What portion of that time were you working on the Quebec
ridge

M_r. LrrenvRe.—T worked there during the whole four years every summer at
the bridge.

Mr. Horeate.—What were your duties §

Mr. LerepvRe—T worked for one summer on the ground work with the bull gang,
and for the last three summers I have been running the crane.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Where {

Mr. LereBvRE—~In the storage yard.

Mr. IIOL(?-.-\TE.-—-DN] vour duties necessitate in any way your going on the bridge
structure during its erection ?

Mr. LeFesvReE—XNo, sir.

t dM?r. Hovaate—In connection with your duties in the storage yard, what had you
o do :

Mr. Lerepvre—TIn the storage yard I unloaded cars that came from the shop.
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Mr. Horaate.—What do you mean by the shop?

Mr, LEFEBVRE —~'lhe iron sent from the shos from the Phenix Bridge Company.
I do not know where the shops were. I mean the iron sent from the shop of the
Phenix Bridge Company. I mean iron brought by train or out of the Phenix Bridge
Company’s shops. ‘

Mr. Horgate.—Were you foreman of the gang?

Mr. Leresvee.—No.

Mr. Horoare.—What was the name of the foreman?

Mr. LereBvRE.—I do not know his first name. His name is Clark.

Mr. Horaate~—In handling all that material from the cars after it arrived from
Phenixville, could you say that it was all carefully handled?

Mr. Leresvre~—~I do not know much about it, but everything scemed correct.

Mr. Horoate—IIave you knowledge of any accident happening in the handling
of that material in the storage yard?

Mr. LeresvRE—No, if any accident }lnppened I did not know it. -

Mr. Horeate.—If any accident of that nature did happen who would be likely to
know it?

Mr. LeresvRE~—T could not say.  Mr. Clark would have information because he
was the foreman there the whole time.

Mr. Horoate—Have you heard from others that any accident of that nature
did take place, like the breaking of a picec it of the tackle?

Mr, LereBvRE~—Yes, I did.

Mr. HoreatE—From whom did you hear that?

Mr, LereBvrRe—From Mr, Roberge.

Mr, Stuart—What is his Christian name?

Mr., iLEFEBVRE—~Malcolm.

Mr. Horeatk.~—Were you ever on the bridge structure?

Mr. Leresvei.—Yes, sir, I was there this %prmg on the track. 1 was there work-
ing about four days this spring. - -

Mr. Horaate—Whereabouts on the brldgo vere you \mr!\mp:?

* Mr. LerepvRe—On the end, in the middle and on the ground. I was not every-
where around on top but I was on the track.

Mr. HoreatE—Were you below the track?

Mr. Leresvre—No,

Mr. Horoate.—Were you there more than four days?

Mr, LereBvre.—] worked on the beach the other part of the time outside of these
four days. T worked for about eight days, four days on top and four days below the
bridge.

Mr. Horeate.—During that time and any other time that you may have been on
the bridge was anything particular drawn to your attention?

Mr. Leresvire.—No,

Mr. Hotgate.—Then you know nothing personally in regard to the structure?

Mr. LerepvRe—T heard something.

Mr. TToreatE—Do you of your own knowledge.

Mr. LerEsvrRe.—No.

M. Horcate—Have you any knowledge and what is the nature of it in regard
to anything of a defective nature?

Mr. Leresvre—The only knowledge I have is what T have been told by peonle
about it,

Mr. Horoate—Who gave you that information?

Mr. Leresvre—I got it from an Indian who is Jead.

Mr. HoLGATE~-Frem anybody elsef

Mr. Leresvre.~~No.

Mr. HoroaTE—What was the nature of the information youn gt

Mr., LeresvrRe.—] was told that there was a piece of iron that had been forced.
That is the way the Indian told me.

~
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r. Horoart—What was the Tndian’s name?

Mr. Lrrenpvrz—Angus Blue. That is the name he went by; I am not sure that
it is his right name.

Mr. TloLaate.—XHe is one of those who lost his lifel

Ar. LerepvRe.—Yes, sir, he got killed in the accident.

Ar. HoLoaTe—Was the information given you by him sufficient to enable you
io understand exactly what was meant?

Mr. LEFEBVRE—Yes.

\fr. Horoate—Will you tell us exectly what he told you?

Afr. Leresvre.—He told me that there was a large chord on the Quebec side which
was strained.

Prof. Gatprarti.—Does ‘ forced’ mean that it was a little out of shapel

Ar. Lerepvre—The Indian did not tell me exactly what he meant by the word.

Mr. HoLcaTe—Was it on the bridge he told you this ¢

Mr. LEFEBVRE—Nuo.

Mr. HoLgaTE—Did he mention it more than oncef

Mr. LerepvRe.—No.

(1. Horeate— When was it that he told you this 1

r. LrreBvRE—I cannot say precisely at what date, but about four weeks ago.

Ar. HolosatE—Anybody else mention this matter to yout

Mr. LEFEBVRE.—No.

Mr. HoLcare.—Ts that the only thing that you heard from any source ?

Mr. LEFEBVRE—Yes.

\fr. HoloatE—You said that it was a chord on the Quebec side. 'Was it an
upper chord or a lower chord 1 ‘

AMr. Leresvre.~—The lower chord.

Mr. HoLeate—Was it in the anchor arm or the cantilever v m {

Ar. Lerenvee.—He did not tell me.

Witness discharged.

B. L. Epwarps sworn.

Mr. Horcate.—What is your official position ?

Mr. Epwaros.—TInspector of materials at mills and shops for the Quebec Bridge
and Railway Company. .

Mr. HorLoate—Are your duties entirely connected with the Quebec Bridge and
Railway Company—confincd to the inspection of work and material for the Quebec
Bridge and Railway Company {

Mr. Epwaros.—There was one occasion on which T did a little work while there
was practically nothing being dore for the Quebec bridge and Railway Company.

Mr. HoLeateE—When were you appointed ¢

Mr. Epwarvs.—In May, 1904,

Mr. HorestE—By whom were you appointed {

Mr. Epwarns.—By Theodore Cooper with the consent of Mr. Hoare.

Mr. Houeate—To whom were you responsible {

Mr. Epwarns.—To both Mr. Cooper and Mr. Hoare.

Mr. HoLeate—From whom did you receive instructions ?

Mr, Epwaros.—From both.

Mr. HoLeatE—By whom were you paid ¢

Mr. Evwarps.—By the Quebec Bridge and Railway Company.

Mr. Horgate~—Have you written instructions relating to your appointment and
defining your dutiesf

Mr. Epwarps.—I have written instructions in regard to my appointment, but

no ‘\:‘r]i]tten instructions in regard to my duties that I recollect now. They were given
verbally.
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Mr. HorLoATE.~~What is your understanding of your instructiona{

ar. Epwanps.— My instructions were from Mr, Cooper, first that we should use
unusual care, that this was a bridge of great meagnitude and that we should do every-
tuing in our power to get the very best materials and workmanship, and the under-
standing was that if my services were not satisfactory they would be dispensed with.

Mr. Horoate~Did Mr. Cooper or Mr. Hoare furnish you with a specification
of the material and the workmanship required 1

Mr, Epwarps.—No, sir,

Mr. Horoare.—Then, what was the standard that you adopted in your inspection
of the material aud the workmanship} ,

Mr. Epwaros.—The Quebec Bridge Company’s specifications, Mr. Thesdore
Ceoper’s specincations of 1904, and also we made certain special tests outside of these
that were not covered by any of these specifications.

Mr. HovLaate.—Who furnished you with these specifications §

Mr. Epwarps.—I secured them at the office of the Phenix Bridge Company.

Mr. HoLoate—Were they approved by Mr. Cooper or Mr. Hoare §

Mr. Epwaros.—No, sir,

Mr. HorLaaTE—-Do we understand, Mr. Edwards, that the specifications that you
worked under as to the standard of material and workmanship were those that you
received from the Phwnix Bridge Company, the contractors only ¢

Mr. Epwarps.—Also in case of doubt a3 to any material it was to be referred to
Mr. Cooper’s judgment, which I did on several occasjons,

Mr. Ho1aATE.~—In those cases what course was followed 1

Mr. Epwarps.—Mr. Cooper told me how to proceed.

Mr. Hovroatr.—~Did he prescribe special teats in those cases 1

Mr. Epwarps.—Ho did in some cases, but he told me that he would be guided by
the circumstances in each ~ase.

Mr. IHoroate—Were special tests made §

Mr. Eowarps.—Special tests were made; yes, sir. Mr. Cooper incorporated some
~of them in an article written by Mr. Cooper and read before the Arerican Society of
Civil Engineers under the titie of ¢ Some new facts about eye-bars.’

Mr., Horaate.— These special tests were made at your immediate instancel

Mr. Epwanps—At Mr. Cooper’s instance.

Mr. HoruaTE—Are these the tests you referred to just now as being made specially
by the Photnix Bridge Company?

Mr. Epwarps.—There is additional information. These tests were made ir part
but therc is also additional information which is not cavered by my reports.

Mr. HorcaTE~—Where were these tests made?

Mr. Epwarps.—Made at the works of the Phoenix Iron Company.

Mr. Horgarz.~All of them?

Mr., Epwarps.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroatE—These are the special tests? Were there any tests anywhere else
of material$

Mr. Eowarns.—Ourtside of the usual tests?

Mr, HorGare.—Yes.

Mr. Epwarns.—No other tests were made that I recall.

Mr. HoroaTE—Was all the testing done at the Phoenix Iron Company’s worksf

Mr. Epwarns.—No, sir, the test of plates were made at the Central Iron and Steel
Company, specimen tests of plates were made at the Carnegie Steel Company, and
tests of sizes at the Bethlehem Steel Company.

Mr. Horoate.—Were you present at these tests?

Mr. Epwarps.—No, at Harrisburg Mr, Keenan perfopned all these tests and the
tests were performed on the Carnegie material by John N. Ostrom.

Mr. HorLaaTE.—Was the result of these tests recorded?

Mzr. Epwarps—The result of these tests was recorded.

Mr. HoraatE.—Have you the records?
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Afr. Eowarns.—The records are here. 'They have been submitted.

Mr. Hotaate—Are they included in the reports that Mr. Hoare has put in in
regard to the inspeetion{

“Mr. Fowarns.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HorgatE—You had a systematic form of reporting all tests and inspections?

\fr. Epwarps.—Yes, sir, regular forms for reporting each class of test.

Ar. Horcate—Iow often did you report?

Alr. Eowaros.—1 made a monthly report on the shop work and besides that about
every month or two 1 would send in a batch of tests to Mr. Hoare covering the material
which had been inspected in the mcantime since the last report.

Mr. Horeate.—I think you said that you sent these reports also to Mr. Cooper?

AMr. Epwarbs—The tests of full sized eye-bars were sent to both Mr. Cooper and
Afr. Yoare and the specimen tests of material were sent to Mr. Hoare only. Mr.
Cooper received these except in such cases as he asked for them. He asked for themn
on the eye-bars,

Mr. HoteaTE~—Was the inspeetion in regard to workmanship reported to JMr.
Cooper and Mr. Hoare?

Mr. Epwsros.—It was reported to Mr. Toare in monthly reports and verbally to
Mr. Cooper on the occasion of my visits to him. T saw him monthly.

Ar. Hoteate.—There wére no written reports to AMr. Cooper?

Mr. Enwaros.—No, nothing of any account.

2(r. HoleatE—Was there anything of a very. speeial nature that arose in regard
to the material that was used?

Ar. Epwarps—Nothing of account—no, siT.

Ar. HoreaTE.—Who decided the form of the report, Mr, Edwards, that you sent
in { -

\Mr. Fowarns—The form of the report was really gotten up by me, subject to Mr.
Cooper, and T could not say whether he submitted it to Mr. Hoare or not, but T
am inclined to think he did and it was returned to me with. Mr. Cooper’s approval.

\fr. HorgaTE.—Was the report form changed in any way during the progress
of the work 1

Mr. Epwaros.—No, sir.

AMr. Honcate—So then the reports will show a continuous uniform system of
keeping records from the first starting of the work at the shop up to the present time?

Mr, Epwarns.—VYes, sir.

Mr. Hotcate—In connection with the testing of materials, Mr. Edwards, what
experience have you had {

Mr. Epwarns.—I had, previous to my connection with this work, an cxperience of
seventeen years.

Mr. HoreATE—You might just give us some details of that ?

Al Epwaros.—Well, for a year or a year and a half, I have forgotten the exact
time, T was connected with the Pottsville Iron and Steel Company in their testing
do';.m.rtment ard also in their mills in another capacity. After that, I went out with
William R. Webster as inspector. I remained for two years there, after which I was
connected with G. W. G. Ferris and Company for about the same time, with Bo b,
Garrett & Blair for four or five years and was manager for Robert W. Hunt & Co,, in
their Philadelphia district for six years.

Mr. Horcate—D;d that work embrace a quantity of material used in the con-
struction of bridges { :

Mr. Epwaros.—For the most part bridges and building work.

Mr. THoroatr.~ -Did that experience embrace the processes of manufacture of the
material {

Mr. Eowarps.—It did.

Mr. HorLoatE.—And of the testing of it {
Mr. Eowarps.—Yes, sir.
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Mr, Horoare—Did you represent in these cases the iron company or the pur-
chasers {

Mr. Epwanps.—The purchasera with that one exception, that time I was with the
Pottsvillo Iron and Steel Comnpany.

Prof. GarsrAITH.—You have knowledge of the relation of the chemical analysis
of the materials and products, and also of the later microscopical examination to the
properties rc  ‘ved in material,

Mr. Epv.  s.—I have a knowledge of the chemical properties; the microscopical
we do not deal so much with.

Mr. Horgate.—In the course of your inspection of the material for this parti-
cular work, Mr. Edwards, what proportion, roughly speaking, were you obliged to
reject {

Mr. Epwarps.—Very little,

Mr, Horoate—I am speaking now only of the material{

Mr. Epwaros.—Of the material.

Mr, HoLaate.—Not yot fabricated?

Mr, Epwarps.—Very little indeed, for the reason that the mills for the most part
attempted to throw out the material before it came to us.

Mr. HorLoatE~That is before they submitted the inaterial to you for inspection,
they made themselves reasonably sure that it would pass your inspection ?

* Mr. Epwanrns.~—Yes, sir, realizing the importance of the work. For instance the
Central Iron and Steel Company showed me one tir* T was there, a huge pilo of
eye-bar materinl that they had rejected. I had not gone over it, it had never been
submitted to our men at all. Anything they thought he would reject they did not put
before him.

Mr, Horgate~—~Well, what value do you place upon that action?

Mr. Epwanrns.-—Well, it simply saved them the labour of handling that material;
they turned it into scrap before they handled it in their different departments.

Mr. Iowcare.—Then of the material that was nctuully subnuttcd to you for

- -inspection; what percentage “were you-obliged to reject €- T

Mr. Epwanns, —~Oh, 1 should say not over 23 per cent of the matcnﬂl bllblllllluj
was rejected.

Mr. IoLoate~—Well, will the reports show the rejections?

Mr, Epwanrvs.—No, they will not; the reports will not show all the material
rejected.

Mr. Horoate.—Do the reports note the rejection of material at all?

Mr, Epwarns.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horcate~Is there any information that you can give us with regard to
material that is not contained in the 1eports?

M= Epwarps.—None whatever.

Mr Joroare.—And the file of reports is complete 1

M. Epwraps.-~The reports are complete; yes, sir.

Pros. GALBRAITH. —You knew the exact nature of the material which was fur-
nished to the shop; you know its history, where it was made and the process by which
it was made and the necessary composition of the meterial?

Mr. Enwarns.—Yes, sir, we have complete records of all the material and by whom
every piece was rolled.

Prof. GaLBraiTi.—Did you ever examine in the rolling mill the cropping of the
ingots?

Mr. Epwarps.—No, sir.

Mr. HoreatE.~Now, with regard to the fabricdtion of the material, Mr. Edwards,
have you a copy of the specifications you worked under?

Mr. Eowarps.—Have I that with me?

Mr, HovoaTre.—Yest

Mr. Epwarns.—No, sir, T have not.
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Mr. HorgaTe.—You can furnish us with thati

Mr, Evwanvs.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HowgateE—Did you inspect the fabricationt

Mr. Epwaros.—The fabrication was inspected, I had charge of that with Mr.
Meescr as my assistant and Mr. McLure certain months of the year as assistant when
he was not up here on erection.

Mr. IoleaTE—Was that inspection a continuous one at the shop?

Mr. Epwanrps—Yes, sir, it was,

Afr. HoLaaTE—A:d how was your inspection noted on the completed members?
Whas it marked on the_completed members, is there a record on the member itself ¢

AMr. Epwarns.—On the member itself there is a large ‘Q’ in yellow paint, and
inside is stamped ¢ Q-B’, showing that the material is accepted.

Prof. GausruTi—That is, there were two ‘ Q’s’, a large ‘Q’ ard inside a stamp
‘Q-B’

Mr. Epwanps.——Yes,

Prof. GaLsralri.—One painted on, the other stamped?

\Mr. Epwarps.—Yes, that is it. = That was not done on the eye-bars, we never
placed those stemps on there, they had enough marks on as it was.

Prof. Garprairi—And how did you mark rejected membersi

Mr. Eowarps.—They were not marked at all. ey

Prof. Gatpraiti,—Were there any members rejected? .

Mr. Epwanvs.—When I eaid they were not marked at all, I had veference to the
 piese that was rejedted and sert back.  Yes, there was, well not wiactly rejected,
Lut we refused to_take some pieces and then they would be returned. In one case 1

remember a post that was crooked, that was returned, the rivets were all knocked out,”

the piece restraightened, and then brought before us again.

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—Returned from wheret

Mr. Epwanrps.—Returned from the finishing department back to the assembling
department, i ) k

Prof. GarsraiTi.—That particulsr piec: tl:.en was made right and again inspected ¥

Mr. Epwarps.—Yes, sir, made right and again inspected and accepted.

Prof. GaLsraitii.—And shipped?

Mr, Enwarps.—And shipped.

Prof. GarsrairH.—Was any material returned to you from Quebect

Mr, Epwa 0s.—None whatever.

Prof. Gareraitii—Did you hear at any time any complaints from the Quebec
end of material oriiving that was not perfect?

Mir. Epwaros.—-The only one I recall now was with respect to painting, that was
the greatast trouble we had from the field, they claimed there were spots that were
not painted.

Prof, Gausrarri.—Was there an instance of complaint arising from any struc-
tural feature?

Mr. Eowarns.—On the anchor arm there was one complaint in regard to a truss
floor beam that the holes did not come exactly right, that is the only one I remember
on the whole anchor arm; and on the cantilever arm, when they went to put in the
end posts, there were some plates there that did not exactly gee, and they had to chip
off about half an inch there, after which they went into place. These are the only
two thirgs I reeall now of any complaints i~ regard to workmanship. .

Prof. Kerry..—What method had you to ensure that only inspected material was
shipped ? .o .

Mr. Eowarps.—The material at the mills was stamped as well as the finished
material and besides that the inspector reported to me continually. There was nothing
that hed gone on the cars without he received copies of the invoice; he knew exactly
what was shipped on each car, and if anything was put on there which was defective,
which he had not psssed, he would advise me.
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Prof. Kerrv.—That is to say each shipment was systematically checked1

Mr. Eowaros.—Each shipment, and copies of these shipments were sent to me.

Prof. Kearv.~—Zou knew from the invoice that the material had been inspected?

Mr, Epwaros.~I knew that or I would not accept it, and there were the reports
I later re.zived from the inspector. ' ‘

Mr. Horaae.—Will your reports show «iiy details as to how the final inspection
was made before putting your mark on it { :

" Mr. Eowaroe.—No, sir, the reports will not show that; the monthly reports will
simply show what progress is made in the shop during the month and about ‘what the
state of affairs was in ordor to keep Mr. Hoare advised regsrding what they were
doing. They do not show anything in regard to the quality. :

Prof. Kerrv.—Nothing in regard to quality {

Mr. Enwarps—I mean as regards the shop inspection, the monthly reports from
the shop I referred to,

Mr. HorLgaTE—Simply the fabrication reports §

Mr., Epwarps.—Simply the frorication reports.

Mr. Horaate.—They referred more to the progress of the work and what was being
done in the way of shipping {

Mr. Epwarps.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—The monthly reports will show fully the quality of the material?

Mr. Epwarps.—Fully, yes, sir.

Prof. Gaisrarrn—Did you test and report on the plate of which the bridge

pieces were built up as well as the riveted up piecest
"7 " "Mr. Eowarns.—Yes, sir, the reports of all plates have been submitted, the reports

_of tests on these plates.

Mr. Edwards {

‘Mr. Epwarps.—No, sir, we did not check templets. We checked tapes ard we
rcjected a number ; we refused to allow them to be used before they were absolutely
correct with the standard.

Poof. Gavsrairi—Thet is, you rejected a number of tapes §

Mr. Eowarns.—Yes, sir. ’

Prof. GaLsrarrH.—Were these steel tapes §

Mr. Epwarns.—Yes, sir, George Eddy’s steel tapes.

Mr. Horaate.—Were the members tested by yourself fog straightness and general
eondition before they were loaded on the cars §

Mr. Epwarps.—Yes, sir, they were inspected by us for these conditions,

Mr. HoroATE—~And what was the process after they left your handsi

Mr, Epwaros.—After they left our hands they were put into the hands of the

shipper and loaded on cars and they were ususlly given arother inspection on.the =

cars, a general inspection, not in detail,

Mr. HoLeaTE—A general inspection simply to ascertain that the loading had
been done in -a proper way 1 . .
. Mr. Eowanps~—Well, we did not inspect the loading probably as much as we
did to see that they were properly painted and that there was nothing that had escaped
us in the shop.,

Mr. Horoate—What can you say about the methods that were used in loading
witl reference to the rafo carrying of the members ¢

Mr. Epwarps.~Unusual precautions were teken in that way. Drawings had heen
furnished by the Phenix Bridge Company to their shipper and he was supposed to
follow those implicity, and besides that the railway companies had not only their in-
spectors, but had men in higher authority there to watch the loading before they
“allowed the cars to leave the works.

Mr. Howcate.—Do I understand that the Phenix Bridge Company hed a plan
showing how the members should be loaded on the cars ¢

My, Epwarps.—For the larger and heavier members.

Prof. Garerarrn.—Did }oix ‘check the wmp]etsaswell a8 ihe completéd work, .
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Prof. GaLpraii—You mean apparently that only pieces of a definite specified
kind could be loaded on one car {

Mr. Epwarps.—Well, usually it would take more than one car, the pieces were
so heavy. .

Prof. GaLerarrii.—On one or more cars {

Mr. Epwanps.—On one or more cars, and where they were udusually heavy or
long these special instructions were issued.

Mr. HoLgaTE—I thirk you told us, N, Edwards that the specifications you
worked under you received from the Phenix Bridge Company, but did you not get
some specifications from Mr. Hoare direct ¢

Mr. Epwarps—I have no recollection of any.

\Mr. Horoate.—But from time to time you received instructions from both AMr.
('ocyer and Mr, Hoare with regard to the standard of the inspection {

Mr. Epwanps.—Yes, sir, I did from both AMr. Cooper and Mr. Hoare.

AMr, HoncatE~And were they written or verbal §

Mr. Epwarps.—Verbal for the most part, I think.

Mr. HoreatE—And the result of the whole was carried out in the final inspection
of the matesials 1

Mr. Enwarpns.—Yes, sir,

AMr. Horeate—Were these amended instructions received after the manufacture
of the material was commenced {

Mr. Epwarps.—Yes, sir.

~Mr,-Horgate.—At what -period-then _were any amended instructions given?

Mr. Epwarps.—Well, about—I do not zecollect the exact time, but about six or

soven months ‘after we started on-the work there was a  change made-in the-specitien~ -~ - -

tions of the eye-bars,

Mr, HoLgaTE.—Did it only affect eye-bars?

Mr. Epwarps.—1 think it did.

Mr. Ilorgate.—Have you notes of what these changes were?

Mr, Epwarbs.—You mean have I wriiten instructions with regard to them{ I
know exactly what they were; instead of having a low limit of 60,000 pounds per
square inch the low limit was eh.anged to 62,000 pounds.

Mr, Horeate.—I undorstand these instructions were verbal?

Mr, Ebwarps.—T7 think they were.

Mr. Horoate.—Were these reports all signed by you, Mr. Edwards?

Mr, ¥uwanrps—~I think Mr, Meeser’s name is on some of them, zlthough I made
them all up.

Mr. Horcare—Then Mr. Meeser did sign somed

Mr. Epwarps.—Ho did not-sign the reports that were. sent.to. Mr. Hoare, he

signed the reports that were sent to me, and then I would recopy them and send them
on. '

Prof. Garsrartn.—-With your signature?
Mr. Epwarvs.—With my signature. and in some cases in the early part of the

work, I think I left his signature; I put his signature to them; his signature is on
some although they were written by me. -

) Mr. Horgate.—That is to say, they were actually signed by him dr did you write
his name? 7

Mr. Epwarps.—-1 wrote his name.
Mr. HorGaTE~-And wrote ‘signed.’
Mr. Epwarps-~1 think my initials are to them.

Witness retired.
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Irvin W. MEESER, sworn,

Mr. HoroaTe.—What are youl

Mr. Meeser—TInspector for the Quebec Bridge and Railway Company.

Mr, Horoare.—At Pheenixville?

Mr. Mzeeser.—Phonixville,

Mr. HoroaTE—And your duties comprise?

Mr. Meeser.—Comprise secing that the work is made like the drawmga, that the
workmanship is ell right, that the rivets are tight, that the whole thing is made as
per drawings.

Mr. HoLoaTe.—Who appointed youft

Mz, Mizser.—Mr, Edwards,

Mr HorLoaTE—And to whom do you report}

Mr, Megser.—Mr, Edwards.

Mr. Hovaate.—Wevre your duties confined to tho fabrication?

Mr. MEEskr.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe.~~And what generally were your methods of checking?

Mr, Meeser.—Well, in using our tape line, our long measurements, we had a tape
line that had been examined by the master tape used by the shop, all tapes were regu-
lated by that, and we had an appliance put on the line at the foot mark, and we used
a 4-foot steel scale to set it by, and that was held on by a man, one of tho assistanic

“in the bridge compsny’s employ, and the chief inspector and myself would read it.
On the other end we had an appliance made with a scales on and wo always pulled
“a certain number of pounds, which was carried out from one end to ancther in ail
_departments; we all_pulled 10_pounds, and he would read it while. I would_pull it, and ..
I would read it while he would pull it, and after we both read it, we would both go
up and tell one another what we made it. We never told each other until we
both made measurements. If it was necessary in measuring, he could call any num-
ber of men to hold it in line, he had that-permission.

Mr. HoragATE—Were errors discovered ?

Mr. Meeser.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—How were they corrected?

Mr. Mgeser.—They were corrected ip some cases by the pieces that were con-
nected ¥ them being made to suit that member.

Mr, Horgate.—7The member then would not be altarel itself, but the joining
members would be corrected? .

Mr. MEeeser.—In some cases it was, in some cases not.

Mr. HHoroatE—The drawings that were furmshed to you, were they fouud to
work out in the fabrication?

Mr. MEeEsEr.-—Yes, sir,

Mr. Horoate.—Did matters arise in the shop where the drawings arred?

Mr. MgesEr.—I cannot recollect that there was anv,

Mr. HorgaTe—What we want to know is whether tho Jdrawings that were fur-
nished to the shop, and which you mspected by, were correct drawmgs for the purpose?

Mr. MEESER.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLgaTE.

Mr, Meeser.—Well considered.

Mr., Horoate—During the fabrication of the matena] were the appliances of
the Phenix Bridge Company’s shop ample for the bandling of all the parts?

Mr., Mrzser—I think the best.

Mr, Horaate.—The best thot you know of 1

Mr. Meeser.—That I have uver seen, yes, sir.

Mr. HoLeaTE.—Are you generally famlhar with plans of that nature?

Mr. Meeser.—I had been travelling from one plant {o the other before I went
with these people.
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Mr. Hounate.—Then in the using of these appliances what care was used

Mr. Meeser—Well, all care was taken that nothing could be hurt in any way,
shape or form. When they put the chains around they made all kinds of supports
between the irons so they could not bend or buckle, and I think all the way through
every care was exercised so that the pieces would not be injured in any way.

Mr. Hoteate—~Was there any injury to any pizee that took place in the shops?

Mr. Merser.—There was one.

Mr. Horcate~ Cnel Have you any recollection of thatt

Mr. Meeser—T do.

Mr. Horcate.—Can you specify{

Mr. Messer—Well, they were carrying a chord across the yard and it fell, tue
chain broke, or if the chain did not break the teeth failed and it fell down.

Mr. Horcate—Iave you a record to show what part that was?

Mr. Meeser—Tt was chord 10 of 622 on the north side, now in the Belair yard.

Mr. Horaate—Now in the Belair yard?

Mr. Meeser.—Yes, sir,

Mr. HovLaate—Was it damaged to eny extent?

Mr. Meeser.—It was bent, there was nothing broken about it, it was bent.

Mr. Horeate—And what did you do when that occurred ?

Mr. Meeser.—I called Mr. Edwards; he came up and locked at it, and took it
up I think with his superior.

Prof. GarsraiTi.—What does that No. 622 mean?

Mr. Meeser.—622, it is the order. That is the way we have, all even numbers
are on one side and all the odd numbers on the opposite side. 621 i3 in the side now
that has fallen, the cantilever arm; No. 622 will be on the opposite side of the river.
That is the Bridge Cerapany’s order, and that is the way we could-tell,- - - -~

Mr. GausraiTH—What was done with regard to that chord piece itself, Mr.
Meesert

Mr. Meeser.—It was straightened.

Prof. GarsraiTH.—And afterwards inspected by you?

Mr. Meeser.-—~Yes, sir.

Prof.-GausrairH.—And found saticfactory?

Mr. Meeser.—Yes, sir. . :

Mr. GarsrartH.—Did you immediately supervise the shipping or loading?

Mr. Mrerser.—Not until it was thoroughly inspected by all parties concerned.

- Prof. GarerarTi.—DBut the actual loading on the cars, would you see the material
after it was loaded on the cars?

Mr. Meeser.—Not in all cases, but I tried to make it a point to do so whenever
T possibly could. .

Prof. Garerarri.—Mr, Edwards has told us about the system used in connection
with the loading of cars?

Mr. MEESER.~-Y¢s, sir.

Prof. GaLsrarrn.—Can you give us any further explanation of that?

Mr. Meeser—On each picce of any size there was a drawing made giving full
instructions to the chief shipper how it was tp be loaded. With smaller members
he used his own judgment,

I;rof. Garpraitd.—-And what can you say as to the carrying out of those direc-
tions

Mr, Meeser.—I think they were lived up to to the letter. The railv@zy companies
had their inspectore on the ground all the time, the cars were thoroughly gone over
and if any question came up between the Bridge Company’s rcpresentatives or the
chief shipper and the inspectors, they sent for their chief inspectors, who were very
often on the ground to make matters satisfactory to both parties before a car would
Jeave the plant. ’

Prof. GaverartH.—Now with regard to the process of manufacture in the shop,
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generally speaking, how was the work donef Did you have any difficulty in forcing
your ideas of the specifications, in having the matter carried out

Mr. Merser.—I had not.

Prof. Gaverarra.—With regard to the assembling and riveting how did you find
the work complying with your wishes{

Mr. Megsgr.—~Good.

Prof. Gavrsmarry —Suﬂicxently good to warrant your accepting it when it was
completed {

Mr. MEeser.—Yes, sir, extreme care was taken on this,

Prof. GaLeearrH.—In what way §

Mr. Meeser—Every way, all the way through, in all parts, all departments.
They had all received special instructions to make this, I might eay a master Job
Outside inspectors had come there and said they had received better results sinee
our own job was started on their own work.

Prof. Garsrarrn.—And thoso reports that Mr. Edwards refers to, you had know-
ledge of 8o far as the fabrication is concerned 1

Mr. Meeser.—The reports I had nothing to do with.

Prof. Garprarrir—Was there any flanging or hot work, blacksmith work neces-
sary in any part of the fabrication {

Mr. MEeesEr—In some, yes, sir,

Prof. Gatpratri.—What care was taken with respect to plates on which that
work was done, after the flanging or other operation, with respect to cooling T mean ?

My, Mursrr.—They were let lie right down on the ground after they were
finished, not on the ground but on beams that were there. They were.let lie thera
until perfectly cool; we would not allow them to make them too hot.

--Prof. GALBRAI‘I‘H ~~Care-was taken about the temperature to which they were
heated ¢

Mr. MEegser.~—Yes, sir.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—What sbout winter work ¥ Were any precautions taken to
prevent them from being cooled too suddenly in the winter ¥ Were any pieces
thrown down into the snow 1

Mr. Meeser—Not that T know of ; it is all under the roof where this is _done.

Praf. GaLeraitH.—Or were they exposed to rain or wet while cooling,

My, Meeser—No, it is all under roof.

The witness retired.

Honace M. CLARE, sworn.

Mr. Horoate.—Mr, Clark, are you an eniployee’ of the Phenix Bridge company !

Mn Crark.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoreaTE.—Ars you connected with the work * the Quebec bridge 1

Mr. CLarg.-—Yes, sir.’

Mr. HorLaaTe.—In what capacity &

Mr., Crarg.—~Foreman in charge of the storage yard.

Mr. Horoate—How long have you been acting in that capacity ?

Mr. Crarr.—S8ince Ogctober 26, 1904,

Mr. HorLoaTE.—Your duties confined ycu to the storage yard ?

Mr. Crarg.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLaaTE~—Now, with regard to your duties, what do they cover?

Mr. Ciark.~They cover the unloading, the reception of the metal, the unload-
.ing, checking and storing it away and sending it to the bridge,

Mr. Horoare.~~That is reloading.

Mr. Crarg.—Yes, sir, reloading and sending it to the bridge as it was required
for daily erection.
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Mr. HoLaaTE.—Aud in doing that you would have to handle all these parts twice?
Mr. CLARK.—Yes, sir.

Mr. 1.0LoaTE.—What nvere your facilities for handling ?

Mr, cranes of 75 tons caRamtv each,

Mr. HOIGATL —\What was the weight of your heaviest piece handled 1

Mr, CLArK.—The heaviest piece handled was about 98 tons, No. 10 chord section

in the cantilever arm. i . .
Mr. HoLastE.—When you speak of checking, de. that refer to checking quanti-

ties or dimensions.

Mr. CLakk.—TIt refers to taking the amount of material that comes in on the
different cars to chieck them to sce that they check with the inveice from the shipper?
Mr. Toreate.—It refers \n no way to checking the dimensions of the parts ?

Mr. Crare.—No, gir, it ;ust yefers to the marks, the shipping marks and marks
in connection with erection.

Mr. Hotcate—In handling the heavy parts were you always able to do it sue-
cessfully or had you any trouble t

AMr. CLank.—Well, we never had any trouble, except with one chord section that
we had a misfortune with.

Mr, HoreaTe.—What happened ¢

Mr. CLerk.~—It was chord section 9 I, anchor arm. One the hooks broke, a
connecting link on a hook broke and the chord section dropped on to the ground,
striking a plate,

Prof. GALBRAITH.—A¢ one end?

Mr. Crarg.—At one end, ves, sir. The splice plates were on the chord, that is
the web splice plates were on the chord, and they struck a plate that we vsed in tho
vard, and the leverage on the plates broke two of the angles on the bottom of that rib,

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Struck edgewise or sideways?

Mr. Crark.—Directly on the top side of the chord.

Prof. GaLprarrn.—Edzewise of the splice plates.

Mr. Crark.—Edgewisa, yes.

Mr. HoLeATE.—And vias it one end of this piece that fell or the whole piece?

Mr. Crark.—Both ends. One end fell on a pile of eye-bars and the other one
{ell 18 inches or 2 feet more.

Mr. Horcate.—How far did it fall?

Mr. Crark.—Possibly 5 feet.

Prof. Qarsraiti—{Tow many fells were on the chord ?

Mr. Crark.~—~There were two cranes.

Prof. Gaipraitit—And both broke?

Mr. Crark.—No, cne broke and that loosened the other one,

Prof. Gavnraitii.—-So you let the whole chord fall?

Mr. Crark.—Yes, sir, practically the whole chord.

Prof. GatsraiTH-~It struck one end first and struck sideways the rest.

Mr. Crark.—Yeg, sir. )

Prof. Gaupraitit.—The other e¢nd did not strike the ground directly?

. Mr, Crark.—No, sir, the other end did not strike more than 20 inches. -

Prof. Gausrarrti—In handling this material had you any specific mstructxons?

Mr. Crark.—Y s, sir. ,

Prof. GaLpraiTH.—As to how to handle it?

Mr. CLarK.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GatBrarvw.—In what form were those mstructlons given to youl

Mr, Juark.~For some of the principal members, all the chord sections, there are
60 ton hooks designed for the handling of them, and we have the two cranes and use
them to handle tiuem, that is a 60 ton hook on each end of the chord, thus giving us
all the scope we reeled.
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Prof. GaLBrarrH.—That is what you did?
Mr, CLArK.—Yes, sir.
Prof. GALBRAITH.—Bul were you instructed to do that!? )
Mr, CLark.~Oh yes, vie had two cranes. The hooks could not have been used st
that time, only on two cranes,
Prof. GaLBraITII:—Were there specific instructions given you with regard to the
handling of that material from the carl
Mr, Ocark.—Not all of them, the lighter members, of course there would not be
anything given for that but the heavier members there was.
Prof. GaLsrarrtH.—Where did you get those instructions from
Mr. CLark.—We got the instructions from the blue prints ard from the general
plans. We have all the blue prints at the storage yard that we had at the bridge so
far as the evection and handling of the metal is concerned.
Prof. GaLeraitiH.—The were the instructions that you refer to as blue pnnts
followed ¢
Mr, Crark.~—Yes, sir,
Prof. GALBRAITH.—AnNJ. in carrymg out that work did you find these instruections
* ample for the handling of taese parts?
Mr. CLARK.—Yes, sir,
Prof. GausraiTH.—Is it usual on your work to receive instructions of that nature?
Mr, CLark.—Well, not on smaller work we do not receive it, but on a work of this
kind it is something unusual, and the instructions have been given and we have positive
orders not- to do anything only just what we get instructions to do, especially on a
heavy member.
- Prof. GALBRAMMHA-Th.sm you handle those members in the yard in accordance -
with the instructions you receive on blue prints that were furnished to you by whom{
Mr, CLARE.—The Phcenix Bridge Company.
Prof. GaLBrAITH{.—By whom at the Phenix Bridge Company.
Mr. Crark.—All blue prints and instructions come direct to the general foreman,
and are turned over to th: different foremen under him.
Prof. GaLBRAITH.—W o was your immediate foreman on the work?
Mr. Crarg«—Mr. Yenser,
Prof. GaLBraTTH—With regard to this particular chord that you refer to, was it
the only case of damuge Jone to a member in the course of handlingt
Mr, CuARk.—Yes, sir.
Prof. GaLraitH.—"Vher this happened what was done in the way of rechfymg
the matter ¢
Mr, Cuarg.—It was repaired in the following spring,  think about May or June, I
could not tsll exactly. [ could tell it was according to the Phanix Bridge Company’s
tool order No. 200. '
Prof. GaLerairH.~-Did you have to do with repairs 1
Mr. CLARK.~It was under my supervision, yes, sir.
Prof. GALBRUTH~~And the repairs were done in the yard ?
Mr, Crarg.—Yes, sir.
Prof. GALBRAITH. —Would you give us the date of that accxdent?
Mr. Crark.—I cannot give you exactly. There is a record I presume in the
Phenix Bridge Comnany’s office, but it was in A\pnl I am almost ;,mmve
Prof. GaLBraiTE.—In what year ¢ »
Mr. CLARR.—1905,s
Drof. GaLBRAITE.—And the repairs were made the next spring
Mr. CLagk.—Jvust a minute, 1905, the repairs were made that s:ins spring.
Prof. GaLeraiTi.—How long after the accident was the repair made, and when ?
Mr. CLABK.—I’; was in the same year, two months and a half later. Of course,
these repaira covered quite a few days. I could not give the exact date when the
Tepairs were made
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Mr. Hovoate.—The repairs wera made, though ¢
Mr, CLarge.—Yes, sir.
. Mr. HoLoate.—Will you describe just what you did, shortly ¥

Mr. Crark.—The angles that were broken were cut off,

Mr. Horaate.—Which angles—the flange angles { . _

Mr. CLargk.—The main anglee in the chord section. I cannot give the exact
locality now. The sheets will give that,

Mr. HoLoatE—On the outside rib are the details of the work described on the
tool order ?

My, CLark.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—Will that describe it fully 1

Mr. CLark.—Yes

Mr. Horeate—Can we get a copy of that 1

Mr, CLark.--They are at the ijridge Company’s office, I think.

Mr, HoroaTe.—You may, as nearly as you can recollect it now, give a descrip-
tion of it.

Mr. CLark.—As near as I can recall it there were two angles broken and they
were broken on the bottom of the chords. I cannot just recall whether they were out-

side or inside angles. T know one of them was an insidé angle but thé exdct distance

from the chord splice I cannot give without the tool order. But tle chords were
cut off and the splice made with perfect joints clipped and filed to the satisfaction
of the engineer,

Mr. HoLoaTE.~—Who was the inspector? :

Mr. Crare—Mr. Kinlech. The work was finished and tha chord sections sent

“to the bridge at- the proper time when it was required -in.the structure..’ Further, the
work is there to show for itself. That entire end of the chord section is intact and
can be seen at this time.

Prof. GaLsraitii.—That was the end of chord 9 joined to 101

Mr. CLARK.—On the west side of the anchor arm. _

Mr. HorcaTe.—What inspection was given to your work by the Quebec Bridge
Company {

Mr. Crark.—My work was usually inspected before it was erected. The inspectors
usually got on the cars at the bridge and inspected the work that I had done—either
Afr. McLure or Mr. Kinloch. They would make frequent visits to the yard and look
over the work generally.

Mr. Hovrcate.—~Who, besxdes Mr. Kinloch, did inspect chord A 9I, after the
repairst

Mr. CLagk.—]1 would not be sure whether Mr. Kinloch had Mr. Hoare with him
or not, but it seems to me that Mr. Hoare came to the yard one day to look over the
repairs. 1 would not be positive,

Mr. HoroaTe.—But nobody clse that you recollect 1

Mr. CrLarg.—No, sir,

Mr. Horeate.~—Do you recollect Mr. McLure inspecting it

Mr. CLaRk.—No, I do not..

--Mr.- Hotoate—Do-you -recollect Mr. Hudson being there 1

Mr. CrsrK.—Yes, sir,

Mr, Horoate.—Did he see it {

Mr. CLagrx.—Yes, and Mr. Szlapka was with him at the same time.

Mr, HorLoaTE.—I understand that that was after it had been repaired?

Mr. Crark.—No, sir, before,

Mr. Howsate.—Did Mr, Hudson see it afterwards?

Mr. CLark.—No, sir, I do not think so. I would not be sure whether Mr. Hudson
saw it afterwards or not. :

Mr, Stuart.—I understand Mr, Mudson was there during the repair.

- Mr, HoLoaTE.—Was Mr, Hudson there during the repair$
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Mr. Crark.—I could not say as to that positively whether he was or not.. The
chord was looked over very carefully by Mr, Hudson and Mr. Szlapka before the
repairs were mads to it and looked over by different people at different timnes. 1
cannot recall who all were there,

Mr. Howaate~Was your method of handling this chord different from t,hat of
handling similar chords?

Mr, CLark.—~No, sir,

Mr, HoLeaTE.—Was there a chain used in connection with the handling of this
chord

My, Cragx.—No, sir.

Mr. HoveaTe—1n making the repair of the chord to what extent had you to use
heat?

Mr, Crark.—There was a Wells light put on the bend, on the augle almost oppo-
sife to where the repairs were made and that particular bend was taken out. The
angle was bent in almont opposite the point of repair and that bend was taken out.
We put a Wells light on it and we tried to get it warm enough to bend it back, but
failing we did away with the heat and straightened it out with a ram.

Mr. HoLoaTE—By whose instructions were the details of these repairs carried out?

* Mr, Crark.—T think that the notes for the Tepairs were taken by Mr. Szlapka
and Mr. Hudson, The two orders for the repairs, I think, you will find were given
by Mr. Scheidel.

Mr. Hovroatk. —»Wlll that order eompletely speclfy the method to be used in
‘making these repairsi--- : ]

Mr. Crage.—Yes, sir; it does 1ot tell you how to do the work but it speclﬁes the
repairs,- - -

Mr, HoLoarte. -———Does it speclfy that the parts had to be heated

Mr, Crark.—No, sir. The reason that I abandoned heating was that we could
not heat it with the Wells light. That was my own idea, and we could not get heat
enough on it to straighten it with the Wells light, and so I abandoned that and
straightened it with a ram.

Mr. HoLGATE. ——Apart from using the Wells hght heat was not used?

Mr. Crark.—No, sir, :

Mr. HoLoaTe.—Aud you found the Wells light would not give sufficient heat to
be of much use to yout

Mr. Crarg.—It would not give you enough heat.

Prof. GaiBrAITH.~—I{ was practxcally a cold bend?

Mr, HorLaaTe.—What was the rule in regard to forwarding parts from the storage
yard to the bridge?

Mr. Cuarg.—Entirely laid out on our erection biue prints.

Mr. Hovreate~Upon whose instructions would you forward material to the
bridge?

Mr. CLARE.—We had instructions to go by I would know danly what was built
up at the bridge and what would be required in rotation from the erection blue prmts
We had a diagram to go by of the sections of the whole bridge and as for the minor
dete.ls, little connections rnd piecss like that T would have to get thess out myself. -

Mr. HoLGATE.—When these parts were wanted at the bridge, would you be &d\nsed
" by Mr. Yenser?

Mr. CLarg.—If the order of erection wculd be changed from that print?

Mr, HoroATE.—] mean that if ha were ready for these parts, would ke send you
word thati theso paris were required{

Mr. Craxk.~No, we had io work a good deal ahead of them sometimes to have
them roady, and they would go out sometimes before they were ready.

Mr. Horoate.—Who inspected these parts before they were forwarded to the
bridge{

Mr. Crarg.—Nobody but myself.
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AMr. HoLaate.—Whas there no inspection made in the storage yard by the Quebec
Bridge Companyt L . )

Mr. Cari—Only in a general way, not a daily inepection, but the inspectors
- would look over the various members as they came up to the bridge. - : -

Prof. GaLBraiTH.—They inspected them at the bridge and not at the yard?

Mr, CLArRk.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—Did you consider it necessary to have the. Quebec Bridge Com-
pany’s inspection before you forwarded the various parts to the bridge?

Mr, CLark.—No, sir.

Mr. Horcate—How did you keep track of the meinbers as you shipped them to
the bridge? :

Mr. CLark.—I checked them off from the erection diagram,

Mr. HoLeaTE.~On the diagram itself 1

Mr. CLark.—Yes. sir.

Mr. Horoate.—Would that give the date when they were forwarded §

Mr, Crarg.—No, sir,

Mr. Horoate—T1t would merely state that they hed been sent §

Mr. Coarg.—That is all. .

Mr. Horeate.—When you refer to an occasional -inspection on the part-of the
Queboce Bridge Company in the yard, what individuals do you refer tof

Mr. Crarg.—Mr. McLure and Mr. Kinloch and occasionally a visit from Mr.
Hoare, not as an inspector, but as taking a general obscrvation,

.. Mr. HoLgate.—Were there any occasions when they refused to permit the material
to go from the yard to the bridge ¢

Mr. Crark.—Not to my knowledge.

Mr. HorLoaTE.—In the usual course this chord that you referred to was forwarded
to the bridge ¢ ' '

Mr. CLark.—The same as any other chord,

Mr, HoLGate.—Have you any means of ascertaining, Mr. Clark, what of the ma-
terial that you forwarded to the bridge had not been erected in the bridge at the
time of the accident on the 29th of August {

Mr. Crark.—There were only two members, There were two members I hed just
sent up that were not erected.

Mr, HoroaTe.~Which members were they ? )

Mr, CrarE—Two sections of eye-bars—diugonal bars 20 in the suspended Bpan..

Mr. HoLoaTe~~Then I understand that all other material that had left the yard
ai that time had been erected in the structure and that only these chord bars had been
forwarded and remained unerected and not yet placed in the structure

Mr. CLARK.—Yes, sir. As I understand it, one set of bars had already been run
to the front and the engine was going to the front with the last section.

Mr. HoroaTe.—What materia! yet remains in the yard

Mr. Crark.—The balance of the suspended span for the south half.

Mr. Howgate—Have you any record, Mr. Clark, of material having gone to the-
bridge and having been returned to the storage yard?

*ML' CLA'RK'. ‘Y(.’S, Sir'_ e e T L DL T LI T L S L LT

Mr. HoLeaTE—What have you reference to §

4 M. CLark.—I have reference to U.S., V. 4. I think that is it. It was wrong
side up. ~

Mr. HoLoaTe.—In regard to this piece, you sent it, you say, wrong end ont

Mr. CLarg.—No, it was wrong side up. It was for the right side and I had it
turred over to the left side. "I had it turned wrong side up for the inner chord. It
was just a matter of bringing it back and turning a five or six ton piece over ; we
turned it over on the same car, and it was not more than five rainutes’ work.

Mr. HoLGATE.~—Are there any other cases of material being returned t

Mr. CLARE.—Not to my knowledge.
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Mr. HoLGATE—What became of the eye-bars that were run iorward? They were .
not erected ¥

Mr, Cragx.—In the river, I guesa.

Mr. HoLaaTE—Then, as I understand if, these eye-bars wuulda be the only ma-
terial on the bridge as far as you know that had not been erected in the structure 1

Mr, Craeg.—These two sections of eye-bare.

Mr. HoraaTe.—~You have no recollectxon of anything being run back off the bridge
before the accident lmppened ]

Mr. Crarg.~~No, sir,

Mr. Horoatz.—You would have known if it had taken place ¢

Mr. Crark.~—~There would not be anything to come back. The two chord sec-
tions were sent up and were in place and were being connected and thc.re was nothmg
to send up between the chord sections and these eye-bars.

Mr. Horeate.—Is there any point, Mr. Stuart, you would like to mention 1

Mr. Stuart.—I have nothing. .

Mr. Davipgsox.—I understand that Mr, Clark is now speaking of the 20th, but
Mr. Haley stated that these stringer pieces were sent back on the 2Sth.

Mr. Hoveate.—Mr. Clark has stated that to his knowledge no material was sent
back except this one piece of the post that was returned.

Mr. Davipsox.—Mr. Haley did not say they were sent back to the atorage yard
They were sent back off the bridge—I do not know where to. Mr. Clark probably
would not know this.

- _Mr. Horoate.—Have you any knowledge in regard to the return from the bridge
of material that was intended for this erection or material which was connected with
the apparatus for erection on the 28th of August §

Mr. Crark.—Yes, there was one of the erection spans, that is the working span,
sent back and put in on the side track until next day. I frequently would load these
spens a day ahead, I frequently loaded various members a dar shead and sent them
up; they would not be ready for them, and they wouid return them and put them on
the side track until they were ready for them. I think it was the day before that I
had loaded the erection span and sent it up, and Mr. Yenser had the crew return it
and it was thrown on the side track until next day.

Mr. HowaTeE.—Hadd that been done beforef

Mr. Crang.—Possibly it had; I could not say pbsitwely.( We used to have a side
track there up in the cut, but not this year, that they probably would throw things in
to hold them temporarily until they could take care of them op the bridge. In my
work I worked as much as a month shead on some of the members to prepare them
and frequ-atly a member would be run up before they were ready for it and it would
be throwr in on the side track until such time as they could take care of it.

Mr. HorgaTe.—When these erection girders were returned from the bridge would
they then be under your caref

Mr. Crank.—Well, no; they just iie on the side track sub]ect to the orders at
the front.

Mr. HomATx.-——Have you any knowledge as to why they were returned?

- My, Crarg.—No, sir; no more than that they were not ready for them.

Prof. GaLszuri.—Have you a record of everything returned to the side trackt

Mr. CLaRk.—No, sir. .

Prof. GaLpuarre.—Have you any mesns of knowmg what is m the side track
officially without simply paying a chance visit!

Mr. CLarg.—Not from day to day. I do not keep any record.

Mr. HorLeate—How far is the storage yard from the sxde trach {

Mr. Cragg.—About half a mile.

Mr. HoLgare—Your duties keep you at the storage yard constantiy!

Mr. CLark.~~Yes, sir.

Mr, Horoatse.—Have you any duties which world take you to the siding wkew
‘these carsd are thrown int
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~ Mr. CLagg.—No, they are opposite the storage yard, possibly 300 or 400 fest away.

Mr, HoLaaTE—So that you would see the cars when they were returnedt

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Do I understand that this side track that you speak of is one
track and the siding is another track near the storage yard?

Mr. Horgate.—I think that what Mr, Clark means is that the sxdmg where
these cars were thrown in is 300 or 400 feet from the storage yard.

Mr. CLARE.—~—Probably 300 or 400 feet. It used to be the main line and it was
used for storage purposes.

Mr. HoLaaTE.—What do you mean by half a milef

Mr. CLarg.—The storage yard is half a mile from the bridge.

Prof, GaLerarrH.—And this siding is somewhat less?

Mr, CLArg.—Yes, about 300 feet.

Mr. Horaate.—Did you see Mr. Yenser on the 28th?

Mr. Crark.—Yes, I saw Mr. Yenser every day.

Mr. Horeate.—Did Mr. Yenser refer in any way to the return of these carst

Mr. CLark.—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—Have you any knowledge as to why he returned them?

Mr. CLarg.—I asked the brakeman \vhy he brought them back and he said they

--- were not ready for them. -

Mr, HoLoaTe—Who is the brakemani

Mr. Crark.—Homer Fontaine.

Mr, DavipsoN.—Before you pass to another point, I would like you to ask this

_____witnesn_if_it_is_not within_his_knowledge that there waa_a good _deal of commetion

amongst the men about these cars bemg sent back aud a good deal of unrest—a good
deal of feeling about them?

Mr. HotoatE.—Did you hear comments made by any one in regard to the return-
ing of the cars with the erection span on them?

Mr. CLarg.—Not until this time,

Mr. Horoate.~—Until whent

Mr. Crark.—TJntil the gentleman speaks of it now.

Mr. HoLeate.~I would not refer to Mr. Davidson’s conversetion. You did not
hear it. )

Mr. Crare.—All right.

Mr. HoLeaTE.—Did you hear any comments{

Mr. CLark.—No, sir, I never heard until this day why these girders came back.

Mr. HoLoaTE—None of the men commented on the matter to you?

Mr, Crark.—No, sir; in my position I do not come into contact with them but
very little; for this reason, that the men who boarded with me were, two of them,
engmeers and one of them an apprentice, and I know that they did not mention any-
thing in the house in rclation to these girders going back. Most of the men lived in

Liverpool, and I did not come into contact with any of them, and I never have, up -

to this time, heard anything as to why these girders went back. I never knew they
were in question,

Mr. Horeate.—The only thing you can tell us is that the brakeman told you the

reason they were sent back was that they were not ready for them at the fronti-

Mr. CLarg.—Yes, Mr. Yonser told him to take them back, they were not resdy
for them.

Mr, DavingoN—Is that brakeman alive?

Mr. Craeg -—No, sir. ‘

Mr. HoreaTs—Had you heard anything up to the 20th of August in regard to
defects which were suppnsed to have existed in that structure?

Mr. Crark.~—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLoaTe.~-What was the nature of the information you had?

Mr. Ovarg.—The information I got in a general way was that No, § chords were
buekling.
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Mr. Horaats.—A-9%
My, Cramx.-A-9, yes.
Mr. HoLaaTs.~—~When did you bear thatt

My, Om{—l-wuld not say exaoctly: It might have -been & day or two before -

the sccident.

Prof. GALBRAITH. -—-Anytlnnz about the cantilever arm{

Mr. Orarg.—No, sir.

Mr, Horaate—Who told you that, Mr. Clarkt

Mr, CLARE.~I cannot recall who told me, but I questioned Mr. Birks on the day
of the accident, possibly 15 or 20 minutes before the accident, and I asked him if
there was any truth in what T heard. He said there was a bend in chord 9-L and to
.my tecollection I think he said about an inch and five-eighths. And he also said:
In spite of the fact that you and Mr. Kinloch may think that chord was entirely
straight before it left the yard, it is my belief that the chord wasé in its present
condition or nearly so when it went into the bridge.

Prof. Gavsrarte.—How long is it since that chord went in%o the bridge?

Mr. Crarg.—I1 could not give the exact date,

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Approximately ?

Mr, Crapg.~It was 1805,

Mr. Horoate—~When Mr. Birks made that statement that it was in the same
condition when it left the yard, what did you say?

Mr. Ouax —7T told him that he had a right to his own opinion and I hnd a

my own. mexon about the case. After that he got on the car and went to the bridge.
Mr. HoroaTE.~—You checked that chord before it left the yard?
Mr, CLaRK.~In a general way, yes.
Mr, HoLGATE—Who else inspected it?
Mr. CLarg.—Mr. Kinloch.

Mr. Hoigate.—Then, according to Mr. Birks’ asertion at the time, there would _

) 'have been a bend visible in the chord at the yard of an inch and five-eighths, you state?
Mr. CLark.—That is what he told me about what the bend was, as nearly as I
can recall. I could not recall the exact distance he did give.

Mr. Hoigate.~Were there any other points that you ever heard reference made

to, Mr. Clark?

Mr, Crark.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLBraITH.—Did you see the fall of the bridge?

Mr. Crarg.~-Nor, sir, I was at the yard at the time.

Prof. GaLsrartH.—Mr. Birks had just left you for the bridge? ’ ’

Mr. Crarg.—Yes, about 15 minutes.

Prof. GarsrartH.—Before the accident?

Mr. Jrark.—Yes, _

Mr, HoLoATe.~~In what condition did that chord leave the yard?

Mr. CuaRk.—I have already answered that in a general way; from the observa-
tions I made of it, the chord was prautzcally quite as good a chord as any other chord
_.that ever left the y’ard

Prof. GALBRAITH »-Yoh had reason to make upecml observations in reg‘al'd tol o

that chord as it was the chord, I understand, which you were repairing in the yard?

Mr. Oranx.—Yes, sir,

Mr. Horoate.—Did you put & liné on the chord?

Mr. Cranx.—No, sir. I do not think Mr, Birks saw the chord in the yard. (I
am not positive. I am not sure as to what time Mr. Birks came on the work.

Mr. Horoare—Mr, Birks would see it going out on the bridge! '

Mr. OLank.~~If he were here at that time. I cannot mﬂ vhethar Mr. Birks
wuthemm«mmehnmﬂthnttiﬁeornot.

Mr. Hovasre.—~Wonld Mr. Birks have been there at that timé, Mr. Deanst

Mr.anl--Whenhsﬁﬁtm mditlthcnghthambutitinwumomt
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oue Mr. Hudson, our first assistant engineer, who was in the place occupied' by Mr.
Birks, may have seen the chord. He may have seen the chord and he superintended
all the repairs of the chord. He was Mr. Szlapka’s principal assistant.

Prof. GALeramit.—Do you remember whether he was here when the chord was
placed in position?

Mr. Deaxs.—It was either Mr. Hudson or Mr. Birks, because wa always had an
engineer on the ground. I think possibly it was Mr. Hudsoun.

Mr. CraRk.—I think Mr. Hudson was here when that chord was placed. I de
not say exactly;-but-TI-think-Mr.-Hudson-was here ‘when that chord was placed.-

Mr. Howcare—Then Mr. Birks would have no personal knowledge !

Mr. Stuart.—Except such as he would get from subsequent inspections after it
was placed and what he said would be quite compatible with that, that there had
Leen no change after it had been erected or since it had been in the bridge.

Prof. GALBrAITH.~—If you had seen a deflection of an inch and five-cighths in the
chord do you think yon would have noticed it and been sure of it?

Mr. Cuark.—I think I would. An inch and five-eighths is quite a bit.

Witnessed discharged.

Commission adjourned to meet at ten a.m. Monday, September 16.

SEVENTH DAY.

Questce, Monday, September 16, 1907,

The Comimission resumed at ten a.an.
J. J. Naxce, sworn,

Mr. Horaate—Were you an employee of the Phenix Bridge Company on August
20th?

Mr, Naxce—-Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoare—When did you commence work with the Phenix Bridge Company
in connection with the Quebee bridge work?

Mr. Naxce—Two years ago last July past,

Mr. Horvate~-What was your position?

Yr. Naxuce—I was running the engine.

AMr. Hovg.re~Were you running the engine all the time from the time you
entered the service!

Mr. Naxck- -Yes.  Tkis summer, for a while, I was running lines.

Mr. Ho.aAte.—What kind of lines{

Mr. NaxcE.—Lines we were doing work with, hoisting and the like of that.

Mr. Horcate—Working the tackle?

Mr. Nakce—Yes..

- M. HoresiE~~You say you were running the engine. What engine?—————-—

Mr. Nasce.—One of the electric homtmg engines on the top ~f the little traveller.

Mr. HoLoATE.—Yo0u were engaged in doing that work on August 291

Mr. NANCE~-Yes,

Mr. HoLGATE—Were you there when the accident happened to the bridge?

Mr. NaNCE—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoare.—You mig . tell us just what you observed at that time? ]

Mr. Nakce.—The only thing I knew was she went down so quick you did not
have time to think of but very little. T went down from the top.
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Prof. GaLorarrn.—~You were near Mr. Haley?
Mr. NaNcE~—Yes, sir.

Mr, Horaate.—Where was Mr, Haley ¢ ) . :

Mr. Nance—Mr, Haley was out just on the fore jib giving signals to us on the
engines we were on.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—Which way were you lookmg—stralght to the nozth shoret
Mr. Nance.—We faced that way.

Pror. GaLsrarTH,—\Vhen the bridge began to go downt

Mr. Nance.—Yes, sir,

Mr. HotoAte~You can really give 76 informationi a3 to what happencd because
you were in no positnon perhaps to observe at the time? .

Mr. Na¥ce—~—No, sir, I did not know an)thmg about it. I knew very little after
she started and ihe next second she was in the witer and I was down in the water
with it. I went to the bottom with the engme

Prof. Garerarrit.—IHolding ont

Mr. Nance—Yes, to the controller handle.

Prof. GaLpratTi.—Were you struck by the wreck?

Mr. Nance.—Yes, I have different mJunes on me, in fact: 2 muscle has pulled
loose and a couple of ribs in the side--that is the worat, so the doctor told me.

Mr. Horoate—Were you generally familiar with the whole bridge 1

Mr. Naxce—No sir. I have worked at anything I was put at, but I was never
pui at anything only the engines and on the lines. That is about all the work I ever
-did ‘on the bridge. Probab]y ‘half a day, or somethmg like that, it would be raining,
or something, and the engines were not running and I would be fitting up or working
in the gang or anything that mxght be ready to do.

Mr. FloLaate.—In your passing to and from the work, did you ever make any,
what you would <all, inapection, or was yotir atfention called to anything in porti-
cular ¢

Mr. Nance.—Yes, sir; on the day before we were going off the bridge after wo
came down irom the work, from the top. We were walking off the bridge and meny
of our men on top ther» that day had been discussing quite a little in regard to e bent
chord. )

Mr. Horoatr—\Who called your attention to it ¢

Mr. Navce- -Mr Cook was tho first man. After we came down they went down
on the chord. ‘

Mr. Horeste.—They did ?

Mr. NaNce—Yes.

Mr., Horoate—Who ¢

Mr, Navce.—Mr. Cook and Mr. Ialey, an¢ I went on over the top of it. T did-
not go down on the chord, but they did.

}ir. HoLoate.—What day was that §

Mr, Naxce—On the 27th of August.

Prof. Garbrairi.—That was two days before, then?

- Mr. NANCE—Y¢s. F

Mr. Stuart.—Did he say in the morning or the avening ?

Mr. Navce.—TIt was in the evening.

Mr., HoreatE~—From your own knowledge you ecan tell us nothing about that
detail 1

Mr. Naxce~—~No, sir, T do not remember very much of if, aild I 'went downiso

quick,

Mr. HorcaTE—I do not mean that; I mean in reference to this particular thmg
that Mr. Cook spoke to yon about.

Mr. Nance—No, sir, I did not go down on that chord. = All T heard them say
was that they had heard the engineers say that it was bent.

Mr., HorcatE.—Do you know which chord they refecred to ?
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Ar. Naxce.—I think it wes in around the t ird or fourth section from the big
pier. That would make it about No. 9.

Mr. Horoate—Qutwards towards the river §

Mr. Naxce—Out near the water.

Mr. HoloaTE.—Was that in the anchor arm.

Mr. Nance—In the cantilever arm. .

Mr. Horoate.—What impression did that information have on you at the time?

Mr. Naxce—I do not know; I was not in a position to know very much about
it, but there were some of them who seemed to be interested. T was a little scaved
but I did not want to be the first man to walk off. 1 wanted to stay as long as the "
rest of them stayed.

Mr. Horoate.—Were you ever on the lower chord yourself 1

Mr, Naxce~—~Yes, sir.

Ar. Horoate—In any part of the bridge 1

Mr. Nance—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoreatE.—What particular part?

Mr. Naxce—It was down on the pier in the first section, straight out over the
water from the anchor.

Mr, ToLaatE—At the anchor arm §

Mr. Naxce.—Yes,

Mr. Horoate—Which particular seetion have you reference to ?

Ar. Naxce—I remember being on the upstream one. T swent down to get o
plank we wanted on the deck. '

Mr. HoLgate—When was that ¢

Mr. Nancr.—Last summer.

Mr. Horeate—The summer of 1906 ?

Mr. NaxcE—Yes,

AMr. Hotaate—Why do you recall that particular incident #

Mr. Nexce—I was running the engine on the upstream gide and we lost a coupl:
of planks. One went overboard and one landed on the chord below and T went down
to pull it up.

Mr. Horoate-—You did not go there for the purpose of lookirg at anything
in particular in conneetion with the bridge 1

Mr. Nancr—-No, sir; 1 went there to put the hook on the plank and draw it up.

Mr. Hoteate—Did you observe anything peculiar with the bridgo 1

Mr. Naxce.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLprarTH.—You are -peaking now of a chord between the main pier and
the shore {

Mr. Naxce~No, sir.

\r. HorLeate.—That is what T understand. .

Mr. Naxce—This was on the anchor arm, the first piece.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Betlween the main pier and the shore §

., Nance.—No, it is out over the avater past the pier.

“Prof. GAT RATTH~TI{ i past’ the pier towards- the north-shore 4-- - - - e

Mr. NANCE—Yes. .

Prof. Garprairi.—Then it is on the cantilever arm 1

Mr. Nance—Yes. Did you understand me to say that it was on the anchor §

Mr, HoroATE—Yes. ) o

Mr. Nance—TIt is just past the pier on the cantilever arm.

Mr. Horaate.—But, at any rate, you ohserved nothing at that time out of order ¥

Mr. Naxce.—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—Did you ohserve anything at any other time out of order t

Mr. Naxce—No, sir. : . -

37, HoLaATE.—Were you in a position to have noted these things if they had
.«en there {

Mr. Naxce—Well, regl]y, no sir, T was not, because where we were working yon
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were supposed to be at your work at seven o'clock, and it generally took about ten
minutes to climb up there and the gang that worked up there never stopped any place
down below to be sitting around.

Mr, HoLaaTE~In regard to the apparatus for hoxstmg, was it what you would
call good reliable tackle §

Mr. NanceE.—Yes, sir, the one I was running was as good as I ever saw.

l?{r Hovaate.—You rwould say that it was suitable for the work that was being
done

Mr. NaNce—~Yes, sir, it was.

Mr. Horoate~~And that it satisfactorily performed the work you wanted it to do?

Mr., NaNce—Yes, easy.

Mr., HoLoaTE—Who were your foremenf{

Mr, Naxce.—Our general foreman was Mr. Yenser. There was a foremnn under
him, Mr. Worley. Mr. Worley was generally on the work at all times with us,

Mr. Horaate.—Did you consider your foremen understood their work {

Mr. Nance—Yes, sir, T believe they did.

Mr. HoroaTE—You refer now to Mr. Worley and also to Mr. Yenser 1

Mr. Nance—Yes, I think both of them understood it and especially that work
that they had been on two or three years; I think it could not have been better.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Although the work was, to a «certain extent a hazardous work,
you had confidence in your foremen ¢

Mr. NancE.—Yes, siv.

Mr. Horoate—And in- the tackle ?

Mr, Nance.—Yes.

Mr. Horeate.—And in their methods of doing the work 1

Mr. Nance.—Yes. I never saw as good methods of doing cverything as I saw there.

Mr. HoroatE—~T dare say, M/ Nance, that you hiard a good many statements
since this aacident happened in regard to certain defects that are said to have been
observed ?

Mr. Nance—~Oh, yes, lots of them.

Mr. Horoate.—Have any of the men thet have olserved these things spoken to
you about them ¢

Mr. Naxce—Nobody but Mr, Cook, the time T told you about.

Mr, Horcate.—Since the aceident has anybody 1

Mr. Nance.-~No, T do not think they have.

Mr, Horeare~—Do you know of any man who, you think, would be able to give
us any information from his own knowledge ¢

Mr, Naxce.—No, sir, I do not know of a man that could help you in that respeet,

because I guess it was & surprise to them as well as it was to me. 7
Mr, Horaate—T do not refer so much to the aqeident itself but to the condition
of the bridge prior to the accident.
Mr. Nance~T do not know of any man. :
Mr. HorLate—On the day of this accxdent you were on the forward trnveller

- Did you mnotice anything peculiar at all'¥ - - e R

Mr, Naxce.—No, sir, T did not.
Mr. Horoate.—Nothing peculiar in the action of the bridge different from any
other day ¢
Mr. Nanoe.—No, sir, I could not see any difference at all.
" Mr. Hrweate—No unurual vibration or springing action §
Mr. Naxce—No, sir,
Mr. HorGaTE—It was just the same as it had beent -
Mr. Naxnce—It was just the same right up to the moment she went down.
~ Mr., HorgaTE.<~~Was there at any time any such motion felt by yout -
Mr, Nance.—No, sir.

Witness discharged.
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John E. SpLICER, sworn.

Mr. HoLGATE.—Are you an employee of the Phenix Bridge Co., Mr. Splicer?
Mr, SpLICER.~Yes, sir. )
Mr. Horaate—When did you begin working at the Quebec Bridge with the

Phoenix Bridge Company?

Mr. SericEr.—I started last September, working.
Mr. HoraaTe.—September, 19071
Mr, SpLICER.—1900,

_Mr, Horoate.—Then_you have been working there nearly a year?

Mr. SpLiCER.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—What part of the work were you ont

Mr. Spricer—Most of it, I guess. .

Mr. HoraaTe~-You might tell us what you were doing from September, 19067
Mr. Sruicern—Well, T worked on the false work when I first went there, and

afterwards I went into a riveting gang, aud then I went on a raising gang, and then
I went up on the traveller.

Mr. Horoate.—Which traveller?

Mr. Senicer.—The big traveller.

Mr, ToLeate—On August 29, where were you working?

Mr. Srricer.—I was not working at all,

Mr. Horoate—\What is the nearest date to August 29 you were working?
Mr. Seygerr—The day before. o )

Mr. Horaate—Then you worked on the 28th?

Mr. Srricer.—The 28th.

Mr, Horcate.—On the 28th were you working on. the big traveller?

Mr. Srricer—Yes, sir. ’

Mr. Horoate—What were they doing with the big traveller?

Mr. Spricer.—T was taking pins out of them sheaves up there, that is alongside

the traveller there, taking the pins out, and one thing and another, taking the girders
down, we were taking it down.

Mr. Horoarei—That is what has been described as taking down the big traveller?
Mr, Seuickr—Taking down the big traveller.

Mr. Howeatr.—What was the cause of your absence on the 29th{
Mr. Spricer~-T do not kiow, T felt nervous, T guess. o
Mr. HorcAre—¥ad you been constantly at work prior to that time?
Mr. SpLicer.—VYes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—~Tad you felt nervous before?

Mr. Srricer.—No, not till_about-a_wesk-before, S e e

Mr, Horeate—~—What was the cause of your nervousness?
Mr. Srricer—-Well, T do not know, I do not know the eause of it at all, it just

came into me that way.

Mr. HoLeate—And was that the cause of your taking a holiday on the 29th.
Mr. Srrickr.—VYes, sir. s
Mr. Horaate.—Did you intend to go back to work?

Mr. SrLicir.—Yes, T inteuded to go back to work noon; I was lying off in the

morning and intended to go back noon, but it got later,

Mr. HoreatE—You just 1aid off in the morning?

. Mr. SrricEr.~~Just laid-off-in she;morning;-I-was going to Quebec, but T didn’t
g0 to work in the afternoon, it wa< o, windy, and T went ‘o Quebec in the afternoon.

Mr. HoLoate.—What was the ‘nanse of your uneasiness or nerveusness?

Mr. SpLicEr.—It was the chord. .

Mr. HoroaTe—No, with regard to -your lying off that morning® .- ... .
Mr. Srricer~In the morning? I was talking about the chord the night before,

the whole bunch of us.:

Mr. Horeate.—Then you decided, though, to go to work in the afternoon?
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- Mr, Spicer.—Yes, sir, T decided.

Mr. HowoaTE—And you did not go to work becauso the wind was blowing too
hard?

Mr. Spricer.—The wind was blowing too hard.

Mr, HorLgATE—Was it an unusual wind?

Mr. Sruicer.—~No, we generally get that every now and then. Of coursa I had
been working up on the traveller on windy days, it is not very comfortable.

Mr. HorLaate.—The real reason thensfor your not returning to work was the

Mr. Spicer.—The wind, yes, sir.

Mr. HorLaaTE.—And not anything else?

Mr. Spricer.—No, sir.

Mi. Hovoate.—And your cause for the nervousness in lying off for wmd that
morning was the chord, you say? .

Mr. SeLicer.—Ycs; sir:-

Mr. HoroaTE.—You might explain just what you meant

Mr. Spricer.—Tho bent chord there; we were talkmg about it the night before.

Mr. Horaate~Whot

Mr. SpLicEr.—About seven or exght of us, they were all Indmns workmg down
there.

Mr. HoroaTE—\Who are these men, do you remember?

Mr, Sriicer—There was Solomon Angus, Joe Mitchell, Mitchell Adams, and
four of them, there is John Jocko, and thoy all boarded in the same place, Joseph
Dion, Lewis Dibeau.

Mr HovoaTE~—Are any of thesc men living$

Mr, Sericer.—No, sir, none of them.

Mr, Horoate~—What list ig that you are referring tof

Mr. Srrickr—Only the names of the Indian boys, that is all,

Mr. HoroatE~—When was that madef

Mr. Sericer.—I made that out myself, just the boys that wero killed, all the
Indian boys.

Mr Ilorcatr  -And none of theze men are available? Do you know if any of

__these men saw what they spoke to you aboutt ‘

Mr. Seuicen—The way thoy talked that night, they said they did.  They said
there was a place in that chord, I do not kuow whereabouts, whero it was bent, and
they were trying to jack it together, and they could not jack the plates together and-
riveted it up the way it was, that is the way tllov were snymg tho mght beforo My-‘

“mother heard them, too. T - - T

Mr., H.OL(H'IE—«When dld thls conversation take ph\co?

Mr. SrLicer.~—The 28th, the night before the accident.

Mr. HoreaTe.—Did you sce this chord yourself?

Mr, Spricer.—No, I did not go down at the ohord I worked out on the side, and
just had a glance at it, that is all.

Mr. HorcarE—Was that on the evening of the 28th?

Mr, Sericer—No, it was on Tuesday I had a glance at it.

- Mr; HoraaTe—~That is before you had this conversation?

Mr. SprLicEr.—~Oh, yes, that is before we had t}ns convorsahon

My, Horoate.—What took you there? ™™ T

Mr. Serickr—Well, they were talkimg about it.

Mr. Horeate.~—They talked about it before the 28th; who was with you at that
mre?

- Mr. SrLICER~~Who-was with me, I do not know-his-name;-he shéwed -me-it--Do-—

you know him, Haley, that Nova Scotia fellow, the fellow from Nova Bcotia?
Mr, HaLey.—Jim Rowen.
154.—vol. ii—11
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Mr. SpLickR.—Jim Bowen.

Mr, Hovrgate.—Is he living {

Mr. SpLiCER.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLaaTe.—Do you know whero he is nowt

Mr. SeLicer.—He has gone home, I understand, back to New Brunswick.

Mr. HoraaTe.~—What did you seef

Mr, SprLicER.—] just saw the bend, that is a]l 1ust a g]anee at it.

Mr. HowoaTe~—~Just thes——— - e

Mr, SpLicER.—Chord bent, that is all.

Mr. HorgatE—Do you remember what chord it was?

Mr. Srricer—No, sir, it was on this side of the pier, thet is s all T know.

Mr. HoLcaTe.—That is on the river side of the pier?

Mr, SrLicer.—On this side, towards the north side there.

Mr. Horeate.—TIt was north of the cantilever pier?

Mr. Sericer.—The cantilever arm.

Mr. Horoate.—Tt was in the cantilever arm?{

Mr, SprLicer.—Yes.

Mr. Hotate—On the Quebec or Montreal sidef

Mr. SerLicer.—The Quebee side.

Mr. Horcate.—How many panel it out from the pier?

Mr. Srricer.—T could not say, t . four, I think.

Mr. Horoare.—What do you reme....er about the chord itself?

Mr. Serickr.—Nothing at all, that is all T know, I just had a glance at it and
went by. 1 was talking about it on my way to—-=

Mr. Horoate.—Did you call the attention of any other person to thatf

“dr, Srrickr.—No, sir.

Mr. Howcate—If you had considered it of sufficient importance, you would have
called the attention of your foreman to it, or some person.

Mr. Srruicer—Well, T thought it was safe myself. I do not know much about
that iron. T thought it was safe, it never bothered me any.

Mr. Horeatz.—So far as your judgment went then there was nothing that you
saw that caused you alarm?

Mr. SeLiCER.—No, sir,

Mr. Horoate—Had you a feeling of confidence or otherwise in the foremen who
were over you in this bridge erection; did you think that they were compeient men?

Mr. SerLicer.—Yes, sir, good men,

Mr. Hotcate—To whom do you refer now?

Mr. Sericer.—-All of them, T should thmk I found them all good men.

Mr. Horoate—And with regard to the applmnoes that were used in the héxidlmg )
were they safel

Mr, SeLICFR—Yes, sir. :

Mr. HowoaTE—Do you recollect any occasion where failure took place in the
tackle in the handling of the materialt

Mzr. Spricer~~No sir,

Mr. Horaate—Not any oceasion during the year that you were theret

Mr. SrricEr.—No, sir.

Mr. Yloroate—~Did you observe at any time any unusual vibration, either side-
ways or up and downt

Mr. Sruicer.—No, sir.

Mr. HoLoaTe. -And you say that on several occasions you have had high winds?

__Mr. SpLicER.—Yes, sir, - -

" Mr. Horoate—Had you any feelmg of mseounty?

Mr. SeLicEr.—No, sir.
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Mr. HoroaTe—And evca after you learned all of the corditions that were
described with .regard to the chord, you thought it was safet
Mr. 'Sericer.—I thought it was safe, yes, sir.

Witness discharged. -

Percy WiLsoN, sworn,

Mr. HoLGATE—Are you an employee of the Pha?mx Bndge Company?

Mr, WiLsoN.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLaate—How long have you been with them.

Mr. WiLsoN.—This is the second summer.

Mr. HoLoATE.—Where were you engaged at work?

Mr., WiLsoN—In the storage yard. This last four weeks I was on the bndge.

Mr. Horoate.—In the storage yard up to four weeks ago?

Mr. Wisox.—Three or four weeks, I am not sure.

Mr. Horeate.—That is you were working on the bridge three or four weeks?

Mr, WiLsoN.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroatE—In what capacity were you working in the storage yard?

Mr. WiLsox.—Oh, just as & common labourer.

Mr. Horuate—Who was your foremant

Mr. WisoN.—A man by the name of Clark.

Mr. Horoate.—Then when you went on the bridge what were your duties? - - -

‘Mr. WiLson.—I was just serving the riveters. '

Mr. Horcate—All the time?

Mr. WiLson.——Yes, sir.

Mr. Ho16AaTE—Who was your foreman theret

Mr Witsox.—It was a tall man by the name of Slim. I guess his name was
Meredith, I am not sure,

Mr. IToraate.—Did Meredith survive the accident of the 20th?

Mr. Wisox.—Yes, sir, he was wrorking on the 29th.

Mr. Horoate.—Did he survive that accident?

Mr. WiLson.—No, sir, he is gone.

Mr. Holgate~—Where were you working on the 29th-August?

Mr. Wison.—On the bridge, sir.

Mr, HoroATE-—At what pointt

Mr. Wisox.—When the bri(lpo went I was just going ashore for rivets, and 1
turned around, I saw the bridge going. o o

_ Mr. HorLgate—What part of the bridge were you oni

Mr. Wirson.—On the span that is left, the shore span

Mr. HoLoATE.—You were on the bridge?

Mr., WiLsoNn.—No, sir, I was not on the part that went.

Mr. Horoate.~—Did you see Huot?

Mr., WiLson.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLoATE.—Where was hef

Mr. WiLsox—We ran away, the three of us, Ouimet—-

Mr. HoroaTE -——'Huot and yourself and Ouimet ran off together?!

Mr. WiLsoN.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HowLaaTE~Just prior to that where had you come from on the bndge?

Mr. WiLso~n.—I was just coming from outside the anchor pier.

Mr, HoLaaTE—Where was the riveting gang working at this timet

Mr. WiLson.—~Oh, there were about elght gangs nf nveters then they were work-
" ing “all along.
Mr. HoLeaTe—Were you serving one gang or woref
Mr. Wisox.—One.
1B4—vol. ii~-11}
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Ar. HoraarE—Where was it working at the time of the accident?

Mr. WiLsox.—About 300 feet outside the pier. *7

Prof. Gausraiti.—The anchor pier?

Mr., WiLsoNx.—Yesgsir.

Mr. Hotaste—Which side of the bridge, the Quebec or Montreal side.

Mr, Wirsox.—The Montreal side,

Mr. Iforeate—To you remember what part of the structure they were workmg onf
Mr. WiLsox.—All on tke bottom chord.

Prof. GaLpraiTiL.—Was that the fifth or sixth span {

Afr. WiLsox.—I could not say exactly, but it was about 300 feet outside the pier.
Prof. Gsrsraitn.—ITow do you count the 300 feet, how do you estimate it, by the

number of chords or how ¢

Mr. WiLsox.—No sir, T could not say what number of chorda they were out.
Prof. GaLBRAITH.—You do not know whether it was the fifth or sixth chord or

the ninth.

Mr. Winsox.—No, sir, I do not; it was the distance outside the pier.

Prof. Garspaimii—Tt was not the ninth chord ?

Mr. WiwsoN.—No, sir.

Prof. GLLBRAITH. —Are yeu sure it was not ¢

Mr, WirsoN ——Wol] the ninth cbord they were talking about was inside the pier,

1 guess.

Prof. Gareraiti.—Inside the centre pier ¢

Mr, WiLson.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—You were on the anchor arm inside the centre pier 1

Mr., WiLsox.—No, it is about 300 feet outside the pier.

Prof. GaLprarti.—OQutside the main piert

Mr. WiLson.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—On the cantilever arm?

Mr, WiLsoN.—Outside.

M. Horeate—You were serving the men with rivets; were you serving the

rivecera with the hot rivets{

Mr. WiLsoN.—No, sir.
Mr. Horcate—Then were you distributing the cold nvets amongst the vorious

riveting gangs, is that it?

Mr. Wisonx—That is it.

Mr. Horeate—Who were in the gang that Meredith was handling {

Mr. WiLsox.—Well, he handled the whole of them.

Mr, Horcate~Ie handled all the gangs ?

Mr, Wisox.—Yes, sir.

Mr, Horoate.—Where were the other riveting gangs located that day{

Mr. Wirsox.—There was a gang on the pier.

Mr. Horoate.—On the cantilever pier{

Mr, Wirsox.—Yes, sir, and two gangs inside the pier and the rest were outside

the pier.

“or eight, there were generally nine.

Mr. HowoatE—Two gangs inside the pier towards the——
Mr. WiLsox.—The shore, one on each side.

Mr. HoLoaTE—One oh each side of the bridge ?

Mr. WiLsox.—Of the bridge.

Mr. HoLoaTE~—And where were the otherat

Mr. WiLson.—Qutside the pier.

Mr, Horgate.—That made how many gangs altogether i
Mr. WiLsox.—There were some riveting that mornmg, I thmk t.here were seven

Mr. HoroaTE—One was on the pier, two were on the land side of the pier and -

the other gangs on the cantilever arm.

Mr, WiLsoX.—Yes, sir, outside the bridge.
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Mr. HoLoate.—Now, we will begin with those working on the anchor arm; you
say there two gangs there, one on each sidel

Mr. WiLsoN.—One on each side,

Mr. Horgatz—Do you know at what joint they were working 1

Mr. Wisox.~—No, sir.

Mr. HoLoate—Can you locats them in any way i

Mr. WiLson—I do not think so.

Mr. HoLoaTe—Were they working on floor beams or chords {

Mr. WiLsox.—On chords, Loth of taem on chords.

Mr, HowA'rE.-—They were both werking on chords but you do not know which
chord §

Mr. WiLsox.—I could not say, sir.

Mr. Horoate~—Then the gang that was working on the pier, what were they
doing §

Mr. WiLson.—Well, they seemed to me to be riveting the shoe on the pier.

16:. HoLaaTe—On which side of the bridge, the Montreal or Quebec side 1

Mr. WiLsoN.—The Quebec side.

Mr. HoLoaTE—Can you locate the gangs on the cantilever arm i

Mr. WiLsoN.—No, sir, I could not.

Mr. HovGATE. ——Were there others doing the same kind of work as you 1

My, Wison.—There were two that afternoon.

Mr. Horoate.—Two distributing rivets to all these gangs {

_Mr. Wirson.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horaate.—Who was the other {

Mr. WiLson.—IHe worked only the day before, threc days he was there, I do not
know who he was; he said he came from Montreal, two of them came together.

Mr. Horoare—Where is he now?

Mr. Wisox.—He is down, he is dead, I did not see him; he was a Canadian.

Alr. Horeate-—You say there were three, was there anoth(r onef

Mr. WiLsox.—Well, he was serving the rivets in the forencon and he put him
painting in the afternoon.

Mr, Horaate.—Where ‘s he now?

Mr. WiLsox.—Ile is dead, too.

Ar. Horoate.-—Now, theae riveting gangs working on the cantilever arm, were
thev working on the floor beams, riveting{ o

Mr. Wicsox.—They were working on the bottom chords.

Mr. Horuate.—Were they all working on bottem chord work?

Mr. WirsoN.—Only th«ﬁe two inside the piers, and then there was a gang on the

pier.

AMr. Horoate—I was referring to those on the cantilever arm?

Mr., WiLsox.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—They were working where?

Mr. WiLsoN.—On the bottom chord.

Mr, HoLoate—All on bottom chord workf

¥ Wison.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoate—~—Do you remember who they were in that gang that was working
on the pier?

Mr. WiLsoN.—No, sir, they were Indians.

Mr. Horaate—Do you know if any of them are now alivel

Mr. WirsoN.—T do not think #o.

Mr. HoLoaTE—Which way were you going when the accident happened to the -
bridge?

-—— —Mr Wisox—1 was going ashore, toward the shore.- e

Mr. HoLoaTe—And you were, T think you said, on the approach spanl
Mr. WinsoN.— Yes, sir.
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Mr. HoLoaTE—What did you first noticel

Mr. WiLsox.—Well, I heard a noise and I turned around and I saw it going from
the pier like a flash of lightning.

Mr, HoLoaTe.—Which pier? ,

Mr. WiLsoN.—From the far pier, I mean the pier that is in the cantilever arm.

Mr. HoraaTe—Just in your own words tell us what you noticed at that timet

Wr. WiLson.—All I noticed was when I turned around ahd seen ths bridge going.
It took about five or six seconds and then all I seen was floating timber on the river
and a mass of stee! was between the two piers. -

Mr. Horoate.—What did you do after that?

Mr, Wison.—I turned around and ran down below a atairs there, the stepe. I had
& brother working on the traveller, and I had another brother working under the
bridge,‘and 1 thovght I would see him down below, and when I goi down tnere I did
not see him; they were gone, both of them.

Mr. HowoaTE~—When you were going backwards and forwards on the bridge,
serving the gangs with rivets for about a month did you observe anything out of
order or was your attention called to snything apparently out of orderi

Mr. WiLson.—No, sir, I never did. ‘

Mr. Horoate—Did anybody ever speak to you?

Mr. WiLsoN.—Yes, I heard lots about it but I never minded them, I thought it
would never—-— '

Mr. HoeaTE—Do you remember what that information want

Mr. WiLson.—I heard them speaking about a cracked bottem chord, I never scen
it myself.

Mr. Horoate.—Was that what they said, a cracked bottom chord?

Mr. WiLsoN.—Yes, sir. :

Mr. Horaate.—Do you remember who said that to yout

Mr. Witsox.—Well, my brother often spoke of it.

Mr. Horoate—Was there anybody elset

Mr, WiLson.—Oh, yes.

Mr. Moroate—Ts there anybody that is living now that you heard use that
expression?

Mr. Wissox.—Yes, there was a young painter by the name of Donat Nadeau.

“Mr., Hovoate—~Was he lost?

Mr, WiLsox.—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—Where is he?

Mr, WirsoNn.—At St. Romuald.

Mr. Horoate.—Did he give you any description of itt

Mr. WiLson.—No, sir, he did not. :

Mr, HoroatE—Do you remember when ha told you about it

My, WisoN.~—Yes, sir.

Mr., HorLoaTe.—When?

Mr. WiLsoN.-—Oh, it was the day before, he spoke to me about it

Mr, Horoate.—The day before——- : : '

Mr. WitsoN.—The accident.

Mr, HoLaate.—Did he give you to understand he had seen it )

Mr. WiLson.—No, I forget if he did say if he had seen it or not, but I know they
spoke about it. :

Mr. Horoate.—You did not see it?

Mr. WiLson.—No, sir. . . .

Mr. HoLoate—Do you remember if Nadeau specified which chord he referred tot

_Mr, WiLson.—No, sir, he said it _wss near the pier, near_the caisson.

Mr, Dr.vipson.—Did he tell you what was the mattert

Mr. WisoN.—He said it was cracked.
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cantilever or the anchor arm?t

Mr., Horaare—Did you understand from what he said whether it was on the

Mr. WiLsoN.—I think it was on the cantilever arm, I did not pay much attention

to it, because I did not believe it.

the

Witness dischaiged.

- AIME GiNomas, sworn, (Testimony given in French).

Prof. GaLerarra.—You are employed by the Phomix Bridge Company

Mr. Gingras.—Yes, sir. 7

Prof. GaLsraiTH.—Were you working the day of ihe accidentt

Mr, Ginaras.—Yes, sir,

Prof. GaLerarTH—What had you to do there?

Mr, Ginoras.—I was carrying water to the office.

Prof. GaLerarrH.—Where were you at the time of the accident {

Mr, Ginoras.—I was right near the office. -
Prof. GarLeraitH.—What did you see § T
Mr. Goigras.—) saw the bridge fall.

Prof. Garerartit.—Will you deseribe its appearance as it fell 1

Mr. Ginoras.—I know nothing about that ; it fell with a crash,

Prof. GaLsrarrii—Did you watch it during the whole time of the fallt

Mr. Gixgras.-~No,

Prof. Gavsraitii.—Ir your duties did you go daily from one part of the bridge to
other {

Mr. Qmanas.—Yes, going messsges.

Prof. Garsrarin.—Did you ever hear anything said abc at the bridge being danger-

ous.

Mr. Ginorags.—J had heard that the bridge was going te fall.

Prof. GaLprarmii.—Do you know the names of the men who told you that [

Mr. Gingras—No, I do not know them.

Prof. GaLpratii-—Do you know the men even although you do not know their

nanics §

the

Mr. Giveras—I do not think I know them,

Prof. Garprariii—Iow long have you been working on the bridge 1

Mr. Gixoras—Two years,

Prof. QaLnrartii-—And yet you would not recognize any man who apoke about
bridge being dangerous § .

Mr. Giveras.—-I do not know that at all.

Prof. GaLsrarri.—Not by sight 1

Mr. Ginaras.—J did not look at them for any length of time, T just was passing

near them when they said that.

Mr. (hnoras.—When did you hear thatt
Mr. Gineras~—The mornivg of the accident, T thought they were only joking.
Prof. Garprarri.~—Was anything on the bridge pointed out to you as being

dangerous { .

My. Gmaragz—No.
Prof. Gasraite.—Did you see anything yourself
Mr, Givaras—No.

Witness discharged. ‘ ‘ S S .

The Commission took reoeua.
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AFTERNOON SESSION—SEVENTH DAY,
Commiission resumed at two o’clock,

Raour LArRAXCE, sworn.

Mr, HoLaaTe—Were you an employee of the Phenix Bridge Company{

Mr, LAFrANCE.—Yes8, sir.

Mr. Howcate—When did you enter their employment {

Mr. LAFRaNCE.~At the beginning of July.

Mr. HoLoaTE—Were you employed with them constantly?

Mr. LArraNCE.~—I had left off work for about ten days before the bridge fell. I,
as a rule, worked with the electrician, Mr. Britton.

Mr, Horcate.—What else did you do t '

Mr. Larrance.—I carried rivets, and painting, and all kinds of work.

Mr. HorLoatE.—Who was your foreman ¥

Mr. Larraxce—I do not remember his name. They used to call him Benny.

Mr. HoLoaTE—How long were you painting ¢

Mr. LarraNce—I did not work the whole time at the painting. I painted only
when I liad nothing else to do.

Mr. HoLoate.—Who was your foremen when you were painting ¢

Mr. Larrance—My cousin, why was the head of the gang—Alexandre Quimet.

Mr, Howsate.—Is he here ¢

Mr, Larrancr.—~—No, he is gone.

Mr. Horaate—Where 1

Mr. Larraxce—T do not know where he has gone to. He has left for Ontario.

Mr. Horaste—When did he leave 1

Mr. LaFranxce.~—Saturday afterncon.

Mr. Horeate.—Did he tell you where he was going 1

Mr. Larrance.—T1 do not know. I know he took the C. P. R. train and left for
Ontario. He has gone to the shanties there, e gave me the name of the place, but
I do not remember.

Mr, Horgate—Who knows ¢

Mr. Larraxce—T do not know,

Mr, Horeate—And you do not know where he is to be found now

Ma, TarRaNCE.—No.

Mr. Moreate—Did your work carry you about the different parts of the bridge 1

Mr. LairranceE—Yes, I went everywhere—it was immelerinl to me—anywhere
at all,—~I was ready to go.

Mr. Joraate—TIn going about the bridge, did you notice anything at all out of
the ordinary 1

Mr. Larraxce—~The only thing I noticed was a crack on the pxle

Mr. Horoate.—Was that a erdck in the pier ¢

Mr. Larrance—No, it was above the shoe on the plate.

Mr. Homne.——How wide was that crack?

Mr. Larrance~—About 18 or 20 inches long.

Mr. Howoare.—How wide was the crack {

Mr. Larraxce.—It was open about as thick as a little finger.

Mr. -Horcs1e—Did you examine the erack yourself 1

Mr, Larraxce—Yes, I laoked at it. I did not go up on top to look at it though
I saw it,

Mr. HoroaTE—Where were you when you saw it § o o :

Mr. Larrance—On the pier. I was cleamng the pxer. My cousin, Mr. Ouimet,
drew my attention to it,

Mr. Horoate—How far would that be that you were from the crack when you
noticed it §
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Mr. Larnaxce—Between 6 and 8 fect from it. I was cleaning the pier and Ouimet

Mr. Horaute.~Did you see it more than once .

Mr, Larrasce1 looked ot it three or four days.

Mr. Howoate.~The rame day { . B

Mr. Larrance.—] was three days on the pier and I looked at it every dsy. 1
was cleaning the pier, gathering the bolts and everything that was there.

Mr. Hovaate—Did that crack go out to the edge of the plate ¥ -

Mr. Larraxce.—No.

Mr. HoLoate—Did it ~o down as if it were torn from the edge of the plate §

Mr. Lareance—The psate was square, and—— - C

Mr. BoLaaTe.~—There is a piece of paper (hauding witness a aheet of white paper)
just tear it the way you say the crack, (Witness tore the paper.) Was it in that
position, upright { . :

Mr, Larrance—The crack was on the lower part of the Quebec side of a pler
on the Montreal side.

Mr. HoLaaTe—Then the crack did extend out to the edge of the plate !

Mr., Larrance.—It did not extend as far as the middle, but it was about 18 or 20
inches in length. The plate was 6 or 8 feet square. That ie what it seemed to me.

Mr. HoroaTE—You were three days on the pier, so that probably you had the
whole matter very clearly in your head {

Mr, LAFBANCE.~—Yes,

Mr. Horoate—And you probably would recognize a photograph of that place?

Mr. LarRARCE.—Yes,

Mr. Howoate.—Look at this photograph and tell us if that chows that plate?
(Witness was shown a photograph.)

* Mr. Yarrance.—JIs that a photograph of the pier on the Montreal side or the
Qucbec sidef : '

Mr. Howaate—They are both alike, I understand.

Mr. Larraxce.—The plate was cn the other side.

Mr. Stuskt.—There is one there ehown which correcponds, I think.

Mr. Hovoatr——The two sides are exactly alike.

Mr. Lavrance—To give you the directions it would be better if T had the pier
on the Montreal side.

Ar. Horoatr.—This is not the identical plate shown in the photograph but is the
plate on the Quelze side correspending with the one on the Montreal side which you
have been deseribing.

Mr. TarrancE—The plate the erack was in cannot be seen on that phiotograph.
It was on the inside of that.

Mr. THoLoate—Was the plate lying flat?

Mr. Larrance—No, vertical,

Mr. Horaate—This photograph shows the whole arrangement at the shoef

Mr, Laraance—-Yes, (Photograph put in and marked Exhibit No. 28.)

Mr, HoroaTE—]Ts that plate marked X on exhibit No. 29, the plats you mean !

Mr, Larzancr.—No, it is a plate that was above that one and at the back of it on
the Montreal side.

Mr. STusrT.—Does he say the crack is on the Montreal side

Mr, Larrance—On the Quebec side of a Montreal side plate.

Mr. Hotoate.—Did you notice particularly the plate merked X ¢

Mr. Larnavce.—Yes,

¥r, Howoate—Do you remember that platet

“ Mr. Larmawor—<<Yes, - - 1 - o

Mr. HoLoATE—Was that plate cracked? & I

Mr, LarsanceE.—No. If there was any crack I Jid not see it, and I was cl
that plate.

ing
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Mr. DavibeoN.—Of course, I have no doibt the commissioners recognize how
difficult it is for any one, much less a boy like this, to recognize from a photograph--
1 know it would be extremely difficult for me, entirely unacquainted with bridge work
and structures like that—the cxact point that was referred to.

Mr. HoLaate—Hoe has recognized this particnlar plate and he is positive there
was no crack in it. :

 Mr. DavipsoN.—That is vot - rhotograph of the plate he saw a{ all.

Mr. HoLoaTE—~But ho =ays he cleaned this plate and there is no crack in it.

Prof. (JaBraiTH.—Is it the corresponding plate on the other sidet

Mr. Larrance.—-I worked on and cleaned every one of them.

Mr. DaviosoN.—Ask him what he means when he says: ¢ La plaque en question
etait dans cetto position” Does he mean straight up and down or slanting?f

Mr. Larraxce.—Slightly inclined.

Mr. DavinsoN.—Do you see.in that photograph tho plate in which you saw the
crackt

Mr. Larrance.—No.

Mz, Horeate.—Do you know the part of the bridge called the shoe!

Mr. LAFRaNCE.—Yes; that is the lower part that was on the pier.

Mr, Davicson.—Js that right, Mr, Kinlocht

Mr. KinvocH.—No.

My, LarraNce.—I do not know much about 1t

Mr. DavisoN.—When you stood on the pier looking at the plate was it above your
head or in front of youf

Mr. Larrance.—It was above my head.

Mr, HorLoaTE—Was there anything above your head? You were standing on the
pier?

Mr. LarrancE.—I was standing on the pier.

Mr. HoLaate.—Naturally, it would be above his head.

(Nore.—Witness was shown the photograph roversed against the light in order
to bring the corresponding parts shown as appearing crn the Quebec sile and was then
enabled to identify the pla’: that ha refers to by an ink mark on the back of the
1hotograph.)

Mr. Horaate.~~The mark that appears on the back of this photograph, exhibit No.
29, then, is your own mark 1dent1fymg the plate you refer tol

Mr. LAFRANCE-—Yes, that is what T saw.

Mr. Horoate~—You think you would recognize that plate againt

Mr. LirpaNce.—Yes, sir.

M- Honoat.--What was the last time that you observed this plate?

Mr. Lisrance—About two or three weeks before the accident.

Mr. HoroaTE—How many times since that time did you see it!

Mr. Larrance—I looked at it three or four times. :

Mr. HoLaaTe.—~What was the last time you saw itt

Mr. LAFraNCE—]I do not exactly remember—about two or three weeks befo:e the
accident.

Mr. HoLoatr--Did you notice anything else in connection with the bridge that
was out of order?

Mr. Larrasce.~No.

.

and

in company with Mr. Kinloch and Mr. McLure, endeavour to find that plate.
Mr, LarraNcE~Yes,
Mr. HoroaTE.—We want you to stay until you find that plate or make sure of
something and appear here on Friday moruing and resume your evidence.
~ Mr, Larrance.—Yes.
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Mr. Horaate.—You are still under subpena and it is compulsory for you to be-
bere.
Mr, LArrANCE.~Yes,

Witness retired.

DonaT NApEAU, sworn.

Prof. Kerev.—Have you been working for the Phenix Bridge Companyf

Mr. Nabkrv.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—For how long1

Mr. Napgav.~-About a month.

Prof. Kerry.—In what positiont

Mr. NApEAU.-—As a paintcr.

Prof. Keray.—-At what part ~ the bridget

Mr. NabEau.—At every part of the bridge where there was painting to be done

Prof. Kerry.—Were you working on the 28th Augusti

Mr. Nabeau.—I worked till & quarter to three in the afternoon.

Prof. Kerry.—Why did you stop?

Mr. NApEAU.~—On account of wind.

Prof. Kenry.—Were you there when the bridge fell'

Mr. Naveav.—o, 1 was down horue.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you sc2 any part of the bndge out of orderf

Mr. Napeav.—No.

Prof. Kerry.—It vas all safe and sound?

Mr. Nabrau.—1 never noticed anything wrong or broken.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you hear anyone say that anything was wrongi

Mr. Napeavu.—Yes.

Prof. Kerry.—Who told you?

Mr. Napeau.—Some of my work mates—the fellows working with me.

Prof. Xerry,—You do not know whot

Mr. Nabeauv.~Yes, Jos Bivon.

Prof. Keary.—~And the others?

Mr. Napeav.—1I do not remember any others who spoké to me about it.

Prof. Kerry.~—Is Joe Biron alivef

Mr. NapEav.—No, he was killed.

Prof. Keray.—What did he say?

Mr, Nangau.-—The night before the dav that the bndge fell I, Joe Biron and others
workmg on the bridge were talking about the bndpe and they agreed that there was
something wrong.

Mr. Stuart.—That is not whst he smd is itd

Mr, Navpav.—They were speakmg about the work conocerning the bridge and
Biron said there was something broken in the bridge—a plate cracked.

Prof. Keray.~~In what placei.

Mr. Napeau.~Biron said that it was near the pier.

Prof. Kxrry.—You do not know the exact place?

Mr. Navgav~—No.

Prof. Kerny.—Was it on the pier or on one of the chordst

Mr. Naveau.—I could not eay.

Prof. Kerey.—You have neve. s:en anything yourselff

Mr. Napeav.—No, never.

~ Prof, Kesry.—Do you kuow that Biron saw it{

Mr, Napeav.—I could not say.

Mr. Eoraate—Do you kuow anything of your own knowledge!

Mr., Naprav.—No.



172 ROYAL COMMISBSION ON COLLAPSE OF QUEBE? BRIDGE

7-8 EDWARD Vii,, A. 1908

Prof. GALBRAITH.—You said that yousdid not work after three o'clock on account
of the wind?

Mr. Napeav.—Yes,

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—Was there more wind than usual that afternoont

Mr. Napeav.~—No.

Prof. GaLsraitii.—You had often worked on the bndge when the wind was as
strong?

Mr. Nabeav.—Yes.

Witness discharged.

Mr, A. B. MILLIKEN, recalled.

Frof. KErry.—You had full charge of the crection of the bridge 1

Mr. MicLikex.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—What was the lust date that you were at the structure previous to
ita fall ¥

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—The morning of August 26th,

Prof. Xerny.—That would be the Tuesday of the week

Mr. MiLuikeN.—Monday.,

Prof. Kerry.—The brilge fell on Thursday {

Mr. MiLtiken—TIt fell on Thursday the 29th.

Prof. Xerrv.—For how many days at that time had you been in the vicinity
of the structure {

Mr. MiLLigeN.—From August 6th to August :0th,

Prof. Kerry.—You were there continuously between those datest

Mr. MiLLikex.—Yes, sir; that is T had been out to Belair.

Prof. Xerry.—But you were at Quechee ?

Mr. MicLikey.—In the vicinity of the work. .

Prof. Kerry.—In touch with the work ¢

Mr. MiLLgeN.—Yes,

Prof. Kerry.—Will you tell us what definite information you have about defectst

Mr. MiLikex.—I have not any definite inforn.ation about defects.

Prof, Kerry,—Were no reports of those bulges brought to you at all §

Mr. MiLtikeN.—Yes, sir; I left for Phonixville on the morning of “uwgust 26,
I reached Phenixville on the evening of August 28, and on the morning of Aug. 29,
after I had gone down to the office at Phenixville, there was a letter there from Mr.
Yenser dated August 27, from Liverpool at the bridge. In that letter he indicated
that a chord section was slightly bent and wanted to know mhether he should con-
- tinue to- work on the suspended span or simply work on the removal of the main
traveller and asked a reply from our office by wire. He was called up on long dis-
tance telephone, and I talked with him about a querter of ten on the morning of
August 29, and referring to his letter of August 97 T asked him whether he had
stopped the erection or whether he was proceeding with it. His reply to me over
'phone was that he was going ahead and that everything was all right. I said:
Have you moved the forward traveller! He said: Yes, moved it yesterday morning.—
And he further said that he had one of the temporary teack girder spans in plsee
and was about to swing the second one into place. I said: Is Mr. Birks there? He
said : Yes. T said : Mr. Deans wants to speak to him. That was about all that was
said between Mr. Yenser and myself. Then Mr Deans talked with Mr. Birks follow-
ing my conversation with Mr. Yenser.

Prof. Kesry.—That is to say that Mr. Yenser wrote drawing the attentmn of the
office on the 27th and askng for specific instructions {

Mr., MiLLIREN.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kesrv.—And then proceeded to advance the traveller without waiting for a
reply to that letter?
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Mr, MiLtikeN.—Yes, sir. He asked a’reply by wire, and instead of wiring wa
called him by ’phone, long distance ’phone,

Prof. Keerv.—At what time would it have been reasonable for him to have had
a reply by wire to that letter {

Mr. MiLLIEEN.—A¢ that time there was considerabls ‘:i.ble in tranzmission of
telegrams. It was very uncertain, in fact they accepted all telegrams subject to delay
on account of having trouble with the operators.

Prof. Keray.—The letter would have reached Pheoenixville at what time {

Mr. MiLLikeN.—1I think the letter reached Pheenixville about 9.18 in the morning.
That is the usual time for our Quebec mail to reach Pheenixville, on the second
delivery in the morning.

Prof. Kerrv.—It takes about 36 hours for mail to be delivered {

Mr, MiLLigg;.—Yes, sir, a letter mailed here—we have all our mail posted in the
evening, coming down from work; that mail will reach Phenixville or should day
after to-morrow morning on the second delivery about 8 o'clock or 9.15 o’clock.

Prof. Kerry.-—So that Mr. Yenser wrote a letter asking for specific instructions
and then proceeded without waiting for a reply 24 hours before he could have reason-
ably expected in any case to have got a reply?

Mr. MiLLikEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Did he indicate to you i. your conversation that he took that
step on the advice of anyone {

Mr., MiuLikeN.—Ne, sir, he ssid that he considered everything all right and was
going ahead and I then asked him these questions, where the forward traveller was,
and ho said he moved it yesterday morning and then he followed in saying that ho-
had the first temporary track girder span placed and was about to place the second
apan of temporary track girders.

Prof. Kerry.—But he did not indicate that he had discussed the matter with
anyone in the intorval {

Mr. MinuxeN.—I do not know whether he had; it was reasonably certain he had
discussed it with Mr. Birks, particularly with Mr. Birks he might have discussed it
with.

Prof. Kerry.~—~You have no information t

Mr. MinLikEN.—No, sir. .

Prof. KerrY.—One way or the other on that point {

Mr. MiLLikeEN.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerey.—Then he proceeded without getting instructions practically, even
after- the telephone conversation with you {

Mr. MiLLIREN.—Yes, 8ir. : o

Prof. Kenry.—In that conversation he indicated to you that he no longer
required instructions on the point he had written about{ ’

Mr. MiLikex.—He said everything was all right and he was going ahead.

Prof. KegRY.—Previous to that date of your leaving Quebec, your attention had
not been drawn to those chords in any way { .

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Not a single time; no, sir,

Prof. Keerv.—Nor to any other structural defect

r. Muxex.—No, sir, not by anyone. I usually saw Mr, Yenser and all of
his assistants, as meny of the other bridge men as I came in contact—when I left. I
did that raorning, the morning of August 26. I left in my usual way and there was
not a word indicating that there was cven a suspicion of anything being wrong with
any part of the bridge or mateiial. .

Prof. Kerry.—Now, we had some evidence to the effect that the ribs of the
different chords would be found not to line up correctly when the bottom cover plate
was removed. Was that an unusual occurrence §

Mr. MILLkeN.—Nothing at all unusual. Xt has been often done. Where the
ribs of a chord join, the surfaces were not exactly one with the othsr, and they
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would either be wedged into their proper position or jacks would be used to push them
in.

Prof. Kerrv.—But it was a more or Jess frequent occurrence to find that when
the ju.nt was uncovered {

Mr. MILLIKEN.—Yes, gir, in placing the chords it often occuis that one chord
does not come in perfect contact with the edges, you know, and then they will be put
in position afterwards, and especially with such heavy members.

Prof. Kerry.—You mean that is customary practice outside the Quebec con-
struction { .

Mr. MILLIKEN.—Y €8, sir, we have that often.

Prof. XKerrv.—Would it be possible to ereet those members without that pro-
cedure {

Ar. MiLuken—I do not think it would, especially in the Quebec chords, where
they are on guch an inclination. When you lay them on the camber blocking, and
if tho camber blocking was not true to the chord in placing it, it might shift slightly,
a very little bit, and that would throw it out of square with its adjoining section.

Prof. Kerry.—Would not the bolting up of the bottom cover plate bring that
almost correct §

Mr. Misuigen.—It might and it might not.

Prof. Kerry.—If you got full sized bolts in it would.

Mr. MiLuikes.—Full sized bolts, the full size of the hole might do it.

Prof. Kerry.—lHow soon after the placing -of -the chord were these members

usually straightened up t

: Mr. Miuikex.—Well, the chords of this bridge they were placed according to the
diagram furnished by our engineers at Phenixville and the joints of all of them
wero expected to be opened and they were. That js the chord was set higher than its
permanent position in the bridge after it was swung clear of ite fale work, and in
doing that it might occur that we could not get these ribs exactly to bear one with
the other on its side surfaces, and when that occurred the only thing to do was to
push it into its proper position or to pull it there,

Prof. Kerry.—As I understand it, when the chord number was set in place then
the upper and lower cover plates went on, did they not!

Mr. MiLLIKEN—Yes, 8ir.

Prof. Kerry.—Now, how much of o play would that allow in the side sections of
the chords? _

Mr. MLuigeN.--Well, in some cases we had to use a very small bolt in a 1t hole.
The joint was that much distorted and open that we could not put in—TI -think
there were § bolts used in some of the holes. :

Prof. Kerry.—That would allow-for a play of about { of an inch, “sould it notf

Mr., MiLLiken.—Yes, sir, there was no play there, the bolt went in tight; it 'was
on account of the joint having been opened at the top and in contact at the bottom.

Prof. Kenav.—But in addition to being opeued, the joint would be cut of line,
would it not? . :

Mr. MiLuigeN.—It might be slightly out of line, yes, gir, -

Prof. Kerny.—Normally it would be held in line by the cover plale on top.

Mr. MiLuigeN.—The cover plate on top and its side connection plates.

Prof. Kerry.—You had no exceptional difficulties in any of these jointsi

Mr MiLuikeN.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerey.—How long did the anchor span remain on the false work{

Mr. MiLLEEN.—It remained on the false work about the middle of 1906.

Prof. Kerry.—About J uly, 19061

Mr, MiLLIKEN.—August. ‘

Prof. Kennv.—Was the cantilever arm well under way st that time?

Mr. MILLIEEN.—Yes, 8ir.
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Prof. Kerev.——How far would it be out before the removal of the false work
commenced

Mr. MiLLikEN.—The anchor arm commenced to work itself free of the false work
under it and was practically free of it in the last of August of last yeer, and we had
about eight or nine panels erected.

Prof. GaLeraitiH.—Eight or nine panels!

Mr. MiLLigeN.—Eight panels of the cantilever arm.

Prof. GauBraitH.—About the last of August?

Mr., MiLLIKEN.—] cannot say that definitely; our progress reports will show that
exactly.

Prof. Kerry.—Up to that date, were any of the joints riveted up, the main chord
jointst

Mr. MiLuikEN.—August of 1806%

Prof. Kerry.—Up to the time that you got free of the fr'<e workt

Mr. MiLLikeN.—T think not.

Prof. Kerry.—They were all bulged {

Mr. Mituiken.—All bulged, yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And had they come fairly well into positiont

M -, MiLuigeN.—Fairly well, yes, sir. In fact I did not examine the joints myself,
Mzr. Kinloch can answer that. He examined them all.

Prof. Kerry.——You waited for Mr. Kinloch’s reportt

Mr. MitLiReN.—1 talked with Mr. Yenser and Mr. Kinloch about it and asked
how the joints were going and they would report, 1 talked to Mr. Kinloch about. it,
just in a general way.

Prof. Kerry.—And the joints would not be riveted up until they were satisfied
they were bearing properly.

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—We never riveted any of the joints until Mr., Kinloch and Mr.
MecLure were satisfied that the joint was in proper position to rivet.

Prof. Kerrv.—In the lining process of the different members, that process took
place just previous to riveting?!

Mr. MiLLIKEN.--The lining, I am not sure that I understand.

Prof. Kerry.—When you were lining out ribs of the chords which were not truet

Mr. MiLLiKEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—You hed that done generally just previous to the riveting?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry,—That would not be bothered with up to that time?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—No, sir, I am not sure of that, it might have been lined up before.

Prof. Kerry.—Well, the definite instructions from Phmnixville, which are all a
matter of record, will they cover such thmgs as the removal of the false workf-

__Mr. MILLIKEN.- -Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—The instructions as to removmg that nt a certain dated

Mr. MILLIBEN.~-Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—So that the method would have been to report the condition to

Phenixville and then for Phanixville to send instructions that a certain step should
‘be takent

Mr. MuLikEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof, Kerav.—So that practically everything bearing on what was done, is in
the erection instructionsf

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—In the erection instructions, yes, sir.

Prof. Keary.—~Would you consider, Mr. Milliken, that every step of that erection
could be correctly traced out through those instructionsf

Mz, MiLLIKEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kesry.—Will you arrange to have a set of these filed, for the use of tho
Commission, pleasef

Mr. MILLIKEN,— Yeg, sir.
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Prof. Kenny.—lHave you them with yout

Mr, MILLIKEN.—No, not all of them.

Prof. Kerry.—We understand, Mr. Milliken, that the official papers of the bridge
company bearing direcily upon the crection consist of the erection instructions and
the daily reports of Mr. Yenser.

Mr. MiLLiKeEN.—Yes, siv, . .

Prof. Kerry.—Those two series cover all the recoxds that are regularly kepti

Mr. MiLLIREN.—In connection with the crection, yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Ts there a full file of the correspondence between the Pheenix Bridge
Company and Mr. Yenser?

. Mr. MiLugEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—Ilere at present!

Mr, MILLIKEN.—Well, no, I thought you simply asked for the correspondence from
Phenixville after August 1 up to the time of the accident.

Mr. HoLaaTE—Were copies of the letters that Mr. Yenser wrote to Phenixville
kept in the office letter book at the Quebec bridga?

Mr, MiLLikeN.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoreaTe—Is that letter book theret

Mr. MiLLiKEN.—Yes, sir.

Ar. 1Toraate-—I suppose all these communications will be to Mr. Yenser and
not to Mr. Birks?

\r. MiLLakeN.—In the first place to Mr. Yenser.

Mr. Horeate.—Will there be any to Mr. Birks.

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—There has been some correspondence with Mr, Birks.

Mr. HoLeATE—Anything of that nature between the office and Mr. Birks we
would like to have just to go through it and see if there is anything that will bear
on the information we are seeking!

Mr. MiLuikey.—Mr. Birks’ correspondence. I gave him authority to use my name
in correspondence to Pheenixville, or his own.

After somo discussion a book of plans was produced by Mr. Milliken, filed and
marked as Exhibit 30. A book was produced by Mr. Milliken, filed and marked as
Exhibit 31. S T

Prof. Kerry.—-Would you indicate to us, Mr. Milliken, as nearly as you can, what
material would have been on the bridge at the time of the accident, either actual bridge
members which were not placed——1

Mr. MiLukEN.—What material would have been on the bridgef’

Prof. Kerry.-~Yes?

Mr, MiLLigken.—I do not quite understand.

Prof. GaLsrAITH.—What material was on the bridge?

~Mf. HoLaATE-=Not ‘erected { ~— == == = = s e e

Prof. Kerry.—Or not necessarily for erection, it may have been just erection
material{

Mr. MitLIREN.—Of the permanent structuret

Prof. Kerrv.—In addition to the permanent structure, not erected{

Mr. MiLiken.—Nothing except our working platform, consisting of planks and
th > necessary attachments for handling, and plates in position, the permanent members
of the suspended span.

Prof. Kerrv.—There was this small traveller, which we understand was on the
third panel? :

Mr. MitLikes.—The small traveller was in position on the third panel erected of
the suspended span. The large traveller covered the ninth panel of the cantilever arm
with its upper overhang and the lower front or end of it removed.

Prof. Kerry.—Retaoved off the bridset

Mr. MinLikeN.—Removed off ‘the bridge, yes, sir; together with all of the wooden
sheave beams and a great deal of other rigging from the top of the main-traveller.
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Prof, Kerry.—So that practically there was no loose material on the bridge at all?

Mr. MiLLikeN.—No loose material, no, sir, other than what was necessary for the
actual work to be done..

Prof. Kerry.—No main truss members sent in advance of erection? I understand
your method was that a member went down on the cars and went straight from the
cars into the structure? )

Mr. MiL1EEN.—Well, the main truss members that were required to be put into
position were usually held back until they were wanted right in the front or at the point
of erection. They might be held south of the office on the track, or they might be
held on the south bridge span, or they might be set up on the anchor arm. We did
that on account of the danger of something dropping in the removal of the traveller
on the locomotive or material. It was hardly ever moved to the front of the hridge
until it was wanted to place the attachments on it, to place it in position.

Prof. Kerky.—And actually there was no such material forward at the time of
the accident except what was just going to be put upf

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—From the investigation I made in my judgment there was none.

Prof; Kerry.—Aind all the loose material from the traveller, with small excep-
tions, had been lowered to the ground?

Mr. MuuikiN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerky.—And there was no track material of any kind?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.~—No, sir.

Prof. KERrY.—Will you arrange to have prepared and filed with the Commission
a diagram of the bridge showing the exact load that was on it?

Mr. MiLLIKER.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.—At the moment of the accident?

Mr. MILLIKEN.~—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—That will include, of course, the weight itself of the actual
members erected and the weights and positions of all the erection material that was
at that time on the structuref

Mr. MurikeN.—Yes, sir. :

Prof. GaLerart.—Could you from memory, Mr. Milliken, state the main members
of the anchor arm which were not con.nletely riveted up at the time of the accidenti
I have a plan here showing the progress, the state of progress on August the 20th,
and I car assist your memory by this plan,

(Plan produced, filed and marked Exhibit No. 32.)

Mr. MitLIKEN.~—When I loft there I think thers were two joints cn the west chord
of the anchor arm and two on the east chord of the anchor arm.

Prof. Gausratzs—This plan would not quite indicate that. Looking over the
anchor span this progress diagram seems to show that chords § were still unriveted,
chords 6 and 7 completed, riveted up, and the remaining panels to the centre pier not
riveted. The question I wished to ask was what the special reason was for not
finishing up the chords 8. They scem to have been left behind unfinished; the choxds
beyond them, the panels beyond them were completely finished. Was there any
reason ?

Mr. MuLiKEN.—No reason, unless the joint was not in proper contact, no reason
because we should have had that riveted, wo had plenty of riveters, and they were
working out on the cantilever arm, and we were anxious te complete the riveting on
the cantilever arm as rapidly es possible, because wo wanted to go shead and paint
it and wanted all the riveting done before commencing painting.

Prof. GaLsrarrH.—You know of no reason for that not being donef

Mr. MLLREN.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLerRAITH.—Will a similar answer apply to the main penels containing the
bottom chords 9 and 10 in the anchor arm? )

Mr. MiLLikeN.—Yes, sir.

184—vol. ii—12
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Prof. GaLprAITH.—~The same reason or explanatlon will apply?

"Mr, MiLLikeN.—No, sir.

Prof. GaLerAITIL~You know of no reason why those should not have been fully
riveted up at the time of the accident?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—No reason except that,

Prof. Gauprairi.—Can you tell from inspection now whether this is a correct
progress disgram for the 29th of August (Exhibit 32)% The red lines indicate metal
erected, the black nnes indicate metal erected and riveted complete. It is perhaps
difficult to do it in five minutes.

Mr. MiLLikex.—It is correct. _

Prof. Gatsrart.—This plan, then, you say represents truly the condition of the
work on the 29th of August?

Mr. MiLuikeN.—Yes, sir, except that not being riveted (indicating). I do not
know if that is absolutely correct—the riveting as indicated there.

Prof. Garerarmii—Well, will ycu go over this; take this plan and show where it is
wrong {

Mr. MitLikex.—1 say I do not know of my own knowledge. -

Mr. Horoate—If you could furnish us with a statement showing the precise con-
dition of the field riveting on each joint as existing on the 29th of Augustf

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—We shall have to depend on Mr. Kinloch and Mr. McLure for that.
Our foreman of riveters was Mr. Meredith.

Mr. HorgaTE—A statement agreed on between Mr. Kmloch and Mr., McLure
would, in your opinion, be correct?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Yes, gir.

Prof. Kekry.—I notice in the wrec';, Mr. Milliken, in regard to the connection
between the stringers and floor beams, that the ends of certain of the railway stringers
were punched for riveting ta the floor beams, but the floor beams were riveted up with-
out these holes being made any usc of. - What is the explanation of thatt The vertical
angle where say two floor beams came against the stringer, the vertical angle at the
end of the floor beam at each end of the stringer was punched for riveting to the
stringer, but not riveted up, only one stringer was riveted to the floor beam and the
other was not.

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—-T presume that was probably an expansion, not a bolting hole,

Prof. Kerny.—If that was an expansion end, why were these angles punched for
riveti..g in the first place? Would they not have been left without any rivet holes{

Mr. MiLuikeN.—The end stiffener angles

Prof. Kerrvy.—Yes?

Mr. MuuiKeN.—If there were holes in there, I should imagine that is what they
were for, unless the stringers you refer to were placed on temporarily; we had some
stringers placed there temporarily. We were using the electric railway stringers for
permanent structures, we had been using some strmgers for carrying our main traveller.

Prof. Kerry.—Some of the stringers of the main structure were being used as

part of the main traveller?

Mr. MicukeN—In other words, the permanent metal floor of a portion of the
anchor arm was not in places complete.

Prof. Kerry.—From whom will we secure a record of that!

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Our plans will indicate that.

Prof. Kerry.—The plans will indicate that?

My, MiLLkKeN.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerrv.—You recall Mr, Clark’s evidence of Saturday, Mr. Mllllkeni

Me. MiLLiREN.—T heard pretty nearly all of it, I think; yes, sir,

Prof. Kerrv.—Would you have permitted that repaired chord to have been sent
down to the bridge unless it was straight?{

Mr. MiLLiREN.—No, gir.
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Prof. Kurrv.—Assuming that that chord was put into the bridge straight, what
explanation can be offered of the defl :tion that was found in it!

Mr. MLLxEX.-—When you say straight, do you mean straight to a horizonfal line?

Prof. Kearv.—Straight to a true horizontal line. It would be a very essy thing
to seo on a straight member of that kind, locking along the edge of it, a deflection of
an inch. )

Mr. MiLuikex,—If T had seen a slight deflection, T would not have objected to it
going in. .

Prof. Keray.—By a slight deflection, you would mean how much?

Mr. MiLikeN.—Half an inch or three quarters of an inch in those long chord
sections, in a long girder. _ )

Prof. Kerry.—On such a deflection as was actually reported-——Clark stated I think
an inch and five-eighths, you would not have permitted that!

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—~Well, I would have reported the matter and consulted—I might
have let it go in, but I would have conferred with Phenixville immediately in regard
to that. .

Prof. KErrv.—As a matter of fact no such doflection was reported to you as being
in the chord or was noticed by you st any timef

Mr. MiLLiREN.—Never, no, sir.

Prof. Kerrr.—What explanation could you suggest or what force could have pro-

duced the deflection that is reported to have been measured ?

Mr. MiLLigen.—~1 do not know.

Prof. Kerky.—You would regard the occurring of such a deflection in a member
that was originally straight, particularly in a member of these dimensions, as a8 most
serious circumstancet : : o

Mr. MiLukeN~If T had been absolutely certain that that member had been abso-
lutely straight and thet a deflection of that kind had occurred, why of course I would
have been attracted by it and would v doubt have investigated it and watched it
closely, but otherwise I should not her-

Prof. Kerry.—Would it be possib.e under the system of inspection that was exist-
ing for a defect of that nature to have paseed through in such a way as to leave it
open fo question as to whether it existed or whether it did not?

Mr. MiLLikex.—] am not thoroughly familiar with the rules of shop inspection.

Prof. Kerry.—So that so far as your own department is concerned, that member
could have come down with that warp existing in it and not have been rejected?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.~~Yes, sir, after the materisl is shipp=d to us, we must sssume it is
all right unless it is damaged in transit. . ,

Prof. Kerry.—Now thia particular member cculd be said to have been damaged
in transit{, A

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—It was damaged in handling in our storage yard.

Prof. Kerzy.—It ¢ n be considered to have been in transitt

Mr. MiLLikeN.—Yes, sir. . :

Prof. Kerry.—And it was actually repaired under your direction?

Mr. MrLigeN.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. Kerry.—8o that if you had known there was any erookedness in the mem-
ber at the time, it would have been made good?

Mr, MoLEEN.—Certainly at the same time that the other repairs were made to it.

Prof. Kerry.—Could you express an opinion as to how near to failure a compree-
sion member of that shape would be when it had deflected under stress to the amount
stated in Mr. Clark’s evidencel . )

Mr. MiruEen.-—No, sir, I could not.

Prof. Kerry.~Was there anyone present on the bridge who could have estimated
that fairly? ’ .

](r. MrLLIEEN.—At the time of the accident?

154—vol. ii--12}
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Prof. Kerrv.—At the time of the accident? '

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Yes, sir, Mr. Birks; he had the stress sheets.

Prof. Kerry.~—It is not a question of stress ~heets, Mr. Milliken, itisa question
of how serious a condition of a member that deflection indicated. You would have
looked to Mr. Birks for advice on that point.

Mr. MiLLiceN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Have we any record of Mr. Birks’ position on that?

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—On that chord section :

Prof. Kerrv.—1In regard to the member which was warped ¢

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—In what form ¢

Mr. MiLtikeN.—In the sketch ‘which he sent to the Phenixville office.

Prof. Kerry.—That will be found in the correspondence 1

Mr. MiLLIKEN.—Yes, sir. :

Prof. Kerry..—Do you understand that the evidence of M:. Cimk to the effect
that Mr. Birks did not know whether that wss a stress deflection or a construction
deflection, is correct 1

Mr. MiLuiken.—Mr, Clark’'s undevstanding of it ¢

Prof. Kerry.—Mr. Clark stated that Mr. Birks claimed that that deflection was
in the construction of the chord previous to its being placed in the bridge. Have we
any record as to whether that statement of Mr, Clark is correct or not ¢

Mr. MiLLikeN.—None that T know of.

Prof, Krrry.—If you had been present on the ground, Mr. Milliken, and in full
possession of the facts in regard to these members, would you have considered it safe
to further load them ¢

Mr, MiLLIREN.- -Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe.—In considering the scheme for erection, particularly for the lower
chord system, wero the erection strains considered—I am speakiug now from the
ercction point of view—as eccentrically delivercd to the end of the chord-sections or
to be distributed 1

Mr. MuoikeN.—You mean the lower chords? Mr. Deans, I think, can explain
that better than T can. I do not know anything about stresses.

Mr. Horoate.—Perhaps Mr., Deans can explain that. There is a point we want
to clear up but we will rescrve that question for Mr. Deans.

Porf. GaBraiti.—Your visit extended from the 6th of August till the 26th, I
think you said? :

Mr. MiLLIkKEN.—Yes, sir,

Prof. GaisraiTH.~During that visit was your attention directed to any alleged
dangerous parts in the bridge$

Mr. MiLuigex.—Absolutely none.

Prof. GaLsrarrn.—Did you visit any joints or other parts during that visit which
you considered dangerous?

Mr. MoLkeN.—No, sir,

Prof. Kerhv.—Aesuming a chord to have been perfectly straight when erected
and to have subsequently deflected, how long, under the existing system of inspection,
would such a defect have probably remained unobserved{

Mr, MiLLigeN.—In my judgment that is a very hard question to answer. I could
not answer that question intelligently.

Prof. KerrY.—Would you say, then, that a close inspection of the erected members
was considered to be the duty of the inspectors of the Quebec Bridge Company?

Mr. MiLLIREN.—Yes, sir, under the requirements of the field inspection by the
Quebee Bridge Company? - -

Prof. Kxrry.—And that the Phoenix Bridge Company depended on them to make
that inspection? ’

Mr, MiLLiKEN.~T cannot answer that.
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Prof. Kerry.—Were the main members of the bridge under systematic inspection
by the Phoenix Bridge Company{

Mr, MiLiges.—No, sir, not in the field. )

Prof. Kerry.—What value did you place on the inspection by the Quebec Bridge
Company {

Mr. MiLigeN.—I placed the value upon them as inspectors that when we received
it it was all right ready for erection.

Prof. Kerry.—I mean their field inspection. )

Mr. MiLigeN.—] thought the same of the field inspection as the shop inspection.

Prof. Kerry.—Were you depending on them to draw wour attention to any
defect in the main members which might develop {

Mr. MiLLigex.—Not entirely seo; no, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—But you had no organized inspection of your own ¥

Mr. MiLuiken.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Was the time required for the erection closely estimated, Mr,
Milliken {

Mr. MiLLikeN.—The time for the erection?

Prof. Keray. The time required to do the erection work, Had that been closely
estimated $ : e e o )

Mr. MiLLIREN.—No, sir. .

Prof. Kerry.—You had never endeavoured to lay out a time programme for the
work { . ' '
Mr. MiLLikeN.—Yes, this season 1 expected to complete the south half of the
suspended span, to practically complete the riveting of .the cantilever and anchor
arms, remove the main traveller and erect it on the north side and complete the north
shore false work ready for erection next spring.

Prof. Kerry.—But you had no closely planned time gcheme, for example, that
such and such things were to be finished by August 1

Mr. Mivuigen.~—No, sir.

Prof. Kerny.—And Mr, Yenser was not endeavouring to live up to the require-
ments of any such time schemu? ’

Mr, MiLLikKeN.—No, sir, C

Prof. Kirrv.—At the time of the accident was the condition of progress better
than your expectation, or otherwisef

Mr. MiLLIKER.—Well, it was about up to our expectation, though he had lost a
good deal of time on account of bad weather this season.

Prof. Kerrv.—So that he would be a little more than ususlly anxious to get the
material upt \

Mr. MiLLugeN.—Not necessarily so; no, sir.

Mr. DavinsoN.—1 do not know if Mr, Milliken is aware of this. but in connec-
tion with the question that Prof. Kerry has just put to Mr. Milliken, I may say that
my information is that the Phenix Bridge Company’s officials were boing continually
urged, almost to the extreme limit, by the Quebec Bridge people to pusi the work for-
ward this season. :

Mr. Deans.—I wish to deny that absolutely. ‘

Mr. DaviosoN.—J do not say-that all the information I get is absolutoly correct.

Mr, Deans.—That is absolutely wrong. -

Mr. Davipsox.—But it does happen that a good deal 1 have had js correct so far.

Mr. Stuart—Not all of it—not all you expected to he.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Do not argue about its correctness now; we will have Mr, Hoare
explain that later. : ,

Mr. Stusrt—I do not think that either Mr. Iiiliken. or Mr. Deans has been
questioned aboat Mr. Yenser's competency.

Prof. Keary.—Yes, that was earlier in the examination,

Mr. STusrT.—It was not in Mr. Milliken’s examination,
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Prof. Keray.—Mr. Deans was questioned in his evxdeme as to whether Mr,
Yenser was competent.
Mr. Stuart.—It was suggested that Mr, Yenser was subject to orders from
various people, and I would like that matter cleared up by Mr. Milliken, and also
that there was difficulty about yetting men because of the supposed controversy on
the subject of travelling expenses. I would suggest that these two points should bs
cleared up.
Mr. Hororie.—These points have both been answered.
Mr. Stu rT.—The last one has certainly not been.
Prof. Xerry.—The impression left in our minds by the statement in regard to
Mr. Yenser was simply that he allowed himself to be influenced beyond his better
judgment by other officials emp]oved on the bridge. .
Mr. Stuart.—I think that is an entirely erroneous impression, That is the im-
pression of a witness and nothing more.
Prof. Kerry.—We recognized it as such.
Mr. Stuart.—I thought the opinion of a man who knew Mr. Yenser was worth
something as correcting that impression as to whether he was likely to be influenced.
1 attach some importance to u statement that was mwade that tliere was a difficulty in
getting men because of this controversy about iravelling expenses, the statement in
regard to which, I am instructed, was quite inaccurate. The controversy arose a
great deal too late to affect the supply of bridgemen at all. It only arose at the time
of the strike.
Prof. Kerry.— Have you had a satisfactory working force throughout the season {
Mr. MILLIKEN.—We have had a satisfactory force as far as the safety of the work
is concerned, but in order to accomplish what we have outlined this year there, and
on account of the unusual loss of time on account of bad weather this season we felt
as though wo had to increase our bridge men to the extent of 15 or 25 men, and that
was partially the reason of my visit to Phenixville under instruciions of our chief
engineer. On Saturday or Sunday prior to the accident I sent a bridge man out
to secure men and he had already secured a number near Boston, of 1egular bridge
erectors, and had them under orders to report at Quebec to Mr. Yenser. We had his
telegram on Friday mortiing after the acéident and we wiréd him to hold the mien aad
report to Quebec before securing any more. .
Prof. Kerry.—Up to the date of the accident you had been at any time able to
hire the full working force you desired to employt-
Mr, MiLLigeN—We had as many men as the work actually called for to earry it
on, and with perfect safety, but in order to have it proceed more rapidly we thought,
of courge, to increase our force, and were arranging to do that.
Prof. Kerry.—Had you made previous unsucceesful efforts to increase your foree!
Mr, MiLikeR.—Well, we had made a number of efforts. On one occasion we paid
~ the expenses of 22 bridge men out of New York, and when they arrived here there -
were only ten of them reported for duvy, so that we lost twelve there which we had to
replace, and we had twelve or fifteen come in from Buffalo, New York, and part of
them also left without rendering any service whatever to the Bridge Compnny The
only thing for us to do——
Prof. Kerry,~—Is that a usual happening i
v Mr. MrLikeN.—With that New York party it was rather an unusual thing to lose
that percentage of the number. It is nothing unusual, when a party of fifteen or

twenty-five bridge men are ordered te a point, that - few of them will drop out. But,
we lost twelve out of twenty-two We had paid their expenses from New York to
Quebec.

Prof. Kerry. - as there any explanatxon of thatt

Mr. MiLLiggN.—Nothing that I had except some of them said that they had to
walk too far to their boarding house, and various other excuses.
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Prof. GaLsaarra.—Was this trouble that you are spesking of now about the 8th
of Augusti -

Mr., Mouxe~s.—No, that was in July, I think, that they were sent—June or July
—T do not remember.

Prof. Kzanv.—In case of a difference of opinion between Mr, Yenser and the
engineers and the inspectors on the work, what were his instructions!

Mr. MiLLEN.—Mr, Yenser had full control of the entire force employed on the
work.
~ Prof. Kearv.—But he had not control of the inspectors of the Quebec Bridge
Company § . ’

Mr. Mitugex.—DNo, sir; only the Phenix Bridge Company’s employees,

Prof. Kerry.—In cnse of a difference of opinion between theie gent'emen, what
were his instructionst ‘

Mr. MILLIREN.—If there was a difference of opinion he would have discharged ;he
man or reported it to Phenixville. I cannot answer what he would have done, but he
would have done one of the two things. :

Prof. Kerry.—1 do not mean by a difference of opinion, necessarily a quarrel or
dispute, Mr. Milliken. The question is as to what was the proper procedure. He might
consider one. thing io be better to do and the engineer on the work might con-
sider another thing was the better to do. ' :

Mr. Mmukex.—In a case of that kind I suppose they would have to arrive at
some agreement, or he would have to report it to the Phenixville office, or wire, or
telephone.

Prof. Kerry.—Rut he had authority to decide these points himeelf t

Mr., MiLLikex.—He had authority to decide these matters himeelf. Yet, Mr
Yeuser was a man who would never take advantage of authority. He was very con-
servative.

Prof. Kerav.——~And was he very carofulf

Mr. MiLuiken.—Very careful, and would not take extreme measures simply because
he was placed in authority.

Prof. KErrY.—On the other hand, was he a man who had a very consi.erable reli-
- -anée on his own judgmenti - - .

Mr. Miuuikex.—Yes, sir.

Mr, Rov.—There is one point that doés not seem very clear as regards the inspec-
tion. I might suggest that you ask the witness whether or not it was the custom for
the foreman of the Phenix Bridgé Company to examine all erected members all over
the bridge, and then report to the superintendent of the work, Mr. Yenser. I think
there is some confusion sbout the inspection. Maybe 1 have missed some part of the
evidence; the question does not seem very clear from Mr. Milliken's evidence.

Prof. Kengy.—I think, Mr. Roy, that that question would be answered by & ques-
tion that T asked Mr. Milliken. You remember we asked him explicitly if he had any
systematic method of inspection of the members in the structure by the force of the
Phenix Bridge Company, and he said that he had not. 'That, I think, would be &
direct answer to your question. :

Mr. Rov—Yes, elthough I think that the foreman used to examine the work
already done. Of course, if you are satisfied the point is clear enough, I do mot want
any more. ‘ :

b Mr. Hovaare—1 think I see what Mr. Roy means. The question was ssked him
re : -

¢ Where did Mr. Yenser’s reporta go

¢ Mr, MnLIKEN.—They went to Phonixville addressed b the Phonix Bridge Qom-
pany. We have some regular forms for reporting the number of rivets driven per day,
and our oar reports which were made up by the clerks in the offce and simply signed
by Mr. Yenser” Possibly these repor's would throw Light on something Mr. Roy wants.
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Mr. Rov.—The point I want to get at is this : From whom was the information
necessary to Mr. Yeuser to make these reports gathered ¥ Who supplied Mr. Yenser
with the information necessary to seud the reports to Phenixville ¥ His foreman of
riveters—Meredith ? -

Prof. Kerry.—It has been stated, Mr. Milliken, that some of the members of the
bridge were in a railroad wreck between Phoenixville and Quebec. -Have you any
record of that ¢

Mr, MiLiigeN.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.-—~What members were those § :

Mr. MiLigeN~—I do not remember. We have a record though, we can let you
have it.

Prof. Kerry.—~What became of the memberst

Mr. MiLigex.—They were repaired. They were minor members. I do not remem-
ber exactly what they were.

Prof. Kexrv.—1I think it wouid be well to submit a statement in regard to that,
It might be a written statement which need not be & matter of evidence.

Mre. MiLLikex.—It was in 1905,

Witness rétired,

E. A. Hoagg, recalled.

Mr. HorLeate.—Will you please put in as exhibits plans of the bridgs 1 Are they
in three packages { ,

Mr. Hoare.—In three folios. —_—

Mr. HoLeaTE~Do they contain the working plans of the bridge § -t

Mr. HHoAre.—Yes.

Mr. HowGAaTE—And strain sheets {

Mr, HoaRe.—Yes.

Mr. HoraaTe—Certified copiest -

‘Mr. Hoare.—Certified by Mr. Cooper and the engineer of the Department of Rail- -
ways and Canals. o

Mr. HoLoaTE—And these plans arc all the information in the shape of plans that
you have ¢

Mr. Hoare.—Yes, sir. Here is the index. (Folios of plans and index put in an

marked Exhibits Nos. 334, 33B, 33C and 33D.) - '

Commission adjourned to meet at ten am., Tuesday, September 17.

EIGHTB DAY.

S . Queseo, TuEsDAY, September 17, 1907,

) The Commissior} visited the lodgings in St. Joseph de Levis of Mr. Delphis
Lageunesse who, owing to his injuries, was unable to attend in response to the
subpena :— )

Mr. LAJEUNESSE beii g sworn:

Mr. HorgaTE—Wero you employed by the Phenix Bridge Coﬁnpany?
Mr, LAJEUNESSE—Yes, sir. ’

Mr. Horaate.—When did you start work for them§

Mr, Laseunesse—In July, about the 23rd. I came down on the 22nd and started
the day after. We started on Wednesday.
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Mr, Howgate—Of this yeart

Mr, LAJRUNESSE.—Yes, 8ir.

Mr, Horgate.—Were you continuously at work?i

Mr. LasEuNESSE—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLoaTe.—What were you working at? .

Mr. Laseuxesse~~I worked at every place on the bridge. I did everything—
erection man, raising gang and riveters’ gang.

Mr. HoLoate—Who was your foremani

Mr. LaJEuxEssE—I do not know his name. They called him Slim.

Prof. XerrY.—~Meredith is his namef

Mr. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes, .

Mr. HoLaate—You were working in the riveting gangi

Mr. LAJEUNEssE—Yes, in the riveting gang. I worked about two weeks in the
riveting gang. ‘ . .

Mr. HoroaTe—Were you working on the day of the accident to the bridge on the
riveting gang? i

" Mr. Laseunesse—No . 7t on the riveting gang. We just fitted up some rivet-

ing braces.

(The witness was showr ;lan marked Exhibit No. 26.)

Mr. HoLeaTE—Do you .2member at what rart of the bridge you were working.
" on the 20th of August? )

Mr. D. Laseunesse—~I stood right there. .

) Mr. Horgare.—That is tha point marked L on Exhibit 261 Whit were you doing
at that point?

Mr., D. LaJEuNES.E—OQOn that buckskin. We put two braces in the centre and
one at each end. We put the bolts down from the top chord to the bottom chord.

Mr, HoLeaTe.—What is a buckskini :

Mr, D. LasxuNesse—A box brace.

. Mr. HoLGATE—Was this joint at I completely riveted upt

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—~Ye9,

Mr. HoroaTe.—At that timel

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Yes, sir.

Mr, HoLoaTE—~Had you been workicg on the chordsf ]

Mr. D. Laeunesse—I was working on the bottom of the chords at the centre
posts—not on the chords. I went down on the chord. I worked just on the centre
posts just putting some screw belts in. )

Mr. HoLgaTE—On the lower section of the centre posts? .

Mr. D. Laseusesse.—Yes, I worked on both sides. The last day I worked was on. .
the Mcntreal side.

_ . Mr. HoLgate.—~What were you doing there!

Mr. D. LasguNgsse.~Putting in some screw bolts. I was working on the chords
with the riveters’ gang on the Montreal side. ‘

Mr. HoLaATE~-On the chords on the Montreal side of the bridge!

Mr, LAYRUNESSE.~—Y €8, BN

o My, HoLGATE.—A%t the joint between chords 9 and 101 ’ e

“fr. D. Laseunesse—Yes. I was working about four days before the accident -
in the riveters’ gang there with ‘Alexatider Beauvals, e s e e

Prof. GALBRAITH.~On the Montreal side! .

Mr. D. Lassunesse.—Yes. .

" Mr. HoLGATE.—Was that at the splice between 9 and 10 you were working{

Mr. D. Laseunesse—No, right in the post. Down that post you have a small
plate. About ten riveters were working down that plate. _

Mr. HoLeAYE—~’ou started in the middle of chord 9 and went down to the middle
of chord 10% '

Mr. D. Lasxunesse.—Yes. just the row of rivets.



188 ROYAL COMMISSION Ob’Y ('OLLAPSE OF QUEBEC BRIDGE
7-8 EDWARD Vi, A, 1908

Mr. HovoaTe-You were riveting{

Mr. D. Laseusesse—No, I was bucking up. On *he morning before the accident
I was working on the lower chord. .

Mr, HoLGATE.—At the joint or on the chord?

Mr. D. Laseunesse—On top of the chord.

Mr. HoroaTE.~—On the top of the chord at panel point No. § on the cantilever arm

Mr. D. Lasgunesse—Yes.

Mr. HoLGATE~— a8 Mr. McCumber working theref

Mr. D. LaseuNgssgE—] was just reaming some holes.

Mr. HoLaate—Were these holes in the bottom of the chord?

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE—Yes, right on the side of the chord.

Mr., Horaate.—On the underneath side?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, on the side.

Mr. Horaatz.—Was that on some snlice plates?

Mr. D. LaseuNEsse.—Yes, some plates. 1 passed the reamer through three plates
I was werking there at two o’clock.

Mr. HoLoate—You stopped working st that point at two o’clock on the day
before the accident?

Mr. D. Laseunesse—No, on the same day. After leaving panel point § of the
cantilever arm I went back to point J on the anchor arm, completed my work there
and moved forward to point L, already referred to, and was at point I, when the aceci-
dent to the bridge took place.

Mr. HoraaTe—~Did you notice anything particular when the accident took place,
or what did you notice first?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—I noticed something around here (indicating).

Mr. HowoAaTE—No, but just when the accident took placef

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I was on top just putting a turn on the rope to send up a
box of bolts when I saw something jerk the bridge like that (indicating). I fell down
in my box, stood up, fell down again, and I looked again. I thought the traveller had
fallen down on the bridge. The traveller was in the same place. I came to this side
of the bridge and I looked, and when I saw the Lridge go down in that way I was on
that chord, and I thought that chord made the bridge fall.

Mr. Horaate—Was the first motion you felt on the bridge a jerking ‘towards the
river or was it a falling downwards?

Mr. D. Laieunesse.—No, everywhere; it gave me a jerk towards the river. 1 was
thrown six feet on the buck brace.

“Mr. HoLoate—Which side of the bridge were you ont '

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—I was on the Montreal side of the bridge. I had just set
the bolts down and the bridge fell down. I was just maling a turn with the rope on
the anchor arm, and my brother was waiting for me for the bolts, and he said you
have not time to send them down, it is pretty near time to quit, and then the bridge
went down. .

Mr. HoLcaTE.—Did you fall from L to the deck?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, I stood right in my place. Nothing came on top of me,

Mr. HoLoaTE.—You stood at point L until it reached the ground?

Mr, D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes, I rouieniber everything. The first thing after I -was -
down there I was looking at something coming up agsin, and after I got down there
I just jumped about twenty feet. When I got down there I saw my brother, I saw
some blood coming out. I was the first to come out, my brother was the second one,
and the rest came oui after me,

Mr. HorLeaTE—What did you observe at the time of the accident as to the manner
in which the bridge fell? Do you remember distinctly what you observed at that
time?t You were on the Quebec sidet

Mr. D. LasEUNESSE.~—No, I was on the Montreal side.
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Mr. HoLoaTE~—Yes, on the Montreal side. Can you remember what you observed

at the timef - - -

Prof. Kerrv.—He was jerked and he was thrown six feet on the buck brace.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Jerked towards the river?.

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—I did not fall down outside the bridge. It just caught me.
I think it was on-the deck. I thought it was the traveller coming down.

Prof. Kerry.—-It threw you outside towards the bridget

Mr. D. Laseungsse.—It threw me outside to the box brace. I was standing up on
the box and it knocked that box down. I fell down in the box, and I stood up and
looked to see what was the matter. I thought it was the big traveller down. When
I saw the traveller in the same place I looked inside and I saw the brace .o to the
Quebec side. I said, ‘Well, I am finished,” and I thought so.

Prof. Kerry.—Then the bridge fell down towards the Quebec sidet

Mr. D. Laseunesse—Yes. But I stood there; nothing came over on me. When
1 saw-the post come down I thought it was coming down on top of me, but it did not.

Prof. Kenrv.—Could you see where it broke first? :

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I never saw anything broke. I saw where it was crooked.

Prof. Kerrv.—You did not ses where it was broken?

Mr. D. LaseuNesse—I saw something a couple of days before the accident. Every
man on the bridge in the morning said, ‘ Go and see that! About eight feet from
that post (indicating on plan) going up was crooked outside on the Quebeoc sid-.

Mr. HoLaate.—Eight fect beyond panel point No. 10,in the cantilever avm, chord
9, on the Quebec side. You might just describe what you saw here. First of all,
when did you see it

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—A couple of days before the accident—when 1 was working
at the centre post. I went down at that place. I never saw that before that day.

 Mr. HoLoaTE—What was the first time before that you went down and you did
not see it ¢

Mr. D. LAJEUREssE—About six days before.

Mr. HoLaatE—You did not see it thent

Mr. D. LasEunzsse.—No, I did not see anything then. When I saw those bridge
men going and locking, it gave me a scare and I wanted to quit after I saw it.

Mr. HoroaTe.—The first time you saw it, wac when {

Mr. D. Lasevunesse.—Monday or Tuesday.

Mr. HorcaTE.—Was anybody with you { .

Mr, D. LAJEUNESSE—Yes, every bridge man on the bridge. My brother was on
the bridge and I asked him : What the hell are you looking at, and when he toid me
1 said, By God. ]

Mr. HoLaaTe.—Just tell us what it was you saw ?

Mr. D. Laseunessi—It was about 2 inches crooked.

Mr. Horeate.—Was it bent sideways §

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—It was crooked, curved or bulged towards the Quebec side.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—That wans the chord, was it §

__Mr. D. Laszunessg.—Yes.
Mr. HoroATE~—These chords have four plates 1 -

© .. Mr.D. Laseunesse.—These four plates were crooked.

Mr. HoLoATE.~Nas that bent part long or sbort ¥ T

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Just short. It was about two or three feet leng end one or
two inches bulge. I could see it by the eye on top of the bridge.

Mr. Horaate.—That hend was bere (indicating) on the Quebec side L]

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSR.—Y es. ) ’

Prof, GaLagairi.—Is he spesking of the ribs or the splice plates 1

Prof. Keray.—The ribs.

Prof. GaLsrarTa.—Of the four ribs simply 1

Mr, D. LAJEUNESSE.—Y es.
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Prof. GarsraitH.—Close to the cover plate ?

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes.

Prof. Kesry.—And all bent towards Quebec {

Mr, D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes

Prof. Keruy.—\When that bend took place were the cover plates there or were the

lacing angles in {

Mr, D. Lasevxesse.—You have a cover plate on top about a foot ahove this place.

It was about two feet away from the cover plate.

Prof. Kerry.—Was that on Monday or Tuesday {

Mr, 1), LaJeunesse.—One of these two days.

Mr, FioLoaTz.—But you do not remember.

Mr. 9. LaJeuxesse—~I do not remember.

Mr. HorcaTeE.—You brother was with you then 1

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes,

Mr. Horaate.—Who else ¢

Mr. D. LAYEUNESSE.—AIl the bridge men were on top. I was the last man on the

top of the hridge and I saw all the men '>nking, and I asked : What is the matter,

und

he said : Can you see that bottom chord ?—it is crooked. I said : By God, I am

going “eme before some accident.

Prof. Kerry.—That was when { L

Mr. D. Lassunesse—Seven o’clock in the morning.

Prof. Kenny.~That would be Tuesday morning ¢

Mr. Horeate.~—Most likely seven d’clock Tuesday morning.

Mr. D. Laseusesse—~—We had not started work when we saw this—five minutes
before seven.

Mr, HorLaaTE.—But you went ahead and worked {

Mr. 1), LAJEUNESSE.—Yes. _

Mr. Horcate—You went to work at panel point No. 5 ¢

Nr. D. Laseunesse—No, I was working there at that time.

Mr. TToreate—IIow did you get there {

Mr. D. Laseuxesse—I walked over the track to some place near panel point No.

6 and walked along the chord to the cantilever pier.

Mr. HorLoate.~—Do you recollect at this place, on chord 9, that you spoke of, if

the top cover plae was on and riveted up {

Mr. D. LAJeuNesseE—Yes,

Mr. Horaate.—Was the bottom cover plate rlveted up ?

Mr. D, LAJEURESSE-~Yes, all riveted up.

Mr. HorcaTE-—Was this joint all made up ¢

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE—Yes, all finiched, A couple of weeks before we were moving

that scaffold.

Mr. HorLasTe.—That is at panel point 9 several daya before that you moved away

the scaffold ¢

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—Y e8.
Mr. HoLaaTE.—The scaffold was there for the purpose of finishing up the joint of

'nhord No. 81

Mr. D. Lajeunesse—It was all finished.

Mr. HoLgaTE—Was the bottom plate in place on chord 81

Mr. D. LaJEUNESSE—Yes, it was in Place, and riveted, too.

Mr. HorLgatE—Did you notice anything else on any of these chords?

Mr. D. LaseuNesse~—No, I did not see anything else,

Mr. Horoate~—Did you notice the joint at this place here on chord 8 which is

marked ¢ joint’ on the plan{

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No.
My, HorLoatE.—Did you hear anything spoken about that joint on chord 8 at that

"time §
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Mr. D, Laseunesse~—No,

Mr. HorLcate.—The only joint that was spoken about was one on chord 91

Mr. D. Laseunesse—On chord 9, that is sll.

Prof. GausraiTH.~~They aré both on chord 9.

Mr. Hovraate—Is the place where you saw the bulge in this panel (indicating)
between the figures 9 and 101

Mr. D. LaJeunesse.—Nearer towards point 10,

llﬁr. HoLoate—Then do I understand thatyou saw nothing out of order in
panel 81 : . ‘ .

Mr. D. Laseonisse—~No, I did not see anything.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—What day was that?

Mr. HOLGATE.—At seven o'clock on thie Tuesday before the accident.

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—The whistle blows five minutes before the work begins.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Who was it who first spoke about it being crookedt

Mr. D. Laseunesse—All the bridgemen from all over the bridge. When I 3aw
every man stop I asked my brother, who was there talking French and who was vith
me, ¢ What is the mutter?’ He says, ‘ Look on that chord.” T said, ¢ It is dangercus’
He said, ¢ Oh, no, it is strong encugh to hold me.” We went to work, and the next day
we fell down. When I saw some one go down there—the president of the Union——

Mr. Horoate.—Who is het :

Mr. D. Laseunesse—Mr, Haley, and Mr. Cook was the secretary. 1 was waiting
on him outside on Wednesday night, the day before the accident, to give him my
books for my Union. 1 was waiting about half an hour, and some one said to me,
¢ Just-look at that chord” I saw Mr. Cook and Mr. Haley go down there, and after *
they had been there half an hour I saw them going away. I do not know what they
did there.

‘Mr. HoLcaTE—It was just Cook and Haleyt

Mr. D. Lasgunessi—Cook, Haley, and some other fellows. I do not know their
names. There were three or four. . o

Mr. HoLATE.—When you observed that bulge, in the chord in panel 9, did you
notice anything wrong with the lacing anglest

Mr. D. Laseunesse—DNo; I did not see anything. I did not look at that, I just
looked at the chord that was crooked. "I did ot see thie angles there: —

Mr. HoLoaTE.—You 4o not think it was crooked enough to affect the angles?

Prof. GALBRAITH.—) . did not see that after Tuesday nightt

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I did not see that but that day.

Prof. GALBRAITH.--You looked on Wednsaday{

Mr. D. LaJRUNESSE—Yes, :

Prof. GALBRAITH.—You looked on Thursday morning?

Mr. D. Laseusesse.—Yes, I looked every morning going out.

Prof., GaLBrRAITH.—You saw it three days?t

Mr. D. LasruNesse.—Yes, three days, all the time in the same place. I think
they were moving; I do not know.

Mr. Horoate—Could you notice any change that had taken place in it, did it

--look any worse : L o :

Mr. D. Laseuxesse—No, I did not look long enough; I just saw it was more
crooked; it was the same place all the time. Somebody said that Foreman Worley. ...
taid, ¢ Oh, never mind, we put it like that.

Mr. HoLoATE.—What do you think Mr. Worley meant by that{ :

. Mr. D. Laseungsse.—I thought that piece was the same way as it had been there.

Mr. HoroaTe.—As it was  * int _

Mr. D. LasEuxesse.—Yes. 1 do not know, when I started to work it was over
there in front. - ’ '

Mr, Horoare—Do you recollect your attention being calied to any other matters
like that on the bridget '
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Mr. D. Lasevnesse.—No, I did not see anything. I worked avery place on the
bridge, on top, on the centre post, frora the top down to the bottom, I did not aee
anything.

Y Mr.g Horaate.—Did you often go on the bottom chord on the anchor armfi

Mr. D. Laskusesse.—Yes, going up and going down. .

Mr. HoLaaTE—You spoke a little while ago about working with Beauvais at some
place on the lower chord on the Montreal side, in the anchor arm{

Mr. D. Laseunesse—Yes.

Mr. Horoate—Was that at the post between panel 9 and panel 101

Mr. D. Laseuxesse.—Right there (indicating). There on the cover plate, the
two cover plates. . We put some rivet plates on the side.

Mr. HoLoate.—On the side of the chord?

Mr. D, LAJEUNESSE.—Yes. . .

Mr. HoLaATE—Was that at the splice between panel 9 and panel 101

Mr. D). LAJEUNESSE.—Yes, )

Mr, Hovoate.—On each side of the post?

Mr. D. Lasevnesse—Yes, I was riveting on the box brace going from the
Montreal side to the Quebec side. .

Mr. HoLGATE—What day was this that you were working there!

Mr. D. Taseunesse.—I think it was a week before, I do not remember.

Mr. Horoate~—Did they finish the work they were at? »

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Over there, no. They were working there that dayt

Mr. HoLaate—You left the gang and worked on something elsed

Mr. D. LaJeunesSE—Yes, they put some Indian fellows.

Mr. HoLeaTE—~—And the gang with Beauvais stayed there, did they?

Mr. D. LaJEuNEsse—Stayed there, I think they were there on that day. I saw
“400 tivets put inside those four plates. ’

Mr. HoLaATE—When you left they had 400 rivets to put in? X

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I think they had 200 or 800 rivets, 300, 400, you seo the
four plates in the bottom chord they had to rivet inside. I think they had about 100
rivets to finish at that place? .

Prof. KERRY.—When the bridge fell? . .

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Yes. When I left them he was working over there, he had
big work to do, I saw him go up there when the bridge fell.

X Mr.' HoroaTE—When you were working there with Beauvais did anything unusual
appen -

Mr, D. Laseunesse.—No, we did not tee anything there.

“Mr. Hotaate.—Was theré anything that appeared to youto e ot of tinet-——— ———

Mr. D. Laeunesse—No., - :

Mr. HoLaTE.—On that chord¥

Mr. D. Laseusesse.—I did not see anything.

Mr. Horoate~—Or any place in that neighbourhood

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, it was all good over there.

Mr. IToLoatE—Now, before you started riveting was that joint bolted upt

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Yes, bolted up.

Mr. Horeate—Fully bolted ¢

Mr. D. L. Laseunesse—~—Yes, fully bolted up.

Mr. HoLoate.—Was every hole flled?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Yes, wo did not pass any reamer, Sometimes they have to
pass a reamer,

Mr. Horaate.—Were all the belts the same sizef

Mr. D. Laseunessge—Yes,

Mr. Horaate—What sizef

~—Mr-D. LAJRUNESSE.—.
Mr. Horoate.—All the boles were filled,with ] bolts{
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Mr. D. Lasrunesse.—Yes, I did not look very well.

Prof. GaLsraiti.—I would like to know something about the other one on the
Montreal side, -opposite the joint between 9 and 107 It is on the 9th chord, that
sphce, the other end of the 8th chord.

Mr. HougaTe—Did you ever work at the splice in the 9th chord near the panel
point marked 9¢

Mr. D. Laseunesse—No, T did not work there at all. I passed in on thet side.
The only thing I see, they had those runners there sent out.

Mr. Horoate.—I understand you passed along theret

Mr. LaTEunEssE—Yes, that is all I see.

Mr. Horoat.—Can you recollect anything about the bo]tmg up of them?t

Mr. D. Laseunesse—They were rivoting there

Mr. HoLoate.—Riveting there?

Mr. D. Lageunesse.—When I started working on the bridge they were workmg
at that place,

Mr. HorLoaTE—Can you remember if that joint near panel point 9 was riveted
up when the bridge felll

Mr. D. LaseuNesse.—The riveting was all finished there.

Prof. Garerarri.—All finished?

Mr. D. Laseunesse~—All finished.

Prof. GaLeraitH.—On both sides of the bridge.

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—On both sides, the two sides, there is only on that side there,
the two joints there; the Quebec side was finished.

Prof. Gatsrarti.—You refer now to panel point No. 101

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes.

Prof. GaLsearrH.—The panel point, the No. 9 splice, was riveted; was it com-
pletely riveted on both sidest
-~ Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE—Yes, completely riveted; I was moving the scaffolding
myself there. The other gang was working around here—Paul La Hache,

Mr. HoLoaTe (to Eugéne Lajeunesse).—Ars you following what your brother says?

Mr. EvaeNe LaJEUNEssk.—Yes, Alexander Beauvais finished that other, side.

Mr. HotnaTe.—So far as what his brother says, he is correct as he understands it?

- Mr, Eucene Laseunesse.—No, he does not kn w all. -

Mr. HoLaare.—-Is there anythmg within his knowledge in his brother’s atatement
that he can corroborate? If there is he nmght speak of it.

Mr. EugeNe LaJEUNESSE (speaking in French).—About the men working there
was & gang of men working on the other side, but my brother probably does not lmow,

-~ because he was not sorking there o

Mr. HoLoaTE.—So far as he knows he is clear upon that point 9, and that Betm-
vais had finished up there?

Prof. GALRAITH.—Between 9 and 10.

Mr. Fugene Laseunesse—He was putting the finish; that nvetmg gang stopped
the work three days before.

Prof. GaverartH.—He has said already there is nothmg wrong with that joint
9 and 10,

Mr. HoLgaTE.—Yes, he says that is all straight.

Mr. D. Laseunesse—On the Quebec sidef

Mr, Horoate.—Yes{

ﬁl{r. D. LaseuNesse.—Myself and my brother and another one were moving that
scaffold,

Mr. HoroaTe.—You never saw anything wrong on.the Montreal side!

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, T never saw anything wrong there,

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—He has already said that; on both sides; between 8 and 9 he
never saw anything.

Mr. Horoare~He said that had been finished and he saw nothing wrong.
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Prof. GaLeraitii.—On both sides?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—On both sides; once I was riveting and another time not.

Prof. GaLeraiti.—That means all four joints, the two 9 and 10 and the two 8
and 9%

Mr. HoLoaTE—Yes, and on the Quebec side; the joint between 9 and 10, when
the accident happened, must have had at least another 100 rivets to go in.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—YeS.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Are there any other joints in the lower chord ?

Mr. D. Laseunesse—No, T did not see anything.

Mr, HoroaTE—Were they all riveted upt

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, some riveters were on there; I do not know which plate.

Mr. HoLaATE—There was some riveting yet to be done on the lower chord of
the anchor arm, but you do not know which onet :

Mr. D. LaJeunesse.—I1 do not know which place.

Mr. HoLaate—You spoke about something on the cover plate. .

Mr. D. LaJEUNEssE.—Yes, on the Quebee side; I saw Mr. Yenser going down
there at the time when someone said the plate was crooked. I was bolting the screw
bolts and he said: ¢ You know that chord; when you have finished inside you put some
bolts in it, pass the reamer and put in some bolts. ]

Mr. HoraaT<—That is where chord 10 joined the centre post on the Montreal
side? :

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—The Montreal side,

Mr. HoroaTE—What day was that? .

Mr, D. Lajeunesse—That was on the same day, on Tuesday, I think.

Mr. Horoate.—And how many bolts did you put int .

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I did not put any in. He sent me up, he told me to go up
and help some fellow on top.

Mr. HoreaTeE.—He instructed you to put bolts there?

Mr. D. LaAJEUNESSE.—Yes.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Did somebody else put those bolts there t

Mr. D. Laseuxesse-—No, nobody, I did not see anybudy,

‘Mr, HoLgaTE—Did you see the place itself

Mr. D. Laseusesse.—Yes, I saw the place,

WMr. MorLaste.—How many bolts had to go in there ?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—About 50 bolts, 40 or 50. :

. H;. Hovaste.—If 50 bolts had been put in there woula that have filled up every-
thing

s M- - Fixa U NESSE - Yes, we-have about -60-bolts;- 70 -bolte, we always screw.them

up and like to put 50 more.

Mr. HoLoate—Is that where the chord joined the shoetf

Mr. D. LAJEUNESSE.—Yes,

Prof. GaLBrarrn.—The stub chord ?

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—Yes, where the chord crosses to the centre post. It is about
two feet away from the centre post.

Mr. HoLaaTe.—Two feet on the anchor arm side from the centre post ?

Prof. Gausrairt.—That was the spliced centre chord of the stub chord.” "~ = 7 "7~

Mr. D). Lasevunesse—Yes, on the side chord, he told me to put some bolts chere.

Mr, Horeate.—The 10th chordt . ’

Pref. Perry.—Ho said that bolts were to be put in in the connertiun between the
stub chord and chord No. 10 on the anchor arm {

Mr, HoLoate.~Did you see that place again {

. Mr. D. Laseunesse.—For these bolts there ¢

Mr, HorGaTE.—Yes. ) -

Mr. D. Laseunesse—No, I Jid not go down after that, he sent me up to move
that scaffold, our riveters’ gang, I did not see it, I did not go down. :
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Mr. Horoate—So you cannot say if the bolts were put in {

Mr. D. Layeunesse—No, I did not see it; only me and my brother do that work.

Mr. HovaaTE—You said it was Yenser who went down thers {

Mr. Lajunesse.—Yes, und the other inspector, Birks. He went down and
looked at that place and after that he called me and said : ou put some bolts in when
you finish that side.

Prof. GarsrarrH—What day was that!

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—On Tuesday.

Mr. HoLa,TE.—Did you notice any of the plates in any part of the bridge cracked{

Mr. D. LaJEUNESsE~I mever saw any place, I worked all around the bridge and
did not see any crack in that bridge. . : :

Mr. HoLaATE.—Were you ever up here at this part of the bridge at the centre post
where these plates are (indicating)? ‘ . .

Mr. D). Laseunesse—Yes, thoy have one plate going like that and -another one
going like that (the witness indicated plates going in various directions).

Mr. HoroaTE—Were you there more than once {

Mr. D. Layeunesse.—Oh, yes, T worked in there about 15 days on that place.

Mr. Horoate.—And during those 15 days did you notice anything wrong?t

Me. D. Laseunesse—~1I never saw anything wrong, that plate was put like that.

Mr. HorLaatE—You mean that the plate was bent on purpose 1

Mr. D. Laseunesse—Yes, they made it like that, it never cracked that way.

Mr. Horoate.—It was crimped?

Mr. D, Laseunesse.—Yes, crimped, I never saw a crack there.

‘Mr. HorLaate.—You are pretty sure there was no crack there §

Mr. D. Laseuxesse—Yes, I am pretty sure, me and my brother worked 15 days
there and I did not see anything cracked. ,

Mr. HorLoATe.—Did you hear anything about a cracked plate there while working
on the bridge { )

Mr. D. Laseonesse.—No, I never saw any cracked plate there,

Mr. Hornate—Did you ever hear any one speak of that {

Mr, D. LaseunessE—No, nobody told me, this is the first time anybody tells me.

Prof. Gausrarth.—Did you hear of anything wrong with any other joints in the

_ chords besides those you have been speaking about ¢

Mr. D. Laseunesse—I did not see anything.

Prof. GarerarrH—Did you hear t ~ -

Mr. D. Laseunesse.—No, I did not see anything dangerous in that bridge about
chord 9. - '

Mr. Horaate.—Did anybody speak to you about anything else in that bridge that

T T VI ,
Mr, D. Laseonesse.—No, nobody ; until on that morning, when somebody said
about that chord. I worked and nobody told me there is auything dangerous.
The witness retired.

The Commission held a session in the Tévis Hospital.
__ALEXANDER BEAUYAIS sworn. .

Mr. HoLaaTe.—You were an employee of the Phenix Bridge Company? T
Mr, Brauvas.—Since last May up to the time of the accident.

Mr. HoraaTe~—Since May, 19071

Mr, Beauvais.—1907. .

Mr, HoraaTe.—And you worked at the Quebec bridge? -

Mr. Bravvais.—The Quebec bridge, south side.

‘Mr. Horaate.—On the south sidef

Mr. Beauvams.—Yes, sir.

154—vol. 1i—18 :
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Mr. Hovgate.—Continuously ?

Mr. Brauvais.—As the weather permitted.

Ar. Horoate.—What was the nature of the work that you were busy at{

Ar. Beauvais.—I was on riveting most of the time. _

Mr. HoLoaTE—Was your work entirely confined to the anchor arm, or wheref

Mr. Beauvais—I was working on the anchor arm, I never worked outside the pier.

AMr. HowgsatE—You never worked outside the pier?

Mr. Beauvais.—All this season. _

Mr. Horoate~ By that do I understand that you worked last scason?

Mr. Brauvats.—I worked three seasons.

Mr, Howaate—DBut this year you worked from May#

Mr. Bravvais—From May up to the time of the accident.

Mr. Horoate.—Previous to working on the Quebec bridge, did you do work on
other bridge construction?

Mr. Bosuvais—Yes, I worked for Dominion Bridge Company and the Canadian
Bridge Company, four or five different jobs.

Mr, Horaate.—For some ycars?

Mr. Bravvais.—Since six years, I guess this is my sixth year.

Mr. HoroaTE—Who was your foreman this season on the work?

Mr. Beauvais.—C. E. Meredith, rivet boss we called him. |

Mr. Floraats—Then your own position under Mr. Meredith is whatt

Mr. Brauvais.—I was the bead of a four gang, running a gang of four men.

M., Worgate.—A gang of four men riveting?

M:. Beayvais.—Yes.

Mr. Horoate.—And that work was confined entirely to tue anchor armf

Mr. Beauvais.—Yes, sir, the anchor arm.

“Mr. HoLaATE—Were there other riveting gangs on the anchor arm#

Mr. Beauvais.—There was one that just moved from there about two or three days
before the accident. The best I can remember, there was no gang besides our gang
working on the anchor arm.

Mr. HorLgaTE.—~What was the condition of the riveting work on the anchor arm
when you began work this season in May! How far had the riveting work proceeded ?

Mr. Beauvais.—It was very little riveted, it was only on the towers and perhaps
one-fifth of it was riveted, but the towers. I do not think there was any other place
riveted to my knowledge, because last summer or the summer before last we only had
a gl:mg or two, sometimes only a single gang, and this summer sometimes seven or
eight. . .

Mr. Horgate—On the anchor arm?

Mr. Brauvais.- ~Well, T think on-the anchor arm at first we had four.

Mr. HoLaate~~This seasont :

Mr. Beavvais.—Yes, this season.

Mr. HoLOATE.—Was there some riveting work going on on the anchor arm the
whole of this season, was there always riveting on the anchor arm this seasont

Mr. Beauvais.—Always riveting, yes. ,

Mr. HoLoaTE.—A¢t the time of the socident, what, as far as your knowledge goes,
wes the general condition of riveting, how far had it proceeded! .

Mr. Beauvais.—Oh, the riveting was almost completed up to the working gang,
almost up to the working, almost completed, the riveting was.

Mr. HoLoaTe.—Almost completed up to the working gang that was working on the
cantilever arm1 _

Mr, Brauvais.—Yes, there was riveting on the cantilever arm, too.

‘Mr. Horgate.—That is they were following up as fast as they could with the
riveting { :

Mr, Beauvais.—They were almost up to the erectors, the riveters were.
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Mr, HovaaTs.—What was the condition thea of the posts, as far as riveting is
concerned on the anchor arm| : ) .

Mr, Beauvas.—The postat

Mr. HoraaTE~—~At the time of the accident? ‘ ;

Mr. Brauvais.—I saw nothing wrong about the posts. To my knowledge I saw -
nothing out of the way. )

Mr, HoLaATE.—Then can you eay as to the condition of riveting that existed at
the time of the accident in the lower chordst

Mr. Beavvats.—The lower chords, they were bent.

Mr, HoLaaTe—But with regard to riveting, can you remember, starting from the
anchor pier, and going slong the bottom chord on the Quebec side of the bridge!

Mr. Beavvas.—I only worked two joints on that bottom chord, There is the
only two joints I worked on the Quebec and Montreal side, the east and west side
(indicating on Exhibit No. 26). ‘ )

Mr. HoLaaTe—On the east and west side, that is at the first post from the centre
mst' . . -

Mr. Beauvais.—The firat post from the shoe.

Mr. HoraATE—On the anchor armfi

Mr. Brauvais.—On the anchor arm. .

Mr, Horaate—That is the joint between panels 9 and 101

Mr, Beavvais.—Yes.

Mr. HoroaTE.—You worked on that joint, on both sides of itt -

Mr. Bravvas.—The Quebec side, and I was on the Montreal side at the time it
fell. : .

Mr. Horaare.—Had you finished your work on the Quebec sidef

Mr. Bravvas.—They finished it, and moved to the Montreal side. '

Mr. HoLGATE.—Was the joint on the Quebec side when you finished it completely
riveted upt ) : :

Mr. Brauvais—Every hole excepting one, I remémber which was a blind hole.
One plate was not punched.

Mr. HorgaTE.—With the exception of that, though, the joint was complete?

Mr. Beauvas.—Yes.

Mr. HoLaaTE.—That is the top plates, bottom plates, and side plates? ,

Mr, Beauvam—Everything was on, every hole, bottom plates, top plates, every
hole, everything was on. - :

Mr, HoLGATE—~When you started work on that splice, on the Quebec side, how
did you find it? '

Mr. Beauvais.—Well, the holes were all right, they were good holeg, and then—

that is an awful big joint, we were there for two weeks, we could -notiee a-bulging, - -

coming together. There are four ribs; the centre rits were coming together, no.
much, but one could notice it. S o

Mr. HoraaTe—They were getting uearer together, the ribs weref

Mr. Beauvams.—Yes.

My, HoroaTR.—A¢t the end of each chord? '

Mr. Brauvas.—Right here at the splice of this chord, this 9 ‘and 10 chord. -

Prof. GarearrH.—Which side of the post? o

Mr. Beauvams.—On the inside. _

Mr. HoLgate~—It is in panel 10, Well, if the ribs were coming closer together,
that would cause the plate to bulge! ‘

Mr. Bravvams—You had to get the bottom plate off to work in there, 8o a8 to
work in there. Of course we managed to get the plate back on again.
* Mr. Horoate.—In the same holest

Mr. Brauvais.—Yes, in the same holes. The holes were not very bad, because it
did not close much, we got the holes sgain. :

184—vol, ii—18}
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Mr. Horoate- -Did you manage to put it back again with drift pinsi

Mr, Beauvais.—Yes, just drift pins, ]

Mr. HoLoaTE—DBut there was a tendency of the ribs—

Mr. Brauvais.—Yes, but very little. Of course we could notice because we had
heard before of ribs bending, because there was another gang driving the same way
a8 we were, driving the same kind of joints, bottom chorda{

Mr. HorLoATE.—Where were they working {

Mr. Beauvais.—Out on the cantilever arm, sbout the fifth or sixth panel.

Mr. Horaate—Now, to come back to that joint on the Quekeo side, when you went
to start your riveting work was that joint pretty well bolted upft ’

Mr. Beauvais,—Well, it was all jointed up except that they were not very tight,
and of course we had to tighten them bolts up again, that is on the Quebeoc side.

Mr. HoLoaTP.—Was there a largo quantity of bolts, a large proportion{

Mr. Beavvais.—~There were very few holes vacant on the Quebec side.

Mr. Horoate—Did it differ materially from other joints you had noticed, before
you went to work on it; was it bolted up as well as any other joint? )

Mr. Beauvais.—Not at all; it was pretty well bolted up because oaly a few holes
were vacant. '
~ Mr. HoroATE—Qenerally speaking, when you went on a joint did you find it in
that condition, pretty well bolted up¥ -

Mr. Beauvas.—I found it sometimes very different from this. On the Montreal
side it was very bad, very few holes bolted.

Prof. GaLerartE.—On the Montreal side, the very same joint?

Mr. Beauvais.—The Montreal side, the same joint.

Mr, HoroaTE.—When you took hold ‘of this joint on the Quebec side what firat
did you do? When you took your men to a joint that was bolted up and started to
rivet it, you might describe to us the process, which plate you put on first, what bolts
you loosened first and what ribs you riveted firsti

Mr. Brauvas.—The first thing there was a scaffold hung; that is we got a scaffold
fixed so a8 to be safe; then we lowered the bottom cover plate down on the scaffold.
Then we had two angles sent down, these were the inspector’s orders, to place them
where we got the bottom cover plates, these angles to act instead of the plates, two
small gngles. Then our firs; work was to tighten.the bolts up. There were very fow

"vacant holes. There were 280 holes altogether on the inside ribs; and then the
inspector told me I should not take out more than 5 or 6 bolts at a time, and then
drive these holes, and then take 5 or 6 more bolts out. The first thing we drove was
- the two.inside ribs. The inside rib holes were F-inch holes and the outside 1-inch
holes. o P

Prof. QaLsrarri.—How many holes in one ribf - S - e

. Mr, Beavvais.—In each rib 140, on each rib, 140 holes. It was about this second
day, and another man who is living yet saw the ribs bending with me.

Mr. Horaate—Then you riveted up the bottom chord : .

Mr. Beauvas.—No, I had to rivet the top plate first so I could get at the bottom
easier, and after we got the hottom plate on we put on the top.

Mr, HoLaATE.—And the riveting of the bottom plate was the last thing!

Mr. Brauvais.—No, besause there was these bottom laterals, they were the last
plates we had to drive. ,

Mr. HorLaaTE—The bottom lateral bracing?

Mr. Beavvas.—VYes. )

Prof. GaLsrartH.~First of all, I understand you tighten up the bolts, have
‘them all tight and filled before you begin any riveting; then you proceed to take out
the bolts in the top cover plate and rivet them first; after that you take out the bolts
in the two inside ribs, working from the bottom, and rivet them; then you rivet the
two outside ribs, then you put on the bottom cover plate and rivet it. Is that the
order of riveting? i . o
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Mr, Bravvam.—I did not say I drove the cove. plate first, the inside ribs first.

Prof. GarLeearre.—You rivet them first! o

Mr., Brauvam.—Two of them; then the outsids ribe, then the top cover plate. Of
'couthadtoleavéthatwthshat. ) :

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—And then the bottom cover platet

Mr. Beauvams.—Yes, and the last is the laterals.

Prof. (GaLsrarrH.—After the top cover plate the bottom cover plate!

Mr. Braovas.—Yes. :
} Prof. .. aLsearra.—And then the laterals going sacross to the other side of the
bridgel : :

Mr. Brauvas.—Yes, diagonally like, wind braocing I think they call it

Prof. Q4LsraiTH—Or laterals, anyway { - :

Mr. Beavvais.—Yes, - ’

Mr. Howoate.—Then when the laterals were all riveted up that joint was com-
pletat

Mr. Bravvais.—Yes. The inspector pagsed over, and he had two or three to cut
out, we drove them back again and moved to the Montreal side.

Mr. HorLaaTe—Who was the inspector {

Mr, Beauvas.—Mr, Kinloch.

Mr. HoraaTe.—] evppose he visited you pretty often, did he! He saw you pretty
- often at work? ) ,

Mr. Beauvais.~—Ho was always on the job, yes, gir. I very often seen him on the
job, most of the time.

Mr. Hovoate—Now, I think we can peés over to the joint on the Montreal side.
That is where you moved to sfter you left the joint on the Quebec gidet

Mr. Beauvam.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HowoaTe.—In what condition did you find that joint when you went to it, as
to bolts§ Was it bolted up the same as the one on the Quebes side?

Mr. Brauvais—No, it was very bad, because 1 am sure there were not more than
92 or 25 § bolts in there. These two inside ribe, they were all § inside, most of them.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—In the two insidef ‘ -

Mr. Beauvais.—In the two inside. That makes 280, 140 in each.

Prof, GaLsrartet—Mostly §.

thMr. Beauvas.—Mostly, there was not more than 98 to 25, that is all the § bolts

in that, o . ‘
Prof. GaLorarra.—Did you find the bolts tight?

Mr. Bravvam.—No, it is very seldom you find a bolt tight by the erectors putting '

them in, they just screw them in snd-leave them. -
-~ - ‘Mr. HoLoa1E.—Was there any reason for putting in the §¢ )

Mr, Bgauvais—Nothing. Sometimes at first we had to pass a reamer for the
reason that they were bad boles, but as the work went on the holes were getting good
all the time, springing in like. I suppose it was that reason, I could not say, it might

- have been bad boles. : ’

‘boltsi _ ;
" Mr. Beayvais—I had to go up and there were bolt boys, we call them, five or six,

on the shore, fixing bolts, oiling them. I told Benny snd he ordered the boy to fetch. .

me a big box of § bolts, and it was impossible to drive the § because they would not
drive tight enough. i :
Mr. HoLaats.—Was there any trouble in getting the § bolts inf
. Mr. Bravvams.~Not at all, because there were good holes and room enough.
Mr. Horaare.—Room enought :
‘Mr. Beauvais—Room enough to work, they were good holes.

Mr. Hovoare—8o it-m ght have been possible to change the § bolta for § bolis,

before you got to the joint?

Mr, HorgaTe.—When you found that condition, what did vyou do, put in more
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Mr. Beavvais.~Yes, I donot know how long before they could have been changed,
At that very same point I suw three exira plates that were mended. I worked on the
same joint and I saw three extra plates that were mended. It was riveted and there
were not more than five or six bolts in it. Thers wore vacant holes, Two of these
plates had from 35 to 40 bad holes, and one of them had only a single row of holes
stripped.

Prof. GaLpearrH.—Were these left near the joint§

Mr. Beauvars.—On the side ¢f the joint; between th> joint and the post.

Mr. HowgaTE—~Do you remember what day it was you went to start work on that
joint?{ .

Mr, Beauvais,—I could not remember very well.

Mr. HoreaTe.—Was it that week$ .

Mr, Beavvars.—It must have been four days before the accident. There was one
Sunday between. I would not swear what day I got there.

Mr. Horaate.—What progress had you made with the riveting work?

Mr. Beavvais,—This time I riveted the bottom lateral first before I went on this
joint, ’

Mr. Horoate.~Had you any particular reason for doing that$

Mr. Beavvais.—For driving the lateral first?

Mr. HorLaaTE.—Yes.

Mr. Beayvais.—Because there were only two of thesz machines that worked inside
the chord on the job and they were both busy at tho time. Thero was another gang
working on the enchor arm. Of course, I had to do something else until the machine
got back.

Mr. Horaate—You riveted up the bottom lateral. V/hat was the mext step?

Mr. Beavvais.—The next atep was to go down the sesfiold and put more lines on
it for safety,-and unload-the plates on -the-scaffold; —The next was to chiange these
§ bolts.

Mr. Horaate.—When you lowered that plate on the scoffold, did you put on your
angles?

Mr. Beauvais.—I certainly did, because the inspector is always watching us for
that.

Prof. GaLprarri.—1 want to make quite sure which diazonal he means.

Mr. Beauvais.—It is the bottom lateral which goes from panel point No. 10 to
the shoe.

Mr. Horcate.—You lowered your plate and put on the angles?

Mr. Beauvais.—Put on the angles. The inspector is vratching us pretty sharp.
Then T found these § bolts in there and the vacant holes. I had to go up and tell Mr,
Yenser about that and he ordered them to .send a boy to bring me down § bolts instead
-of the § bolts. : - . S

Prof. Gausrarri.—Which side is he speaking of now? -

Mr. Beavvais.—The Montreal side,

Mr. Horaate.—And you put in as many % bolts as you couldf

Mr. Beauvas.—Yes, as many as necesrary to have ths plate come up tight. We
had about three-quarters or more bolts in there and left thy quarter of the holes vacant
and then started to drive tlic rivets. There were some had holes—a very few-—that
we had to ream before we could get the rivets into thera.

Prof. GaLerarri.—~Were these plates riveted in the shop on one side of the joint
or had you to rivet them on both sides of the jointi

Mr. Beauvas.—We had to rivet them on both sides of the joint. We had to 8§11
them. - :
Mr. Horaate.—Then you continued your riveting !

Mr. Brauvas.—In the same way as on the Quebes side—the inside rivets first.
Mr. HoLgaTe—Had you completed the riveting of the inside rivets!
Mr. BratvAs.—Only 13 or 14 holes were driven on the two inside ribs.
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Mr, Horoate—How much had you done on the outside workf .

Mr. Beauvas.—Nothing et all, because I was supposed to gét through with the
inside before touching the outside at all. :

];Er. HoLaaTE—~But the outside ribs were all pretty securely bolted up at that
time

_ M. Beauvas.—They were bolted up good—inch bolts and very few seven-eighths,

e, HoLoaTE—And the bottom plate, of course, was offt ) .

Mr. Beauvals—It was off and the top plate—the inspector came down the very
“morning the accident took place and looked at the top plate. It was off three-quarters
of an inch or an inch. It was kicking up like because it was not bolted. We had to
put drift pins in every hole; they were not bolted, only on the end there were eight
bolts where you could reach with the hand. ) S

Prof. GaLsrAITH.—But the top plate was not lying close to the ribs? - :

Mr. Beauvais.—It was not lying right down to the chord. It was off half an
inch, or three-quarters or perhaps more.

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—At which end?

Mr, Beauvais.—At the cuter end, towards the unchor pier.

Mr. HoLoaTE~—Did you have any difficulty ia putting on the bottom angles! Did
these holes come event

Mr. Beauvais~It cemo right because we put it right down before starting in.
But this powerful gun jarred the chords. You could feel the jar of the chords. There
is where I found two rivets broken out right near the splice. They broke out about
half an hour before the accident took place. .

Mr. HoLaaTE—It broke the rivets you had driven?

Mr. Beauvas.—These were two rivets in the same place.

Mr. HovroaTE—Wero both rivets broken in the same holest

My, BEAUVAIR~Five-or six-inches-apart, -~ - .

Mr. Horoate—They were in separate holes{

Mr. Bzauvas.—Yes, next to each other.

Mr. HoraaTE—Were .hey inch rivets?

Mr. Beauvais.—No, seven-eighth rivets, .

Prof. GaLsrarTH.——How long after they were put in did you find them brokent

Mr, Beauvais.—I drove them the same hour. It was not I who found them broken
off. It was my partner who found them first.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—What is his name?

Mr. Brauvais.—John Norton.

Mr., HorgaTE—Did he survivel

Mr. Beauvais.—No, he is gone.

Prof. Kerrv.—How were they brokon offt

" Mr. Bravvas.—He pulled it out and showed. it-to me-~ud gaid, ¢ Look Lere’ He .
said, ‘I found it off a quarter of an inch) I asked, ‘ How did you take it out, and
he said, ¢ it was off almost a quarter of an inch and I pulled it out.’ It was broken
almost in the centre. S ' :

Mr. HoLoaTE—Can you account for thess two partioular rivets being hrokeni
There were other rivets that may have been strained in the same way; why should not
they have brokent ‘ .

Mr. BrauvAs.—Of course, I did not test them. If I tiad I would know just
exectly what was broken and what was not, but while I was driving two or three othes
rivets, after that I found the first one broken off. He said, ‘ There is another one
broken,’ and T tested it with a drift pin and it was broken off straight. You could
turn the one end and the other end would be still. It was impossible to pull it out
because it was plugged in there, There were two rivets broken. I called Mr. Mere-
dith, the rivet boss, and also to see thai the ribs were bending ip. He looked down
there and told me that it was not any worse than the others. He did not think it
serious. . : )
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Prof. Garnrarrn.—The ribs were bending inf

Mr. Bravvais.—Yes. )

Prof. Kerry.—At what time did Meredith come downt

Mr. Beavvais.—He was not more than seven or fen minutes gone up before the
accident.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—What called your attention to the riba bent in? You mean by
that that they were coming closely together at the joint?

Mr. Beavvas.~—-They were going out to the Montreal side. . They were both going
the same way—these two ribs.

" "Mr. Horcate—Which ribs {

Mr. Beavvais—The inside ribs.

Mr. HorLoaTE—Both moving towards Montreal § _

Mr. Beauvais.—Yes, the Montreal side. At the same time he was down there 1
showed him about that extra plate which was mended and there were very bad holes
and you could hardly get the bolts out. They must have been put in after the other
holes were punched.

Mr, HoraatE.—The extra joint plate §

Mr., Reavvais,—The extra joint plate, between the splice and the post. That can
La seen yet because it is inside the pier.

Prof, Kerry.—That extra plate was on the inside of the inside ribs ?

Mr. Brauvais,—There was one on the inside ribs and one on the outside ribs,
That was a long plate in the same direction as the bottom cover plate. There was
only one row of bolts in the one on the inside, and there were 85 or 40 bolts on the one
on the outside, and there were just enough bolts to hold the plates on.

Mr. Horaare—Now you are referring to what you said before of the extra plate

-where that chord was mended? - B

M=, Beauvais.— Yes, sir.

Prof. KerrY.—You can see that on the ground because that joint is perfect.

Mr. Brauvas.—Yes, you can find that yet. I did not see anything removed but
it was extra altogether. This chord in No. § panel on the Montreal side is bent very
close together—right in the centre—right between the two posts.

Prof. GausrairH.—The centre ribs come together {

Mr, Beayvais—Yes. That is on the Montreal side, and I believe Mr. John
Williams saw that. They go up or down beyond that to the traveller, and you cannot
help seeing it.

Prof. Garsrarrn.—That is about half way between the panel points 1

Mr, Beauvais.—Yes, on panel No. 9, Montreal side.

Prof, Kerry.—How much was it bent 1

Mr. Beauvais.—I did not measure, but I.am sure an inch or an inch and a quarter,

Prof. GaLsrurTii.—Bent in ? :

Mr. BEAuvais.—Yes.

Prof. GaLerarTH.—Towards each other ?

Mr. Beauvals.~—Yes,

Prof. Gaisrarra.—Each an inch and a quarter ?

Mr. Beauvais.—A gpace about that. ]

Mr. HoroaTE—~Would not that have shown on the lacing 1

Mr. BeAUVAIS.—T did not investigate that enough to say about the lacing. I know
that a day or two before the accident happened Mr. Birks and Mr. Yenser were there
examining it on the Montreal side. They were there for an bour or perhaps more.

Prof. Kerry.—~How long was the bend 1

Mr. Beauvais.~—It was almost the whole length. :

Mr. HoraateE.—Was there anything noticeable on the outaide ribs ?

- Mr. Beauvais.—On the outside ribs you could not see as well if it had bent because
it is wider than the inside ribs, but in these inside ribs it was not more than two
inches apart. You could see it easily where it was close together.
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Mr, HoLaaTE.——~Were they close together §

Mr, Beauvais.—Almost that close, more than an inch.

Prof. Gausrarrit—They were not more than two inches apart

Mr. Beauvais.—They cannot be more than two inches apart.

Prof. GaterarTi.—Did you notice between them and the outer ribs that the space
was wider than it was originally ¢

Mr. Beauvais.—I could not very well notice it unless you measured it because the
space is too wide ; it is something like 164 inches. An inch or three-quarters of an
inch would not show much out unless you measured it.

Mr, Horoarh—Did you have any conversation with Mr. Birks or Mr. Yenser
when they were down there {

Mr. Beauvais.—No, nothing at all; only, Mr. Yenser told me not to take out more
than five or six bolts at a time. I heard him say that once.

Mr. HorasTe.—That was on what day ¢

Mer, Beauvais.—It was about a day or two before the accident happened.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you look at the joint at the other end of the chord f

Mr. Beauvals.—I did not. I could see it there. There were bolts in there,

Prof. Kerrv.—It was not riveted {

Mr, Beauvais.—No.

Mr. HovaaTe.—The joint between 8 and 9 was riveted I The joint between 9 and

10 is where he was working and now then he is referring to the joint at chord 10 with -

the stub chord down near the shoe. That was not riveted §

Mr. Beauvas.—That was bolted.

Mr. HoLaate.—Was it fully bolted .

My, BEAuvais.—I could not say, because T did not look sharp enough at it.
____Prof. GauerarrH—Which side?

Mr. Beauvais.—On the Montreal side.

Mr. Horaare~—Having got to the point where you saw these two or more rivets
broken, do you recollect anything between that and the collapse of the bridget!

Mr. Bravvais—I guess not. I was driving rivets, and I was about to shoot
another rivet when the crash came down.

Mr. HoLoaTE—When it came have you any recollection of how this point which
you were working at ected? What took place in that joint{ ’

Mr. Beauvais.—When it fellf

Mr. HoraaTe.—Did it falll

Mr. Beavvas.—I did not see how it fell.

Mr. HoLeaTE~You wers right insidet

Mr. Beauvais.—Right inside. I was right inside the chord, sad I had to come
out underneath because I had to pry the plate off. As soon as I felt it break I made
a grab for the plate. I had my arm on the plate. I just turned my hand out and
caught the plate. There was a space of an inch and a half and I got my hand in it.
At the same time I let my machine drop. When this chord landed it did not land on
the ground. It stood three or four feet in the air. I held on to the chord and never
touched the ground.

Mr. HoLoaTe—You were in what chord{

Mr. Beauvas.~—No. 10, Montreal side. As soon as everything was still I came
out. It was easy to stay there because I was tight in there. T had one leg broken
and my nose was broken. .

Mr. Horoate—I fancy being inside the chord saved yout

Mr. Beauvam.—I guess it did. I put my left foot outside the chord and my right
foot in the chord. '

Mr. Horoare.—Could you say where you first rose up at that point! : :

Mr. BeAuvais—That is something I could not eay. I could feel it drop like. I
made & grab for the plate, I let the machine drop and I never felt this foot broken.
It happened so quickly. C. :
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Mr. HorcaTe.—But the first sensation you had was of falling?t

Mr. Beauvais.—Yes, tho first thing I felt was the falling, the dropping.

Mr. HoLaaTE—Was there any preliminary cracking or breaking noise around
before that? ) ) ’ -

Mr. Beauvais.—There was very little noise I heard. I heard no erack before it
dropped. Of course, you could not hear much from the outside, where I was. I was
right inside the chord.

Prof. GaiBraitH.—You are sure that the splices between 8 and 9, on both sides,
were riveted up at that time?

Mr. Brauvais.—Yes,
Mr. HoLoaTE—And that the one on the Quebec side Letween 9 and 10 was riveted
upf - -
Mr. Beauvais,—Yes.
+ Mr. HoLoaTE—And that the bending together of the two iuzide ribs was on chord
No. 9¢

. Mr. Beauvais,—On chord No. 9, Montreal side. :

Mr. HorgaTE.~—~That was the mosi prominent part of the chord, and you cannot
say that ycua noliced the same bending on the outside ribs{

Mr. Beavvais.—Yes.

Prof. Gavpaarrn.—How about the bending of chord No. 9 on the other side?

Mr. Beavvus.—I could not say about the Quebec side. 1 passed very often while
I was working on the Quebec side. )

Prof. GaLBraiTH.—You did not notice the bending?

Mr. Beauvais.—I never noticed it.

Ar. Horoate—What do you think now may have been the cause of those few
_ vivets breaking out so soon after they were driven and so soon before the accident?

Mr. Beauvais.—Any bridgeman can tell you that. The splice was like this (indi-
cating with his hands). There are about four inches of plates there, and this outside
plate here is not so thick; it would be perhaps one half or three-quarters of an inch
in thickness; when the strain came it would be three or four inches over the joint.
'fl‘his is a powerful gun, and the jarring was so great that you could feel it under your

eet.

Mr. HoLeaTE—Had you anything like that cccur at any other point when you
were riveting it up{

Mr. Beauvais.——Yes, *sometimes on account of a burnt rivet.

Mr. HoLcATE.—Was the breaking of these two or thiee rivets unusual! Were
they good rivets? -

Mr. Beavvais.—I saw nothing wrong about them.

Mr. Hoveate—In fact, you thought it was so curious that you asked Meredith
‘to come down and look at ittt 7 T T )

Mr. Brauvais.—It was not only for that, but it was for two things. It was to
show him these bad holes and thess rivets broken out. He did not think them very
serious. He said that he had seen worse than that before. They were bending out
towards Montreal right at the joint.

Prof, Kerry.—Do you think that it was that bending that made the joint plate
break the rivets 1

Mr. Beauvais.—Yes, because you could see that come off very near an eighth of an
inch. It was pretty near three-quarters of an inch, and it came off very near one-
eighth of an inch. You could see it just very near the joint. Thae plate was off per-
haps one-eighth of an inch. . L

Prof. KerrY.—~You had-drawn it up tight when you started {o rivet with the bolta!?

Mlxl'. EeAuvais.—Yes, because it would not be easy driving without drawing them
up tight,

Prof. Keary.~So that during the time you were working thai gap of one-eighth
of an inch openad up {
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Mr. Brauvais.—It worked itself off. This bend went towards Montreal and this
splice plate was on this side. It came off about one-cighth of an inch right below
where these two rivets broke.

Prof. Kerrv.—Right at the line of the splice §

Mr. Brauvais,—Yes,

Mr, Horoate.—Then the ends of the chords were not square opposite each other -

Mr. Beauvais.-—They were brought up pretty near and pretty square-faced and
it was down, maybe, a quarter of an inch.

Mr. HoLaatE~No 10 ¢ ) :

Mr. Beauvais.-~The lower chord was lower than the upper chord maybe one-
quarter of an inch at the timo I saw these two rivets broke.

Prof. Kerry.—The ribs lined up well but No. 10 was lower than the other.

Prof. Garsrarrii—How did you match the holes ¢ : -

Mr. Beauvais.—The holes were ncc so bad but we had to pin them, The holes
were matched before we drove. Aw the start we had to pin almost every hole, while
at the last there were vary ‘few holes we had to pin. ‘

Prof. GALBRAITH.~Did the holes match when the end of No. 10 was a quarter of
an inch below No. 9% -

Mr. Beauvais.—I should say they matched. But there were some holes we had to
pin. Of course, it did not go down much. Tt might be less than a quarter of an inch,

Mr. TIoLOATE.—What wevld resist that bend at the joint towards Montreal 1
Would not the lcteral bracing hold that in place to some extenti

Mr. Beauvais.—The 1 ‘cral was not so close. The lateral from the strut comes
right outside the post. This splice is 7 or 8 feet below it.

Mr. HoingaTh—Now, Mr. Beauvais, were there any other places on the lower
chords that you noticed bending § -

Mr. Beauvais—No. I only heard of it but did not eee it personally.

Mr. Horoate.—But .. :hers spoke to you about it §

Mr. Beauvais,—-Yes.

Mr. HoLOATE—On that occasion did you understand that they had seen the
bends 1

Mr. Beauvvams.—Yes, it was this gang using the same kind of a gun I was using
that was working on ths bottom c¢hrd that spoke to me about it. They were stopping
at the same house I was stopping. .

Mr. Horeatr.—Were there more than two guns of that size 1

Mr. Beavvais.—Only two.

My, HoLaATE.—Was all the riveting done on the chord joints done with the big
gun ? '

Mr. Bravvais.—You could only use these two on the inside rivets. On the outside
rivets you could use ordinary guns. ' : - - e

Prof. KERRY.—Where were that gang working when they spoke to you about the
othe: hend §. ] - ‘

1 -, Beavvam.—The gang I am speaking of worked right on tho lower chord of
the centilever arm on both sides from the main pler outwards to the 6th panel. I
could not say at which joint they said the chord was bent. : .

‘Az, HoLoATE.—Did the work seem to go on pretty well on the bridge 1

Mr. Beauvams.—Yes, overything seemed to go off well; in fact we only lost one
man before that this season. That was Joseph Ward.

Prof, Garssarra.—He fell off §

Mr., Beavvam.—Yes, on the 20th.

Mr. HonoatE—All the men in your gang lost their lives i

Mr. Brauvais.—Yes, except that John Williams. He left about ix weeks before
the accident. He got hurt on the leg and had to leave. He ought t) have seen that
No. 9 chord on the Montreal side was bent. Of course, he never seid anything about
it, but he should have seen it because he travelled over it as weli as I did. .
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Prof. GarsraiTH.—Is he alive ©

Mr, Beauvais.—Yes.

Prof, Kerry.—Whai day did you see it bending ?

Mr. Beayvais.—I could not say.

Prof, KerkY.—A week before the accident ¢

Mr. Beavvais.—Three or four days.

Mr. HoraaTe.~—He said that he thought it was Tuesday.

Mr, Beavyais.—While I was working on the Montreal side I was travelling on that
Montrenal side of the bridge all the time when 1 was going home or going to dinner.
When I worked on the Quebec side of course I always travelled on the Quebec side
along the chord. :

Prof. GaLerartH.—What other lower chord joints were not riveted at the time of
the accident in the anchor arm?

Mr. Beauvais.—Except the stubs both sides were not riveted. There wes another
gang which had been driving here, and I believe they were almost completed.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.~—About chord No. 5%

Mr, Brauvais.—I could not say which. I know there was another gang driving
there. .

Mr. Horeate—Do you remember who was in charge of that gangt

Mr, Brayvais.—Napoleon LaHacl.e,

Mr. -Horgate—Are they alive?

Mr, Beauvais—They are all gone.

Mr. Horoate.—Ts there anything else you think ¢f, Mr. Beauvais, of interest,
that you know of yourself{ I think you have already said that you have no knowledge
of your own about any other chords being bent?

Mr. Beauvais.—No, not to my own knowledge.

Mr. Horaate—Except what you heard?

Mz, Beauvais,—Oh, yes; I guess everybody heard that, too.

Mr. Horaate—Did you come in contact much with Mr, Yenser! ‘Did you have
much to do with him?

Mr. Bravvais—Hardly anything. Whenever I bad anything to do with the fora-
man I had to go to my foreman, Meredith, and he was snpposed to ge to Mr, Yenter,
but if I ever saw Mr. Yenser before I came to Meredith I talked to him inetead of
Meredith. .

Mr. Horoate—How did you find Mr. Yenser?

Mr. Beavvais,—He was the right man, I suppose. T could not see anything wrong
about him. The level bracing connecting at panel point No. 9 on the inuer arm was
not riveted on either side. It was full of bad holes. Most of them were blind holes
in each side. There were no bolts in it at all. They were just lying there.

Mr, Horeate—No connection whatever?

Mr. Beayvais.—No, they were blind holes, most of them.

Prof; GaLprarra.—To you know anything about the riveting inthis long diagonal

next the centre post marked on the plan T-6 and-T-50%

Mr, Brayvais—I drove those myself.

Mr. GALBRAITH.—Was that riveting finished? :

Mr. Beauvais,—Yes, we finished on top before we came down. I started there
and went up to the last post and I was ordered to come down to the bottom chord.

Prof. Gausrarrn.—What about the riveting of the centre posti

Mr. Beauvais—I could not say how much riveting there was done at that. I am
pretty sure it was almost completed, though.

Prof. Gansrarra.—If you have anything more to say that you think would be of
use you might say it now. :

Mr, Bravvats.—There is only one thing—I do not know wkhether it is important
or not. It was last summer. I am sure it was not less than 15 inches in length. Tt
was about that wide (indicating)—almost semi-circular. It was broke off the main
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post. It wag almost at the shoe. We attempted to straighten that with the jack. It
was cracked and bent right off and we had to gend it "o the blacksmith shop to get it
straightened and put it back thers with ancther plate.

Prof. GaLsrarru.—Is that the chord platel ,

Mr. Brauvais—It was one of the webs of the main post-—the angle web. That
angle must have been 6 inches wide.

Prof. Keary.—~That was tlL. piece right above the angle?

Mr, Brauvais—Yes, semi-circular; it came that way (indicating).

Mr. Hovgate—How did it get brokent ,

Mr. Beauvais—It was bent, and we were sent down there to straighten it out
with the jack. Wae jacked it up and it broke right out. The piece came right out.

Mr. HoLaate.—Did it fly outf .

Mr. Beauvas.—It did not fall off altogether, but it was split away open. It would
have been easy to knock it out with a hammer.

Mr. HorLgate—Which side of the bridge was that? -

Mr. Brauvais.—On the Quebec side and on the Quebec side of the post, too.

Prof. Kerry.—How far above the shoel .

Mr. Beauvais—Ten or twelve feet.

Prof. Kerry.—It would be in the first section of the post right above the shoet

Mr, Beauvais.—Yes. We had to send that to the blacksmith shop to straighten it
and we placed it back in position again and then another plate was put on—a patch.

Mr. HoLaATE—It was a good solid patch that was put ont

Mr. Bravvais.—I could not say what thickness it was.

Mr. HoraaTE.—You worked on it yourself{

Mr, Beauvais.—Yes, sir, I helped to drill the holes in it.

_ Witness discharged.

Mr. Horoate, Chairman of the Commission, interviewed Oscar Lebarge, at his
residence near the bridge.

OsoaR LEBARGE, sworn.

" Mr. HorLgaTE—You are employed by the Phenix Bridge Company {

Mr, LEBARGE.—Yes.

Mr. HoLoATE—When did you start work on the Quebec bridget

Mr. LesarGe.—April, 1905,

M. HoLoaTE—What kind of work were you doing?

Mr. LepARGE—Everything. I worked all over the bridge. .

}r. HorarTE~In 1007, that is his season, what part of the bridge were you
working at?

Mr. Leparge—On the top of the big traveller.

. Mr.FHoLoATL.—1s that where Mr. Hall was working?

Mr. LEBARGE—Yes.

Mr. Horoate—Y¥ou were working both together i '

Mr. Leparoe—No, he was working on one side and we were working on the
other. We worked together sometimes, but that time, when it fell, we were not
together,

Mr. Horaate.—You were working on August 20 when the accident happened{

My, L#BARGE-—Yes. - .

Mr. Horaate—Had you any warning of that accident at allf ,

Mr. LeparcE—I did not see it. I heard some fellow say the chord was bent, but
T asked the foreman, and he said, ¢ Oh, no. _

Mr. HoLgaTe.—Was there anything that happened that afternoon on <ho bridge
at the traveller thai caused you to feel insecure?

Mr. Lerarge.—No,
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Mr. Hotaave.—Was there any swaying that you felti

Mr, LeBarge.—No.

Mr. HoraaTE—Or any up and down motion that you felt?

Mr. LepARGE—Sometimes a slight motion like that (indicating), but I never paid
any attention to it. )

Mr, Horeate.—You did not think it any worse that day than any other dayt

Mr. Lerarge.—No, '

Me. Horoate.—1 suppose when the bridge fell that is all you know about it, that
you simply had to try and look out for yourself{. .

Mr. LeEBARGE.—Yecs. .

Mr. HoraaTE.—You spoke just now of hearing abouf the chords. Did you ever
have a chance to look at these chords yourself? ‘

" Mr. Lenarce—No, I siever went to see it. 1 was working there on top of the big
traveller when they put the big chord in. N ‘

Mr. HorLaaTE—W .re you ever working with the rivetters?

Mr. LeBarGE—Yes, I worked this spring with the rivetters,

Mr. HoLoaTE—Whereabouts?

Mr. LEBARGE~~On the third panel, I guess.

Mr. HorLgaTE.—~In the cantilever arm#

Mr. Lesarce.-~No, I do not know, I did not work there, I am not very sure, I do
not think I worked on the cantilever arm, I worked on the anchor arm.,

Mr. HoroaTeE.—Was it on the posts or chords?

Mr. LeBaRGE.—T worked on the posts, and I put some plates on the bottom chords
and on the laterals, the bottom laterals.

Mr. HoreaTE—Can you remember about what time you were working at the
riveting, just in the month, say? -

Mr. LeBarak~—It was in April, April and May I was working there.

Mr. Horcate~—Can you recollect which chords you were working on?

Mr. LeBarcE~No. ’

Mr. HoroaTe.—Were they near the main pier, that i3 the cantilever pier; did you
work on any joints close to that{

Mr. LeBarGE—Yes, I worked ~1 one of :he joints there one day, straight in there
(indicating), that is in May. A fellow named Johnson and myself, the first strut
down next the pier on the anchor arm, on the Montreal side.

Mr. HovLeateE.—The horizontal strut at panel point 9¢

Mr. LABERGE.—Yes.

Mr, HoroaTE—~And you completed the joints at the intersection of the horizontal
strut with the next post? Do you remember if that horizontal strut, this one here,
was riveted up, the 9th panel pointi ‘

Mr. LeBsroR.—1It was not then. At that time that strut in here was loose. It
was connected, and then this one we could not connect, it was a little below.

Mr. HoreaTE.—Did you rivet that up later{ :

Mr. LeBarGE~I do not know if he did rivet it.

Mr. HoLeATE.—You do not remember that the horizontal strut was riveted up on -

the 9th panel point? Can you recollect anything about the chords duwn on the
anchor arm, from the pier up this way? Did you ever notice that particularlyi

Mr. Lerargr.—No, I never did. ’

Mr, HoraaTe~Did you hear anything about that; was your attention called in
any way to them? ‘ '

Mr. LeBarce—~I heard that a piece of the chord in there was bent, and I went to
a fellow, Aderholdt—I was working for him-—and I asked him, I said: ¢ Do you see
that chord in there.’ He says: ‘ Yes, that was bent when they put it in there’ He
says: ‘Don’t you remember all the trouble they had to put it in?’ I said ‘No, I
was not working then.” I do not think I was working, I did not work in the gang most
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of the time, I was working on top of the traveller. This spring I worked on top of the
traveller, doing the rigging. ’ ’

Mr. HoLGaTE—Mr, Aderhioldt did not mention what chord it wast

Mr, LeBarce.—No, he never did. He told me it was a chord that was bent when
they put it in. I did not sak what number it was; he said it was bent; he said they
had all kinds of trouble to connent it when they did put it in. ,

Mr. Horaate—Was he your foremant

Mr. LeBarue~—Yes, he was my pusher, we call him. These fellows get mors
money than we do; they get 73c. more than we do by the union.

Mr. HorLoatE—Did you know Yenseri

Mr. Leparce—Yes, I know him; I worked with him on two different jobs; I
worked here and I worked last winter, too.

Mr. JloroaTe.—Was he a pretty careful man on workf .
_Mr. LeparaE.—He did some good work and sometimes ke got excited, soinetimes
he got pretty good ideas, too. T

Mr. Horeati.—How about the tackle that you.used on the traveller, was that all
right, the hoisting rigging?

Mr. LaBerae.—Oh, yes, that was first-class rigging in there.

Mr. HoLoa18—Did anything ever go wrong with thati

Mr. Leparai.—No, we never broke anything; but a man got hurt by that rizging
on top of the traveller. ’

Mr. Horoate.—It was always strong and heavy enough to do the work.

Mr. Leparar.—Yes, always good aund strong, and kept in good order; everytling
first-class.

Mr. Horoate—Did they follow up the riveting on the anchor arm ag fast as they
might have done! Did the riveting gangs follow up the erection as fast ag they
might have donet- - - R

Mr. Lesarge—-I do not know as to that. They kept a pretty good gang of rivet-
ers driving right along this year; X cannot tell. They kept good bolts and everything;
when they raised the iron they kept it bolted up pretty good ; they bolted it up 60 per
cent every place they put a piece on, you know. Some places they put bolts every hole.

Mr. HoroaTE.—Would you say that they were reasonably careful about doing all
that kind of work? :

Mr. LBarcE.—I cannot tell that. They were good snd careful in raising the
iron and everything, but I do not know enough, on a big jcb like that, to know if
they are taking care of what is goirg on behind. They were good and careful in front
in raising the iron. )

Mn, Horoate—Did you sse much of Mr. Kinloch on the workt

Mr. LEBarRge.—Oh, yes, Mr. Kinloch was standing there all the time,

Mr. HorLaaTe.~Every placetl

Mr. LeBaroeE.—Oh, yes, be kept around there near every place. Yes, he knew; he
had pretty good experience on other work. -

Mr. HoraaTE.—And Mr. Birks?

Mr. LeBARGE—Yes, Mr. Birks was there all the time; every time they raised a
“big piece like the tower Mr. Birks would go all around the traveller to see if every-
thing wae tight and safe. :

Mr. HoLaATE.—When the bridge fell did it go down straight?

Mr. Leperoe.—It went down for a piece, as far as I remember it went right down,
and it kind of stopped then, and I do not know which way it went, because I left the
position T was in; I remember I was goiag down, I was in the air, I was not holding
arything, just holding a piece of timber. When it started I went right down, right
straight down for maybe 75 feet, somewhere like that. '

Mr. Horaare.—Were you on top of the traveller?

Mr. Lxpanae.—On top of the big traveller, standing up. When it started to go
down, there were three pieces of timber 10x 12 x 38 feet, and I was standing on two
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of them, and it started to go down. I just touched the timber, my feet just lightly
touched the top of the timber. The balance, the iron, was going faster than the
timber, and the timber was going about the same as I was and I waa just touching
them, 8o I could not lay dowm to catch it because 1 was going too fast, and I was
standing up, and when we were down 75 or 100 feet, I kind of stopped, so I remember
my feet caught the timber, and as I was going down I had my arm around one of
those picces of timber., I remember I was in the water. When I hit the water I do
not know where I hit or anything like that.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Did you manage to get out yourself or were you knocked senseless?

Mr. LEBaRGE.—As soon as I hit the water, I got myself and I swam and caught
up to some timber and I held on to it, and then I got into a skiff, there was a fellow
there and he lifted my leg in and took me to the shore.

Witness discharée&.

Prof. GaLBraiTH and Prof. Keary visited the house of Mr. Charles Davis, New
Liverpool, and took his evidenca.

Mr. Davis being sworn.

Prof. Keray.—Where were you working on the bridge {

Mr. Davis.—I was right at the front, sir, right out on the end of it.

Prof. Kerry.—On what they call the little traveller 1

Mr. Davis.~—I was out on the last rection.

Prof, Jrrey.—Had you been with the company long {

Mr. Davis.—I worked all last summer with them.

Prof., Kerry.—1906 and 1907 ?

Mr, Davis.—Yes.

Prof. Kerry.~—Where were you when the bridge went downt

Mr. Davis.—I was right out on the end. "They had just put the section of the
bottom chord in.

Prof. Kerry.—Tell us what you know about the bridge when it went down. Did
you have time to notice anything ¢

Mr. Davis.—Not at that time. T heard a crash, something go away back on the
bridge, and I felt it sink.

Prof. Kerry.—It went straight under your feet {

Mr. Davis.—Just straight down, sir,

Prof. KerrY.—You do not know anything more till after you got in the water §

Mr. Davis.—I do not remember anyihing striking me at all, but something must
have with the injury I received on iy back and hip. :

Prof. errY.—You could not have got down without some of the wreckage strik-
ing you ¢

Mr, Davis.—No. )

Prof. Kerry.—So that all you recollect is just that the bridge went down under-
neath you !

Frof. GausraitH.—Did it go very fast or very slow !

Mr, Davis.—Slow at first.

Prof. GauBraTTH.—Until it struck the water ]

Mr. Davis—It left me, sir. I was in space, in the air. It travelled.a great deal
quicker than I did.

Prof. GaLeraTH.—So0 that you struck only the water ; you did not strike pieces
of the bridge nor the beach { ' ¢ _

Mr. Davis.—No. If the traveller had come down behind me it would have etruck
me. I stood on a section of the bottom chord when it started to go, I looked down and
a good many thoughts were going through my mind. When it left me I was in space.
It travelled a great deal quicker than I did.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS - 200

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 154

Prof. Keruy.—You were working as an erector {

Mr, Davis.-—Yes, sir. ) )

Prof. Kearv.—Had you any reason to think that there was anything wrong with
the bridge 1 .

Mr. Davis.—I heard them talking every day. A great many of the men thought
the chord was buckling.

Prof. Kerav.~-You did not have a chance to look at it yourself {

Mr. Davis.—I was driving rivets the day before the accident and on the splice
lower down, next to where we were on the cantilever arm the jacks were in position
to jack the webs which were buckling. Mr. Yenser and Meredith, the riveter foreman,
had been down looking at it. When they went away I wondered what was wrong, see-
ing the jacks in between the webs. CoL o

Prof. Kerery.—That would be how many joints away from the pier?

Mr, Davis.—Five or six, I should say—six or seven. I could hardly say now.

Prof. Kzrry.—That is on the— :

Mr. Davie—Quebee side. ’

Prof. Kerrv.—They had the jacks in between the webs trying to straighten
them up? )

Mr. Davis.—To straighten them out.

Prof. Kerry.—That was just because they did not line up tiuiy?

Mr. Davis.—Yes, I expect so. ‘

Prof. Keray.—So that you could not get the plate on rightt

Mr, Davis,—Yes, sir. )

Prof. Kesry.—That was the only thing you saw yourselfi

Mr. Davis.—TJ had seen the cracking of the plate on the shoe.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you see that

Mr. Davis.—Yes, - - - - ’

Prof. Kerry.—Which plate was that? - ,

Mr. Davis.—It would be the plate connected with the portal strut and boitom chord
that is connected into the shoe. I really do not think that it would be any cause at all
of the disaster.

Prof. Keprv.—That is a big flat platet

Mr, Davis.—Yes.

Prof. Kerey.—Which is just shaped to a V1

Mr. Davis.—Fastened to the shoe, and diagonally runuing across.

Prof, Keary.—Where was that cracked ! N

Mr. Davis.—Just alongside of the bottom chord—the chord connecting with the
shoe. -

Prof. Kerry.—A chord on the anchor arm?

Mr, Davis.—Yes. That would be on the Montreal side.

Prof. Keray.—What sort of a crack was it{

Mr. Davis.—About 18 inches to 2 feet, I would say.

Prof. GaLsraiTH.—Could you see daylight through itt

Mr. Davis.—I could not say, but it seemed pretty brittle.

Prof. Kxarv.—How close could you get to iti

Mr, Davis.—You could get right at it.

Prof. Keary.—Did you feel it with your hand at allf )

Mr. Davis.—Ne, I just looked at it. I heard them speak of it. A man named
Callaban and I were driving rivets near the Quebec post and we went down and bad
a look at the chord on the pier.

Prof. Kesry.—It was there all right{

Mr. Davis.—Yes.

Prof, Kxrrv.—About 18 inches long?i »

Mr. Davis—Yes, I dare say it would be, ,

154—vol. ii—14
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Prof. KerrY.—And quite close to the connection with the shoe.

Mr., Davis.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Are you sure it was not a fold in the metal done in the black-
smith shopf

Mr. Davis.—Sure. I know the difference between a crack and a crimp.

Prof. XerrY.—How wide would it bet

Mr. Davis.—There was no width at all. It was only just cracked.

Prof. GaeraiTH.—Crooked or straight

Mr, Davis.—Straight. .

Prof. Kerrv.—Was there an angle outside? .

Mr. Davis.—Yes. The plate was bolted and fastened to the bottom-chord.

Prof. KERRY.-~Was there an angle outside the plate, or was it just flat?

Mr. Davis.—No, I do not think there was an angle at that point. -

Prof, Kerrv.—Did you see anything else you think of{

Mr, Davis.—I do not think I saw anything else at all.

Prof. GaLsrarTH.—When did you see that crack?

Mr. Davis—That would be early in June, I should say.

Prof. GaLeraitH.—Did Mr. Yenser, as far as you heard, know anything about it1
Do you know if anyone told Mr. Yenser about it?

Mr, Davis—I] could not say, but Callahan, my partner who worked with me, said
that he weold tell Meredith, the riveting foreman, about it.

Prof. GaLpraitii—Did you feel the bridge more springy than usual at the time of
the accident or before the accident? n . 2

Mr. Davis.—No, I could not say I did. I never felt anything at all.

Prof. Kerry.—Tt juet came when you were not looking for itf

Mr. Davis.—It just came unexpected. I never expected anything of the kind, or

~ glge T-should not have been there for onéc- -~ — oo - e
Prof. GaLeraita.—Did any man speak to you about the bridge being dangerous
about that timet -

Mr. Davis.—Yes, Brind, another man, and also his brother-in-law, Br.ith, were
speaking of it going up to work—that they had seen Yenser and Birks oxamining a
chord. : .

Prof. GarerAITH.—Where do you say that chord was?

Mr. Davis—On the Quebec side; what I saw the incks in. I do not know any
other part of the chord.

Prof. Garerarrn—About what panelt

. Mr, Davis.—It would be the Tth' or 8th chord. . :

Prof. Garsrarrm.—You understood, in your evidence before, that it was five or
six panelst .

Mr. Davis.—That is where we were driving rivets. We were driving rivets next
to this point where we had the jacks in position. I could not say for ‘certain what
panel it would be in. We were up a pretty good way. At that point they were
driving rivets the day before the bridge collapsed.

Prof. (GaLsrarrE—Do you think that good care was exercised in handling and
erecting # ’

Mr. Davis.—Yes, sir, I do really. What I have seen of everything there Y always
thought it was first-class—what they had in regsrd to tackle, tools and all that,

Prof. GausrarTH,~—You saw no, what you would call unnecessary riske taken
during the erectionf :

Mr. Davis.—No, I did not.

Witness didcharged.

Commission. adjourned.
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NINTE DAY.

Quzssy, Wedneeday, September 18, 1907,

The Commissioners visited the storage yard of the Phenix Bridge Ormpany at
Belair and the works on the north side of the river, devoting the entire day to a per-
sonal examination of the work and material. . '

TENTH DAY. o
Quesko, Thuraday, September 18, 1307.

The Commissioners spent the day at the wreck on the south shore, and made an
examination of the different points referred to in the evidence.

ELEVENTH DAY, L
Queseo, Fripav, September 20, 1807,

RaouL LAFRANCE, recalled. -
(Evidence given in French, and translated by Mr. Stuart.)

Mr. HovLoaTe.—You were instructed to go on the ground with Mr. Kinloch and
‘Mr. MoLure, and endeavour to find the plate referred to in your evidence {

Mr. LarraNCE.—Yes, I went.

Mr. YToroate.—Did you find the plate!

Mr. S AFRANOE.——No, there was no means of doing so. There was too much iron
on it. It is all in rvins, There is no means of finding it. : :

Mr. Ho: oaTe.—You marked on a photograph (Exhibit No. 28) the plate that you
referred to iv your evidence as being crackedi Did you find that plate?

Mr. Larra.'ce—No, sir. (The remainder of Mr. Lafrance’s evidence was trans-
lated by Mr, Fronch.) : )

Mr. Howoate.—Will you say that the plate you marked on the photograph is not
to be found in the wreck?{

Mr. TAPRANOE.~I canmot find it. There is no way of finding it.

Mr. Horoate.—How long were you there lcoking for this platet

Mr. Larrance.—I was about three-quartars of an hour looking for it.

Mr. HoraaTe~Did you see other parts of the bridge that were connected up o
this platet? . :

Mr, Tarnance.-No. :

Mr. Hotoate.—Were all the parts that were connected up to this plate also
missing? : b ‘ :

Mr, Larninoe.—There was no way of geing anything—any parts of it. I only
saw one piecs and it was so much broken up that T oould not rocbgnies it well.

Mr. HoLaaTz.~-Who was with you when you made this inspsction :
. Mr. Laruswoe~-I was slone. Mr. Kinloch was down belo- . wud there were others
there presit whose mames T do not know. Co '
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Mr. Horaate.—I understand, Mr. Lafrance, that these parts that you referred to
ore still there and can be inspected f ,

Mr. LaFrancE.—I have not been able to find them anyway. I do not know the
different parts of the bridge well enough to tecognize the parts, to distinguish them
from the otner. I was not thero loug enough for that.

Mr. Bovaate—Why did you not stay long enough?

Mr. Davipson.—X think he means he was not working on the bridge long enough
to be farnilinr with them. )

Mr. HoroaTe.—Is that what he means{

Mr, LAFRANCE.—Yes, that is what I say. I was not on the bridge long enough to
be abl to distinguish the different parts of the bridge.

¥r. HoLoaTE~—I wish he would clear that up. The plate he marked is there.

J4r. DavipsoN.—That is not a photograph of the plate he marked at all.

‘Mr. HorLoaTe~—It is one of a plate on the corresponding side?

Mr. Davimson.—~Exactly, but it is not the one. Mr, Haley tells me that in the
g:a;s of ruins there, in his opinion, it would be absolutely impossible for any one to

find it SO

Mr. STUART.—Any one that knows anything about it would be able to.

Mr. DavipsoN.—1I dare say that a bridgeman or an engineer might find it, but that
is quite a different thing.

Mr. HoLoaTeE.—We will dismiss this witne s and trust to our own examination.

Mr. StuarT.~—I guess you will not get . more information from him.

Witness discharged.

Mr, XinLocH, recalled.

Mr. HoLeate.—Mr. Kinloch, will you please give us the history of what took place
on August 29 expressly in reference to the fall of the structure and what you actually
observed 1

Mr. KiNLocH.—My attention wae first called by a noise ; as near as I could des-
cribe the noise it would be like a car running over a stick of timber——the crunching
sound of timber—not very loud ; in fact, I would not have paid any attention to it if
it had not continued. I was just entering the office of the Phaenix Bridge Company
and the noise continuing I looked out from the door and saw the end post trembling.
I knew something was wrong and I ducked my head and looked up to see the portal
It «as inclined slightly away from me and trembling.

Prof. GaLBrarTH.—That is at tho anchor pier 1

Mr. KinLoocH.—That was at the anchor pier, yes, but at the end post.

Mr. HoLoate.—Could you notice any change in the position of the posts eastward
¢ westward §

Mr, KivvooH.~—No, sir, they seened to be perfectly straight as far as that was
concerned, only leaning over and slowly sinking.

Mr, HoLaATE—We understand that you were standing on the platform near the
office.

Mr. Kivvoon.—I was just turning in the door. )

Mr, HoLGATE.—Just describe where you were, Mr. Kinloch, as ghortly as you can;
state whether it was east or west of the railway track and how far from itt Can you
indicate on this plan (referring to Exhibit No. 25) about where you were at the time
of the accident §
ﬁl Mr. KinvocH.—I was standing at point X on the southerly abutment ghown on

an 25.

Mr. Horaate.—Yu might just repeat, Mr. Kinloch, what you saw.

Mr, KivrocH.—Standing at that point I first heard the noise snd then saw the
post trembling, and then I had to stoop down a littke bit to look for the portal strut.

1]
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Prof, Kerry.—Which post trembled {
Mr. KiNvooH.~—The end post.
Prof. GarerarrH.—Which side
Mr. Kinvood.—The Quebec side. .
Prof, GaLsrarrd.—On the right hand side 1
Mr. Kinvoc.—Yes, I could not see the other post. 1 stepped outside of the door
and the same motion was continued. It was slowly sinking and the last clear recollec-
tion I have of anything was secing the two centre post peaks slowly settling straight
down in about the same position that they always stood in regard to the line of track.
They did not seem to be east or west towards Montreal or Qusbeo ; they seemed to
be about the same as the rest of the bridge. I did not notice any bulging out one way
or another. About that time I turned my back to it and did not look at it any more.
1 should judge then that the portal strut would be about 10 feet above the deck just
at a rough guess. ’
Prof. GALBRAITH.—When you turned your back i
Mr. Kinnood.—Yes.
Prof. GaLprarTH.—The portal had gone over i
i Mr—KixLoon.—It inclined towards the river, .
Prof. GaLsaarra.—Northerly '
Mr. Kinvoct.—Northerly,
Prof. GaLseArTB.—How were the main posts?
Mr. Kintoca—When I last saw them, or the last recollection I had of them, the
main posts were standing in their same relative positions ; they looked to be the same
distance apart and there was no difference in the height and they geemad to be tied
together wish the struts and bracing and they seemed to be slowly settling down.
Prof. GALBRAITH.—You could not see them toppling towards the river {
Mr. Kinnood.—No, sir. '
Prof. GaLsraiTH.—They were foreshortened and seemed to be sinking {
Mr. ELocH.—Just the same as if they had been ice and were melting off at the
bottom.
Mr. HoLgaTE—When you did 1ok up again, as I suppose you did immediately
afterwards, what did you observe particularly {
Mr, KivLoon—It was all down. I did not pay much attention to the wrecked
gpan right off. I looked at the other span to see in what shape it was.
Mr. Horaate.~The epproach spant
Mr. Kivroon.—Yes, sir.
Prof. GALBRAITH.—Were any rails or other materials dragged o the approach
spanf :
F M. KinLooH.—They were pulled some. They pulled the spikes along with them. '
What I examined, when I said J made an examination of the approach span, was the
lower legs to see if anything had happened to them, because I knew there would be
a lot of people there, and I did nut want it to go down on top of them.
Dot GarBRAITH.—Of cousze, that exsmination took a little timef .
Mr. Kivoon.—No, not very long, because I ijmmediately made up my mind that
there was nothing wrong with it. I looked at it and saw that nothing had hit it, and
1 did not take sny time with it. I do not know how long it did take, but it did not
take very long. : :
Prof. GaLerAITH.—Did you observe any crumpling up of the sway bracing?
Mr. KmwrLoonr—No, sir.
Prof. Garsrarra.—Could you tell whether the tension chords—the top chords—
straightened out or slackened during the fallt :
Mr, Kwroor.—No, sir. :
Prof. Gareaarra.—You saw no particular indications as to the place where the
initial fracture occurred! )
Mr. KiNroor.—No, sir, not while it was falling.
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Mr. Horaate—Did you notice any apparent rise in any portion of the strueture
during the falli -

Mr. Xinvoon.—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate.—I understand that you were engaged as inspector on the work and
that you were there Lufore the erection begant

Mr. KixLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoreaTE—And continuously during its erection

Mr. KinocH.—All except for about four weel:s—the two times I was home to
sce my father, when he was sick and when he died; practically continuously—yes.

Mr, Horaate.—Commencing with the erection of the work, did you observe at
any time defects in metals nr material which required to be rectified?

Mr. Kinroon.—Yes, sir. :

Mr. HoLaaTe—You might give us a description of those that you obsorved and
had to deal with yourself.

Prof. Gaisrarrsr.—In order if you can.

Ar. KinvocH.—About the first thing, I guess, that came up was on the setting
of the pedestals. Wo found the masonry had not been dressed quite true, or at least
thera were little humps sticking up in it. It was rectified by taking the pedestals up
and aressing the stone down true. Upon setting the Quebec shoe there was a warp
discoverad in the shoe—on the east half of the shoe where it did not fit down to the
pedestal. Mr, McLure has a record of the actual measurement of it, and I think he
could give it better thén T could. But my recollection of it ig that the maximum part
of it was about % of an inch. .

Mr. Horoate.—Mr. McLure can give us thgée dotails?

Mr. Kivvoct.—Yes, he has the record of them.

Prof. Xerrv.—Where do you make the dividing line between the, pedestal ani
the shoef

Mr. Kinroon.—There is a lower pedestal and an upper puiestal. The pedestal
is in four sections, the upper and lower pedestal, and then comes the shoe.

Mr. IHHoLGATE—Yes{

AMr, Kinoos.—I do not know whether I can get these quite in order or not.

Trof. GALBRAITH.—As near as possible,

Mr. Kinvoon.—About the next thing that was noticed were these bends in tho
different chord members, particularly in No. 1, No. 2 and No. 8 of the anchor arm.

Mr. HoLgaTE—Which sidef

Mr, KinvocE.—On the Quebec side.

Mr. Horoate—Tell us what these weref

Mr. Kinroon.—They were irregular bends in the chords; that is, we svould look
along the chord, and it would not look straight. I mnever messured them to know
exactly what they were, and I do not know exactly whether they were ever measured
or mot. I took it up with Mr. McLure and Mr. Birks, and we decided that they were
of no importance. A number of other chords that T never paid any attention to were
about the same way. There were wavy bends, in and out. I should judge, just guess-
ing at it, that probably the biggest one of them would not be over half an inch.

Prof. Garprarn.—These bends were observed before the bridge stress came on!

Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, before anything was set up. Just the chord was. laid.

Prof. GarerarTH.—They were shop bendsi

Mr. KixLocH.—Yes, they were just as the chord had come from the yard.

Mr. HoLoate.—These chords are made up of four ribs, are they noti -

Mr, KiNLoCH.~—Yes. .

Mr. HoioatE—Were all four ribs in just the same shapel

Mr. Kinvoon.—No, the centre rib might be bent in at one place and the outside
rib might be bent out a little bit or it might not be in the same place. They were not
regular bends; that is, they were not altogether in one way. They were jnst irregular
and ocenrred at different places. h
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Mr, HoroaTe—~Then it was not a regular bending of the whole member{
Mr, KivLoou.~No, sir. .
Prof. KesrY.—Was any action taken to rectify thisi
Mr. Kinoon.—Not that T know of.

Mr. HoLGATE.—Were these particular ones now that you speak of, Nos. 1, 8 and 8
on the Quebec side on the anchor arm, known to others bosides yourself

Mr, KinnocE.~—Mr. McLure and Mr, Birks knew of them.

Mr, HoLoATE,~—Anybody elset

Mr, KnvLoca.—Myr, Hoare.

. Mr. HoLeATE.—Anybody elsei

Mr, Kinnoon.—I do not know myself of anybody else.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Did Mr, Yenser.

‘Mr. KiNnLocH.—Yes, Mr. Yenser knew.

Prof. GaLsrarTH.—Theso were looked upon as minor defects which would not in
any way affect the strength or stability of the bridget

Mr. KinvooH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horaate—Q@o on, Mr. Kinloch.

Mr. Kinvoos.—There was a question that came up about certain points being
accessible to paint that were put up. That was taken up just about that time. That
was taken up with Mr, Hoare and Mr. Deans, and Mr. Deans was to provide some way
to put more holes in there so as to get in there to paint. Also, in the matter of rivets
in connection with the erection I looked over their list and I found they had what 1
considered a rivet which was too short for the standard Boyer snap, and it wus agreed
between Mr. Deans and myse'” hat they would furnish rivets for the standsrd Boyer
snapy and they were furnishea.

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—The rivets were too short?

M:. Kinvoon.—They were too short for the standard Boyer snap. They were all
old style rivets for the old style snzp. .

Mr. Howaate—TFirst of all in regard to me!ing parts accesgible for paint, what
holes do you refer tof -

 Mr, Kinvoon.—There is a large lateral plate on the bottom chord, there are two
bottom cover plates and the top has cover plates also and there is a diaphragm, and it is
impossible to get inside of the centre webs to do any painting without cutting a-hole in
there so a3 to be able to get your hand in there or some portion of the body or a swab,

or a small hole to use a spray. .

Mr. Horaate—In what parts were these holes placed

Mr, Kinvooi.—They were never placed. They were placed in the suspended span,
but not in the anchor or cantilever arm. . : - -

Prof. Kerry.—The point of controversy was that the chord members near joints
could not be kept in proper condition by cleaning and repainting owing to. their
method of construction?

Mr. KinvocH.—Yes.

Mr. Horoate-——How far had the riveting work advanced before you found you had
to make this change? . . )

Mr. KintocH.—It had not advanced at all. The only riveting that was being done
was a little bit on the tower shell and we stole the rivets from farther ahead and used
them.

Mr. HoroaTE~—And the riveting was done on the revised plan which you sug-
gested ?

" Mr. Kinvoou.—Yes, sit. About this time—

Mr. HoroaTe.—What time?

Mr, KinrLocH.—When they were laying the first chord.

Prof. QaLerarrH.—You might give approximately the date.

Mr. KinLoon.—It was along between July 20 and 30.

Mr. HoLgaTE.~—What year

Mr. KiNLooH.~1905, - o
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Mr. HoLoaTte—Yes,

1ir. Kinvocu.—No. 9-L chord in the anchor arm was repaired in the yard.

Mr., HoLoaTE—Can you speak personally about these repairs

Mr, Kixroon.—Yes, sir. It was repaired before they started to raise there.

Mr. HoLoaTE—When was it, in your recollection, repaired——the same seasonf

Mr. Kinvoon—Yes, it was the same season; it was in the month of July; I am
pretty sure of that.

Mr. HoLcATE—Somewhere about July it was repaired?

Mr. Kinwocn.—Yes, sir, because I came there about the first dey of July and it
was rupaired and the ninth chord was there on August 24.

My, Horcate.—Which No. 9 chord was that 1

M, Kixvocii—9-L in the anchor arm,

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Just tell us about these repairs.

Mr. Kinrocn.—The repaire consisted of the splicing of two angles that were
broken and the addition of a new coverplate and cutting off some lacings and putting
them back on again.

* Mr. HoLaaTe.—Were the repairs done to Tour satisfaction §

Mr. Kixvoc.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLeaTE—Did anybody else besides yourself inspect those repairs

Mr. KinvocH.—Mr. Hudson. Mr. Hoare, also, was over there.

Mr. Horoate.—What was Mr. Hudson’s position then {

Mr, Kinvoci.—He was assistant engineer for the Phenix Bridge Company, but
he had charge of all the erection. e got up plans for the big travellers and he was
here supervising the installation of the erection plant.

Mr. HoLoATE—~Was he Mr. Birks’ predecessor{

Mr. KixrocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr., HoLoate.—Mr. Hoare also inspected these repairs {

Mr. KiNnvooH.—Yes, sir.
. Prof. Kerrv.—You inspected 9-1, previous to the starting of the repairs yourself

Mr. Xinvocn.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.-——~What was the actual damage done to that member §

Mr. Kisroci.—All T saw was that the plate was destroyed, but the two angleg—

Prof. Kerry.—That is the cover plate

Mr. KixrocH.—Yes, the bottom cover plate.

Prof. Kerrv.—The bottom cover plate was pulled off ¢ . .. . .

Mr. Kixvoci.—Or the top cover plate—I forget which one of tkem. It had fallen
and the two side splice plates had sheared the angles off on the bottom—sheared and
broken thém together and we cut them off hack to a good square bearing, back far
enough so that they were square, added an angle, reinforced it with metal and put on
extra plates. v

Prof. Kerry.—So that the actual damage consisted in the wrecking of one cover
plate and the shearing off of one leg of the nngles on two ribs ¢
Mr. KinLociz—No, it cracked through the other leg.

Prof. Kenry—~There was no detectable injury to the webs of the chord there at

all §

Mr. Kinroct.—None that I could see. There was an old bend in there. that had
been put in there evidently in the shop by a chain and that was allowed to remain
there. It could not be taken out anyway without heating it or cutting the rib apart.
Tt was not any worse than some of the otLer bends in the chord, but it showed up
because it ber.t in towsrds the other rib,

Prof. Keary.—Which rib was this kink ia {

Mr. KixLocH—Vith the chord in position in the bridge it would be the west
centre rib.

Prof. Kerry.~~What was the damage to the lacing, Mr, Kinloch {
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Mr. KinLocu.—The upstanding leg was bent down on the other leg. After the fall

it continued on that side and just crumpled them down on the other leg.
. Prof. Keerv.—And these lacings were cut offf

Mr. KiNLoon.—Yes, and new ones pul on,

Prof. Kerry.—What was the extent of the bend in the rib—about balf an inch i

Mr. Kinvocu.—Yes, I would say half an inch, It was very short and very shallow.

Prof. Kerry,—It did not ko down any distance t

Mr, KinLooa.—No. h

Prof. Kerev.—Just at the edge 1

Mr, Kinvocu.—Yes, -

Prof. GaLerarti.—The upper edge or the lower ¢

Mr. KinLocH.—The upper odge.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Whereabouts in the chord was this bend 1

Mr., KiNLoor.—About 15 feet from the field splice at the 8 and 9 end.

Prof. KerrY~You were satisfied, after the repairs, that the chord was straight?

Mr. KiNnvocH.~Yes, sir.

Prof. KERRY.—Any wave in excess of how much would be readily detectable by
the eye? Could you see half an inch very clearlyt .

Mr, KinvocH.—Yes, I think so. I could see a quarter of an inch.

Mr. HoLaate.—That is 9-L ¢

Mr. Kinvoch.—-9-L.,

Mr. HoroaTe.-—That is the only chord y>u have reforred to on the left hand side,
go far. -

Mr. Kinroct.—There were cthers bent too, but just slight like 1, 2 and 8.

Mr. HoLaaTE.—Which others were they f

Mr. Kinrooit.—I do not know now, 1 did not pay much attention to them.

Mr. Horaate.—That is on the left side

Mr. Kinrocn.-—Yes, sir. ) :

Mr. HoLaaTE—-Did you notice anything out of the ordinary in 10-L 1

Mr. KisrocH.—-Anchor arm ?

Mr. HoLaaTE.—Anchor arm.,

Mr. KinLoos.—No, I am not sure I remember anything now, .

Mr. HoroaTe.—Take the right hand side. You have already spoken of 1, 2 and 3;
were there any others that your attention was drawn to §

. Mr. KintocH.—There were others that had slight bends in them, the same as 1, _
2 and 3.

Mr. HoLoATE—Was there any one that your attention was drawn to more than
anotl rt

Mr, Kinpoci.—No, T do not think there was, but 1, 2 and 3 were the firat in there
and after that T did not pay much attention to them unless they were bad., If they
were bad T would have noticed them.

Mr. HovLaaTe.—The remarks you made in regard to your estimation of .hese

chords, 1, 2 and 3, apply to the other lower chords on the right hand side of the anchor
arm.
Mr. KinLoci.—Some of them were a lot straighter than 1, 2 and 8. Tn other
words, I could not say that there was a chord straight—absolutely straight—on the
whole bridge. That is the ribs, you know. There might be.a straight rib and thee
might be & slight bend. Some of these bends were very slight.

Prof. KERRY.—Within what deflection would you say they were straight {

Mr, KivvocH.—Within half an inch.

Prof. Garsrarri.—You do not expect in any species of construction to get things
absolutely straight ¢ '

Mr. Kixvoon~No, sir. '

Mr. HoLaaTE—Now, you have come to the centre post. Have you anything to
say in reference to similar matters beyond chord 10 on the anchor ¢ u t
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Mr. Kintocn.—That is the last chord in the anchor arm.

Mr. HoLaaTi.~~But bevond chord 10 ¢

Mr. Kixvoou.—In the cantilever arm 1

Mr. Horaare~—Yes, following out on the bridge.

Mr, Kixrocu.—I would say about the same condition existed out there ; m: . .8
were about the same.

Mr. HoLaaTE.—Was there anything then discovered by you wlnch in your opinion,
was not good shop practice § What I mean by that is the fabricated material that you
received ; did you consider it well put together and in a8 good condition as you mxght
expect to receive it in from the manufacturer

Mr. XixrocH—In a general way, yes.

Mr. HoraatE-~Then are we to assume that in some details it was not 1

Mr. Kixvocu.—There were some little things, I suppose, that had slipped through

the shop.

Mr, HoLoaTE.—What wero they §

Mr, KixLocu.—They were mostly trivial things. An angle would have borings
behind it or something and had not been bolted up, and it would Luve to be drilled or
veamed.

Mr. HoLeatE—Were there any blind holes ¢

Mr. KiNtocH—~A few—Temarkably few, though, considering the job. Thera are
alwaya more or lesa blind holes on any job.

Mr. HoLaATE.—Are these matters on record ¢

Mr. Kixrood.—1I think there are; yes, sir.

Mr. HorLgatE.—Who would have these records 1

Mr. XixvocH.—Mr. McLure,

Mr. HorgatE—In the s}upment and handling of fabricated material such as this,
is there any liability to injury by deforming the parts from careless loading as a
general rule ?

Mr. KixvocHn.—~—No, T do not think so as a general rule. There might be some
things that would be, but as a general rule it would not be. )

Mr. HorgaTE-~Could you attribute anything in this case to careless loading ?

Mr. KixvocH.—1 do not remember any instance whers anything was damaged, in
wmy opinion, by careless loading.

- - - Mr, Horeate—Would-you say the loading aiid the transportation had bacare-
fully done ?

Mr. KixvocH.—Yes, sir. )

Mr. HoroaTe.—Generally speaking, is it not a fact that even with careful shop
inspection loose rivets are discovered in members before erection occasionally {

“Mr. Kinvoci.—-Yes, sir, and especially on a big work like this where you drive the
field splices you are pretty apt to loosen up some of the rivets that are next to them.

Mr. HoreaTE.—What have you to say as to the condition that you know the shop
riveting to have been in ?

Mr. KinLocs.—Generally good.

Mr, HorgeaTz.—Did you ever have to make any complaints about the shop riveting{

Mr. KinvocH—No, sir.

Mr. Horgate—Then, your inspection was complete enough to have fully
informed youf

Mr. Kvroon—I dld not test all the shop rivets; in fact, I did not test any of
them, only those that would come next to the splices T was driving in the field myself
T am speaking from appearances when I say that.

Mr. HorcaTE~You saw nothing to lead you to suspect loose rivetst

Mr. KinLoon.—No, sir; that is as a general thing. Once in a while I would
£nd a loose rivet and a bad rivet.

Mr. HowqaTE—In the shop riveting?

Mr. Xivneed.—In the shop riveting.



MINUTES OF PROOCEBEDINGS o it

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 154

rkl'{r. HoreaTe.—Was that more or less than you might oxcinarily expect in heavy
wo
Mr. KivLooH.—I would say about the same.

kMr. HoLaaTE~—~Would you look for more in very beavy work than in lighte:
work ¥

Mr. Kmwoon—Certainly.

Mr. HoraaTs—Have you ever had as heavy work pass through your hands!

Mr. Kinvooa.—No, eir.

‘Mr. Hotaate—Did you find any more in this work than you did in any othe:
work that has passed through your hands? .

Mr. KinLocH—No, sir.

Prof. Kesry.—What are we to understand from that! Would you say that due
care had been taken in the riveting and in the inspection at the shop? -

. “Mr. KixooH—Yes, sir.

Prof. Keary.—The chord ribs were built up of parallel plates, Have you noticed
anything at any time to indicate whether the surfaces of these parallel plates were
dry when they were riveted together or oiledf

Mr. KiNLocH.—Before or since the wreck {

Prof, XerrY.—Ay any time. -

‘Mr. KixrLocE.—J. would say they were painted before they were riveted together.

‘Prof. KerrY.—Have you evidence that the paint was fully dry before they were
rivetad togethert .

‘r, KinvooH.--No, sir.

“3r0f. KerrY.~-Or have you evidence to the contrary?!

‘\fr. KivLocu.-—Evidence to the contrary {

1?vof. KEBRY.~-From what you say and you know there were parts of the surfaces
in contact that had liquid oil paint in between them{

14z, KiNLooH.—It is customary in all ¢hops to do that.

Prof. KerrY.~—You say that that is this general shop practice, Mr. Kinloch

{r. Kintoon.—Yes, what shops 1 havs been in.

T'rof. KrrrY.-—What is the reascn for it

Mr. KvLocH.—Economy, 1 guess; to ;zet the work out; that is all.

" Frof, Kernv.—Why should the surfrces be painted with oil paint}
T 11 3 KiNLocH—To keep them from rusting.

Prof. Kergy,—Have you any experience in your work as an inspector to justify
that practicet ~

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, sir, only I thirk it ought to be dried before it was put
together, )

P -of. Kerry.—Do you mean to say that you have, in inspecting bridges, come -
across cases where the joint between two parallel plates riveted together has been
badly rusted in between the platesti

Mr. Kivvocs.—Not between plates g0 much as between angles and plates.

Prof. KERRY.—When you mentioned ~hat word ¢ ecoromy’ did you mean that in
order 10 get the work out quickly it was enstomary to paint it and rivet it up without
waitin;p for the paint to dryt

M, Kinpoos.—That is the general prastice in all the shops, They paint their
work and they do not give it time to dry, because if they did the different members
would be scattered all over and they would have to bring them ell together; so they
usually paint it as the work goee on.

Prof. Kerey.—In order not to have muterial delayed in passing through the shop{

M, Kinpooi.—Yes, sir. : ' :

Prof. Kesey.—Referring again to you: work s an inspector, Mr, Kinloch, would
you co1sider it possible under ordinary shop methods to completely fill a rivet hole ¥

M -, KinvocH.~It would depend on the hole.

P; of. Kerev.~For example & hole fastening together four half-inch plates §
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Mr. Kixroci.—It would depend on whether the hole was straight or crooked and
whether it had any offsets in it or had been reamed.

Prof. Kenry.—Your general observation has been that such holes a-e completely
filled or not ¢

Mr. Kintocu.—It depends on the place. If it is a good straight hole and the
rivet is short it will fill it, and it will fill a moderately long hole, but if the plates are
not matched, if there is even the least little bit of an .offset, it will project more at
the end it is driven from than the cther end ; it gradually grows less from the driven
end towards the head.

Prof. Kerry.—Had you any opportunity to observe the nvetmg done on this
work ¢

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—How did you find such rivets as you had to cut out 1

Mr. Kinvocu.—About the condition I had deseribed.

Prof. Kerry.—1nat they were filled at the end and slack towards the centre.

Mr. KinvocH.—If they were in that kind of a plate.

Prof. Kerry.—If they were through a bad plate. To what extent did you ﬁnd
pieces in which the preliminary work in the assembling had been inaccurately donet

Mr. KixvocH.—I do not know as I ever found any. In assembling in the shop a
thing may be just a little off and if steel like this with five or six plates falls off one-
sixth of an inch, it is much worse than a quarter of an inch in % or § plates, so far
as getting a drift pin or anything through to muoke your hole, is concerned.

Prof. Kerry.—Have you come across instances in cutiing out any of the riveting
on the bridge here, in which the hole wsas not true ¢

Mr, Kinvoc.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.—To any considerable extent §

Mr, KinLoc.—No, not very much, -

Prof. Kerrv.—When you say that there were gome inaccurdcies in the punching
of the plate, war that to an extent in any way unusual in good work §

Mr, Kmrocs.--1 would say it was better than most work,

Prof, Kerry.~ -Better than the average work 1

Mr. KiNnvoon.— Yes, sir, — — e e "

Prof. KErRY.—£ nd the punchlng for the field rivets would be a fair mdxcatxon,
would it not, of the nuccuracy of the same work on the parts that were shop drivent
That is to say a plate which is being driven for both field rivets and shop rivets is
punched at the same time completely.

Mr. KinvocH.—No, I do not think it was in this case.

Prof. Kerry.—It was not ?

Mr, KinLocH.—No, I think not in some cases, especially the chord members, they
were drilled from the solid after the member was riveted together. So I understand,
I do net know that personally.

Prof, Kerry.—Ia putting in the field rivets did you find in general that the holes
agreed thoroughly ¢

Mr. KinvocH.—Not always, no, sir.

Prof. K=rrY.—Due to the difficulties in the changing length of the members or
due to shop work ?

Mr, KinLocH.—Well, the holes on this bridge were different from any other bridge,
that is it was continually changing, the panel lengths and the holes were pretty nearly
all bad on the start.

Prof. Kerrv.—That was on account of conditions §

Mr, Kmwrocn.—That is on account of the chamber in the span, the method of
érection.

Prof. Kerev.—You would not know any way in which that oould have been
avoided ?

Mr. Kivvocs.~No, not at the start. Of courre there was the usual number of
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lioles that were bad when the span came together, and they were supposed to be right
as they would on any other span. :
* Prof. Keary.—The work was up to good average practice 1

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, some places we would have evidence that the holes were bad,
may be two, four or five joints you would not have a bad hole, you could drive every
hole in the joint.

Prof. Keaav.—The practice was to ream out all bad Loles, previous to riveting {

Mr. Kixvoon.—If they were bad enough to require reaming.

Prof. Kerry.—But where the inaccuracy was small you simply straightened it out
with drift pins { :

Mr. XinvocH. - -Drift pins, yes, sir.

Prof. Keary.—Do you consider that the amount of field riveting required on this
work was the least that could have been made necessarily ¥

Mr. KiNLooH.—I am not an engineer, I do not pretend to answer that question.

Prof.. Kxrav.—-Are you of the opinion that any of the joints that you had to
rivet up in the field could have been riveted up in the shopt

M#. Kinocn—I never paid much attention, I do not think they could rivet
much more in the shop than they did.

Prof, KErny.—That is to say they rednced the number of field rivets to the
minimum?

Mr, Kinvoos.—Yes, sir. :

Prof. Kerry.—And the inspection of the field rivets was very close, that was
your personal duty, was it noti

Mr. KinvocH.—Yes, that was my personall duty. Well, I have my own atandard,
I do not know what you——

Prof. Keray.—And your opinion is that the field rivets that were driven, would
compare very favourably in efficiency with a shop rivet{

Mr. Kwrooda.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Keray.—That they would give just as good servicel

Mr. Kinvoca.—Yes, sir. ;

— - Mr. HoLeATR~—Now, we-have covered that-ground pretty thoroughly, so far;- will
you go on now, and tell us of any other points to which your attention was attracted?

Mr. KinLocs.—There was an angle on a centre post section.

Mr. HoroaTe—Which section of the centre posti .

Mr. Kintooa—C.P. 6 R. A chain had got foul of it or something in the yard,
and they cracked it, and Mr. Clark called us up and we went over and looked at it,
and drawings were made and sent to Mr. Cooper at Phenixville.

Mr. HoLGATE—By whom? :

Mr, KisLooH.—I am not sure whether Mr, McLure or Mr. Birks made the
drawing.

‘Mr. HoLaaTE—Sent to Mr. Coopert

Mr. KiNLoor.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horeare—By whom1 ~ ,

Mr. Kovroon.—Well, it was approved by Mr. Cooper. I won’t say; that is all I
know; all these things were submitted to him. That is not my own personal knowl-
Prof. GALBRATTH.~~You mean the repair was submitted to him for approvall

Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, that was repaired, anyway.

Mr. HoLoaTe—In accordance with the plan approved by Mr. Cooper?

Mr. Kinroor.—Well, I have no personal knowledge that Mr. Cooper did approve
that, but hebipproved most of these things, and I suppose he did this. I co
myself on that. , : _

Mr. HoLaatz—Did you see a plan showing the repairs required

Mr, KiNLooE~T certainly must have, but I do not recollect now much about it,

Mr. Horoate.—Just Jescribe what was repaired?
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Mr. KiNvoce—Well, it was simply a little piece broken cut of the edge of an
angle, a big heavy angle, one of the webs of the main centre post.

Mr. Horgare.—How high above the pier would that bel

. Mr. Kmroor.—About 50 feei, between 80 and 50 fest from the top of the pier.

It was repaired by putting a plate of the same size or a little larger plate riveting
it up on the anglle, about 7 or 8 feet on each side of it, That was done a long time
ago. I do not recollect much about it. I know it passed out of my mind,

Mr. HoroaTE.—You inspected thet repair!

Mr. KiNLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLaATE—Was it properly donef

Mr. XinvocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroatE—You mentioned a repair that was made on chord A-8 L. Have

you inspected that chord in connection with the part that was repaired, since the

accident?!

Mr. KinLorg.—Yes, sir

Mr. Horoare—And how did you find it!

Mr. Kmwrocu~—All right.

Mr. HoraaTe—Injured in any degreet

Mr. Kmvroon—No, sir, practically the same as the day it was put on there.

Prof. GasrartH.—That is, the repairs are the same.

Mr. KiNnLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Then with regard to the repairs made on the centre post, have
you been able to examine that part since? g

Mr. KinrocH.—I think that is in the crushed part of the post.

Mr. HoroaTe—So far you have not been able to locate that?

Mr. Kinrocn.—No, T have not.

Mr., HorLoATE.—Are there any other matters, Mr. Kinloch{

Mr. Kinrocn.—The top of the CLY., one section of the centre post, which has a

bracket riveted on to-it,-when -we-riveted the -other -bracket on to -it;--we -found it -

was dished slightly. That was reported to Mr. Cooper, and his recommendations were
followed on it. ,

Prof. Kerry.—That is that one bracket was shop riveted to the post section.

Mr. XinrocH.—Yes, sir. : -

Prof. KrrrY.—And the second bracket was field rivetedi

Mr. Kixrocn.—Field riveted.

Prof. Keary.—And it was found that the surface was dished and not perfectly

plane. "

Mr, KiNLooH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Mr. Cooper’s recommendation was followed

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry..—What was it {

Mr, Kivroca.—To secure a certain amount of bearing, I forget just what it was
but Mr. McLure has it in his notes.

Prof. Kerry.—Which section, C. P. 11

Mr. Kixroon—Both C. P. 1 R and 0. P. 1 L.

Mr, HoLoaTE—Anything elsel

Mr KinvocH.—There was a slight error in detail in one of the top longitudinal
struts. That was cut off. That was reported, I believe, to Mr. Cooper also. 1t was
simply cut off, there was a plate put in there that interfored with the top of the post
section in working. I believe that is about the only error in detail that we found in
the whole bridge. \ ,

Mr. HoroaTE—Do you mean to say that in the erection of that bridge, you found
only that one error in detaill '

Mr, KiNLocE.—That was the worst one that we found. There might have been
gome little things where maybe we would have to chip off & little of & plate or some-
thing like that, but simply more an error of the shop in workmanship of ¥ of an inch
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or something. 1 do not remember any example of that but this plate, the top longis
tudinal “level was the only correction we had to make, I do not remember any other at
presen :

Prof. Garerarre—How many sections are there in the centre posti

l[erwOB.——Thmizthepeukﬂmtgoesonwpoftheeentmpoet,thmanethe
caps which are the top section and 0. P. 1, 0. P. 8, C. P. 8 and 4 in one secticn, O. P
5, C. P. 6 and the centre post foot. :

Prof. GALBRATTH.—Then the only shop rivetinz that was done in these six sections
was the junction at the splice between 0. P. 8 and C. P. 4; is that what you meant

Mr. Kinvoon.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. GaLsrarri.—All the others were field riveted!

Mr. KmvvooH.—Field riveted, yes. : oo

Mr. HoLaame.—Then you found the work as delivered for erection, entirely accu-
rate with the exception of that one instance that you mentioned )

Nr. KiNvoos.—In regurd to detail, yes, These other holes, and one thing and
another, those little inaccuracies, a blind hole, once in a while——

Mr. Horaare—And are those such as apply to any worki

Mr. Kmroct.~~Yes, sir. o

Mr, HorgaTe.—Whether great or smalll o .

Mr, KinpooB.—Yes, sir. T T

Mr. Horaare.—You refer now not only to riveted members but to all members in
that whole structure!

Mr. KixrocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr, Horoare—Including eye-bars?

Mr. Kovvoon.—Eye-bars,

Mr. Horaate.—Pins and all other parts?

Mr. Kvvoon.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe.—Were there any matters in connection with. the pins or eye-bars

that were diseovered indicating inaccuracy or anything out of place at any timet

Mr, KNtoci.—~Would you repeat that?

Mr, Horoate.—Duting erection and after the eye-bar system had been placed, was
your attention called to anything particular at any pin joint in the tension system
which you examined?

Mr, Kvnoon—Yes, sir. A set of diagonal bars showed a mark that I did not
understand. I spoke to Mr. Yenser about it, and he sent a couple of men back and we
broke all the key wrenches we had on the job trying to get a nut off, but could not and
we examined it as well as we could without getting the nut off.

Prof GALerarrH—What one of the diagonals was thatf--

Mr. Kmvrocun—T, 40,

Prof. GaLerarri.—Upper or lower!

Mr. KinLocr.—On the lower side.

Mr. HotaATE~What was that unusual happened there ¥

Mr. Kinrocn.—I sssumed that a saucer had slipped a little biti

Mr. Horoatz—This was on the left sidet .

Mr, Kivvocr.—Yes, sir. A saucer had slipped s little bit and made a mark there,
and T did not know what had caused it and wanted to find out. We worked on it, as
I said there. Mr. McLure and Mr. Milliken and Mr. Yenser and Mr, Birks were there,
and we examined it and made up our minds that there was nothing in it because Mr.
McLure had said that the bars had their mayimum strese some time before, that the
stress was gettiug lees mow than before and we waited until we could get -a big key
wrenchandseewlutitm;wodecidedthltitwuonaoftwothimMmlitﬂe
rings in there had been left out or that there must have been mome motion in there,
Yesterday. we sucoeeded in getting the nut out and saw there was no motion tnd as far
aswecaneeethetwolitﬂeringsmmin‘aing,hndnotbemuehéin. They are more
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Mr. Kixroci.—Did you find the condition, on examination yesterday, to be what
it should bet

Mr. KanLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horaate.—And nothing at all out of placef S

Mr. Kivvocn.~~No, sir.

Mr. HoraaTE.—Or wrong?

Mr. Kmwroca—No, sir. -

" Mr, HoLoaTE.—With the exception of the little packing rings{

Mr. KmnLoon—The packing rings were missing as far ag we could see.

Mr. HoLaATE~At any rate, the joint itself was jntact and you had to remove .
the nutt :

Mr. Kwroca.—Yes, sir,

Mr. Horoa1a.—I would like to cover all these points, Mr. Kinlosh, if you can
recollect them.

Prof. Kerry.~—On that tension system in your inspéctions, Mr. Kinloch, did you
notice anything that would indicate that the aye-baras were not acting equally, the
eye-bars in any set, or had you reason to believe they were all equally strained, as
far as you could judge §

. Mr. KiwocH.—As far as I could judge they all seemed to be about the same.

There was one panel, the top chord eye-bars in the cantilever arm, that were not much
strained yet, moving them with the feet some of them seemed to be tighter than the
others; they were not strained up. )

Prof. Kerrv.—But all the panels that were fully strained seemed to be tightened
upf .

Mr. XiNLocH.—Yes, sir.
Prof. Kerey.—Now we would like you to zo back and finish your own story of
what you saw on the bridge without bothering with our questions yet, just your own
recollections ¥ - e .
" Mr. KmvvocH.~—Mr, McLure called my attention to some plates at the foot of the
centre post. That photograph shows that very well —(Exhibit 29)—where this dia-
genal connects to this post. The hitch angles between 50 and the centre post. (Wit-
ness indicated on.the photograph the points referred to.) He called my attention to
the paint crinkling on the outside of the plate like there might be a motion there of
the P—50 and the centre post closing together. We examined all the rest of the same
plates, there urc eight of them altogether, and we found the same conditions to exist
in all the eight plates. -

Prof. GarBraITH.—Were they bulging out?

Mr. KivvocH.—They were not bulging out any more than the ‘cracks in the paint
were radiating just like the sun.

Prof. GaLsraITH.—Did the crack show in the paint or were there little bulgest

Mr. KmLocr.—Just little bulges; the paint was raised up.

Prof. GaLerartH.—The paint itself was bulged along this linet

Mr. Kwroor.—Yes.

Prof. GaLsrarrn.—Showing compression, showing coming together.

Mr. Xovroon.—That is what it would indicate.

Mr. Horoate—Was it a blistering of the paint!?

Mr, Kmnroor.—I do not think so.

Mr. HoLgaTe—What did you do then, Mr. Kinloch!

Mr. Kmvroot—1I think that Mr. McLure took that up with Mr. Cooper, and he
will have a record of that; he can explain it better than I can.

Mr. Horaae.—When you say there are eight of those plates, are you counting
in the two ‘centre posts! »

Mr. RivLoo.—Yes, in the two centre posts.

My, HorgaTe.—Four on each centre post!

Mr. KmvLoce.—Four in each centre post, yes. I do not know that I can think of
anything more now until coming right down close to the time of the accident.
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Prof. GaLsgarrd.—~At what period during the erection did you notice this, kow
far had the work been carried on the cantilever sidet .

Mz, EwLoos.—The cantilever arm was erected.

Prof. Garesarr.—It was completed {

Mr. Xivvoor—Yes, sir. .

Prof. GaLsaaTn.—Was any of the suspension bridge donet ’

Mr, Kmxroor.—I do not think there was. I do not think they had started to raise
the suspension span. _
. Mr. Hovaare.—Fave you now enumerated all thess matters which you might call
extraordinary : . . ,

Mr. Kinvoon.—All that I can remember just now. There was that crack in that
plate in P-4, that -4 that Mr. Chase spoke of, that was repaived,

Mr., HoLoaTe.—You refer now to the one that was mentioned by Lafrance '

Mr, KinLoon.—No, by Chase, :

Prof. Kerry.—You might give those particulars §

Mr. Kisroon.~—Shortly after the plate was put on—-

Prof, Kerav.—Which plate § )

Mr. KinLoca.—This is a bent plate, I do nc% remember the number, It connects
the lateral plate and the truss floor beam gussets to the post. .

Prof. Keany.—Which post § . . - )

" Mr. KiNLocR.—P-4.

. Prof. Kenry.—L or R1 :

Mr. Kintoci—-R. There was a crack about 2 inches, I will say 2 inches limit in
‘length opened up in the back edge of it, right close to the post, Whether it had been
there before in the plate and that it had been fully opened when the bolts were put in
I do not know, that is the first time I noticed it. It was repaired by putting another
plate on top of it.

Prof. Kerry.—Were plans for that prepared and submitted to Mr. Cooper 1

-7~ Mr. Kivvoor.~No, sir. SR

Prof. Kerrv.—It was just done right theve {

Mr. EmvLocn.—Yes, it was considered of no importance, we did it right there,

Prof. Kxrav.—Did you ever notice anything on the plates that have been men-
tioned by the witnesses Lafrance and Davis *

Mr, KivvocH—No, sir,

Prof. Kxary.—You have also heard of the evidence of the v’'‘ness Ouimet at the
coroner’s inqueat { )

Mr, EmrocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kzrey.—Did you aver notice anything on that plate 1

Mr. Kivvoon.—No, sir,

Prof. Kemny.—And you had examined each of one those plates ai frequent
intervals {

Mr. Kmvocn.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kezay.~And no report of any crack ir those plates had reeched you 1

Mr. Kxroon.—No, sir,

Prof. Keary.—The witnesses have stated that they saw the erack somewhere about
the first of June. Roughly speeking, how many times would you have ssen the plate
since then { : ,

Mr. Kivroon.—Probably 180,

Mr. Davisor.—I recollect that there was a point in Mr. Kinloch’s evidence, when
he was told that he would have a full opportunity of explaining some statemments
- later. I would }ike to find out now what they were and what he has to say dbout

" My, HovoaTe~This is what Mr. Kinloch said : Co .
" ¢*There is & line to draw. There were some things I wanted done that I did not
184-y0l, §i—18 : o B
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get done, but they wero taken up and they never have been settled yet. It was out of
the ling of workmanship though

Do you recollect that statement of yours {

Mr. Kixvocn.—Yes, sir.

Mr. 1loraate.—You may cxplmn just what you meant there,

Mr. Kistoci.—That was in regard to those paint holes in the chords.

Mr. Hovrasre.—That you have already referred to in this morning’s evidence 1

Mr., Kivrocn.—Yes, sir. 3

Prof. Kerry.—Anything else 1

Mr. Kixroc.—No, I cannot think of anything else.

Mr. IoLoaTE.—When that matter was brought up in your previous evidence we
said that we would bring it up again and give you a full chance to explain what you
meant. Have you any further explanations to make?l

Mr. KisLocH.—Would you read that question again §

Mr. Horoate.—The question that brought this up was this :

¢ Prof. KERrry. ——Durmg the work everything that you considered necessary as to
the quality of the work or of the workmanship was done on your request.

¢ Mr. Kinvoct.—There is a line to draw, There were some things I wanted done
that T did not get done, but they were taken up and they never have been settled yet.
It was out of the line of workmanship though.

Mr. Kisvoci.-—I think that covers everything only little minor things like want-
ing to get some painting done or semething like that ; nothing of any importance at
all outside of the paint holes in the chord. -

Mr. Hovaate.—DBut nothing that affected the structure itself t

Mr. Kinrocu.—No, sir.

Mr., Horoate~Is that it, Mr, Davidson %

Mr. Daviosox.—Well, of course Mr. Kinloch says these were the matters referred
to. I did not know what they were, I just had what you have just read.

Mr. Horaate.—Mr. Kinloch says those are the only matters he has in mind.

“~Ta~there “any -other pomt?**'*” e e e S — .

Mr. Davipson.—Not in this particular part of thc examumtmn, 10,

The Commismion took recess,

AFTERNOON SESSION--ELEVENTH DAY,

Mr. HoLaaTe.—Mr, Kinloch, did you make any minute examination of any par-
ticular parts of the structure immediately prior to tne accident?

Mr. KinrocH.—~Yes, sir. -

Mr. HoLoATE.—You might tell ua just what they were, beginning with the first
calling of your immediate attention to it, and giving the dates consecutively through
the whole examination,

Mr. Kixtocn.—Well, in regard to the date of my first noticing a buckling in
ithe field splice of the east centre rib, in chord 7 and 8, T am not sure within about «
week.

Mr., Horoste.—Chord 7T and 8, where 1

Mr. XinLocn.—Cantilever arm,

Mr. HoroaTE—Right or left!

Mr. KinrocH.—Left,

Prof. Kerry.—Montreal sidef

Mr. Kmv1ocH.—-Montreal side, yes, But on gcing down to inspect that point
after the rivets were driven, I first noticed this bent, it was bent in towards the other
centre rib, as near as I can remember now, about balf an inch and about 8 feet. Mr.
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Birks and Mr. McLure had their attention called to it\and they measured it, and 1
think Mr. McLure has a record of it.

Prof. Xerry.—Roughly about what time

Mr. KixLocH.—Oh, ahout four or five weeks before the accident. We talked
together on some method of overcoming it, and it was finally decided to put a
diaphragm up in there and by cutting out five rivets on each side of the joint, bring
it back to its proper position. It was sent in to Mr. Cooper for his approval and he
did not give it his approval. He evidently misunderstood the cae, and there was
nothing more done with it, it remained in that position up to the time of the accident.

Prof. Kerry.—That is the field splice between V znd 8 on the cantilever arm,
Montredl sidef :

My, KinvocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—The buckle was in the east centre rib{

Mr. KiNnLoos.—The centre rib.

Prof Keerv.—Towards the west centre ribi

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. KErRrY.—And the two ends bent like that (indicating) {

Mr. KiNLoOH.—Yes, sir,

Prof. KErrYy.—There would be no opening, Mr. Kinloch, between the cover plate
and the rib, the plate itself would be bent?

Mr. Xinpoc.—Yes, sir. .

Mr. HoLaaTE.—That is the whole story in regard to ¥pat point

Mr. Kinrocn.~—Yes, Now, as near as I can judge, about the 20th of August—I am
not sure about that date either, it might be a day or two either way—the chord 8
and 9, cantilever arm, when a boy painted the rivets, I was coming down the chord
and the new paint on the rivets drew my attention to it, and I fancied I could see
a curve right at the splice. I investigated the same, and found that there was, I
looked along the rest of the chord and found sorae distortion in that, in the ribs, that
is choxd 8.
 Prof. GauBrATH—On which side of the panel point is the field splice

Mr. KiwiocH.— <t is to the river side of the post. ~ e

Mr. HoLoaTE—Did you observe closely what that bend amounted to? )

Mr. KinvocH.—Yes, sir, I looked at it very closely, I examined it with care, and
chord 9 also, and found that somewhat distorted and also chord 10, in the cantilever
arm, three chords, one on top of the other; but they were very slight, and 1 was very
much in doubt in my mind whether they might have been something originally there,
although they looked bigger to me than any T had scen before. But this one bend
in the splice puzeded me a good deal.

Mr., Honeate~—That is in the splice between 8 and 9 ¢

Mr. KiNLocH.-—Yes, between 8 and 9.

Prof. Garsrarrin.—What plates showed that

Mr. KinvocH.—-The side splice plates.

Prof. GaLsratri—On both sides ¢

Mr. KinLoocH.—Yes, sir. From the gencral appearance, 10 deseribe it, it would
Yook just as if No. 8 chord was a little bit wider than No. 8. The bend did not =eem
to be in No. 9, but No. 9 appeared to run out straight and No. 8 to run out to meet
it. This bend wes very slight, but it was there,

Prof. Kerry.—That is to #ay both sides went out from the centre-——

Mr. KmvrocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.——of chord No: 81

Mr. KmnvocH—Of chord No. 8.

Mr. HoroaTe.—In what condition was that joint at that time?

My, KinLoon.—Fully riveted. That is one thing that worried me as much as
anything else, because I was positive when {i was viveted up that it was straight.

154—vol. 1i—15%
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Mr. Hovoate.—Did you make any measurement to verify what appeared to the
eyet
7 Mr. Kinvoci—No, I made no measurement of that.

Mr. HoLoATE~When you discovered that, what did you dof

Mr. KinvooH.—73 called. Mr. Birks’ attention to it, and we talked the thing over
there and he did not cousider it much, in fact I did not consider it myself.

Mr. HoLoate.—You talked it over wheref .

Mr. Kinvoct.—On the chord. Mr. McLure was in the hospital at that time.
When Mr. McLure got out I called his attention to it. That was a couple of days
afterwards,

Mr. Horoate.—What sort of an examination did Mr. Birks make at the time?

Mr. Kinrtocn.—Just about like I did. We just got down and sighted along the
ribs.

Prof. GaLsraiTH.—Did the angles——1

Mr. Xivvoc.~The angles scemed to be straighiter than the rest of it. It was
more bowed at the centre than at the two ends.

Prof. GaLerarrH.—You had to stoop down and look over the sidef

Mr Kivroon—We could stand on the ladder on the top and see it more plainly
than anywhere else. We could see it mure plainly on account of the new paint on it.

Prof. KerrY.—Do you know if that was reported to Mr. Cooper?

Mr. KinvocH.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—Do yoggknow if i. was reported to Mr. Hoarel

Mr. Kikroc.—No, I do not.

Prof. Kerrv.—Do you know if it was reported to Mr. Yenser{

Mr. KinvrocH.—Yes, it was reported to Mr. Yenser.

Prof. KerryY.—Did he express any opiniag at all?

Mr. KiNroch.—No. At that time Widemd it unimportant although it
was pretty hard to figure out what you would condider it now and theu. I am trying
to separate this thing and get out what I thought at that time.

Prof. Krary.—It was a very unusual thing, almoest otherwise unknown, for the
outer cover plate to show any alteration from the flat?

© Mr. Kmvnocn.—Yes, sir, T do not know of any cther place in the bridge which-
ever did that, except in chord 9-L in the anchor arm afterwards.

Prof. Kerry.—There might have been suck distortions on the inner ribs without
their being observablef

Mr. KwrocH.~Yes,

Prof, Kenrv.—They would be covered upi

My, KinrocH.~-Yes, sir. .

Mr. Horoate.—Is that the only thing noticeable in that chord?

Mr. XKinvocn.—The ribs were bent and the chord.

Mr. Horoate—~Just at that place?

Mr. Kinvocit—No, they were irregular bends. They were not long bends like
other chords. They were more like any bends would be in any chord. They were not
uniform; they were not all bent in any one way. '

Prof. GaLraitH.—In designating the chords the numbers refer to the distance
from field splice to field splice and not to the distance from pauel point to pane! point?

Mr. Kintocn.—No, sir, from field splice to field splice.

Prof. GaLsraITH.~—So that the same chord is iun different panels?

Mr. Kinvecs —Vg;, sir, ’

Mr. Horaave—The bends that you refer o, Mr. Kinloch, did you consider at that
time that they were shop bendai

Mr. KinvocH.—I was in doubt about it. They were not pronounced enough more
than the others to enable me to determine wiether they could have been made in the
field or whether they were shop bends. .

Mr. Horaate.—But you did not observe them before August 20 {

Mr. Kr. LocH.—No, sir; about that date. It was within a day or two of the 20th.
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Prof. GauseartH—How long had that chord beca in position 1

a Mr. KiNLooR.—Since away early in 1808, Mr, McLure could give you the exact

ate. ’
Mr. Howoate.—~When you met Mr, Birks there did he lead you to suppoee that
he had noticed that beforel

Mr. Kinvocn—No, sir. ‘

My, HoraaTe—Can you say that it bad been noticed by any one before that time §

Mr. KinLooH.—No, not at that time; not the firet time.

Mr, Hovuare.—Not before the 20th of August

Mr. Kinvood.—No, .

Prof. Kerav.—X understand, Mr. Kinloch, that it has not boen unusual to find
that the centre ribs of 2 adjoining chord sections did not Jine correctly when the lower
cover plate was taken off 1 :

Mr. Kivvoou.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerav.—Was that ever noticed on the outside ribs §

Mr. Kmvcocn.—Not to my knowledge.

Prof. Kerry.—Only on the centre ribs {

Mr, Kinvocn.—Only on the centre ribs{

Prof. Keriv—And it was the practice in that case to jack the centre ribe over
from the outside ribs until they came into perfect lie when they were rivetted §

Mr. Kixvocu—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerav.—So that thai failure to line correctly on the part of the centre
ribs might be attributed either to the working of the bridge or to the failure to draw
these two ribs into exact line at the time that chord was originally put in? You had
no means, in other words, of knowing that the two inside ribs lined exactly at the
time it was put in place ¢

Mr. Kinrtocti—Not at the bottom, no, sir.

Prof. GaLBRAITIL—WLat was the practice with respect to the placing of the
diaphragm plates § Was it the practice to pleco the diaphragm plates close to the
ends of the ribs in all cases 1

Mr, Kixvoci- —~Some were right nt the ends, but moat of themn were back about
three or four feet. )

Prof. Garsraithi—-From the cover plate 1

= Mr. Xinroci.—No, they were not on the other side of the cover plato but back
from the joint about three or four fect ag near s I can remember.

Prof. GausrartH.—Do you remember many cases where they were within six
inches or a foot from the end of the ribs §

Mr. Kiniocit.—No; on chord 10 they were at the end of the joint and at the end
of No. 9, I think; I am not positive now without looking at the drawivsgs.

Prof. GaLERAITH.~On chord 10 they were close to the joint?

Mr. Xixrocn.—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerny.—Qoing back to the side plates, Mr. Kinleeh, it was the practice,
was it not, in making provision for the camber lo have the lower chord jointa alter-
natcly open at the top and bottom {

Mr. Kwvoca—Yes.

Prof. Kuany—NVas thero any noticesble difference in the lining of the ribs of
the chords at the joints that were differently treated in that respect?

fr. Kinvoou.—Yes, sir, in pretty nearly all the cases—the ones ‘hat I know of—
they were all right at the top. It was only at the botton. that the ribs were off line.

Prof Krarv.—Supposing you took one case in which two chord sectioms were
brought together at the top with a eambe! opening down at the bottom and then toak
another case in which two chord sections were brought together at the bottom and tve
camber opening at the top, would be there be any noticeable difference in the accuracy
with which these two would line when you got ready to rivet up?

" Mr, Kinroca.—J] think I answered that question. The ones that were open at
the bottom would not line. The only ones that do not line are there.
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Prof. Kerry.—When they were open at the top they lined all right §

Mr. Kintocu.—Yes,

Prof. Kerry.—The ones that were open at the bottom did not line well ¥ What
was the power of the jacks that was needed to force these—the ordinary screw jacks §

Mr. Kinvoon.—It took different power at different places. It depended on when
they were jacked and where they were jacked. We usually used a 26-ton Norton jack.

Prof. KERRY.—Was it hard jacking them{

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, pretty hard to jack them.

Prof, Kerry.—1t varied, 1 suppose?

Mr, KinvocH.—Yes, it varied at different points.

Prof, KerrY.—Did you ever have to use more than one jack?

Mr, KinrocH.—We always had to use two—one to hold each rib.

Mr. HotaaTe.—lIn this succession what was the next matter that came to your
attention?

Mr. Kivpoon.—The same chord again—No. 8 chord. I went down next day or
the day after that, and I imagined it was getting worse,

Alr. HOLGATE. ——'lhat was the 21st or the 22nd of August{

lir. KinLocH.—1t was a couple of days after or the noxt after—I do not remem-
ber which. One of the Indians was there and I asked him if he noticed anything
about it and he said it did not look to him like it was bent like that before. 1 asked
him if he had noted anything peculiar, and he said no. I asked him if ho was 8VTG it
had not been bent before and he said no.

Prof. GaLBrairH.—Are you now speaking of the bend in the side plates?

Mr. KinpocH—In chord 8-—not in the side plates but in the body of the chord
itself,

Prof, GALBRAITI[—A]OIlg the ribs?

Mr, KixvocH.~Yes, sir,

Prof. Qavprairi.—The point that you now speak of is one that you had seen
before but which scemed to have increased?

Mr. Kinvocu.—Yes, sir; it looked that way to me,

Prof. Kerry.—What was the Indian’s namet

Mr. KiNvocu.—L cannot remember about it, whether it was Morris or Elm.

Prof. Xrrry.—Were they in the accidentt .

Mr. Kixvocn.—Morris was killed and Elm is alive yet. 1 did not know them
apart very well.

Mr. HoroaTe.—What appearance did it have on this second inspection?

Mr. Kinvoon.—Just about the same, only I thought I was nervous and was sceing
more than really was there.

Mr. HoLeate-—Did the bend coufine itself to any particular rib or did it cover
the whole chord{

Mr, Kivvocu —All four rxbs were bent, but they were not bent alike.

Mr. HoLGATE ~—In which direction were they bent

Mr. KivLocni—Three of ther. at the top ware bent towards Montreal, aud down
part way they were bent towards Quebec, and the inside rib we: bent towards Mont-
real, but very slight.

Prof. Kerry.—That is the rib on the Montreal side of the Quehec chord?

Mr. KiNLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr Hoveatr.—Do I understand that description tc mean that it won t bring a
wind on the chord?

Mr. KinLooH—No, the bend crossed. I would be the shape of a loaz letter S
or a question. mark.

Mr. Horoate.—That would mean then that the space between the ribs on the
Montreal side of the chord would be increased at the bend?

Mr. KivLoon.~—Increased at the bottom or decreased at the top, or about the seme
at the top.

- Mr. Horgare.—Then, was there anything observable in the lacing?
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Mr, Rmrocn.—No, sir, I did not notice anything, but I did not look particulscly,
any more than there was not enough to notice just looking off-hand. I did not sight
over the lacing; I just walked over it and looked at it.

Mr., Horaate—You did not make any test whatevert

Mr. Kmvrocu—No, sir. )

Prof. GaLerAITH.—What do you mean by towards the top and towards the bottom
in that answerf

Mr. Kivtoc.—In the bottom, T call that the field splice between & and 9, and
the top would be the_field splice at 7 and 8.

Prof. GaLeRAITH.—In other words, you call the higher end of the chord the top
and the lower end the bottom{ '

Mr. KiNtoon.—Yes, sir.

Mr., HoLoarE—That brings us up to the 21st or 22nd of August. Now, then,
continue on further

Mr. KinrocH—Woll, T kept very close watch on these chords to see if there wag
any further movement in them.

Mr. HoraaTE.—You sre referring to——1

Mr. KixLoct.—Chords 8, 9 and 10 in the cantilever arm, particularly 8 and 9.
I did not pay much attention td 10—on the Quebce side. I was not seriously alarmed
a;)out them, but I kept my eye on them to see what theywere doing if there was any-
thing. .

Mr. Horoate.—Did you frequently sec thom afterwards?

Mr. Kivvoon.—Three or four times a day.

Prof. Keray.—Are they to any extent visiblo at low tide now 1

Mr, Xinrooa~—No. 9.

Prof. Kerry.—No. 8 i nott

Mr, KiNvroch.—~No. ’

Prof. Kenrv.—No, 10 ¢

o Mr. Kinrocn.—No. 10 is visible but it is destroyed; you cannot tell anything
about it.

Prof. GALBRAITIL—What do you mean by seying that it is destroyed {

Mr. KintocH.--It ia all flattened down. I4 is on top of the pier and it is lying
on its side and the members ara Jying one on tgp of the other. You cannot see any-
thing at all only that it is just there. ‘

Prof, GaLprarrH.—And No. 9 ¢ .

Mr, Kniroci.—No, 9—you can see nbout half of it at low tide.

Prof. GarBrAITH.—It is in bad shape, is it not

Mr. Kinroon.—It does not look bad.

Mr. HoroATE—On these geveral inspections were you accompanied by nnybody?

Mr. Kinrocit—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate—Did anybody else go down after the 22nd §

Ar. Kinvooi~—I have no personal knowledge, but T think Mr., Birks went there.

Mr. Horaate—Did you notice any change yourself in any of them {

Mr. KivvocH.—No, sir.

Mr. Horoate~—Yes 1

My, Binroc.~—That was ‘[Tuesday before the accident.

Mr. HoLaare.—What date was that { <

Mr, Kinvocit—The 27th. I discovered this bend in chord A-9-T. anchor arm.

Mr. Horoate—What time of the day was that ?

Mr. XinvocH-—About 9 o’clock.

‘Mr. HoLoaTE~~When previously had you been on that chord {

Mr. KinLocH.~-Saturday is about the last time 1 can remember being there.

Mr. Howaate.—The previous Saturday {

Mr, KinvocH.—Yes. )

Mr. HoLaaTe.—But it was not until Tuesday that you noticed it {

Mr. Knvpoos.—No, gir.  As I turned around the post——
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Mr. DavipsoN.—I would like you to ask Mr. Kinloch, if, on the Saturday presious,
be examined it sufficiently to sece whether ihere was any bend in it §

Mr. HouoaTE—Are you in a position {o say that there was any bend in the cnord
on the, Saturday ?

Mr. Kinvocn.~I did not notice any, Mr. Yenser and Mr. Birks were down at
the {oot of lower 10 chord and as soon as I saw it I called themn up there. It was
apparently, to me, quite alarming® It was a big bend and I was satisfied right off that
there was something going on.

Prof. Gareraiti,~—That is on the same side of the bridge 1

Mr. KinvocH.—9-L anchor arm.

Prof. GaLraITH.—Where were Birks and Yenser ?

Mr. Kinrocni—Down below--right below at the chord and the shoe—10-L. They
came up and looked at it. I guess we put in 26 or 80 minutes looking 1t all over. M.
Yenser said when he came therc : That has never been there before; I have been over
this chord too many times. He started in to talik; he would not put up any more iron
till he found out about it. Birks kind of laughed at him and said that he had better
wait until he found out, thet when he was condemning that chord he was condemning
the whole bridge, and he said it might have beep in there before. He said he better
wait until he investigated it. Mr. Birks and I went up 1o the office and I went in
and told Mr. McLure and we immediately went down and measured it—went right
up and down, took measvrements of the bend and examined everything—lacing and
rivets—and looked the clord all over. At this time there was none of us noticed any
bend in the field splice.

Prof. QarsrairH.—Betweel.—§ :

Mr. Kisroci—Between 8 and 9. There was considerabls talk as to what they
would do by Birks, Yenser, myself and McLure, as to how serious it was, as to what
the stress on the chord was, and one thing and another; Mr. McLure can probably give
thesy figures better than I can, but it was finally decided that they would not move out
the traveller until they got some word. I do not know who decided it, but that was
the general supposition v.hen we got through. Wae also went over and measured 8 and
9 chords on the cantilever arm and talked about them. We passed No., 10 up; we did
nqt measure it because it was not near as bad as the one on the anchor arm and the
other two in the cantilever arm. Mr, McLure called up Mr. Hoare and he came out in
the—no, he went in that night and Mr. Hoare came out next day.

Mr. Hortoate.—Mr. McLure went in that night to Quebect

Mr. Kinrocn.—Yes, he went in to see Mr. Hoare that night and he called him up
that afternoon on the telephone, I think. He can tell you better himself than I can.

Prof. Kerry.—D)id you make any ex<mination of No. 9 chord in the anchor arm
on the Quebec side at that time?

Mr. KixrocH.-—Yes, sir.

Prof, Kerry.—And it was all right?

Mr. KivrocH.—Yes.

Prof. Kerry.—No visible defects?

Mr. Kixrocn.—No visible defects. We also at the same time that after: oon
and next morning examined thoroughly all the compression members and all the
tension members; in fact, we gave the bridge a thorough inspection all over. That
was on Mr. Hoare's ordars. Iirst we went at it ourselves and then Mr. Hoare called
me up and told me to make a thorough examination of everything all over, which
I did—T on the bottom, and Mr. McILure on the top.

Prof. Kerry.—You had just found three members vhich showed marked pecu-
liarity? :

Mr. KiNLocH.~~Yes, air.

Prof. Kerrv.—9-1. iz the anchor arm and 8-R and 9-R in the cantilever arm$

Mr. Kinvocn.—Yes, sir. Wednesday morning when we came out I was out'at
the front about fifteen minutes after seven and I saw that they were loosening the
traveller to run it ahead, I talked to the assistant foremsn end told him that they
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were not going to move the traveller, and he said that he had orders to do it. 1 asked
him who gave him the orders and he eaid Mr. Yenser. I started back to hunt up Mr.
Yenser and I met Mr. McLure on the approach span and I asked him if he knew that
they were moving the traveller and he said yes. I said: How about itt And he
said: I do not know, only Ben said that he had a dream last night. 1 said: That is
kind of funny. He said: Ben says he has got too many men out.

Prof. GaLpaalTH—On the work{

Mr. KINLOCH.—Y €8, bir. .

Mr. HoLaaTE—What did he mean by that?

Mr. KinvooH.—I suppose that he meant that he hrd too many men to work on the
traveller and could not work them vnless he was raising steel, but I did not see Mr.
Yenser to talk to him that dsy about moving out the traveller. But the travelled
was moved out. :

Mr. THoLGATE.—~You are retcrring now to the smaller traveller?

Mr. KwnocH—Yes, sir. On Wednesday I went over all these chords several
times and I did not notice any change. There was no iron added Wednesday at all;
ther was more taken off than put on on account of moving the traveller. They were
taking stuff off all the time. Thursday thev put in temporary track stringers. 1
guess they had them finished up about eleven o’clock and about noon or right after
dinner two sections of the bottom chord of the suspended span were run out.

Prof. Gausrarit.—No. 4 paneil

Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, sir—and hooked on to and slacked over into place to be
joined. Jusi about 15 or 20 minutes before the accident they had this chord straight
and in position to put in the bolts. They had a few bolts in on each side.

Prof. Kerry.—That is at the joint between the 8rd and 4th panels?

Mr. Kmxioch~Yes, the 4th panel field splice. There was one chord of diagonal
bars with their attachments ready to be erected on the temporary track stringers
when I left there. I came in on the approach span and the otliers for the upstream
gido were on the car there. I marked them with their.spacing and I should judge
that they had just about time to get to the end when the accident happened.

Prof. Xerry.—~They were being pushed out by the locomotive?

Mr. KixrocH.—Yea. The locomotive had one ecar between it and the bara. They
came by—there was a small gang on the second panel of the anchor arm letting down
the erecting material from the big traveller. They had one smnll picce on there
and the engine was away to get that car on the track to come in and make the
switch. They had to come in and get the other car and push it cut ahead of them.

Prof. Kerry.—Can you tell us about your inspeciion of Wednesday? To the
best of your knowledge, who inspected these chord sections on Wednesday, at what
time and what was the observation and discussion?

Mr, Kinwocr—I think I inspected them about three times in the morning and
three times in the afternoon. I know I met Mr. Birks twice when 1 was on my
trip doing the same thing.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Your main attention was given to the lower chords?

Mr. Kixroon.—Yes, sir; practically the wholz of it, but we were watching all
these joints. On Wednesday Mr. Birks camc (o0 me and said: ‘I think I have dis-
covered where we have made big fools out of ourselves, or at least, I think I bave
anyway; I see what is the matter now. He said: That bend runs up to the fleld
gplice. I said: Do you know when that was riveted? T said: I can tell within a
day or two.

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—Are you speakiag now of A-9-L1 ”

Mr. Kinvoon.—A-9-L. ‘

Prof. Kerry.—That would be the 8 and 9 field splicel

Mr. KiNLooH.—Yes, so, of course, I went down to look at the chord and I also
hunted up the records. I found that the chord did show a bend running up, but not
as much to the field splice. This No. 8 chord seemed to be straight, but No. 9 chord

'
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curved into it some way, but the bend at the top was not as much as it was in the body
of the chord. 7 did not measure it and I do not know whether Mr, Birks did or not.

Prof. Kerry.—That is to say, it would be as if tha north end of No. 8 chord had
got pushed towards Montreal a little bit, .

My, KinLoon.—No, it seecmed to be straight.

Prof. Kerrv.—As if the whole chord was straight the north end up a little towards
Montreal, and the 9th chord had curved around in a circle to meet it. .

Mr, Kinrock.~—No, it was not pushed towards Montreal. It did not appear to be.
No. 8 chord appeared io be straight right to the snlice and No. 9 chord seemed straight
and then curved right at the splice.

Prof. Kerrv.—The belly of the curve was in which direction?

Mr, Kixvoc.—In towards the centre of the truss,

Prof. Kerry.—Towards Quebec—-1

Mr. KiNnLocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Garsrarra.—T understand you to mean this, that the bend in No. 9 extended

from the foot of the member known as T-5-Z to the field splice between chords No, 9
and No. 8% '

Mr, KniLocn.—No, it extended from the cover plate south to T-5-Z.

Prof. GaLerarti.—It extended from the cover plate to T-5-Z and the field splice
between 9 and 8.

Mr. Kivwoci.—There was a very slight bend right at the cover plate, but there was
practically none there,

Prof. Kerrv.—Wass the outside plate at the field splice between 8 and 9 hent?

Mr. KinrLocn.—Yes, it was deformed a little with = curve.

Prof. Kerrv.—That is where the curve started?

Mr. KiNvoon.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you say anything more about it ai that time, Mr. Kinloch{

Mr. Kinroci.—More in a kind of joking way with M. Birks in talking,

Prof. XXerrY.~Who last inspected these chords during the day?

Mr! Kixeoci.—I do not kuo'y of anybody but Mr. Backs and myself. Whether Mr.
Yenser went over them or not I do not know.

Prof. Kerry.—You did not notice any increased deflection?

Mr. Kivvoon.—No, sir.

Prof, Kerry.—Did Mr. McLure go over them?

Mr. Kivrocn.—Mr. McLure was in New York. He left at noon.

Prof. Kerry.—Did Mr. Hoare$

Mr. Kinvoon.—Mr, Hoare was up and-looked at them—-yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—But he did not go over them#

Mr. Kinroc.—No, I do not think he did. I did not see him. :

Mr. Horeate.—Could yon make any inspection of a thing like that from the track?

Mr. Kmirocn.—1 could sce it quite plainly from the track, or Mr. Birks or Mr.
MecLure.

Prof. Kernv.-~The traveller started to move out?

Mr. Kivrocn—Early Wednesday morning they started to take the attachments
off. Tt takes a long time to move tho traveller ; in fact, it takes almost a day to move
it and fasten it down.

Frof. Kerry.—There was no general consultation after the one you had on Tues-
day mornnig?

Mr, KinrocH.—1 do not recollect any now that I was in.

Mr. Horoate—You say that Mr, McLure was away$

Mr. KiNLocH.~Yes, sir.

Mr. Howeate.—Do you know for what purpose he had gone away{

Mz, Kvroon.—Yes, sir.  He went to explain the matter to Mr. Cooper and get
his advice on it. )

Mr. HoreaTe—When was the last inspection made of these chords{

Mr. Kinvoon.—I should say about four o’clock.
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Mr, Horgarg—On—w—4{

Mr. Kinroos——Thureday, the 20th; that is the last close inspection.

Mr. HoroaTe—By yourself{ :

Mr. KiNLooH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—Any otherst

Mr, Kinroon—I do not know of any others.

. M;. HoLoaTE—What was observed then different from what you had observed

before

Mr. Kinvocit.—I did not notice anything any different. :

Prof. Kerav.—Did you discuss the matter with Mr. Birks and Mr. Yenser at all
on Thursday? .

Mr, Kinpoos.—Yes, Thursday morning, when we started to run the stringers oul
I was out on the front when thay came out and put them in—down underneath—and
when I came up and saw them I came back. I should judge that was about eleven
o’clock, or 10.30, or something like that. Mr. Birks met rae on the anchor arm, and
he says: Well, it is all right; I have got word from Phoenixville that they have a
record that these chords were bent before.

Prof. JXerrY.—Did ke mention the choxds

Mr. Kinvoon.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—What did you think he meant {

Mr. Kivrocu.—I thought he meant No. 9 chord.

Prof. GavsraiTH.—Both No. 83 were referred to?

Mr. Kinroon~—No. 9 was the one that we wers i1 erested in and ray mind cen-
tred on that one chordf{

Prof. GALBRAITH.~—A-9-L.

Mr. KinvocH.—Yes, ]

Prof. GaLprair.—I think he spoke of chords in the plurall

Mr. Kivroct.—-IHe said chord. I laug) ed at him and told him that it was not,
and he just went on. That is all thet was said between us about it,

¥, Horaate—TRut when you inspected A-9-L, did you also inspeet A-9-RE

M+, Kincoct.—Not so frequently as I had A-9-L.

My, Tonearke.—I refer o the last time you inspected A-9-L.,

Mi. Kixvoer.—No, sir.

Mr. Horeate.—When was the last inspection of A-9-RY

Mr. Kinvocit.—About eleven o’clock.

Mr. HorarTe.—What day?

Mr. Kmroci—On the same day.

Mr. Horaate—The 20th.

V. Kixtocti—Yes, the day of the aceident.

Alr. Horeate.—What did you find ?

Mr. KinrocH—It seemed to be all right,

Mr. Horoate.—And the other chords that you mentioned?

Mr. Kinnocn.—They did not seem to be any worse at any time we measured them,

Prof. Krany.—You have not said definitely, Mr. *Kinloch, but are we to infer
that in the discussions that took place your own opinion was that there wes ~ething
serious the matter with the chords that you did not understand that req: . = mme-
diate attentiont

Mr. Kinvooa.~Yes, sir,

Prof. Krrry.—You did not depart from that position?

Mr. Kinroon.—No, sir. )

Prof. Rerry~~We alzo understand that you reported the matter personally to
Mr. McLure on Tuesday morning? :

Mr. Kintoon.—He went down and hel, ~1 to measure it at the same time,

Prof. Krravy.—It was reported to Mr. Hoare on Tuesday night!

Mr. KovrocH.--Tuesday afternoon.
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Prof. Kerry.~—~And you went over the bridge with Mr, Hoare on Wedneeday 1

Mr. Kinvocu.—Yes, sir.

Prof, Kerry.—Did either of these gentlemen give you 2my instructions sbout itf

. KixvocHn.—No, sir. Mr. Hoare gave me some instructions, or asked me if I
had been over the rest of the bridge and told me to keep a close watch of the different
members; asked me particularly about the lateral joints, and if I could see any
deformation any place else,

Prof. GarBraitn.—Did you observe anything wrong in the laterals—the sWay
braces or any cross connections{

Mr. KixocH.—No, sir. The cross strut at that point——

Prof. GaLBraitH.—That is at——1 .

Mr. KinLocH.—At the foot of P-4 post—had a bend in it close to the east truss
that had always been there, of about balf an inch. It was a box girder, and it was
bent in both webs, .

Prof. Gavrrarti.—The cross piece is not the floor beam 1

Mr. Kixvoct.—No, it acts as a truss.

Prof. Kerry.-——The floor bearas were all in place {

Mr. KiNrocu.—Yes, the floor beams were all in place.

Prof. Gatsraiti.—At which place ?

Mr. KixrocH—At that place.

Prof. Kerry.—On the anchor ayit

Mr. KiLocit.—On the anchor arm and cantilever arm,

Prof. Kerry.—Were in place and riveted ¢

" Mr. KivLocn.—Not all riveted on the cantilever arm.

Prof. Kerry.—But all riveted on the anchor arm

Mr. KvLooH.~—Yes, ,

Prof. KErRY.—What was the condition of the stringer system of the anchor arm?

Mr. KivrocH.—The stringer system was incomplete in three or four panels before
toe fixing of the tracks for erection purposes and they were using the stringers that
belonged there at other places.

Prof. Xerry.—Which three or four pauels particularly?

Mr. Kixroci.—Panels 10 and 9 to 87 I do not know—I am not sure about
that, but instead of the stringers being in their places, they used the electric railway
stringers to carry the track and roadway. The stringers were doubled up and under-
neath there was a blocking on top of the floor beams to carry the erection track.

Prof. Kerry.—Thut would be wooden blocking ¢

Mr, Kinvocn.—Ye-,

Prof. Xerry.—The stringers would rest on top of this wooden blocking ¢

Mr. KiNrocu,—Yes, sir.

Prof. GarsraitH.—I should like to make sure about this strut between the frct
of posts 4. What is the amount of the kink or bend there, close to the east truss
that you mentioned?

Mr. Kixrocn—Tt was a hend like that (indicating), it had been there all the
time.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—Was it there before it had been put into the bridget

Mr. KiNLocH.—Yes, evidently in the shop.,

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—TIn the shop, it was not due fo stress?

Mr. KixvrocH,~—No, sir, £
Prof, GALBRAITH.—What was the extent lengthwize § LU
Mr. KiNLocH.~It came in about one lacing panel.

Mr. HoroATe.—How far was that lacing panel from the chord$

Mr. KintocH—Very close, I should say now just oﬁ-hanq, 8 inches, 8 or 10
inches. S

Mr. HoLeATE—It was not a general bend in the whole member
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Mr. KinrocH.—No, it was & short bend, it was all taken up in there, almost like
an off-set. .

Prof. GaLszarra.—And it was a shop bend, you'think{

Mr. Kxvnoon.—Yes, I know it was a shop bend.

Prof. Garsearrs—How did that pass inspection! You cannot answeri

Mr. Kixroon.—No, sir. ,

Prof. Kerex.—And how would the deflection in chord 9-L pass inspectiont

My, Kwerood,—In chord 9-L7 .

Prof. Kerey.—Mr. Birks’ statement was correct that the mill had a record of it,
and that it was a shop deflectiont ‘

Mr. Kixrvoou,—I do not see how it could.

Prof. Keery.—In your final inspections, Mr. Kinloch, you were watching for all
ovidences of any movement among the different parts, of course, were you noti

Mr. Kinvoon.—Yes, sir, particularly those chords in the shoes.

Prof. Kerry.~Did you notice any change in the lacing anywhere?

Mr. Kirwoor.~-No, sir. Except that lacing No. 9-L chord was strained awful
high. Both times that we were down there, the time Mr. Yenser and Mr. Birks and
myself were down there I tested the lacing with my hammer, and they sang as if they
had an awfully good pull on them, and again when Mr McLure and myself were
down we examined those lacings very carefully, especially in chord A-9-1, and both
top and bottom were examined, svery rivet we looked to see if there was any bend
or if it was cracked any place, if they were humped or gagged or bent in any direction,
and we could not discover any evidence that they were distorted the least bit with
the exception of one loose rivet, :

Prof. Kenry.— Taking any one of the chords in that lacing, were both members
strained or was one tight and the other loose?

Mr. KivrooH—My recollection is that they were all straired, they all sounded
high,

Prof. Keary.—DBoth arms of the * X’ and the straight cross piece as well?

Mr. KintocH—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And the riveting was all in good condition with the exception of
this one loose rivet.

Mr. KinrocH.-—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.~—Are you clear as to whether that rivet had alwnys been loose or
not{

Mr. Kinvoou.—No, sir, 1 know positively it was tight before.

Prof. Keray.—How long beforef

Mr, KinvocH.~—You mean how long was I sure it was tight beforet

Prof. Keray.—Yes.

Mr. KrxrocH.—I could not say that but I know it was tight that one time, because
I have tried it several times.

Prof. Kerry.~—~You made an inapection of itl

Mr. KintooH.~ -The reason is there had always been a little short chain bend in it
and I always watched it. I remember doing it two or three times, but would not say
whethor it was a month or two 'veeks before the accident,

Prof. Gasrarra.—Which rivet was this? _

Mr. Kivvoon.—The rivet in the west centre rib in that cross angle.

Mr. HoraaTe—In the angle ruuning at right angles to the chordi

Mr. KivLoon.-—Yes, sir.

Mr. Horoare—That was & shop rivet!

‘Mr. Kinvoon.—No, that was a field rivet, that angle had been cut off and put on
again.

Mr. Hovaate.—Oan you locate the last rivet referred tol

Mr, Kivroon.—It is the second tie angle dowr from the cover plate over splice
8 and 9, and it is in the west centre rib, the only one rivet there.

.
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Prof. GaLBRAITH.—What do you mean by the tie anglet

Mr. Kinroon.—The cross angle.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—A straight one?

Mr. KinnocH.~~The straight one that crosses.

Prof. GALBRAITH.~—]t is in that piece and in the west centre rib.

Mr. Kinrnoon.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. GasraITH.—You said that that rivet was a field rivet; how did that happen{

Mr. Kixvocn.—Thero were some angles that we cut off at the time it was repaired
and replaced.

Prof, Kerry.—80 far as you know, Mr. Kinloch, after the discussion as to the
advisability of moving out the traveller, there was no definite action taken in the way
of saying either that the traveller should be moved out or thet the traveller must not
be moved out by any officer of the Quebec Bridge Company.

Mr. Xinpoon.—No, sir, I do not know of any. )

Prof. Kerry.—Do you know, Mr. Kinloch, what grounds Mr, Yenser had for decid-
ing to move the traveller out on Wednesday morning, when it had been understood on
Tuesday towards noon, that it would not be moved until he got specific orders{

Mr. KinLoon.—No, sir, I do not.

Prof. Kegry.—S8o far as you know, no instructions concerning that chord reached
Mr. Yenser in that time?

Mr. KinLocH.—You mean from Pheenixville§

Prof, Kerrv.—From any sourcol

Mr. KmvrocH.—I do not know. .

Prof. Kerry.—Do you know if he got any information from anywhere.

Mr. KixrooH.—1 do not know a thing about it,

Prof. Keray.~—You had absolutely no communication with him, and know nothing
of his reasons?

Mr. Kinroc.—No, sir, I did not speak to him about it at all.

Prof, GareraiTi——Did you ever hear why he removed it before he received instruc-
tions?

Mr. Xinrocn.——No, sir.

Mr. StuART.—I understand that Mr, Birks had made some calculations as to the
additional strain that would be put on the structure if it weve moved, both Mr, Molure
and Mr. Birks. I understand that was done and the results were communicated to Mr.
Yenser?

Prof. Kerry.——~Can you produce evidence of thatf

Mr, Stuart—Mr. McLure will be able to give evidene of that.

Mr, Xivvoon.—Mr, McLure and Mr. Birks made some calculations, but I do not
know whether that influenced him to move the traveller or not. They made calcu-
lations that it would only increase the stress in that No. 9 chord a certain per cent, but
he was still of the opinion after the calculation was made that something was seriously
wrong there.

Prof. Kirzv.—You know that definitely?

Mr. Kinvocu.—Well, that was his talk.

Prof. Kerry.—~You mean you heard the talk yourself?

Mr. KivrnocH.—Yes, sir,

Prof. GavLerartit—You heard him say so?f

Mr. Kwrocu.—Yes, sir, we were talking together.

Prof. KerrY.—You also know, from what you have heard of the general conver-
sation, that it -was clear to everybody that the moving forward would increase the
strain on the member?

"~ Mr. KixiocH.—Yes, sir, they have the figures for that, Mr. McLure. ,

Prof. GaLBraiTH.—The engincer would probably make the calculations to deter-
mine the increase in stress for each time the traveller was moved out! Do you know
whether that was the practice or notf

Mr. KivvocH.—Well, Mr. McLure can tell you more about that,
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Prof. Kerey.—Do you know to what extent the condition of the chords was a
matter of general knowledge among the bridge men, and on what dates?

Mr. Kivvoc—Well, T guess Wednesday ufter we had measured there was a
goneral talk among a good portion of them, although some of them did nct know it
next morning, when they moved the traveller out. I spoke to Worley, and be did not
know of it. That was Wednesday morning, and we measured Tuesday. I also spoke
to.his assistant foreman, I do not know what his name is, his nickname is ‘ French-
man.” I had & number ~~ men ask me about it as I was going around; they asked
me and would eay: How  ‘ut that chord? But they all generally were referring to
the chord in the cantilever arm.

Mr. STUART.—Worley’s ignorance would be accounted for by the fact that he was
not there on Tuesday, he was sick{ ' '

Prof. Gansrarra.—Which of these chords do you think the men feared the most,
or talked most aboutf ) :

Mr. KixrocH.—Most of the inquiries they made of me referred to the chords in
the anchor arm.

Mr. HoLaArE—Was this a matter of general conversation?

Mr. Kinroor.~-It would not be with me, but among the riveters——

“Mr. Horoate.—Amongst the men?t

Mr. KintocH.—I cannot eay, as I was not mixed up with any gang, but I know
a good many asked me abou’ it, so T presume it must have been.

Prof. Kerrv.—Did any officials of the Canadian goverament visit the bridge for
inspection purpoges{ :

Mr. KinvocH.-—There is a Mr. Johnston, :

Prof. Kennv.—There is a Mr. Johnston, yes, connected with the government!

Mr. Kinrocii—He has been out there I do not know how many times.

Prof. Xerry.—Officially?

Prof. Kenny.—T1 suppose he was official.

Mr, Horaare.—Alonet '

Mr. Kinvoot.—No, T think Mr. Hoare was with him both times, if I am not mis-
taken, that I saw him.

Prof. Krrrv.—That is to say, the visits were very rare?

My, KixrocH—I do not know; lots of times I would be on shore for half a day
at a time. He might be there and go and I not know.

Prof. Keurv.—If a man was coming cut to inspect the bridge and you were on
the bridge you would probably see him, would you notf

Mr. Kintoci—I think I would, yes.

Prof. Keray.—What T wanted to get at was whether there was any regular out-
side inspection systomn existing that you know of. There would be then no one with the -
exception of the inspectors of the Quebec Bridge Company and the officers of the
Phenix Bridge Company who would be ju a position to know anything that was
happening .

Mr. Kivvoct.—No, I ¢ not think so.

Mr. HoLGATE~When Mr. Johnston visited the bridge, what sort of an inspection
did he maket

Mr. Kivtoon.—Well, sir, I do not think he made much of an inspection. He did
not come out, he was down on the ground and did not come out to =ee; he could not
climb on a span, :

Mr. Howeate.—Did you ever accompany him through the structure?

Mr. KXNIDOH'%NO, sir, wy

Prof. Kerey.—Have you told us now of every defect that has come te your
notice, Mr. Kinloch, to the best of your recollection {

Mr. Kenvoor.—1I think X have; T do not think I can remember sy more.

Mr. Stuser.—Mr. Haley, in his evidenoce, is reported in this way: ¢ {The witnees
indicated the eplice marked No. 9 on the Quebec side of the cantilever arm of the
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lower chord.)’ Later on he said that it was bulging out on both sides. I would like
to ask Mr. Rinloch what was the condition of that particular piece, whether it was
bulging on both sides, S o o

Mr. HoroaTe.- ~It has been stated, Mr, Kinloch, that the splice on the chord No.
0 on the Quebec side of the cuntilever arm was found to be bulging out on both sidest

Mr. Kintoon.—It is the same joint I described. .

Mr. HoLoATE~ ¥+ is the joint between 8 and 9, and the witness says it was bulg-
ing. He - 28 asked - What was bulging actually? What part of the splice? And
the witneis said: * All the webs and the chord. There were four webs in this chord,
{.vo outside ones and two centre ones; they were all giving way. The two ouwide ones
: ere going out.

Mr. Stuart.—He also says that the inside web wae bending. What I want to
know is whether that is an accurate statement, whether the webs were bending in
a diffarent way, one towards Montreal, and one towards Quebec, which of cour:e does
not correspond with that? ’ )

Mr. KiNLoCH.—-1t does to a considerable extent. The oaly difference T can see
in Haley's and mine is that Haley said it occurred in botb, and mine ouly in the
one, No. 8. :

Mr. Stuart.—He says there is a bend in the web and not in the splice at all; he
says the inside web was bending towards Montreal. :

Mr. Kixroc.—That is in the web. o

Mr. STUART.—As I understand,-he is not speaking of the splice, but of the web
later on.

Mr. Horaate.—Do you agree with Mr. Haley’s description of the bends in chord
Ne. 3-R in the cantilever arm? Y

Mr. Kixrocu.—No, sir.

Mr. HorLgaTE~—As shown on Exhibit 27-B? ,

Mr. KivLoci.—That is this bend here (indicating), the shape of it is what you
mean; I do not agree with it. The difference between Haley’s description and mine
is that mwy bend goes in there (indicating) and he has s straight bulge out on both
chords, and mine bulges out at the end the way 1 underetand it.

Mr. Davioson.—Mr. Haley simply intended to indicate, 1 take it, by this line
here (indicating) that on this side of this web there was a bulge outwards; you see
that is down the river towards Quebee, that on that side of this web there was a slight
bulge outwards towards Montreal. This does not mean at all that it is as large as
these two lines indicate (pointing to Exhibit 27-B).

Mr. HoLcaTE.—Did not Mr. McLure make accurate measurements of that cho:d1i

Mr. KinrocH.—From the cover plate only, and Mr. Birkn.

*(r. HoLOATE—We will call on Mr, Mclure later to preduce the exzact figures.
You were speaking of the inspection of the work just now, Mr. Kinloch, can you say
how often Mr. Huare inspected the work? . .

Mr. Kinnocu—No, I cannot.

Mr. Horaste—Was it frequent?

My, KiNLocH.~Yes, he was out there at least-once a week. - Some weeks he would
be out there pretty near every day, and I suppose there have been weeks wheu he has
rot been out once.

Mr. HoLoaTE.—On these inspections would he accompany you over the strcturet

Mr. KiNLocH.—Sometimes me-and sometimes Mr., McLure, whichever oue hap-
pened to be at leisure at the iime.

Mr. HorLoaTE.—And was that an inspection of the structure or an inspection of
the structure made from the track?

Mr. KinLocH.—An inspection of the structure made from the ivack and inquiry
from us how things were getting on in regard to different points.

_ Mr. HoroaTe.—Was the method of erection of the anchor arm clearly stated in
the blue prints that were prepared in advance by the Phenix Bridge Cowmpany!
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Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, sir, they were changed in some details only.

Mr, HoLoATE.—Were those instructions carried out with those exceptions as far
as you know? - - - - A D

"Mr. KivvocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HowoaTe.—And you were there all the time?

Mr. KintooH.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe—And did the work of erection show that the plans were ample!

Mr. Kisrocu.—Yes, sir. It was an excellent good rig for doing the work.

Mr. HoroaTE.—And what were these small exceptions that you referred tof

Mr. KiNLocH.—Why, in setting the first steel, some of the lighter members, they
had some of the heavier blocks detailed to drift them over; the particular changes
that we noticed were in this; instead of using these blocks that took an hour or an
hour and a half to take off, they drifted them over with small tackle.

Mr. 01.GATE.—That was just something that might arisel

Mr. Kivtocit.—Through the work. Pretty nearly everything was covered in the
plans as first got out, the hooking on of every set of appliances was shown exactly
and the position of it and what you had to use; in fact you had simply to follow
ing‘ructions and ibe thing would get there itself if you followed the lines laid down.

Mr. HoLoATE—Then the instructions were sufficiently minute with regard to the
placing of the lower chord system, to enable the working gang to do the work with
precision? '

Mr. XiNvock.—Yes, sir. o .

Mr. Horaare—That applies generally to the whole of the anchor arm, and would
you say that the same applied to the whole of the structure? '

Mr. Kinvoc.—Yes, I do not know of any changes; if they were made thev were
very minor,

Mr. Horaste.—Would it be a big job or a small job to lay out beforehand sll
these detail processes?

Mr, KinrocH.—It must have been an awful job,

Mr. Horaate.—Complicated {

Mr Kmvvocs.—Very complicated, yes, sir. The erection was practically all done
in the office before it was prt in the field. It must have taken a year of preparation
to get the plans out because every single member had its own plan, where it was to be
hooked on and what falls were to be used, and when one set of falls was to be taken
off and another put on. All these little things were gone into minutely, especially
on the important members, and they had special attachments for moving averything
figured out ; they did not go by guess on anything except the very lightest members,
such as the truss floor beams, and things like that that weighed less than five tons.

Prof. Kerry.—You could say that the men who prepared those plans thoroughly
ruderstood bridge erection §

Mr. KixrocH.~—Yes, sir.

Prof. KeErky.—And gave their very dest ability %o preparing the plant and the
plans for that erection 1

_ Mr. KwwocH.—VYes, giv.

Mr. HoLaaTE.—When you speak of the plant, you mean what; the travellers and
all the handling apparatus ¢

Mr, Kmroon.—Yes, sir. .
 Mr. HoLGATE.—And that was included in your description of the general scheme

as being well designed t : ‘
Mr, KriLocH.—Yes, sir, I criticised the oectric hoists in the start-off, I did not

like them, but they panned out to be all right. .
Mr. HoLGaTE.~—All the handling mechinery was there that was required !

Mr. KinrocH.—Yes, sir, in abundaace.
154—vol. ii—16 '
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Mr. Horoate.—And was there anything that was required for the carrying cut of
the work that was not used !

Mr. KinrLocH.--I cannot think of anything that I could have done any better with.

Mr. HoraaTe.—In other wotrds, the whole ground you think had been~ fully
covered {

Mr, KixvocH..—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLoaTE~~And would you put it in this way, would you say that all contm-
gencies had been provided for {

Mr. KinvocH.—] think that would be a very good way to express it.

Mr. HoLaaTE—Notwithstanding that it was an exceptional piece of work 1

Mr. Kixvocn. -Well, if it had not been an exceptional piece of work it would not
have required all that preparation.

Mr. Horcate.—Then, notwithstanding its exceptional character, everything had
been fully provided for in your opinion {

Mr. KivvocH.—ITt had ; right on the ground they had Mr. Birks who was the——

Mr. HoLoatE.—T am speaking of the plans and appliances.

Mr. Kixrocd.—I am speaking of him because he was capable of getting them out
on a moment’s notice. e was the best man on erection I ever saw.

Mr. HoLeate.—Mr, Birks was 1

Mr. KinLoou.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoOLGATE. ——Wlth regard to the progress of riveting, Mr, Kinloch, did you
make reports 1

Mr. Kixroc.—Only-daily -to-Mr.—McLure, e

Mr. Hovaate—Were they in writing or did you Jmt give hlm a memorandum at
the end of the day ?

"Mr. KixtocH.—I gave him a memorandum at the end of the day, they were in a
book, und he copied them off into a diary,

Mr. HorLoate.—Not a formal report,

Mr. Kixrocu.—No, just how meny gangs were riveting and how many rivets they
drove.

Mr. Horoate.—So if any report exists on riveting it would contain th» informa-
tion you gave to Mr. McLure ¢

Mr. KinLocH.—Yes, sir.

Mr, Horoate—When joints were bolted up, Mr. Kinloch, whose instructions were
necessary in order that the riveting might be commencgd and earried out 1

Mr. KinvocH.—Mine,

Mr. HoLoaTe.—From whom did you get those instructions 1

Mr. KinLocH.— Why, the little green tooks of the Phonix Bridge Company had
the general instructions for riveting.

Mr. HorLgaTE—But as to the time when that should be done ¢

Mr. KivvocH.—That was at my own discretion,

Mr, Horcate.—That was left to your judgment &

Mr. KiviocH. —Yes, sir.

Mr. HoLGATE ——How dxd you urderatand that that responsxb:lxtv devolved on
you ¢t -
Mr. Kinvoor.—It devolved on me only thm much that I was to Judge of when a
certain condition existed in a member. The orders were to rivet certain members
when they came in perfect contact, and I was the judge of when they were in perfect

—-gontact.” Thay could not be riveted before they were in perfect contact;-so T generally-— -

called Mr. McLure in on a matter befars wo riveted.

Mr. HoLoATE—~You understood that as part of your duty ‘hen {

Mr. Kmwrocs.—Yes, sir.

Mr. HoroaTe.—As to parts in the field joints-near thei. final position, dxd you find
it necessary from timé to time to change the bolts from a smaller to a larger sizet

Mr, KivrooH—In wome of the members, yes, sir. ™Mot all of them. -~
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Mr., HorgaTe-~Have you any reason wh'y it was not genersal? :

Mr. Kinroort—Well, it depended a good deal on where the member was and what
sized bolts were in it before.

.. Mr.-HotoaTE—~Then was it the Tule that the smaller bolts had to be used first 1

Mr. KinLooH.—Put in just as big a bolt as they could get in the hole. -

Mr. HoLoaTE—Then was the inspection frequent enough and complete enough to
detect the time at which these bolts should be changed{

Mr, Kinroon—Well, there was no movement you know, the movement all came
you might say together, when it began to pick and from that forward.

Mr. HoreaTe.—That is thers was a regular movement as the work progressed on
the cantilever arm{

Mr. Kinroor.—After a certain period, no, sir; there was not much movernent until
we got quite a way out, I forget exactly which panel. Mr., McLure can tell you that,
but the joints commenced to close and really it is hard for me to remember that. It
is all down in record and you can get it better from Mr. MecLure thar. I can give it to
you. . ,

Mr, HoLGATE.—Was there always a sufiicient force of riveters on the work 1

Mr. KinrocH—Oh, yes, sir, on this work the riveting was on the bottom chord,
mostly all compression members, very few tension members, and as far as 1 wad
personally myself concerned, I would just as soon not have seea any of it riveted up to
now, outside of a féw tensiom members in the bridge. .

Mr. HoLoatE.—So at any rate there was no lack of rivetersi

Mr. Kinroosr.—Oh, no, they always had men. They used to work them into other
work, they were always there to fall back on-to replace men-in-the raising gang, if a
rap in the raising gang should stop work they could take a few from the riveting
galy
Mr. Horgate—There was always a sufficient number of riveters to keep the rais-

ing gang fullt
My, KiNrocH.—Yes, sir. :
“—  ““Mr HowaaTE—After the wreck of the bridge, Mr. Kinloch, T understand that you
identified certain members and marked them prior to their being photographed
Mr. KasvocH,—Yes, sir, I helped.
Mr. HoLeaTe.—You are sure that the identification, as far as it went, *vas correct?
Mr. Kivoon—With one exception.
Mr. HorgaTE—Which was thatt
Mr, Kinvoci.—That is that the picture marked chord 9-L west rib should be west
centre rib. That is on that photograph. It should be west cenfreo rib A-¢-L  (Photo-
graph was marked in accordance with Mr. Kinloch’s directions.) That is correct.
Mr. HoLaaTE—I will put in this series of 24 photographs. (Photographs put in
and marked Exhibit No. 84) You sassisted in taking the photographs numbered
Exhibit 341
Mr. KinLoos.—Yes, sir.
Mr, HoroaTe~-I understand the’ you took certain photographs yourself?
Mr. KiNLooR.—Yes, sir,
Mr. HorLaaTe.—These 21 photographs (referring to a number of photographs) are
--the-ones you took yourself? - . R
Mr. KinrocH.—Yes, sir. -
(Photographs rut in and marked Exnibit No. 85.)
Mr, Horaate—We are through with Mr, Kinloch.
 Mr. Davinson.—There is one point 4n which I would like a question to be put to
Mr. Kinloch: Has he formed any opiuion as to the point at which the break occurred
in the bridge when it fell. '

Mr. Hovaate—No, 1 won't ask that. :

Mr, DaviDsoN,—Of course, it is a suggestion to the Commission.

Mr. HoraaTe—We must foim our opinion on the evidence we got.

154—vol. ii—16} } S . o,
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e My, 7DAvmso};,—What occurs to me is this : Mr. Kinloch is a gentleman of wide

experience in this kind of work. Although not an engineer he certainly must have
acquired a vast amount of knowledge and he has shown that he has done so in his
examination.” He is intimately connected with this work, he actually saw the bridge
{all and as a matter of fact he has already stated at the coroner’s inquest, where in

his opinion, this break occurred. I can quite conceive that it would not in any way

bind the Commisisoners. It would simply be an expression of opinion by him in no
way binding upon the Commissioners in arriving at & conclusion as to where that break
occurred. At the same time it does appear to me that it would be useful to have the
opinion of a man like Mr. Kinloch on that point, who was-an eye-witness to the fact.

Mr. HoLaaTE—If we can see anything to assist us in asking Mr. Kinloch’s
opinion, Mr. Davidson, we will not hesitate to ask bhim, but you can see from the
nature of the examination of Mr. Kinloch, that we have tried to extract everything
he knows. '

Mr. Davipsox.—Certainly, there is no doubt about that.

Mr. Horeate.—And short of asking him the question you have just asked, we have
asked him pretty nearly everything; so that we feel that we have the benefit of Mr.
Kinloch’s knowledge of the conditions and we also feel that he has not kept anything

from .us.

Me. Davinson.—1 do not think he has.

Mr. HoLgat.—Let us leave that entirely as it stands, Mr. Davidson, for a little
while. If there is any object to be gained by asking Mr. Kinloch that at a later period
we will do so. At the present time I think it would be out of place.

77 Mr. Davipson.——All right, sir. Tt

Witness retired.

Mr. Hoagke, recalled :

Mr. [Horoate.—ITere are some documents from your company. Can you deposit
those 1 .

Mr. Hoare.—I will deposit this agrecment between the Government of the pro-
vinee of Quebec and the Quebec Bridge Company of the 27th November, 1900
(Agreement fiied and marked Exhibit No. 36), and this agreement between the City
of Quebec and the Quebec Bridge Company dated September 22, 1800. (Agreement
filed and marked Exhibit No. 37.)

Witness retired.

Commission adjourned to meet to-morrow (Saturday) at ten a.m.

. .  Quesec, Saturday, September 21, 1807.

The Commission resumed at ten a.m.
Mr. KinvocH, recalled : f
Prof. Kerrt.—Mr, Kinloch, we have evidence here that was given by a witness—
Delphia Lajeunesse—which we do not quite fully understand. Perhaps you could
explain to us just what the witness was doing a* that time. I will read you over his
evidence first of all. The evidence as quoted here is not exactly my
cecollection of what DLajeunesse said. He fold us that he- wae bolting
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on some splice bars and was standin gup on top of a wooden box for the purpose of

nitching on his tackle to lower a box of tools down to his brothei who was down below

him. There came a sudden jerk on the bridge and he was thrown down in the box that

he was standing on. He got up and turned sround and looked at the traveller and

suw that the traveller was standing there all right; then, he looked at the Quebec truss

of the anchor arm and he saw that it was falling towards Quebec. Then, the whole

bridge fell and he hung on to the bridge and retained his place until it got down. As

a matter of technical fact indicating the character of the failure the evidence is very-
important, and if you would describe to us just as nearly as you can make out exactly

what he was doing at the time it would assist us.

Mr, EinLocH.—The only splice where it is riveted there is what we cal]l a little
buck brace or cross frame for a stiffener inside of the splice (indicating peint L on
Exhibit No. 26). In all of the splices it is the same. This is left off and he was
bolting this on. .

" Prof. Kesrv.—They bolt on to what member :

Mr. Kinrocs.—They bolt on to the cross member. They take off one of them-in.
order to get in. )

Prof. Keary.—That is speaking of P-2 post {

__Mr, KwrocH.—Yes, - . -

Prof. Kerny.—The cross brace that they call the buck brace ¥ 7L T

r. Kixroc.—Yes, I am not sure whether there was any place there—whether
there was any turn bolt that he could put in, but there were different places where
_thay could not drive the rivets where they would put in turn bolts, and they would
fasten the tackle on the diagonal to lower the tools down.-His brother was down-below
end he was letting his tools down to his brother. This box is about eight inches wide
and eighteen inches long and five ‘ﬁ‘?ﬁi“ﬁféhey*deepjwith“a'han(}le'pailed across the -
top of it—a picee of board.

Prof. Kerry.—He said he was standing on his box ¢

Mr. Kinwoi.—He may have been standng on his box to reach the tackle over his
head. . - :

Prof. Kerny.—Where would he be standing ¢

(Mr. Kinloch pointed out the position evidently occupied by Mr. Lajeunesse.)

Prof. Kerry.—He was probably standing on the cross strut running from P-2-R to
P-9.L and ending near the point marked L on Exhibit 26 1

Mr. Kinvoon.—Yes, sir. )

Prof. GaLeraiTH.—On the cross strut between P-2-R and P-2-I. ¢

Mr. XixrocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Garsraiti—Close to P-2-R ¢

Mr. Kisroon.—He must have just moved there because he was near there a few
minutes before. They also cleaned up the bolts that were there and let them down.
In fact they were finishing up. .

Prof. Kurry.—~He would probably up-end his box to reach the tackle {

Mr. Kinvoor.—No, air, T do not know that he would; it would be too iittle a box
to up-end and stand on. s

 Prof. Keray.—Well, then, the jerk that threw him down would probably have only
dropped him four or five inches T T e

Mr. Kvvoc.—I do not think he would have stayed there if he had got very
much of a jerk.

Prof. Kerry.—His feet would drop in the box. He was probably standing on the
edge of the box. .

Mr. Kixroc.—I do not know if you could get your feet in this box or mot. I
understood him to say that he dropped on his box. .

Prof. Kerry.—He could see the lines of the big traveller from there §

Mr. KivLoct.—I do not know if he could very distinctly—no. He could see
that the traveller was there all right. . . .

»
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Prof. Kisry.—That is ull that he said.

Mr, KiNLsu.—He could see probably the top part and be could probably see the
little traveller better than the big traveller. There is a big mass of transverse brac-
ing all through there.

Prof. Kerry —He could see the Quebec iruss of the anchor arm very fullyt

Mr. Kixrocr.—Yes,

Prof. Kerrv.—Then, referring to another point, what waas the nadition of the
riveting on the main diagonals {

Mr. Kixvoc.—50s and 5 1

Prof. Kerry.—Yes.

Mr. Kixroc.—The two top splices down from the centre post wsre riveted com-
plete, the next splice had no rivets (that is in the anchor arm)—none whatever and
the joints were open about—well, from fsth to a quarter of an inch, just gessing.
I never measured; I was not close, but the next splice down on the Quebec side was
riveted complete. On the Montreal side the inslle of the truss was riveted and the
outside lacked about tsth of an inch of being close. That is all the splicing.

) Prof. Kerry.—Is that loose splice you mentioned right down at _the foot of the
diagonal 1

Prof. Kinxtocu.—No, it is right at the top.

Prof. Kerny.—Iow about the connection with P-4 1

Mr. Kivtoci—That is a pin connection,

Prof. Kerrv.—Right where the main diagonal connects with P-4 there was in

~ that truss a horizontal brace running across the pier connecting with the cantilever
arm. o S S
Mr. Kixroon.—Right at the end of it §

Prof. Kerry.~—Yes ? T

Mr. KiNnvrocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.~Was that riveted up?

Mr, Kinvocun.—No, sir, it was entirely loose.

Prof. Xerry.—It was in place but not fastened?

Mr. KivnvocH—Not fastened.

Mr. HorcaTe—At what point?

Mr. KinLooH.-—P-4,

Prof. Kerry.~~Was it otherwise fastened{

Mr. XivvocH.—Riveted at the other end.

Prof. Keary.—Was it riveted to the T-5-Z members there?

Mr. XinrooH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. KErRY.—Was it riveted to the main post!

Mr. XKinvocH-~Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—So that it was practically finished except for ons connection at
the end of P-4 in the anchor arm{ :

Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, sir.

r:of. KerRrY.—Why was it left loosed
Mr. KivLocH—According to instructions to provide for the movement of the

--~gentre post going ahead,—-——-—-

Prof. Keury.—It had not yet settled in its final position {

Mr. KivrocH.~-No, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Was it getting nearly into such a position that it could be riveted
up finally$

Mr. KixrLoc.—No, the holes were too bad to do anything with it.

Prof. Kerry.—They would be how much out?

Mr. Kinvoci.—I never had it up in position enough to know for sure but I would
say th~* it would be a hole out anyway. '

Prof. Kepry.—The whole width of a holet

Mr. KixtocH.—Yes, sir.
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Prof. Kemry.~—Which way—too long or too short?

Mr. Kmroor.—I think it was too long. I am not poditive upon that because 1
did not pay much attention to it only I noticed it was out.

Prof. Kesry.—It was not considered of very great jmportance!

Mr. Kivroon.—No, sir. .

Prof. KErrY.—Was that on both the Quebec truss and the Montreal trussf

Myr. Kinvocn.~Yes, sir.

Prof. Kxrrv.—The members were in the same condition?

Mr. KinLocH.—The same condition. -

Prof. Kerry.—Was the main diagonal of the cantilever arm riveted up!

Mr. Kmrocu.~-It kad no rivets in it in placet

Prof. Kerry.—Just bolted?

Jur. Kinvoon.—Just bolted.

Ptrof. Kerry.—Full bolted

Mr. KIkLocH.—Yes.

Prof. Kerny.—Have you thought of anything you omitted to state in your evidence
yesterday

Mr. KinvooH.—Mr. Holgatd asked me about chord 10-L and I had noticed a bulg-
ing on the cover plate.

' " Prof. Krrry.~Of the anchor-armf- -

M. Krvtoon—Yes, at the splice of chord 10 and 9, end I called the Indisn’s

attention to it and told him to put a couple of bolts in it and asked him how long it
had been in there and he said that it had been there ever since they came. )
 Prof. Kerry.—That is ever since the gang went there for the purpose of rivet-
ing up that jointi T T T N

Mr. Kisrocu.—Yes, sir. e

Prof. Keray.—How long had they been working on the joint?

Mr, Kinvoct.—I think they started on Saturday; I am not sure. Also at the
foct of 10, when it was set, it was found that the ribs did not match and we cut a
diaphragm.

Prof. Kerry.—They did not match on the stub chord?

Mr, KmvLocH.—No; we cut a diaphragm, jacked the webs over, reamed the holes
and held them over there with wedges.

Prof. Kerrv.—Reamed which holes?

Mr. KintocH.—The holes in the diaphragm. The diaphragm was shop riveted in
there and the ribs did not quite match. One of them was off from the other three.

Prof. Kerry.—A matter of how muchft -

. r. Kinvocn.—About a quarter of an inch. When Mr. Scheidel camc there we
called his attention to it and it was his instructions to do that.

Prof. Kerry.—Then you field riveted it after you had reamed the holes outt
You replaced the diaphragm with field rivets? :

Mr. KiNrLoon.—We replaced the diaphragm but whether it was field riveted or not
T am not positive. I think it was left at the time; it was wedged there.

Prof. Kerry.~~ITow were the wedges inserted{ .

_Mr, KinvocH.—A long thin wedge driven dovn between the end of the diaphragm
and the chord rib. I e e S ‘

Prof. Gausrairt—To widen the spacel

Mr. KinrocH.—To widen the space.

« Prof. Kerry.—You spoke of Mr. Scheidel; we have not heard of him before as
being on the bridge locally. How often did he visit the bridgel .

Mr, KINL( OH.--Only once that I can remember. He may have been here twice,
but he was here for auite a while at one time. :

Prof. Kesrv.—He did not come up in any specific connection, but was simplr
visiting the works{ ' ’
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Mr. KixLocH.— I really do not know what he did come up for or whether he just
came up on a visit,

Prof. Kerry.—While he was on that visit this particular detail was referred to
him?

Mr. KinvLocH.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—If I remember rightly, Mr. Schexde! was responsible for all the
detailing of the bridget

Mr. KinLoon.—I understood so; yes, sir.

Prof. Kesry.—Did you notice whether the Indians put the bolts in tnat you
directed on-that cover platef?

Mr. KixrocH.—No, I do not believe I did.

Prof. Kerry.—You gave them that direction what day?

Mr, KinvocH.—Wednesday, I think.

Prof. Kerry.—They were then working on the joint be:ween 9 and 101

Mr. KinvooH.—Yei.

Prof. Kerry.—Tb: bulge was on the upper end of 101 The plate had lifted?

Mr. KiNLocH.—Yes, the plate had lifted at the lower end of No. 91

Prof, Kerry.—The lower end of No. @ resting on No. 10¢ .

Mr, Kivvocn—Do you mean that the plate was solid on No. 101

Prof. Kerry.—Yes.

Mr. KinLocH.—I am not positive about that. It may have been up a little but
not quite as much as it was at the upper end of No. 9.

Prof. Kerry.—How would you detect a defect of that kind?

Mr. Kivnoon.—By looking down through the hole

ProfKesry==The bolts were outf S - S

Mr. Kinpocu.—~What called my attention to it was that I cautxoned them about
“taking the «rift pins out, and told them why I wanted the drift pins left in, and T
just leoked through the hole and saw the plate was up. I told them to draw that
plate down,

Prof. KErrY.—A matter of how much, do you suppose?

Mr. KinLoo—A quarter of an inch.

Prof. GaLBraiti.—Was that the condition all across the chord of the plate away
from the angle iron all along thechord on the four ribs?

Mr. KivvocH.—No, it was bolted on the edge and in the centre they only had
drift pins in because it is about five feet to reach up and you cannot hold the bolt
to put it in without special preparation and the instructions are to put drift pins in,

Prof. GarBraiTH.—What was the space between

Mr. Kivroon.—I suppose it was a gradual hump from one to the other; it was
not a short bend or kink.

Prof. KerrY.—On the opposite edges it would probably be drawn down tightt

Mr. KixrLocH.—Yes, sir, it was drawn down tight.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—A  gradual curve from one edge to tne other showmg the big-
gest space in the middle?

Mr. Kmvvocn.~—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—On the opposite side the joint was full riveted on 9 and 10¢%

Mr. KinLoon.—Yes, that gang had just moved over.

Prof. Kerrvy.—That is on the Quebec side?

Mr. Kinoon.—Yes,

Prof. Kerrv.—Do you think you have told us, Mr, Kinloch, every indication that
you know of that could help us to find out the cause of the failure?

Mr. KinrLoon.—To the best of my memory, I have. There may be some small
things in there, but I did not think they would have any bearing on the thing. There
may be some little errors in there that I have not thought of.

Prof. Kerrv.—Every reason you have got for forming personal opinions you

have given to us?
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Mr. KintocH.—Yes, sir. I might say that there was a slight error in punching
in the anchor section of the main diagonals, but they would net have anything to do
with it. That joint was completely riveted up, but there were some holes that were
bad; in fact tbey were blind, and we hed to put some re-enforcing plates on that.
Mr. McLure has a sketch of the plate which will show that.

Prof, Kenry.—That is on the main diagonsll

Mr, KivwodH.—VYes, sir, on the Montreal side. . ~

Prof. Kerry.—In the evidence given by the witness, Alexander Beauvais, he
mentioned that directly provious to the accident his working partner eaw one rivet
right on that 9 and 10 joint broken and very shortly afterwards ancther one broke.
In ordinary practice is the failure in a comparatively short time after driving of
field rivets a usual thing?

Mr. KinvocH.—No, it is not a usual thing, but it happens sometimes,

Prof. Kerry.—It happens sufficiently frequently for you to assuine that the fault
is in the rivet generally{

Mr. KiNnLoon.—Generally we do not pay any attention to it. You might hear
gome remark about it by the gang driving the rivets, but it would not alarm anybody.

. Prof. Kenry.—You would lay the blame on the men driving the rivets rather than
on the structure? . ) '

Mr. Kixroct.—Yes, sir, you would think that it was in the rivets, not in the struc-
ture.

Prof. Kerry.—And if you saw two going close together you would still not be
alarmed {

Mr. Kincoc.—I do not know; no.

— —Prof. Kerav.—In-addition- he-said that they saw the ribs bending away from the

cover plate,
Mr. Kinvocs.—The side cover platet —— - -~ - S e
Prof. Kerky.—I imagine the cover plate of the rib he was working on. He was
working on one of the two inside ribs. What would you have thought of thatf
Mr. Kinrocn.—If I had seen it I would have been going yet.

Witness retired.

Mr. McLugE, recalled.

Prof. Kerry.—I think you might just go over the different points as Mr. Kinloch
did. First of all, tell us about each of the unexpected happenings that came to your
notice on the bridge and what was done in regard to them ¢

"~ Mr., MoLure—1I could be able to do that better ut of my books. ]

Prof. Kerry.—Are the books in the possession of the Commission just at present?

Mr. MoLure.—No, sir, they ave right here.

Prof. Kerry.—Take your books, please! (Witness produced a note-book.)

Mr. HoLoate.—Is that a private note-book?

Mr. MoLuge.~-No, sir. .

Mr. Horoate—Has it got the informationt .

Mr. McLure—It has got a record of the things I found on the bridge. I think
very nearly everything is in-there. -There may be & few things I have in my diary
that T have here and there may be a few things that are not in here that will be in my
correspondence with Mr. Cooper. I cannot attempt to recall all thoee things to mind
now. The book iz entitled, ¢ Record of shop errors found in field during erection.

(Note-book put in and marked Exhibit No. 38).

Prof. Kerrv.— By refezence to the book you can go over your ground thoroughly

Mr. McLure—1 think so.

Prof. Kzray—I think it would be well to have your own statement.

Mr. MoLugg—Do you want me to cover the ground that Mr. Kinloch covered too,
because everything he stated to you I have seen myself.
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Prof, Kerry.—Very largely, Mr. McLure, because in a good many cases Mr, Kin-
loch left his evidenco incomplete for reference to you for the factst

Mr. MoLure.—I have not got the dates down here (referring to Exhibit No. 38).
The first thing I can remember that we came acroes in the erection that had to bd
rectified was in the batten plates on the dummy chords A-O-O-—R and L at the con-
nection to the top of the post P-1-R-L. These batten plates interfered with entering
the chords and we had to cut them off. We referred the matter to Mr. Cooper and
the Thenixville office and we were instructed to leave them off. :

Mr. HorLoaTE—It is & pity you cannot give the date of that.

Mr. McLure.—I will tell you when it was—September, 1905. ‘

Mr. Horaate~—Can you say that the exhibit is a record of sll the shop defects
found in the field?

Mr. MoLure.—Yes, shop defects and every other kind of defects.

Mr. Horoate—Alll

Mr. McLure.—All except, as I said before, perhaps one or two that I have in my
correspondence or diary that would not be in here, but I cannot think of any now that
I have not included in here.

Prof. Kerey.—I think you were just taking up, Mr. McLure, a case that you
considered it necessary to refer to a higher authority for advicel

Ms. McLure.—This is on April 21, 1906. At the connection of diagonal A-T-4,
with top chord of truss floor beam A-F-B-8 of the anchor arm 7 holes on each side of
the diagonal A-T-4 did not match the holes in the floor beam. This was referred to
Mr. Cooper and Pheenixville, it was thought that it should be reinforced and a platd
‘was furnished to put on over the connection plate and holes drilled through from the
strut to the plate. -~ e e :

Prof. Kerry.—A -cinforcing plate was supplied, drilled in place and riveted ¢

Mr. MoLure—No, sir, it was never put on, Mr. Cooper said that it was not
necessary. But it was provided by-the Phenix Bridge Company.

Prof. Kerry.—Provided but not put on?

Mr. McLure—Yes, sir. . _

Prof. Kerav.—Were the holes, where necessary, left unfilled1

Mr. McLure—No, sir; the holes were drilled through the original connection,
the plate without the re-enforcing plate, and riveted that way. In the connection
between S-V-5-L on top of hanger A-U-T-5-Z-L of anchor arm, two horizontal rows
of holes on the inside did not match by an inch and a quarter. These were the holes
that connected the big truss anchor and the top splice plate on the hanger. A sketch
was sent in to Phenixville by Mr. Birks, and a re-enforcement plate provided for that
connection and riveted on there only recently. I have not the date for that.

Prof. Kerry.—~Will these sketches he among the file of plansi

Mr. McLure.—I have a sketch of it here.

Prof. Kerry.—Put in by Mr. Hoaret

Mr. McLure.—Put in by Mr. Hoare. ‘ -

Prof. Kerny.—Mr, Hoare has supplied us with the Quebec bridge plans,

Mr. McLure.—No, I do not believe it will be. Then, as Mr. Kinloch has already
gaid, there was a slight dish found on the top centre post section O-P-1-R and L after
the brackets were riveted on. That was.referred to Mr. Cooper and ‘his svggesticns
followed in the matter when it was erected.

Prof. Kerry.—~What were the suggestionsi

Mr. McLure.—To get a certain percentage of bearing area before we allowed it
to be erected. That is in the correspondence. )

Prof, Kerny.—His instructions were carried outi

Mr. McLune.-—Yesg, sir. )

Prof. Kerry.—Did you note that joint at any subsequent time{ .

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir, I think I did. I remember locking at it—1I do not remem-
ber just what date, but this year some time. Of course, it was a joint between two
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fiat plates, and it was spliced up with these splices on the sides, 50 that practically all
you could see were the corners.

Mr, Kxrry.~The spliced plates that you remember seeing in the two finished sur~
faces were in good contactl

Mr. MoLuae.—Yes, sir. At the time of the eroction of that joint Mr, Birks and 1
took sowme thin steet feelers and went down in the sections, in the manholes in the
two plates that come together, and slipped this in and around the edges to see how the
bearing was actually. I have a record bf that. The top cover plates over centre posts
(-P-R & L that conmect the top laterals on the cantilever arm side did not fit the con-
necting sngles in the post sections. On the west truss it was not a sufficiently bad fit to
make any change in the metal, so that the holes were reamed. On the east truss in the
connecting angles they were sent from Phenixville in the blank, taken up there and
drilled to fit. Mr. Kinloch has already mentioned & warp in the base plate of the
east shoe that was found at the time of setting the shoe in August, 1005, It ran through
in a longitudinal direction in the east half of the shoe, the maximum being fsths of
an inch. This was reported, and the instructions were to watch it and see if the
weight placed on the shoe would take that warp out. Subsequent inspection showed
that the weight had taken the warp out, but not altogether.

Prof. Kerry.—Were any repairs madel

Mr, McLuRe.~—No, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—That was the joint between——-

My, MoLuRe.—Between the top pedestal and the shoe. ]

Prof. GaLsraiTH.—That was a warp that was in it when it arrived and was deliver-
ed at the bridge? .

Mr. McLure—We did not notice it until-we set it and compared. it with_the top _
plate »f the pedestal. »

~ Prof. Kerny.—It remained to the end as a minor but permanent defecti-- - -

Mr. Mol ire.—1 could not say about the end; the last time I saw it it was not
‘entirely up. We had instructions to plug it up with red lead or paint filler to prevent
moisture getting in, and you could see in the squeezing out that it was settling and
that it had not altogether closed. ' .

Prof. GALBRAITR.—What was the thickness of the platel v

Mr, MoLure.—1I think it was a 3-inch plate planed down to 2} inches. In the
transverse strut belonging to truss 4-B-F-B-9 of the cantilever arm—the bottom trans-
verse strut—the end of the connection piates had to be chipped slightly in order to
enter them in the connection at the feet of posts P-4.

Prof. Kerry.—What datel

Mr, MoLure—I have not the date for that, but it mnust have been in Avgust,
1906. They were chipped off and four rivet holes removed from one of the plates at
the chord I refer to. The thickness was two plates, and reports were sent in in the
regular way about it. .

Prof. Keary.—What would be the amount chipped off

Mr. McLure~—About 16 square inches.

Prof. Kreey.—In length, I meant

Mr, McLuge.—1 have a sketch of it. ST

Prof. Kerey.—1 understand that the transverse strut was too long? (The witneas
here explained the detail of this alteration from his notes in Exhibit No. 88) and
continued: On the end post of the cantilever arm at the connection to the north ends
of the end bottom chords we found on the south side of the poets the plate lapping
over the chord extended too far down ond this was evidently a mistake in readin_g
the Jrawing. Thechordwuchippedintheﬁekltoﬁtthepostmflunotemtofn
totheshopandtbepoetsforthenorth.sidewomnpdolhdmnhngly. .In&'otops
of the end posts on the cantilever arm the cutstanding legs of four varuyd lw
. angleshadwbechippod about an inch andahalftoadmi&ﬁ&ecmectmthnkfor
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the suspended span. I guees that is all. I did not read over all but those are all vhe
ones that were rectified as I remember. »

Prof. Kspry.—In general, Mr. McLure, would you say that in all details the ehop
work was exceedingly satisfactory!

Mr. MoLune.—Yes, sir. ,

- Prof. Krarv.—The errors that you.found either in.the dimensions of members
or in the provisions for riveting were very fewi

Mr, McLure.—Very few indeed. .

Prof. KErry. -And for the field riveting the holes were found to match wellt

Mr. McLuae.—~-I cannot speak with as much authority on that as 1dr. Kinloch,
but considering the number of holes, I should say that they matched very well.

Prof. Keary.—Mr. Kinloch mentioned two or three places where there were
eracks in members. You might speak about themfi

Mr. McLure.—Thers was one crack in a finished plate for the bottom strut of
truss floor beam F-1-8 at the foot of Post P-4 on the south anchor arm. It was noticed
that the plate was cracked shortly after its erection and a report was made of it and a
repair plate furnished and put in place. I do not recollect any other cracks except
one or two lattice angles had the outstanding leg cracked on some of the transverse
braces.

Prof. Kerry.—No members were erected that were known to be cracked at the
time, Mr. McLure? ’ }

Mr. McLuge.—No, sir. Yes, there was one transverse diegonal that had the out-
standing leg of the lattice angle cracked; that was erected, a note made of it and the
understanding was it was to be cut off and a new angle put on. :

— Prof, Kerry.—~Was-that done?- - - - - .

Mr. McLure.—No, sir, it has never been dome yet; it is out on tx) end of the
" cantilever arm. o o . o : -

Prof. Xernv.—Where would the record of that bef

Mr. McLure—1n another book there. (Book produced, filed, and marked Exhibit
39). Shall I read it, about that lattice engle!

Mr. HoLoatE.—Yes, or note what page it is.

Mr. McLurE-—It is page § of Exhibit 39. ¢ Transverse diagonal 671-T. 71
«cuth cantilever arm. Third lattice angla from the top bend on this diasgonasl has its
outstanding leg cracked, and must be replaced.

Prof. KerRRY.~—Wo had some evidence dealing with the crinkling up of the joint -
of g bend in the plates between the centre posi'and S-P-5. -

Mr. MoLure. S-P-5, yes, sir. I had correspondenca with Mr. Cooper about that.

Prof. Kerry.—Your correspondence with Mr. Cooper and Mr. Kinloch’s evidence
cover that point perfectly.’ :

Mr, McLure—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.—Then you have now covered all the actual difficulties that you
noted, either by exhibits or your statements.

Mr. McLure.—Yes, as near as I can recollect now.

Prof. Kerry.—And there has been certain evidence given with regard to cracked
plates in the vicinity of the base of the centre post?! Different witnesses have men-
tioned different plates as cracked. Can you give any evidence bearing on thoset

Mr. McLure.—I never saw any cracked plates there.. '

Pror. Kerav.—How thoroughly and how often would you have inspected that
part of the bridge {

Mr. McCLure.—] cannot say exactly as to how often, but when I inspected it
1 inspected it thoroughly enough to see a crack of any magnitude at all. )

Prof. Kerky.—Will you say positively that all the plates around the base of the
centre post had been inspected since June 16 by you ¢

Mr. McCLuae.—Yes, sir.
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th P;-of. Keanv.—And that to your obeervation there-ws3 fe crack in any one of

Mr. MoLuae—No, sir, not the slightsst.

Mr. Davipeon.—Might I suggest to the commissioners that the witness be askod
if he could eocount in any way for the very positive statemen* made by thres wit-
niess:s that they saw cracked platest

Mr: Horoarn— Which witnesses 1

Mr, Daveo—OQuimet——

Mr. HoroaTe.—Ouimet har not come before us. .

Mr. DavmeoN—No, of course hia statement was at the doroner’s inguest, but
the other two, Davis and Lafrance, they were cross-examined on the point, they were
@iked if it was possible they could be mistaken, if they could have mistaken some-
thing else for a crack and notwithstanding that they still maintained that it was
cracks that they saw. I would like to know if Mr, McLure can account for that in
any way. .

Prof. Kerry.~—What explanation would you offer of any appearances that could
have misled these witnesses ?

Mr. MoLuse—The only explanation I could offer would be that they might have
ween a crimp in the plate from Lafrance evidence; of course T cennot locate even the
plate he saw it on. From Mr. Davis’ evidence the crimp and the crack that he said
he saw are in exactly the same place,

v Prof. Kerrr.—Could you make a sketch as a matter of evidenoe showing a seo-
tion through the plate right at the crimp to show how sharply the plate was bent
therot

- — - MeLURE-—I-do not know from memory if I-ean. Jean try.it...

Prof. Kerry,—Just a transverse gection through the plate.

Mr. MoLure.—Yes, siv. T o

Mr. STUART.—I am told that Mr. Edwards hgs an actual sketch of that crimp
which was referred to Mr. Cooper; he can produce it.

Mr. HoroaTE—Perhaps it would facilitate Mr. Meclure's explanation if some-
thing like that were here..

The witness made a sketch which was filed and marked as Exhibit 40.

Prof. Keany.—Would it be possible, Mr.McLure, that a crack in the psint would
look like a crack in_tle plate itself T v

Mr. MoLure—It riight look like a hair crack, but not like & crack § of an
inch wide.

Prof. Keray.—The evidence of the witness Davis was directed towards a narrow
crack, not § of an inch wide.

Mr. McLure.—Yes. ‘

Prof. Kerav.—Have you ever been misled personaily by any such surfaoe

cracks {
Mr, McLure—~No, sir, not that T recollect; I always carry something around
- to scrape the painf off. : _ : '
Prof. Kesny.—Have you been misled to the extent of requiring to scrape the
paint off to make sure { ‘
Mr. MoLuas.—I do not remember any particular instance. )
Prof. Kzany.—Passing from errors and cracks, Mr. McLure, what can you tell us
about the deformations of the menshers thet have ‘been observed?
" Me, MoLusk—~In all the compression members, especially thezs with hoavy webs,
we.have noticed more or less deformation in the webs. :
Prof. Kxsry —That is in advence of erection!
Mr, MoLoyz—In advance of apection, yes, sir.
Prof. Kenry.—The deformation would amount to how much?! A o
_slr, MoLuxm~T do not think in any case over three quarters-of an inch aed not
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usually as much as half an inch. I do not remember the figures, we measured-a
- -———-few-and sighted along a greater number. .. ..o e

Prof. Kerry.--You would not be able to observe whether that deformation ran com-
pletely ecross the ribs or not, yous observation would be mainly confined to the uppep
surface, would it notf ‘

Mr, McLure~The only way you could observe that would be by measuring the
ribs witb a line, top and bottom.

Prof. Kerry.—Was that done in any cases?

Mr. MoLuge.—I do not remember except in the cases of the chords in place that
we measured recently.

Prof. Kerey.—Then to the best of your knowledge no wembers went into the
bridge with deformation in excess of the neighbourhood of half an inch?t

Mr. MoLure.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And you inspected all the members before they were placed in the
bridge for that among other defects, did you?

Mr. McLvre.~I did all mémbers with the exception of the first nine bottom chords
of ‘he south anchor arm. which were placed before I arrived on the work.

Prof. Kerry.—The first nine. Which would thg first nine be specifically?

Mr. McLure.—From one to nine inclusive.

Frof. Kerry.—On one side?

M- L.cLUuRe—DBoth sides,

Prof. Garbaari—When you say the deroiination was not more than one half
inch, hiw is the deformation meaeured; what base line do you measure from; between
what pcirts are you taking the measurement{

Mr McLure—Usually the total length of the latticing, 1 think.

Prcf. GaLrraITIL—A straight line from one end to the other

Mr. McLune.—I do not remember exactly how we dil measure them au,

Pro.'. GALBRAITH.—You are estimating by eye fron: a straight linet

Mr. McLure.—No, actual measurement with a rule.

Prc.. GarbraitH.—Did you stretch a line from one end to tne otherf

Mr, McLurE—From one end to the other as far as we could get in some. I do
not remember whether in every case we went from one end to the other witn the line,
beeause it would not be possible to do it on account of the connections at the end, but
T thin) we covered the latticing in every case to a batten plate.

Proi. GALBRATH.~-You went from one hatten plate to the other with the linot

Mr. MoLune—There 35 not always a batten plate at each end of a compression
member; vhat is, a splice plate acts as a batten plate when fully riveted ¢n, and in
the condition in which we made these measurements a splice plate would not oo en.

Prof. Gavsrairi.—The line would be roughly in the neighbourhiood of 50 feet?

Mr. McILugre~1 cannot give you any general rule.

Prof. GaLBrAITH.—What I want to get at is waether you are speaking of local
deformations measured from a short base line, say from 5 to 10 fect or whether you
are speaking of a general deformation of the whole web taken from o bage line as
nearly as possiblo from end to end.

Mr. MoLure.-—That is what I was referring to.

Prof. GaLsrarrit—And you say that it was in the latter way that the measure-
ment was taken? . ' '

Mr. MclL.ure.—~Yes, sir.

. Prof. GaLsaarri—And the deformations, as far as you know, did not exzced
one-half incht

Mr. MoLure.—Yes, sir, to the best of my recollection.

Prof. Kerry.—~Now, you might tell us all that you know about the subsequent
deformations{ , , - N L
, Mr. McLure~—I watched the mair ovost for subsequent deformations and never
found any. The post P—4 anchor and cantilever erm, at the time of the co lapse of the
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bﬁdge, had already received their maximum compression siresses as well as post
~ P—38. 1 had watched all thewe posts for deflections and never could detect any. Also

some of the sub-diagonals connected to tkese posts. The intermediate verticols be—
tween theas posts I had watched for signs of buckling but never detected any, In the ‘
centre post particularly I had watched together with Mr. Rinloch to detect when the
different sections would be exactly in line across the splices and we had observed thet
centre post numerous times at & not very remote date and from our observations it
was perfectly in line. .

Prof. Kerev.—The joints of the post were bearing full 1

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir, every one of them,

Prof. Kerry.—And the post itself, as far as you could observe, was perfectly truef

Mr. MoLune.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. Kerry.—It was swinging on the main pinf

Mz, Mol.ure.—It had freedom to turn on the main pin.

Prof. Kerny.—-At no very remote date, you say; you niean any time last month?

Mr, McLure~—VYes, sir, not any longer ago than that.

Prof. KErRY.—A month previous to the accident!

Mr. MoLure.—Yes, sir. )

Prof. Kenrv.—Then with regard to the chord sectionst

Ar. McLurg—1I think the first thing my attention was called to in regard to
bending in the chord section wrs the splice between chord 7 and 8-L on the cantilever
arm, which had one of the inuer ribscbent in towards the other one between the
dinphragms, a mazimum of three-quarfers of nn inch right at the splice. That did
not extend entirely to the top of this tib although it did slightly, that is it was ot
three-quarters of ‘an inch at the top but it was 1 forget how much, something less.

Prof. Kesry.—The lining at the top of the two ribs, 7 and 8, was not perfectf

Mr. McLure.—Not perfect but less out of line than the beam. Tt was measured
very carefully by Mr. Birks and myself and reported with a recommendation to in-
sett a diaphragm betweon the inner ribs cxtending upward six rivets, U think,

Prof. Kerrv.—That is a diaphragm conneeting the two inner ribs {

Wr. Molurr.—Yes, sir, and I think Mr. Cooper did not approve of that methol,

Prof. KerRY.~—Tn any cuge the recommendation wai not carricd outf

Mr. MoY.ure—No, sit, not yet. I believe it was being discussed at the time of
tho accident between Mr. Cooper and tho Phenix Bridge Company.

Prof. Garprainy. ~By the top do you mean tie nerth d of the chordt

Mr. MoLurg.--No, the top and bottom of the riv.

Prof. GaLpraTH~—Four or five feot betweend

Mr. McLure~Yen, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Was that the only ca  of failure to line that had come to your
attention, Mr, McLured

Mr. MoLure—No, there was something similar at tho splice between chord 3 and
9 I on the cantilerer arm. It was only ¥ of an inch out of line. The eame rib at
tho bottom of tho vib, the tep of the rih was perfectly safe. That was not reporied
because it was mot considercd of sufficient importance ead any reinforcement] thay
raight be recommended for the chosd that was out of line three-quarters of an inch
would apply to the other, ~ :

Prof. Kenry.—Were these deflections corrected before the joint plater wore riveted
onf

Mr. MoLure.—They never were correcled.

Prof. Kerry.—These joints have not been rivated §

Mr., Molure.—No, sir, not completed.

- Prof. Kerrv.—Is it a customary thing to find when the riveting was about to

commenoce, that there were little crrors in lining betwecn. the ribs? )

Mr. MoLuRE~Errors of lining but not errors of alignment except the two in-
stanoes I have mentioned. . Errors of lining I should take to mean that oue rib did
not match the other at the end exactly. L oo
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Prof. Krary.—That is what 1 wmean ¢
e Mr. MoLune.—Yes, sir, I found sevcral of those errors on the anchor and oanti-
: lever arm both and they always occurred on one of the two inner ribs at the bottom.
One splice in the cantilever nrm, I forget which orc it was, the error did not amount
to more than one-quarter of an inch. It was referred to Mr. Cooper in my corred
spondence and he replied to do the best we could with it. I described our method of
jacking the rib back; but he sakd to make the best job we could with it.

Prof. KErrv.—Would the wind in the rib extend far back or would it start a
the diaphragm plate and be just a little local twist ?

Mr. McLuRE~Well, it is so small you could not detect it with your eye. It was
just by having the two not matched that you could tell there was any at all.

Prof. Kegry.—Tt was never permitted to start to rivet up any of these chord joints
until the two adjoining sections were in contact from the top joint to the bottom {

Mr, McLure.—Yes.

Prof. Keary.—That was the practice followed ?

Mr. McoLure—Yes, that was the practice; there never was any riveting done
until an attempt was made at least to get them into perfect contact. Of course there
were slight variations; it was not possible to jack a thing back all the way, I think

Prof. KErry.~—You arc misunderstanding me for the minute. Y understand that
as far as ihe lining of the ribs of two adjacent sections is concerned, that they were
jucked into line a3 closely s possible?

\{r. McLure.—Jacked into line ag clozely as possible.

Prof. Krany.—And thea side plates were put on, and then they were riveted in
that position?

Mr. McLure—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And the deviation at the time you left them would probably not
be as great as one-sixteentlh of an inch {

Mr. McLure.—No, sir.

Prof. Keray.—Considering the ends of two adjacent chord sections, they would
have been put in in most of the cases you have mentioned with the apper ends in con:
tect and with the camber tiken cace of by an opening in the bottom?

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir. )

Prof. Kerry.—Before the riveting was commenced, and at the time of this jack-
ing and interlining, would those joints be clozed up perfectly .

\fr. McLune—No riveting was ever started or any joints in a chord before they
had a full bearing.

Prof. Kekry.—They were carcfully inspected for that

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir. )

Prof. Kerry.—Would you show us, by gketch, what the method of jacking wasl

Mr. McLure—I do not think I could. It was customery to support the jack
agninst the other inner rib and to transfer part of the pressure to the next outer 1ib
by means of a wooden shore.

Prof. Kerry.—Was any precaution taken, Mr. McLure, to get the four ribs in
thait corrcet relative positions (o one another when finally jacked into position? If 1
remembor rightly, in each case th- four ribs were held by diaphragm plates within four
feet of the jointi

Me, McLure—Yes,

Prof. Kerry.—So that any alteration in the correct theoretical spsecing of ribo .
wes cither a shop error or it would be a bead that would oceur in the last four feet
of the rib?

Mr. McLugr. -No, because these diaphragms do not extend the full length of the
rib, they only e d about hal{ way down or a little over, I think.

Prof. Kegry. Was it possible for oue of these ribs to werp below the diaphragm!

Mr. McLugz.—-I should think so; this boud that caused the imperfect bearing
might sxtend back of the diaphregm ¢ the bottom, and, as 1 said before, all the im-
perfect tatchings that were noticed v re ai the bottom.
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Prof. Keary.—That wind might start further back than the (iaphragm 1

Mr. MoLurg.—Y¥es, I should think so.

Prof. Kerav.—And would the spacings between the ribs be correct when you
finished jacking, or how much would they-be in-errori . L I

Mr. McLure.—I do not think they ever measured it. ‘

Prof. Kerav.—You never measured iti

Mr. MoLure.—No, sir.

Prof. Kerrv—How would you determine when it became a question of jacking
one rib out and the other int How would you determine which to work on, or would
you jack both{

Mr, McLure.—We would jack the rib which seomed to be out of line, but that
would be a matter of judgment. )

" %’rof. GALBRAITH.—Was the riveting of the diaphragm you speak of done in the
shop :

Mr. McLure—Yes, sir,

Prof. GaLsraITH.—Or done in the field, or done sometimes in one place and some-
times in the other. _

Mr. McLure.—The diaphragms Mr. Kerry referred to as being back of the splics
about four feet were riveted in the shop entirely, I think.

Prof. GaLBrRAITH.—(oing back to that 7-8 joint in the cantilever arm, that 3 of an
inch deviation, was that entirely in one rib#t

Mr. McLure.-—Yes, sir, entirely.

Prof. Garsrarri.—The other three ribs lincd correctlyi

Mr. McLure.—The other three lined correctly.

Prof GALBRAITH.—Were there any instunces to your knowledge, Mr. MecLure, in
which the side plates had to be bent to boar up correctly against the two chord mem-
bers? R

Mr. McLure.~-No, sir, not to any extent,

Prof. GALBRAITH.—So far a8 you know in each case the side plate that was set on
the cutside was a plane surface?

Mr, McLune.—Yes, sir,

Prof. GaLpratini=-fo that beyond this deviation of the inner ribs you have men-
tioned you were not aware of any defeet in the lining of the adjacent chords {

Mr. MoLure.—Not at the splice. T said I did not know of any splice plate that
had to be bent. I wish to qualify that by eaying that at the splice between 7 and 8-L
the splice plate on the rib that was bent was riveted on and that splice plate—---

Prof. GarsemrTi—~That is on an jimer rib {

Mr. McLuke-—-An inner rib,

Yrof. GaLBRAITH.—As far as you know the spliced ribs on the onter xib at the
same point were true {

Mr, McLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. GatsraITH.—What defect did you notice in the chord members, not at the
splices but between the splices, along the length of a member §

Mr. McLung.-—My attention was called by Mr. Kinloch to the bends in chord A-9-
T in the anchor arm, and 8 and 9-R in the cantilever arm. ’

Prof. GaLsrAITH.—At the same time or different times ]

Mr, MoLure.—At the same time.

Prof. GALBRAITH.—But you have heard of those defents of those thice - 1ords at
the same time §

Mr. McLure.-—I believe bo meniioned something about the cantilever arm two or
three days before he called my attention to the anchor arm, but I do not remember
just what he said, I just have a faint recollection of him saying something.

Prof. Garsrarmi.—You did not make any inspection of those 1

Mr, McLure.—Not at that time. -
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Prof. GaLBRAITH.—And the first inspection you made personally was when Mr.
Kinloch called your attention to the A-9-L chord on the anchor arm {

o Mr.McLure—Yes, sir. _

Prof. GaLsraith, Did you say he called your attention to AD-RY

Mr. McLure—No.

Prof. Keary.—I think somcbody mentioned yesterday without going into the
evidence, Mr. McLure, that you were sick shortly previous to the failure of the bridget

Mr. McLure.—Yes, o

Prof. Kerry.—Between what dates would you have been absent from the brilge ¢

Mr, McLure—Between Saturday afternoon, August 17, and Friday morning,
August 23.

Prof. Kerry.—Then probably just on your return Mr. Kinloch mentioned some-
thing about it ¢

Mr. McLure—1I think it was theiternoon of my return.

Prof. Kerzy.—The chords on t)<§mtilever arm ?

Mr. McLURE~—Yes, sir,

Prof. Kerry.—When did he draw your attention to the A-9-L on the anchor arm{

My, McLure—On Tuesday morning, August 27. :

Prof. Xerry.—About the middle of the morning ?

Mr. McLure.—About 9.30.

Prof. Keray.—What action was takent .

Afr. McLure.—We went immediately with Mr. Birks to the chords, first 0 A-9-L,
and took measurements, with a line stretched from the cdge of the batter. plate to
batten plate.

Prof. Kerny.—You measured the off-sets

Mr. McLure.—Measured the off-sets along the line at every panel point of the
lattice ends. '

Prof. GaLsraiti.—What sort of line

Mr. McLure—A bit of string, fish line, T think it was.

Prof. GaLraiTi.—IHave you a record of these measurcments with you {

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

Document produced, filed and marked Fxhibit No. 41.

Prof. Xerry.—This exhibit No. 41, shows the measurements taken nt that timef

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—As soon as you took those ireasu..ments, Mr. McLure, what
followed ?

Mr., McLure.—Pretty shortly after that we went to lunch.

Prof. Kerry—That is to say you measured th. one chord 9-L and then went to
luncht

Mr. McLure.—Measured the three of them. It took pretty nearly till lunch, and
then 9-R cantilever and then 9-1 in the cantilever arm. :

Prof. Kenny.-~You went immediately over and measured those as wellt

Mr. McLugre.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Then what followed?

Mr. McLure.—Well, at lunch we talked it over at the bridge.

Prof. Kerry.— We, would mean whom, in that casel

Mr. McLure—Mr. Birks, Mr. Yencer, and, part of the time, Mr. Kinloch, I
thifdk, and myself; and we Jdecided to report immediately with sketches.

Prof. KerrY.—To whom{ )

Mr, McTure.—To Mr. Cooper and to the Phoe:ix Bridge Company.

Prof. Keray.—Did you discuss at that time e 1o whether any more work should
be done or not? N

Mr, McLure.—Yes. >

Prof. Xerry.—Pending those reportsi

Mr. McLure.—Yes.
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Prof. Kxarv.—~And your conclusion wast ' . )

Mr, MoLure.—There was not any definite conclusion reached at that time. I
think Mr. Yenseer said it was his intention not to add any more work to the bridge
until we found out what was causing the condition of the chords, =

Prof. KerrY.—Was your own opinion of the advisability of adding any more
weight, expressed{ - -

Mr. MoLuge.—Yes.

Prof. Kerrv.—And to what effecti i

Mr, MoLure.—I said at the time I thought it would be poor policy to either move.
the traveller or add more weight, because if anything had to be done to rectify those
chords, it could be easier done at that time than after the atress had been increased.

Prof. Keray.—You were convinced that those deflections had occurred after the
members were placed in the bridgef

Mr, MoLure.—I was convinced of that in the case of chord 9-L of the anchor arm.
Of the chords in the cantilover arm I was not sure.

Prof. Keray.—You did not consider that there was any possibility of the A-9-L
¢hord in the anchor arm tecovering itselfl

Mr. MoLure.—You mean getting back into line again?

Prof. Kerry.—Yes.

Mr. MoLuge.—No, sir; I did not sce it could. I do not know that I ever thought
of it doing that at all. . :

Prof. Kerry.—You would not, as an cngineer, consider that a column that was
once forced out of line by direct thrust along its axie, could possibly recover itself
while that thrust remained on the columnt ,

Mr, MoLune—No, not without the application of some exterior force,

Prof. Keiry.—That is to say it was recognized at the time that some ection had
to be taken to straighten up that member {

Mr. MoLugre.—I thought so, yes.

Prof. Kerry.—And your decision was to report imimnediately to My, Cooper the
condition of affairst )

Ar, McLure.-—Yes, sir, ) o ) o

Prof. Kerry.—And you had also the statement of Mr. Yciver thys he did not
propose 1o place any more load on the member until he was fuither advised by the
proper authority?

AMr, McLure.—Yes, I was so convinced that that was his determination that I
mentioned that in my letter to Mr. Cooper.

Prof. *rry.—What further action did you take then?

A(r. MoLune.—I took the rest of the day to get that report off.

Prof. Kenny.—You wrote a report to Mr, Cooper, which went off that eveningi

Mr, MoLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerny.——Fully degeribing the situationt

Mr. McLunre——With sketches.

Prof. Kerry.—And then what further action?

Mr. MoLure—I called up Mr. Hoare on the telephone, and told him I would like
to see bim that afternoon, and went in to see him in Quebec. I explained the situation
to him and wo talked it over. X suggested going to Pheenixville and New York, and
he seemed to think it would be a good plan. He told e first to go out in the morning
and examine all conneciions in the bridge that could possibly have any relation to those
members, and see if I could find any further cause of trouble, also to run the levels
of the main pier. .

Prof. Keray.-——Thes instructions were carried outl

Mr. McLure~Yes, sir, by Mr. Kinloch and myself.

Prof. Kersy.—And you found no alterations in the levels of the main piert

Mr. McLune—Not the slightest. . :
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Prof. Kerry.—And you found no further indications of troublef

Mr. McLure—No further indications of trouble whatever, in any other members
than the ones mentiored. .

- - Prof: -Kerry.~~You noted :immediately in_the ‘morning _that Mr. Yenser "had
changed his decisionl . T

Mr. McLure—Almost immediately.

Prof. Keray.—Did you take any action with regard to thatt

Mr. McLure.—No, sir, I told him I thought it was poor policy, that was all.

Prof. Kerry.—You told Mr. Yenser—-

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—That you thought it was bad judgment on his part to do so

Mr. McLure~I do not think I eaid bad judgment; I think I said poer policy.
Mr, Birks and I had already figured that moving the traveller would increase: the
stress on that chord a very slight amount. I think I got ¥0 pounds a square foot and
he got 50 poundn a square foot &8 the increased stress; that is about one-half of one
per cent of the ttress it was receivirg at that time. !

Prof. Kerry.—You were both trained engineers, Mr. McLure, and did it occur
to you in connection. with that investigation that a column that had been bent out of
Line under stress along its axis is likely to go on and continue to bend out of line
under the same stressi

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

. Prof. KErry.—At & more rapid ratel :

Mr. MoT.ure.—I do not know that the rate entered into my thoughts, but I fully
understood that a column out of line is more apt to bend than it would have been if
it had been straight, under the same stress.

Prof. Kerry—You were perfectly clear in your own mind that the safe unit
stress on & column bent out of line is considerably less than the safe unit stress on a
column that is perfectly truet

Mr. McT.ure.—Yes, sir. )

Prof. Kerrv.—And what ground did you take with regard to the small increase
of stress which the movement of the traveller would produce in the memberi

1r. McLure~—In my own mind I did not consider it would do any particular
harm to mcvé the traveller.

Prof. Kerry.—You did not think ‘hat the increaso in the stress itself

AMr. McLure—Would be sufticient to cauce any trouble with that chord. To
prove that T walked out behind the traveiler while they moved it.

Prof. KerRy.—We aro to understand there was just tho one deinite measure-
ment made for that chordi ’

Mr. McLure—That is all to my knowlrdge.

Prof. Kerry.—You were on the bridge when the traveller was moved out?

Mr. McLugre.—Yes, sir.

Prof. KerrY.—And you examined the chord after it was moved outf

Ar. MoLurr.—Yes, sir, without measurivs it,

Prof. Ksrry.—Without noticing any alterations?

Mr, MoLure~—Not much.

Prof. Kenpy.—-Without measurement ¥

¢, McLure—Yes, sir,

Yrof. KERrRY.—And you left the bridze when?

- M. McLure—I left at 12.30 on Wedneaday.
fProf. Kerry.—Was the traveller then fully out?

Mr. McLure.—Yes, 8ir. )

Prof. Keray.—Your letter would have reached New York about whent

Mr. McLure.—Resached there the same time I did.

Prof. Kerry.—You wrote it on Tuesday i .

Mr. MoLuge.—It was mailed Tuesday evening, and I do mot know what time it-
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reached the city, but Mr. Cooper would have received it and resd it 'when he came to
the office on Thursday morning, which he did.

. Prof. Kerav.—Wes Mr, Yenser's action in moving out the - seller reported to
Mr. Hoare or Mrx, Cooper{ i R

Mr. MoLuRe.~Well, not in that letter, because that was before he moved the
traveller, ‘

Prof. Kerrv.—I mean you did not wire to Mr. Cooper that that action had been
taken previous to your leaving Quebeot? :

Mr. MoLure.—No, sir. .

Prof. Keaay.—-Did you telephone to Mr. Hoare about it{

Mr. MoLurg.—Mr. Hoare was on his way out to the bridge ' .

Prof. Kerry.—Mr. Hoare was on his way to the bridge, so that he saw when he
came out—at what time did he arrivel

M1, MoLure.—About eleven o’clock, 1 think, on Wednesday.

) Prof. Kerry.—You drew his attention, when he came out, to the fact that the
traveller had been removed?{

Mr. MoLuge.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—Did you discuss at that time whether it was necessary to take
any action of that sort in regard to the safety of the bridge?

Mr. MoLure.—Nobody had any idea that the safety of the bridge was in danger.

Prof. Kerry.—So that the matter was mnot discussed {

Mr. MoLugre.—Not discussed in that light.

Prof. Kerry.—You are clear on that, Mr. McLurel You mean that it aever
oceurred to any one that the safety of the bridge was threatened

or, MoLurg~~No, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—And that any drastic action to protect the bridge was tlicrefore
not thought aboutf

Mr. McLure.—That is the idea.

Prof. Kerry.—You went over the bridge with Mr. Hoare?

r, McLure.—No, I did not. I left too soon for New York and Phenixville.

Prof. Kerry.—You left to go down to Now York and you did not nroropsny
Mr. Hoare on his examination of the bridge!

Mr. Mcl.ure—No, sir.

Prof. Kenry.—And between Tuecsday morning and the time you left no weccu-
rate measurements wers made to see whethee that defleciion was increasing?

Mr. MclLures-No, s&ir, no actual measurements.

Prof. Kernvi—Then what followed, in your own personal experience, Mr
McLure, after you left the bridget

Mr. McLuge.~ I got to New York next morning at 7.20.

Prof. Kerry.—That would be Thureday morning{ .

Mr. McLuke.—Thursday morning—went down to Mr. Cooper's office and saw
Mr. Berger. Mr. Cooper did not get in till 11.16, and so I had to wait and see him.
As soon as he came in he found my letter waiting for him, and he read it and X
went in to sce him. 1 also had my notes and sketehes with me and explained the
matter to him.

Prof. Kerrnvy.—Are these notes and skotches in evidencel

Mr. McLure.—This sketch you hase (sketch marked exhibit No. 41) 1 showed
to Mr. Cooper.

Prof. Kerny.—And?

Mr. McLuRe-—We talked the matter over; I explained to him any poiuts he
was not clear on and he told me to go to Phenixville.

Prof. KErav.—It was a thorough discussion, Mr. McLuret

Mr. MoLure.—I do not remember just what was said.

Prof. Kerry.—How long were you valking over the matter?

Mr. McLure. Not more than 45 minutes.
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Prof. Kesey.—You drew Mr. Cooper’s atteation then to the fact that the
traveller had been moved forward sincel .

My McLurg=Yus. - e e e e

Prof. Kerav.—And to the fact that no further measurement of the defiections
had been madel ]

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir. I also told him that as far as we could see by eye no
further change was noticed in the chord since the moving of the traveller. I told
him that ‘it was my understanding when I left the bridge that there would be mo
more metal erected until advices were received regarding these chords. That was
my understanding with Mr. Yenser. I nsked kim whether, in his opinion, it would
be all right to go shead with the evection with the chords in that condition, and hie
sst down and wrote a telegram to the Phenixville Bridge Company.

Prof. Kerrv.—He did not answer you directlyl

Mr. McLure.—No, I.do not think he answered me.

Prof. Kerey.—You are not personally aware of the wording of the telegramti

Mr. McLure.—Not of the exact words—no.

Prof. Kerry.—Did he tell you what the effect of the telegram was?

Mr. McoLugre.——He showed it to me.

Prof. Keray.—And it saic practically what!

. Mr. McLure—Don’t add any more weight to the bridge until the facts are
carefully considered, or something to that effect; I cannot remembe: if these are
the exact words. Mr, McLure will arrive five o’clock—I think he added to it.

Prof. Gavsrarrii,—What was that you said?

Mr. McLukr.—Mr. McLure wiil arrive at five o’clock,

Prof. GaLsrarrH.—Where {

Mr. McLure.—Phenixville. )

Prof. GaLsruiti.—He was telegraphing to the Phenix Bridge Company {

Mr. McLure—~The Phenix Bridge Conipany. .

Prof. Kearry.—The facts would be, Mr. McLure, that at noon on Tuesday Mr.
Yenser stated that he would not incresse the load on the bridge by moving the traveller
forward 1 ’ ’

Mr. McLure.—In the afternoon it was.

Prof. Keery.—In the afternoon of Tuesday 1

Mr. McLure.—VYes.

Prof. Kenry.—That on Wednesday morning, without further consultation with
you, he conmneneced to move the traveller out { '

Mr. McLure.—1I asked him his reason and he gaid that he had too many 1men out.
¢ Prof. Kerrv.-—Practically moved the traveller out to find work

AMr. McLure.—~-For the number of men he had out.

Prof. Keruy.—That was his reason for it 1

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerrv.—And that you advised him'at the time—--

Mr. McLure.—That I thought it was poor policy.

Prof. Kerry.—But at *he same time you did not consider that it was dangerously
ircreasing the strain on the mocinber 1

Mr. McoLure.—1I do not think T told him that.

Prof. Krrav.—But you agreed to that with Mr. Birks [

Mr. McLuge.—I had that in my mind.

Prof. Kerry.—You and Mr, Birks had looked into that and that was your joint
conclusion 1 :

Mr. McLuRe.—Yes, sir. .

Prof. Kerrv.—And that when you reached Mr. Cooper and gave him the facts he
finmedintely wirced to cease increasing the-load-on-#l 3. 1nembers 1. . o

Mr. McLure —Yes, sir,

Prof. Keray.—Then what followed? You left for Phenixville!
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Mr. MdLuie.—Yes, I got to Phomixville about five o’clock, went to the office of
the Bridge Company and had a talk with Mr. Deans about these chords. I forgot to
mention that when I was in Mr. Cooper’s office 1 got & telegram from Mr. Birks—that
was about half-past ten o'clock on” Thursday morning=—suying that—I- have -the-tele-
gram here—do you want to see it{

Prof. Kearv.—It would be as well to read it.

Mr. McLure.—(reading) ;: ‘I do not think we can state positively that chord has
buckled since erection ; the only definite evidence we have shows the contrary. See
gykie,tmr with additional data in Phenixville to-morrow morning. Signed A. H.

irks. .

Prof. GaLBRAITH.—At what hour was that telegram sent from here {

Mr. McLure.—It has 9.45 on it.

Mr. Horoate.—That is the receipt in New York.

Prof. Keary.—When you said to Mr. Yenser that it was pcor policy to move the
iraveller forward you were not thinking at the time of the safety of the bridge but of
the difficulty of making the necessary repairs { : :

r. McLure.—That is what I had in mind—the difficulty of making repairs under
the increased stress.

Prof. Kennv.—Referring to Mr. Birks’ telegram, he mentions positive evidenoe
there. Did you see that evidence !

Mr. MoLure.—I have not seen any evidence yet that I consider positive.

Prof. Keray.—Did you see the letter {

Mr, McLure.—I think Mr. Deans showed me the letter.

Prof. Kerry.-~What information was there bearing on this chord 1

yr. McT.ure.—1le stated his reasons why he thought it was poussible that the bend
niight have been there longer than we *hought it had.

Prof. Kerry.—But without anything absolute in the way of measurements {

yfr. McLure—Yes, without anything absolute in the way of measurements.

Prof. Kerry.—What Hllowed in your discussion !

1. MoLure.—1 showed that telegram to Mr. Cooper when I was in New York,
and when T got to Phenixville Mr. Deans and I talked it over. He said that he had a
telephone message from Mr. Birks, I think, stating that it was his opinion that the
bends in the A-9-L chord were not of recent occurrence, that he was writing a letter
explaining the mstter and had written a letter explainivg the matter which they
would receive the sollowing morning. . Deans :-zmed also to think that the bends
had probably been in the chord, if not since it was turned out of the shop, they wero
thare for some time.

Prof. Kerry.—1id he offer you any definite evidence of the fact {

r. Mcl.ure—Nothing, except that he said, X think if you would measure some
chords at Bolair you would find similar bends.

Prof. Kegry.—Was there anything further in your conversationd

r. Mcivre—No, we did not bring it to any definite close on accourt of our
desire to wait for Mr. Birke’ letter to sce what he had to say about the reazons for
not thinking that the bends were of recent occurrence; so that we agreed to meet the
following morning when Mr. Birks’ letter would be there and talk the matter over
further.

Prof. Kerrv.—Then what followed1 '

Mr. McLure—I left the office at about gix o'clock, and I heard of the collapee
of the bridge about 7.30. ‘

Prof. Keray.—How did that word reach yout

Mr. McLure.—1t reached me by someone telling me that someone bad telephoned
to them that the bridge had fallen down.

 Prof. KerrY.—It was indirect?
Mr. McLure.—Indirect, yes.
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Prof. Kezrv.—Did you make any further investigation into the history of that
chord while you were siill in Phenixvillei
Mr. McLruer.—No, I left early the ncxt morning.

- Prof. Krsar.—Simply came straight threugh-to-Quebeet —- ———- oo

Mr. McLuere.~Came right back. )

Mr. Stuart.—Will you ask him whether he brought any other instructions to
Phenixville—to Mr. Deans—than were conteined in the telegram which Mr. Cooper
had sent. .

- Prof. Kerry.—Did you have any verbal instructions at all to the Phenir Bridge
Company i ’

Mr. McLure.—Mr. Cooper told me to go to Phenixville, see Mr, Deans and tell
him thst some steps must be taken to strengthen that chord—I think he said—or to
repair the chord, and I do not think I told him that that evening at Phenixville.

Prof. Keerv.—My. Cooper’s telegram had already been received when you
reached Phenixvilled '

Mr. McLvae~Yes, I think Mr. Deans said that he had had a telegram from Mr.
Cooper when I reached (bere.

Mr. Stuart.—I thouzht Mr. McLure said that he showed Mr. Birke’ telegram to
Mr. Deans. ‘

Mr. McLere.—Showed it to Mr. Cooper. 1 do not know whather I showed it to
Mr. Deans or not; maybe I did.

Mr. Stuart.—At that time Mr. Birks' letter to Mr. Deans had not been received.
It was only received on the following morning, end they decided to wait until they
received that letter.

Prof. Kerry.—That is what Mr. McLure gaya in his evidence.

Mr. Stuart.—Much of it I miss because he speaks =0 low.

Prof. Kerry.—Have you heard anything further from Mr. Cooper since your
interview with him in New Yorki

Mr, McLure.—I stopped to see him o my way back here.

Prof. Keary.—Did you see him at that timel

Mr. McLure.— Yea, sir.

Pro. Kerry.—1)id he express any opinion at alll

Mr. McLure—He said: C Wdll, it’s that chord! T only saw him a few minutes;
he was not fecling very good.

(In confirmation and explenation of previous statement the wituess identified
Exhitit No. 41 as conectly showing the measurements made on the morning of Tues-
day, August 27, of chord No, 9-L of the anchor arm and chords Nee. §-R and 2-R of
the cautilever arm.)

Prof. Keray.—Is that correct, Mr. McLurel

Mr. McLurr.—Yez, sir.

Prof. Kirry.~At the time ha! thess measiurements were made, Mr. McLure,
were the oppozite chords in each cas: examinedt

Mr. McLUre.—Not by me.

Prof. Kergy.—-You just went over these three chordst

Mr. McLure—Yes.

Prof. Kegry.—Practically, in the whole systern of inspection, Mr. McLure, there
was no means of definitely ascertaining whether these chonls were straight or whe
their deflection from the atesight wes when they were placed in the bridgei They had
not been messured for true, and there wss no record of their shap deflections

Mr. McLure.—I think not.

Prof. Kerv.—So that any discussion in regard to the tin.  that +1-t deflection
took place would be a matter of opiniont

Mr. McLure. ~Well, we knew that every piece, particularly evciy main member
that went into the bridge, kad been inrpected for just such things as bends in the
ribs. We also knew that nothing as large as the bends we had messured, particularly
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in the A-9-L chord, could poesibly have eecaped an inspection such as we gave that

Prof. Kxzav.—My recollection of previous evidenoe is thsu vou and Mr. Birks
__together made the final ingpection of esch member before it was put in.

Mr. MoLuze—Mr. Kinloch made the same inspection, too.

Prof. Kzaay.—The inspection on the car previous to the boisting of the mem-
ber was made by whom!

Mr. McLore.—Mr. Kinloch and myself, and Mr. Birks, ususlly. Mr. Birks paid
particular attention to the attechment of the attachments.

HP'rof. Kerar.—You and Mr. Kinloch paid particular attenfion to the member
itee

My, McLure—Yes.

Prof. Rzary.—You are absolutely convinced thmt you would not have paesed 8
member with any such deflection upon itt

r. McLure—Yea. Of course, I was not here when A-9-1, e¢hord was erected.
Mr, Kinloch was. .

Prof. Kerry (to Mr. Kinloch).—Previous to Mr, McLure coming here did that
system of inspecting members on the car before they were placed in position exist!

Mz, Kixroen.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kzray.—So that chord 9-L would have been inapected by you previous to
unloading from th: ars to the traveller? ’

Mr. KiNLOCH~ ~es, sir, and it was also free from sny upright members for five
or six montha, and any one walking over it could have seen it.

Prof. Kerery (to Mr. McLure).—Had you made, for any reason, any definite
observation of the condition of the chord previcus to the time of the measurement
of the chord as shown in Exhibit No. 411

My, McLure.—Yes, sir, of A-8-L; two or three days before T went to the bwepi-
tsl, the dates of which I have given alrexdy, I sighted along cach rib of the chord,
particularly the rib that had the mark of the chain on, as described by Mr. Kinloch
sesterday, to see if there were any bends noticeable, but particularly to see how the
bend made by that chain was acting under load and, from my cbservation then, I am
convinzed that the rits were straight.

Prof. Kerky.—That is to say within & defiection of ——1

r., WoLUrr.—Within two or three weeks of the accideni.

Prof. Kerrv.—They were straight to within what wind!

r. Mcl.vre—To within at least half sn inch.

P'rof. Keray.—The condition and the progress of the wark at that time would
be fully 1oenrded; more particularly, T suppose, this =vould be fully recorded in Mr.
Yenser's oports, would it notd

Yy, McLure—At the date of the aceident!

Prof. Kexav.—At the date of your previous inspection—-the position of the
cant lever and the number of picces up at that timet ,

Mr. Moo v —Yes, sir. You could get it either from Mr. Yenzer's reports or
from my boo® s

Prof. Kernvr.—Your tooks would ghow just when each member was raised and
when the trav-ller was moved!

Mr. McTrin—I have a book that ehows the date that each member was raised.

Piof. Krray., Have you a copy of that bock with st

Mr, Mclre-—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kesny.—You might file that &' o, please.

. Mcr.vae.—I could shorten that up by readicg it out of my disry.

Prof. Girseurn—You might do that. '

Prof. Kerar.—Do you want to mehe & atatem: -t from thatt

-. McLure—From this booki
i'rof. Kezrv.—Yest
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Mr. MoLure—Just as it suits you. That will be the shortest way, I think.
You want the condition of the erection at the time I made sn inspection of the
. chord and found it straight. As nearly as I remember the date was August 15.

At that time I have recorded as being erected on that day the bottom chord sections

of the suspended span B-R and L of “sub-disgonals B-P-2-R and L.” These chordd
were connected by pinning disgonal eye-bars T-2-P and L to the hengere T-0-O.
That was on the third panel of the suspended span. The main pos: of the small
traveller then would be over post P-1 of the suspended sren and I shonid eay the
panel mwas approximately half erected—panel 3.

Prof. Keray.—The traveller was sitting on the second panel!

Mr. McLupe.—Yes. The tip of the top forward overhang only hed been
removed.

Commission took recesa.

AFTERNOON SESSION--TWELFTH DAY.

The Commission resumed at 2 p.m.

Mr. Hoare put in monthly progress estimates from June, 1904, to July, 1827,
accompanied by progress diagrams (filed and marked Exhibit No. 42).

Mr. McLugg, recalled.

Prof. Kerrv.—You were familiar with the instructions issued by the Pheenix
Bridge Company in regard to erection, Mr. McLuret

Mr. McLure.—Yes, sir.

Prof. Kerry.—And in all except very minor detsil those instructions were atso-
lutely followed 1

Mr. McLure.—Yes.

Prof. Kerrv.—In particular were the inatructions in regard to the opening at the
joints betwoen the several chords of the lower chord followed exactly{

Mr. McLure.—They conld not follow any instructions in regard to the openings.
They had to make their own openings. You could not meke the openings anything
you wanted to,

Prof. KErry.—Not setting the place originally 1

\r. McLure—You could on the anchor arm. On the ancho: arm the opening
centres are set to a certain elevation. On the cantilever arm the opening in the chord
would be made at a certain point and you could not change that if you wanted to.

Prof. KErrY.—You mean that the length of the members absoutely fixed that
opening {

Mr. McLure.—Yes, vir,

Prof. Kerry.—And as it worked out the openings were »s anticipated 1

Mr. McLure.~The openings agreed fairly well with what was supposed.

Prof. Kerry.—What do you mean by fairly well

Mr. McLure.—They were not always exactly what was indicated on the drawing.

Prof. Kerry.—How much would they vary {

Mr. McLure.—An eighth of an inch.

Prof. Kerry.—1 think you told us that you were not prezent at ithe tima that the
lower chord of the anchor arm was laidt

Mr. McLure.—No, sir.

Prof. Kearv.—So that you cou'd give 4s no positive evidence in regard to those
openings { : ’

Mr. McLure.~I know what they were after I got there,





